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Your valuable feedback is integral to the continuous improvement of our annual report.
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About the Report

Muktinath Bikas Bank is
delighted to present its 19th
Annual Report for the financial
year 2081-82.This report aims
to provide stakeholders with

a comprehensive view of the
Bank's operations, performance,
resources, both financial and
non-financial and its strategy
for creating long-term value.
Over the years, our reporting
has evolved to go beyond
numbers, reflecting
transparency, accountability,
and a compelling story of
how robust governance
drives sustainable value. It
provides a holistic view of

the Bank’s performance,
offering insights into its
primary activities, strategic
priorities, risks and mitigants,
governance framework, the
way it has leveraged the six
capitals, Financial, Human,

Intellectual, Manufactured,
Social and Relationship,

and Natural highlighting
corporate governance, board
and management structures,
business policies, operational
systems and our solid
commitment to stakeholders.
Our reporting approach

has evolved to emphasize
transparency and
accountability, presenting a
clear and compelling story
of how robust governance
drives lasting value for all
stakeholders. This report offers
a comprehensive view of our
performance, highlighting
corporate governance,
board and management
structures, business policies,
operational systems and our
steadfast commitment to our
stakeholders.

REPORTING PERIOD

The information presented in this report pertains to the period from 1st Shrawn 2081 to 32nd Asar 2082 (16th July
2024 to 16th July 2025).

REPORTING BOUNDARY

The financial information contained in the report relates to Muktinath Bikas Bank and its Group Companies,
namely Muktinath Capital Limited (Subsidiary) and Muktinath Krishi Company Limited (Associates). Non-financial
information presented within the report unless explicitly stated refers to information relating to the Bank only.

REPORTING STANDARDS AND PRINCIPLES

The statutory reports presented in this report complies with the requirement of:

m The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with requirements prescribed under Directive 4 of
the NRB unified Directives.

m The accounting and reporting policies of the Bank used in the preparation of these financial statements conform
to Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and NRB Guidelines.

m This report also contains disclosures required by Companies Act, 2063, Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073
and disclosure pursuant to Securities Exchange Board of Nepal.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Bank acknowledges the integrity of the information provided in this Annual Report and believes that the Report
is a fair representation of its financial and non-financial performance in FY 2081-82. The Board is apprised of the
report’s alignment with the framework and acknowledges that the information provided in the report has been
reviewed and approved by the management.
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~_About

Driven by our purpose of "empowering
individuals and businesses financially

to foster the prosperity of the common
populace in the country”, we embarked on
our journey on January 3, 2007. Starting
operations in Putalibazar, Syangja as a

3 District Development Bank licensed by
Nepal Rastra Bank, we initially served

the Syangja, Kaski, and Tanahun districts.
With our transition to a National Level
Development Bank in July 2015, we have
established a strong presence in the
Nepalese banking sector by emerging as a
leading Development Bank.

Our deep-rooted values for social =

core principal of “Seidl Sdodil IS, sich
STGTdTaA 3Tig] US8” (instead people, Bank
should go to the doors of the people] , we
prioritized establishing branches in rural
regions of Nepal with pressing demand
for banking services. Our popularity within
the local community can be attributed

by customer-friendly offerings and our
door-to-door services. We introduced
Microfinance program, targeted to local
MSMEs with dedicated department and
people at all levels to support economically
disadvantaged yet highly productive
individuals with potentials. Pioneering an
innovative approach, we are believed to
be the first to seamlessly cater to both
commercial and microfinance clients
living up our mission of inclusive financial
service provider for all the stakeholder's

wellbeing. As the expansion into financially
viable regions with unwavering approach in
assisting communities and customers, we
take pride in being acknowledged as a key
contributor to the country's socioeconomic.
development with our involvement in micro
and rural financing with value added .
services and funding initiatives of Nﬁ _
importance. a L r

Through our unrelen '—

producti -‘)),,9/: -~ —

mobilizatic
we stay
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inclusion through assess to finance with _

ursel es i end! ir Cl|
and uphold trust as our commitme

our stakeholders. Our steadfa __ tdedi of:

lies in cultivating relationship hat"iields
benefits for all stakeholde?é'," compassing -

customers, shareholders, regulators, s?«f;:

communities and our own team. ‘> J'F &

We received international recognition 'y -::__‘ s a0 e P N
in 2020 AD when we were awarded the At L2 1*;; &
esteemed European Microfinance Award - ;-;:1 ‘:.‘,f‘”
2020 for our dedicated commitment to \ ,::>'§I‘|
accomplishing goal of financial inclusion et

and financial accessibility for rural
communities. We received numerous awards
and acclaims for our services till date, which
has actually humbled our dream for building
a socially and ecologically sustainable
future.



In line with the broader trend in the
banking sector, we have our primary
emphasis on six key dimensions of:
Finance, Operations, Technology,
Organization, Business Model and
reputation. There is a recognized
imperative to be thoroughly examined
and ensure the relevance of our

Business Model, particularly to enhance

short-term resilience and foster long-
term sustainable growth. Our General

Banking division provides an extensive

array of financial services catering

Our visionary approach to being a
wholistic financial service provider
was possible with the establishment
of Muktinath Capital Limited within
our ecosystem. Muktinath Capital
Limited stands as one of the
premium investments and merchant
bank in Nepal, offering a range of
services including share registrar,

to both the public and institutions.
Ranging our services from deposit
acceptance, corporate and retail
credit, project financing, hire purchase
financing, trade financing, personal
and corporate banking, and various
other supplementary services with
primary goal to offer a secure and
convenient means for individuals and

Our distinct yet pioneer framework

of inclusive financial services,
encompassing Micro Banking, Impact
(partnership) Banking, and Wholesale
Banking with fundamental goal of
inclusive banking to facilitate financial
intermediation by offering diverse and
affordable financial services, ensuring
accessibility to people from all walks

businesses to oversee and access their  of life.

funds, facilitating their diverse fina

ncial

requirement.

issue management, underwriting,
depository, portfolio management
and advisory services.

Further we are strengthening the link
between strategy and sustainability
with the establishment of "Muktinath
Krishi Company™. It is an associate
company of Muktinath Bikas Bank

standing as a trailblazer, being the
first public agriculture company
with objective of managerial role

in the complete agricultural value
chain through initiatives in "Krishak
sanga Muktinath" and "Upabhokta
sanga Muktinath” within regulatory
framework of the country.

60.26%

OUR HOLDING SUBSIDIARY

Muktinath Capital Limited has

been established with objectives

of providing merchant banking
services in Nepal. The company has
obtained merchant banking license
from Securities Board of Nepal
(SEBON]) and also has the license of
Depository participant from SEBON
and CDS & Clearing Limited.

The company is engaged in the
business of Issue management,
Underwriting, Portfolio
management, Share Registrar,
Corporate Advisory and Depository
Participant.

22.22%

OURHOLDING ' ASSOCIATE
Muktinath Krishi Company is a pioneer
and the first public agricultural
company established with the aim of
playing a managerial role in the overall
agricultural value chain with the goal of
improving Nepal's agricultural economy.
The primary objective of the company
is to improve agriculture productivity

in rural regions by collaborating

with local authorities, cooperative
societies, agricultural entrepreneurs,
and development organizations at the
grassroots level.

The company is actively involved in
various activities relating to agriculture
offering more than 450 products

and services required in the field of
agricultural production.

MBIAIBAQ
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Name of the Company

Muktinath Bikas Bank Ltd.

Legal Form

Public Limited Company registered on Chaitra 22, 2062
(April 4,2008] Listed with Nepal Stock Exchange

Company Registration Number

956/062/063

Business Commenced On

Poush 19, 2063 (January 03, 2007)

Central Office

Lazimpat-03, Kathmandu, Nepal

Contact No. +977-01-5970887 | 16600149999 | 18102149999
Website www.muktinathbank.com.np

Email info@muktinathbank.com.np

Chairman Mr. Khim Prakash Malla

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Pradyuman Pokharel

Company Secretary

Mr. Dandapani Dhakal

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Sanjiv Poudel

Subsidiary Company

Muktinath Capital Limited
Narayanchaur, Naxal, Kathmandu, Nepal

Associate Company

Muktinath Krishi Company Limited
Basundhara, Kathmandu, Nepal

Statutory Auditors

AP.& Associates Chartered Accountants
Kupondole, Lalitpur, Nepal

Credit Rating Agency

CARE Ratings Nepal Limited
Star Mall, 5th Floor, Putalisadak, Kathmandu, Nepal

Debenture Trustee

Sanima Capital Limited
Sama Marga, Narayanchaur, Naxal, Kathmandu, Nepal

No. of Branches

174

No. of Extension Counters

5

No. of ATMs

22
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~_QOur Trail of Accomplishments

Started Micro
< N Program.

2016

Both the loan and
deposit portfolios

- crossed the NPR10

billion mark.




'2025

Surpassed NPR 100 Billion in

Succes’g’fully issued the
ank's first debent
NPR1.2

2018

Emerged as the Iargest -
development bank in'terms
} of bﬁ'anch network, pqrtfollo




Purpose (3&29)

Empowering individuals and
businesses financially to foster the
prosperity of the common populace in
the country.

QRIHT AATEIRUT SINRBEDD! TARBITT
TAT SIATATNID [T Feifes; T3 |

Vision (ggfte)

To fulfill all banking needs of common
individuals & businesses.

IR SIRB I CATIAIGDD! S
Sfps SMAABAES URT JTet |

Mission (31fa1<meT)

For Individuals: To provide inclusive and customized
banking services to individuals for realizing their
needs and goals.

RAfthaTm! oTifdl : CARBRJ DI SMARAHA I TIGIRD URT
JTot JARM AT FUYTH SfepyF JATES Uelol Jrot |

For Institutions: To offer tailored financial solutions

to institutions primarily MSMEs to help them thrive,

sustain, and create positive impacts for the nation's
economy.

ALRAET DI oIl : o1, Aol AT AN IAAGD eI
SUTH AT JATE2 UGTal I JeIe/ SAAANIG DD
Iaml'\ﬂu%’f GRJIN oi’llé ngafl 3refdesIdT JBIcHD
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Values (dlcIdigy)

Blincerity for Customer (ams uy samoreR)
nthusiastic for Impact (vefrares! T 3cATETa)
Reverent for Compliance (siquieTasT 3ea Be2)
irtuous for Wellbeing (et a1 Jurer)
[Excellence for Effectiveness (samaast T scate)
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Ethical Principles

While conducting business, Bank follows the ethical principles to ensure the highest

business standards.

Conduct and govern all business
activities with integrity, ensuring
they are ethical and transparent.

Offer products and services that
are sustainable and safe for both
people and the environment.

Respect and promote the
well-being of all employees
and all other stakeholders.

Respect the interests of
all stakeholders and be
responsive to their needs.

Provide value to
its customersin a
respaonsible manner.

Comply with all applicable laws, rules,
regulations, and directives issued by
the government and regulatory bodies
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Chairman's
Message

In times of uncertainty, our
stakeholders'trust became

our greatest strength and our
challenges became the seeds
of new beginnings. This year
stands as proof that teamwork,
trust and resilience can turn
possibilities into opportunities.



It is with immense pride and optimism that | present the Annual Report of Muktinath Bikas Bank
Limited for the fiscal year 2081-82. This year has been a year of steady progress, thoughtful
transformation and a blessing in disguise despite market uncertainties & challenges in the economy. It
was our stakeholders' trust in us that pushed us for not only for steady growth but a sustainable one.

Despite the broader economic uncertainties, the Bank
continued to advance with discipline and purpose turning
challenges into opportunities for sustainable growth and
long-term value creation.

Resilience Amid Economic Transition

Nepal's economy in FY 2081/82 showed gradual signs of
recovery amid persistent headwinds. Inflation moderated
compared to the previous year, remittance inflows reached
record highs and external sector stability improved.
However, these gains were tempered by underlying
structural challenges.

The monetary policy stance remained cautiously
accommodative which introduced investor-friendly
measures to encourage the private sector and broaden the
banking system's scope.

In the face of these uncertainties, Muktinath Bikas Bank
demonstrated strong operational discipline and strategic
foresight. Despite the shifting economic environment, we
achieved asset growth of 9.26% a clear indicator of our
precautionary approach and prudent risk management. This
growth was underpinned by stable deposit mobilization,
cautious lending practices and effective portfolio
management. While our board remains committed to long-
term strategic planning, the unpredictability of Nepal's
economic cycles has required us to operate with greater
agility. We have adopted a balanced approach, anchoring
our decisions in a long-term vision, while deploying short-
term strategies to address immediate challenges.

As we move forward, we will continue to refine our
strategies, remaining responsive to both macroeconomic
shifts and the evolving expectations of our communities.

At Muktinath, we have always believed that access

to finance is not merely a service but as a tool for
empowerment. Through the initiative "Karja Sajilo Chha"
meaning “Loans Made Easy", we extended financial

access to small and medium enterprises, farmers, women
entrepreneurs and youth-led ventures helping communities
grow and thrive.

Our goal is to connect with our customers through digital
innovation while making banking simpler, safer and more
accessible. The launch of the Muktinath FAIDA App further
strengthened this vision offering customers seamless
access to banking services with enhanced security and
ease.

Strong governance continues to be the foundation of our
success. The Board of Directors has worked diligently to
ensure that our strategic direction aligns with our core
values of integrity, accountability and transparency. Every
decision we make is guided by long-term perspective and
the conviction that progress achieved with integrity endures
the test of time.

Our purpose extends beyond profitability. Through
programs like the Muktinath Utkrishta Scholarship, financial
literacy campaigns and community-focused initiatives

in health and environment, we have continued to make a
positive difference across Nepal. We are also deepening our
commitment to sustainability by integrating Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG] principles into our operations.
Whether by supporting renewable energy, promoting green
financing or adopting eco-friendly practices, we aim to
ensure that every aspect of our growth contributes to a
more sustainable and inclusive future.

As we look ahead to the coming fiscal year, our aspirations
are clear: to evolve into a digitally driven, customer-focused
and sustainability led institution that creates meaningful
impact. We are committed to expanding financial inclusion,
fostering innovation through ongoing digital transformation
and strengthening our balance sheet to ensure both
stability and profitability. It gives me immense pleasure to
put before the AGM our agenda to upgrade ourself to the ‘A
class financial institution to make a bigger & bolder impact.

| extend my sincere appreciation to our customers for their
trust, our employees for their commitment and dedication,
our shareholders for their unwavering belief in our purpose
and our regulators and partners for their continuous
guidance and cooperation.

The future holds immense possibilities and with unity

of purpose and strength of values, | am confident that
Muktinath Bikas Bank will continue to achieve sustainable
success while contributing meaningfully to Nepal's
development journey.

Khim Prakash Malla
Chairman

Muktinath Bikas Bank *
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Board of Directors

Khim Prakash Malla Narayan Kumar Shrestha Bharat Prasad Lamsal
Chairman Director Director



Binod Kumar Sharma
Director

Saroja Shrestha [Koirala)
Director

Umesh Kumar Acharya
Independent Director

Muktinath Bikas Bank *
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Meet our Board of Directors”

Khim Prakash Malla

Chairman
Age 51
Address Chapkot-5, Syangja
Date of

nd
Appointment 22" Falgun 2081

Appointment

Representation  Promoter

Representation  Promoter

Narayan Kumar Shrestha BHARAT PRASAD LAMSAL
Director Director
Age 54 Age 56
Ganga Jamuna-7, Putalibazar-1,
Address Dhading Address Syangja
Date of 28 Poush 2080 Date of 28" Poush 2080

Appointment

Appointed By Board of Directors

17" Annual General

Appointed By Meeting

Representation  Promoter

17" Annual General

Appointed By Mesting

Committee

Participation Not Applicable

Committee

Participation Audit Committee

Committee AML/CFT
Participation

® Chairman at
Muktinath Bikas
Bank Limited.

® Treasurer at Nepal
Construction
Association.

Experiences

® Director at
Gajindra Nirman
Sewa Pvt. Ltd.

e Chairman at Civic
Development Bank Ltd.

e Chairman at
Muktinath Fertilizer
Bank Ltd.

e Chairman at Outdoor
Advertising Pvt. Ltd.

e Director at Muktinath
Krishi Company Ltd.

e Managing Director at

Experiences

e Chairman at HISSAN
Syangja.
Experiences e Founder Principal
at Syangja Higher
Secondary School

(E:erJrr:nément ® Director at Jaya
gag Nepal Ishwor
Nirman Sewa Pvt.
Ltd.
Educational Master's Degree

in Business

Qualifications Administration

Construction and Banking and
Infrastructure Financial
Development Management

Area of Expertise
Leadership and Business
Governance Management

Urban Investment Pvt. Current Fot_Jnder/Camp_us
Ltd. Engagement Chief at Sy_ang]a
Bahumukhi Campus
Current CEO of Urban ) )
Engagement Investment Pvt. Ltd. ¢ Master's Degree in
Economics
Educational e Master's Degree in
) Master's Degree from Qualifications Political Science
Edu?gtlon.al Tribhuvan University e Bachelorsin Law and
Qualifications (TUl Education
Advertisement & Marketing & Eé:gfr;t:rr:]]isc Education Sector
Promotion Branding Leadership
Area of Expertise ZrsslciExperiiss
: Community .
Business Academic Corporate
Development Enga%eérgent & Administration Law
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Dear Shareholders,
As we present the Annual Report
for FY 2081-82, | am filled with
gratitude for the journey we've
envisioned together, how we as
an organization have evolved and
the excellence we've continued
to uphold throughout these
remarkable years.

This shared commitment has been the
driving force behind our performance.
This year, the disciplined execution

of our strategy centered around a
cautiously driven business, profitability
focused growth, digital transformation
and operational excellence that has
enabled us to deliver improving trends
across the key metrics. These results
give us great confidence as we
look to the year ahead.

As we reflect on this year's journey, the context of our operating environment
and the specifics of our performance together provide the fullest measure of our
collective success, as the following sections will detail.

Operating Environment

The global economy continues to face
a challenging environment marked by
slower growth and uncertainties driven
by trade barriers, geopolitical tensions,
persistent inflationary pressures and
policy uncertainties. These dynamics
continue to drive market volatility and
raise financial stress across various
sectors and geographies. The ongoing
economic scenario also poses slowing
progress toward global development
goals by widening inequalities and
disproportionately affecting the most
vulnerable countries and populations.
These risks poised on the global economy
can influence Nepal's economy too with
potential impacts on trade, investment,
liquidity and other critical areas.

On the other hand, the Nepalese economy
continues to encounter various challenges
amidst the efforts to stabilize the economy.
Though most of the macroeconomic
indicators including foreign exchange
reserves, balance of payments, inflation
control and remittance inflows the overall
economic growth is on the favorable

side, the pace of economic recovery has
been restrained by weak private sector
investment. As we look ahead, strong
private sector investment and leveraging
opportunities in hydropower, tourism

and technology adoption will be critical
to sustaining economic momentum and
ensuring prosperity across the country.

Amid weak economic recovery, the banking
sector has also faced pressures both in
business growth and debt recovery. With
private investment remaining subdued,
private sector credit grew by just 8.4%
during the year, while deposits expanded
by 12.6%. With ongoing challenges in debt
recovery, the level of non-performing
assets (NPAs] rose to 4.62% at the end of
the year compared to 3.86% in the previous
year indicating a continued deterioration

in asset quality over the last few years.
Additionally, the Bank and Financial
Institutions are experiencing pressure in
managing excess liquidity as the industry's
credit to deposits ratio continues to ease
down from 79.09% in the previous year

to 75.79% in current year way below the
regulatory minimum of 90%. Going forward,
it is imperative for the banking sector

to focus on cautiously growing credit,
strengthening asset quality and efficiently
managing liquidity. Emphasis will also to
be placed on supporting private sector
investment and leveraging technology

to enhance operational efficiency and
customer outreach.

Muktinath
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FY 2081-82 for Muktinath

Avyear gone by posed its share of challenges

and opportunities to reflect on and formulate

new strategies to address the prevailing
macroeconomic conditions. During this period, we
focused on strengthening our recovery efforts,
enhancing risk management practices, optimizing
ALM and improving operational efficiency. Despite
the subdued economic environment our team
remained committed to delivering value to our
customers supporting private sector investment
and leveraging technology to improve efficiency
and outreach.

Returns and Capital Positions

For this year, the Bank proposes to distribute
13.53% stock dividend and 4.67% cash dividend,
totaling 18.2%, to our shareholders. In the previous
year, profits were retained to strengthen the capital
position. Additionally, the issuance of NPR 1 billion
of Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares
planned for FY 2082-83 will further strengthen

the capital base. The Bank continues to maintain

a sound capital base of tier 1 capital of 10.84%and
total capital adequacy of 12.88%, comfortably
above both the regulatory requirements and the
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) threshold. This strong capital footing
provides a solid foundation to pursue future growth
opportunities while safeguarding the interests of
shareholders, depositors and regulators alike.

Business

During the year, we adopted a cautious approach
in expanding the loan book, which grew by 5.1%,
while maintaining strong risk management and
asset quality. The growth was largely concentrated
on hydropower projects and SMEs in line with our
strategic plan for targeted expansion. We focused
on robust ALM management to balance risk and
returns while optimizing treasury performance as
reflected in the credit-to-deposit ratio of 85.72%
compared to the industry's 75.79%. As recovery

challenges intensified, the Bank strengthened its
recovery efforts by revamping the organizational
structure and adopting need-based case-by-
case strategies. Extensive focus was placed on
expanding CASA deposits to manage cost of
deposits resulting in a CASA position of 40.77%
at the end of the year.

Technology at our core

Technology continues to be at the heart of

our strategy, driving efficiency, innovation and
enhanced customer experiences across all areas
of our business. We have introduced the upgraded
mobile banking app named Muktinath FAIDA app
which is designed to provide a seamless and
enhanced digital banking experience. Beyond
transaction capabilities, the new app offers a
comprehensive suite of customer service features
allowing our customers to access account
information, request for services and resolve
queries conveniently from their fingertips. A
dedicated recovery application, Muktinath ISARA
App has been developed in both app and web
versions to support staff with access to real-time
data enhancing efficiency and effectiveness in debt
recovery processes.

Simultaneously, our core systems were migrated
to the cloud infrastructure enhancing system
scalability, safeguarding data security and
improved operational continuity. The Al based
models are being explored across operations to
strengthen decision-making, optimize processes
and improve efficiency. This upgrade reflects our
commitment to leveraging technology to enhance
accessibility, improve operational efficiency and
deliver a more personalized and responsive
experience to our growing digital customer base.

Operational Efficiency

During the year, significant developments were
made to enhance operational efficiency across
various front and back-office functions. Robotic
Process Automation was implemented to eliminate

5"-.,20 ¢ Muklinath Bikas Bank



nine major repetitive tasks, streamlining workflows
and reducing manual effort. Paper usage has been
almost entirely abolished in internal processes

to promote a more sustainable environment. The
recovery application has further boosted efficiency
by providing staff with easy access to real-time data
even outside the office enabling faster and more
effective debt recovery.

These initiatives combined with process optimization
and technology adoption, have strengthened
operational effectiveness while maintaining

high standards of governance and control. Cost
optimization remained a key priority with the cost-
to-income ratio improving from 47.69% to 45.95%
reflecting disciplined expense management and
enhanced operational efficiency.

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Bank places sustainability at the core of its
operations as we integrate environmental, social
and governance (ESG]) principles into our strategy.
Our financing in renewable energy, climate-

smart agriculture and electric vehicles supports
sustainability, while robust Environmental and Social
Risk Management (ESRM] ensures governance,
ethical lending and environmental responsibility.
This year, we commissioned an on-site Sewage
Treatment Plant at our Central Office treating 100%
of wastewater for non-potable uses and eliminating
harmful contaminants while also installing electric
vehicle charging stations for our staff to support low-
carbon transportation and promote a sustainable
workplace.

Best Managed Development Bank of the Year

It gives me immense pleasure to share that the Bank
has won the Best Managed Development Bank
under Business Excellency Awards-2025 organized
by the New Business Age which reflects our strong
financial performance and sound management
practices.

Closing Thoughts

Looking ahead, | am confident that we will accelerate
our growth, unlock new opportunities and evolve

in every challenge to build a better, stronger

and more future ready Bank. We will continue

to invest in technology, strengthen governance,
drive operational excellence and embed ESG
principles across the Bank for the benefit of all

our stakeholders. At the same time, our focus will
remain on delivering stable and competitive returns
to our shareholders while supporting the broader
economic and social progress of the country.

Guided by our shared sense of purpose and

my continued commitment to the Bank's vision
ahead, | am confident that the Bank will continue
to reach new heights, creating lasting value for all
stakeholders and contributing meaningfully to the
nation's progress.

| wish to extend my deepest gratitude to the Board
of Directors for their unwavering commitment and
diligent oversight which have been instrumental

in guiding the Bank's continued success. | would
also like to thank Nepal Rastra Bank for continued
guidance support and supervision which have been
invaluable in maintaining a strong Bank.

| am at a loss for words to fully express my

deep appreciation to our employees who

have demonstrated unwavering dedication,
professionalism and commitment while driving the
Bank's success and supporting our journey every
step of the way.

Lastly, my heartfelt thanks also go to our
shareholders for the trust and confidence reposed to
us and to all our other stakeholders for availing us of
enduring support and patronage over the years.

Jay Muktinath !l

Pradyuman Pokharel
Chief Executive Officer
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Senior Management::

Pradyuman Pokharel
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Pradyuman Pokharel has established himself as an
efficient banker with over 33 years of experience and
currently serves as Chief Executive Officer of Muktinath
Bikas Bank. He has a deep understanding of the
banking sector with expertise spanning Credit, Deposit,
Remittance, and Treasury operations. A results-oriented
leader with a strong ethical foundation, Mr. Pokharel
emphasizes excellence in all aspects of banking. He
believes in fostering a collaborative environment that
encourages continuous growth. He holds an MBA from
Tribhuvan University and brings a wealth of experience
from his previous roles at Nabil Bank Ltd. and Mega
Bank Nepal Ltd. Beyond his professional roles, he
actively contributed to the banking industry as the past
President of the Development Bankers Association Nepal
and as a former Executive Member of the Management
Association of Nepal.

Samir Shekhar Bajracharya
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Samir Sekhar Bajracharya, Deputy CEQO, is a
seasoned banking professional with over 27 years of
experience across diverse leadership roles. He has a
proven track record of success having served as Chief
Executive Officer at Bishwa Bikas Bank Limited and
Deputy Chief Executive Officer at Gandaki Bikas Bank
Limited. Prior to his current role, he held key positions
at Pokhara Finance Limited, Nepal Share Markets &
Finance Limited, and Paschimanchal Finance Company
Limited. He has also contributed to the development
sector through his work with development agency. With
a strong foundation in credit analysis and underwriting
and a customer-centric approach, Mr. Bajracharya is
dedicated to enhancing the business performance of the
Bank. He holds an MBA in Financial Management from
Tribhuvan University.




Til Bahadur Gurung
Assistant Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr.Til Bahadur Gurung, Assistant Deputy CEO and

Chief Operating Officer is a meticulous leader with

over 26 years of experience in the banking sector. He
has a strong commitment to continuous improvement
and inspires his teams to achieve exceptional results.
He brings a wealth of experience to his role having
served in various capacities in H & B Development

Bank Limited and Nepal Development Bank Limited. He
possesses a deep understanding of banking operations,
administration and marketing. Mr. Gurung holds a
Master's degree from Tribhuvan University. He has been
with the Bank since 2013 and currently serves as a Board
of Director of Nepal Clearing House Ltd.

Govinda Bahadur Raut
Assistant Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Govinda Bahadur Raut, Assistant CEQ, is an
experienced banker with 31 years of dedicated service

in the microfinance and development sectors. He
possesses a strong foundation in microfinance institution
capacity building, with expertise in cooperative principles
and wholesale lending. He joined the bank in 2012 as
Department Head of Microfinance and currently leads
control vertical. Prior to joining, He gained valuable
experience at different microfinance instution and

INGOs. Mr. Raut holds an MBA (Finance) and an MA

(Rural Development] from Tribhuvan University, Nepal.

He is a "Certified Expert in Climate Adaptation Finance
(CECAF)" recognized by the Frankfurt School of Finance
and Management, Germany. He was a Humphrey Fellow
(2022-23) and holds a graduate certificate in Enterprise
Risk Management from Boston University, USA.
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Strategic Committee’

Dandapani Dhakal
Company Secretary

Baburam Dhakal

Chief Transformation
Officer - Butwal Region and
Chief Performance
Assurance Officer

Manoj Bista

Head- Institutional & Retail
Credit Department

Birendra Raj Bhat

Head- General Service
Department

Ram Chandra Paudel

Head - Existing Credit
Management Department

f'--.,24 ¢ Muktinath Bikas Bank



Pragalv Neupane

Head-Integrated Risk
Management Department

Shankar Prasad Baral

Head-Happiness &
Recognition (HR) Department

Sanjiv Poudel
Chief Financial Officer

Subash Dhakal
Head-AML/CFT Department

Binaya Ratna Shakya

Head- Business & Recovery
Optimization Department

Sarbesh Shrestha

Head - Information
Technology
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Prem Thapa Rashik Bhandari

Chief Transformation
Officer - Gandaki Region

Chief Transformation
Officer - Kohalpur Region

Vijay Kumar Gurung Krishna Kumar K.C.

Chief Transformation
Officer - Janakpur Region

Chief Transformation
Officer - Phulchowki Region

Shanker K.C. Namrata Shrestha

Head Transformation Officer-
Narayangarh Region

Chief Transformation
Officer - Itahari Region

Malina Shrestha Rishi Ram Dhakal

Head Transformation
Officer - Nagarjun Region

Head Transformation Officer -
Syangja Sub Region

Dhruba Prasad Regmi Vijaya Upreti

Head Transformation Head Transformation

Officer - Dhading Region | ) . Officer - Butwal Region

Umesh Joshi Pramod Dhakal

Head Transformation
Officer - Kohalpur Region

Head Transformation Officer -
Damauli Sub Region

¢ Muktinath Bikas Bank



Organization Structure

Board of Directors

Human Resource
Management
Committee

. : Chief Executive
AudltCOmmlttej ( Officer j

Risk Management
Committee

AML/CFT
Committee

)

Internal Audit

Department

CEO's Office

Company
Secretary M

AML/CFT
Department

Integrated Risk
anagement Department

(o)

O O O
Credit Op.Risk& Market& Information
Risk Reconciliation Other  Security
Risks Officer

ﬂ)eputy Chief Executive Ofﬁcej ﬂsistant Deputy Chief Executive Ofﬁcy ﬂssistant Chief Executive Ofﬁcey

( New Credit Business j
Institutional & y B
: ; Wholesale Credit Small Credit
( %Ztggr%rg?"g ) ( Department ) ( Department j

Existing Credit
Management Department
K Recovery j

Institutional & Retail Wholesale & Small Credit,
Recovery Department Recovery Department

rHappiness & Recognition [HR)

Department
O O O O O
Recruitment Development Management Compensation Culture
Benefit Assurance
r Chief Financial Officer j
O O O O
Finance&  Treasury&  Central MIS &
Planning Portfolio Accounts  Reporting

Department Management

@f Performance Assurance Ofﬁy

O O O
Regional NBA Special
Performance Management  Projects
Assurance
ﬁ]ief/Head Transformation Ofﬁcy
(@] [©] O
Operations & Business ~ Monitoring

Marketing Unit Officers

( Branches j ( Desks j

Support Unit

( Chief Operating Officer J
ﬂ)entral Operations Departmenj

o (¢] (¢]

Branch IPS ECC
Support &
& Control RTGS

@eration Technology Departmy

(¢] o o (¢]

IT  Technology  ITResearch Network
Operation &Development & Security

rGeneraI Services Departmentj

O O O O
Fixed Central Procurement Store
Assets Monitoring
Management

Marketing, Branding

ﬂr Corporate Affairs Departmend

O O O O
Deposit Branding Corporate CRY
Marketing Affairs  Fnancial Literacy
( Neo Banking Department J
O O O O
Digital Digital ~Remittance Transactional
Banking  Bankin Business Banking
Sales Suppor
Business & Recovery
Optimization (BRO) Department
O O
Credit Growth  Impairment Reduction
Initiatives Initiatives

Research, Innovation & Product
Development Department

O O O
Research Product Partnership
& Development Banking

Innovation

r Compliance Department J
K Credit Surveillance Department J

4

Legal & Grievances
Redressal Department

O O
Legal Grievances Redressal

Credit Administration
Department

(¢] o

Credit Legal Vetting
Operations
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Best Managed
Development Bank M
of The Year, 2025 52.!',5!,3:!"5-:

Awards

Certificate of Merit for
Financial Service Sector
of SAFA (BPA) Awards,
2023

W)

Best Presented Annual
Report Award, 2023

Q

Best Presented Annual
Report Award, 2022

Q

Corporate Business
Excellency Award, 2022

Q

The Biz Awards, 2022

Best Presented Annual
Report Award, 2021

QaQ

Certificate Of Merit For
Financial Service Sector
Of SAFA (BPA) Awards,
2021

HRM Awards for the
Corporate Excellence,
2021

Honorable Mention in SME
Financier of the Year-Asia
of Global SME Finance
Award, 2021

Best Presented Annual
Report Award, 2020

European Microfinance
Award, 2020

Best Presented Annual
Report Award, 2019




BUSINESS EXCELLENCE CERTIFICATE
AWATIOED TO

MUKTINATH BIKAS BANK LTD.

Confesente on International Taxation and Digital

&
Best Presentad Annual Report Awards, Integrated R
fvesary Awards for t ce Dis

EME FINANCE
* FoRuN
Glohal SME Finance
Awards 2021

SME FINANCIER OF THE YEAR - ASIA
HONORABLE MENTIOMN

Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited

Winner of

\ ) EUROPEAN
v AWARD 2020

Muktinath Bikas Bank * 29,.:'3
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Product & Services

We have a diversified portfolio

of products and services that
reflects our commitment to meeting
the multifaceted financial needs

of individuals, businesses and
institutions. Recognizing the unique
requirements of different customer
segments, we offer a comprehensive
range of deposit products, loans
products and other specialized
services designed to provide

value added, convenience and
inclusiveness.

From nurturing savings habits

in young account holders to
supporting entrepreneurs, farmers
and investors with tailored financing
options, each offering is carefully
structured to deliver both immediate
benefits and long-term growth.

dynamics while ensuring accessibility — and excel in their financial endeavors

) ) ) and inclusiveness across all sectors. thereby reinforcing our commitment
Over time, our portfolio has continued gy continuously expanding and to financial stability, customer-
to evolve, responding to shifting refining our offerings we enable our centricity and the broader economic
customer expectations, technological  ¢ystomers to rise above challenges development of the nation.

advancements and market

DEPOSITS

£} Current
Deposits

Muktinath's Current Deposit product is a non-interest-
bearing account designed for business transactions
allowing unlimited deposits and withdrawals to facilitate
frequent operational cash flow.

e Current Deposits contributed 2.91% of
Total Deposits as of Asar 32, 2082.

Eligible Beneficiaries e Successfully onboarded 14,237 new

-Business Entities customer accounts during the year.

‘Non-Profit Organizations

Call

Deposits

Our call deposit product is designed with a sweep-in o Represents a 7.07% concentration of
facility that links to a Current Account automatically the bank’s total deposits as of Asar 32,
transferring idle funds to earn interest and optimize cash 2082.

efficiency of our customers.
e Attracted 361 new customer

Eligible Beneficiaries ) ) ) ) .
relationships during the financial year.

Business Entities

5'-..,50 ¢ Muktinath Bikas Bank



Saving

Deposits

We offer a diverse portfolio of savings deposits customized e Constitutes a dominant 37.87% of the
for specific customer segments based on gender, bank's total deposits as of Asar 32
occupation and age group. 2082,

These interest-bearing accounts are designed to
encourage a consistent savings habit helping individuals
securely build their funds over time.

e Successfully onboarded 87,850 new
customers during the financial year.

Product and Beneficiaries:

Normal Saving All Individuals

Mahila Pewa Bachat Women

Sunaulo Bal Shikshya Bachat Children

Karmachari Bachat Khata Employees

Muktinath PMS Khata Investors under Portfolio Management Scheme
Samajik Surakshya Bhatta Khata Government social security beneficiaries
Muktinath Sajilo Bachat Khata All Individuals

Muktinath Sambriddhi Bachat Khata All Individuals

Muktinath Premium Bachat All Individuals

Muktinath Utkrishta Premium Bachat Khata All Individuals

Muktinath Krishak Bachat Khata Farmers

Muktinath Pocket Money Account Students

Sharedhani Bachat Khata Investors

Muktinath Karmachari Surakshya Bachat Khata Employees

Muktinath Sarvotkrishta Bachat Khata All Individuals

Muktinath Aashirwad Bachat (Gold) All Individuals

Muktinath Aashirwad Bachat (Platinum) All Individuals

Muktinath Sambriddhi Remit IPO Bachat Khata Migrant workers
Fixed
Deposits
Our fixed and recurring deposit product offers a higher
fixed interest rate with tenures ranging from 3 months for e Comprises the majority share at
individuals and 6 months for institutional clients and up to 52.08% of the bank's total deposits as
10 years providing a secure and predictable return on your of Asar 32,2082.

investment.

e (Opened 32,827 new accounts in the

Eligible Beneficiaries ! :
financial year.

- Business Entities
- Individuals

Muktinath Bikas Bank :‘- 3l
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LOANS AND ADVANCES

Retalil
Loans

Our retail loan portfolio provides comprehensive financing
solutions to meet the key life goals of individuals. We offer
a range of products including Home Loans, Mortgage
Loan,Auto Loans, Personal Loans and Education Loans,
all featuring flexible tenures, competitive interest rates and
quick disbursal to ensure timely access to funds.

e Comprises a significant 84.53% of the
bank's Total Loan Portfolio as of Asar
32,2082.

e Successfully expanded our customer
base by 14,820 new loan accounts
during the year.

Eligible Applicants

- Salaried Individuals
- Self-Employed Professionals
- Individuals for personal needs

Products and Purpose:

Muktinath Dream
Home Loan

( han ever,
Your Dream Car Awaits!

To purchase land, house, apartment or
their renovation and expansion.

To fulfill social expenses like wedding,

Muktinath
Byabharik Karja

medical, holidays or others personal
needs.

Muktinath
Jimmewari Karja

To fulfill any legitimate purpose like
to purchase assets, to repay loans,
emergencies etc.

Muktinath Niji
Sawari Karja

To purchase personal vehicle.

Muktinath Uchha
Sikchhya Karja

To finance higher education in the country
or abroad.

Loan against FDR/
Bonds

To meet immediate urgent financial needs
of the customers against fixed deposits
and gold.

To provide immediate funds against pledge

Gold Loan of Gold.

Share Loan To provide immediate funds against pledge
marketable shares.

Muktinath To meet contingent expenses or meet

Professional Loan

for personal use of professionals
withoutcollateral.

Non-Collateralized
Loan

To fulfill emergencies and small personal
needs without collateral

Muktinath Bikas Bank
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Business
Loans

We provide a comprehensive suite of funded and non-
funded credit facilities that provide essential capital to
support and accelerate corporate growth at every stage.
Our funded facilities include Working Capital Loans,
Machinery Financing, Business Expansion Loans and
Commercial Vehicle Loans. Our non-funded facilities

encompass instruments like bank guarantees and letters e Comprises 35.47% of the bank’s Total
of credit. For large-scale projects, we also participate in Loan Portfolio as of Asar 31, 2082.
and lead consortium financing. All facilities feature tailored

limits, flexible repayment and are structured to meet * Added 2,087 new business banking
substantial corporate needs. relationships during the year.

Eligible Applicants

- Small and Medium Enterprises [SMES])
Large Corporations

- Sole Proprietorships
Partnerships

Products and Purpose:

Muktinath To finance funded and non-funded needs of business for short-term and long-term to
Byawasahik Karja expand/manage business.

Muktinath
Byawasahik Sawari | To finance vehicles for commercial use or business purpose
Karja

Muktinath Krishi

Karja To fulfill financing requirement to the farmers and commercial farms

Muktinath

Subsidized Loan To provide loans as per NRB Subsidy related directives

Muktinath

Wholesale Loan To provide bulk loans to Microfinance and Cooperatives

To fund a large project through joint financing arrangement by two or more banks or

Consortium Loan } A
financial institutions.

vERRMUKTINATH HRpere PRy Dot ‘

BUSINESS LOAN

Financial
Potential
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OTHER VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

Safe Deposit
Lockers

We provide secure safe deposit locker facilities allowing

our customers to safely store valuables such as jewelry,

important documents and other personal assets within a
highly secure vault located at our branches.

Eligible Applicants

- All Institutions
- All Individuals

Remittances

Our remittance service allows customers to receive funds
sent from abroad safely, quickly and efficiently providing a
reliable channel for cross-border transactions.

Eligible Applicants
- All Individuals

Funds Transfer
Services

Our funds transfer services enable secure and efficient
movement of funds to and from customer accounts
through multiple channels, including Cheque, Real-Time
Gross Settlement (RTGS], IPS payment system, and teller
withdrawals.

Eligible Applicants

- All Individuals
- All Institutions

Foreign Exchange
Services

Our foreign exchange services provide customers with the
ability to securely buy, sell or convert foreign currencies for
purposes such as international travel and savings.

w
CHANGE YOUR CURRENCY

ot Muktinath Bikas Bank
whenever you need befare you travel

#lopaikobank

e Achieved a 68% occupancy rate
across our branch network in FY
2081-82.

e Qur remittance service processed
92,648 thousand transactions totaling
NPR 5.48 billion,

e Processed NPR 235 billion through ECC.
e Facilitated NPR 112 billion via RTGS.

e Handled NPR 29 billion through IPS.

e 22 different currency exchange
services offered.
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£ Debit &
Prepaid Cards

Our card services provide customers with convenient and
secure access to their funds for everyday transactions.
This includes making payments, withdrawing cash and
performing online transactions. Debit cards are directly e |ssued 30,364 new cards during the
linked to the customer's bank account, while prepaid cards financial year.

are pre-loaded with a specific amount of funds.

e Maintained an active base of 258,268
debit cards in circulation.

Eligible Applicants

-+ All Institutions
-+ All Individuals

<
)
c
(0]
0
@
o
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@ Internet
Banking
Our internet banking service provides a secure online o
platform for customers to access and r_n_anage_thew bank e Maintained user base of 82717 .-
accounts, conduct transactions and utilize various banking customers @
services through the bank’s official website via a computer §‘
or mobile browser. * Successfully onboarded 14,568 new 3
P ; users during the financial year. =
Eligible Applicants g y =)
- All Institutions .
* AllIndividuals =
=
Mobile @
Banking g
Our digital banking service provides customers with §
i i i Q
secure and cqnvenlent access to a wide range qf banking e Maintained a strong active user base o
serwces_ anytime, anywhere through our user-friendly of 839,443 customers.
M-Banking App.
Eligible Applicants e Successfully onboarded 75,457 new
o users during the financial year. -
- All Institutions
-+ All Individuals @
o
=
=
<
o)
@
©
=
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FINANCIAL ACCESS IN DIGITAL APPLICATIONS o,
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Using Banking App shouldn't
feel like solving a puzzle,

_| with FAIDA App,

it's simple, secure & fully
under your control.
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Our Value Creation Model

INPUTS

Financial Value Creation Drivers

% Capital
Paid Up Capital:
7.05 Bn ©»

Shareholders Fund:
11.81Bn Vision Mission Values

Loans:
98.85 Bn

Deposits:
118.15Bn

Manufactured
Capital
Property & Equipment:
210Bn

Intellectual
Capital
Intangible Asset:
10.62 Mn

Resilient Cybersecurity
and Data Privacy

@ Human
Capital
Employees:

1,516

Personnel Expenses:
1.65Bn

Social &

Relationship Capital
Women Borrowers:
49.33%

CSR Expenses:
10.32 Mn

Corporate Governance

Risk Management

Compliance

Environment Social & Governance
Internal Control

Natural

Capital
Renewable Energy
Lending:2.92 Bn

FOUNDATION
EEEEE
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STRATEGIES VALUE DELIVERED

Business
Strategies

Responsible
Investment

Digital
Transformation

Talent
Management

Customers &
Society
Centricity

ESG

Financial
Capital

5.29 Bn Revenue
1.35 Bn PAT

12.14% ROE
12.88% CAR

Manufactured
Capital

179 Branch Outlets

2 Bank's Own Building

Intellectual

Capital

82,717 |-Banking Users
839,443 M-Banking Users

Human
Capital
91.09% Retention Ratio

42.22% Gender Diversity
Great place to work

Social &
Relationship Capital
17 UN SDGs Covered

162 CSR Programs
12,000+ Lives Touched

Natural
Capital
269 Mw of Hydropower
Financed

99 % value of electricity
through renewable
sources

¢ Credit

* Operation

e Liquidity

* Market

¢ Cyber Security
*ESG

Operation

¢ Cyber Security
¢ Operation

Operation

ESG

ESG

UN SDGS
COVERED

e
A ETASTATURE

o
A INRASTAUCTURE

1] e
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Stakeholder Engagement

At Muktinath, we strongly believe
that engaging with our stakeholders
is vital to ensuring our decisions
are ethical, sustainable and fair. We
understand that our stakeholders
are more than just external entities;
they include individuals, groups and
organizations who either influence
or are affected by our business

activities. Whether it's our customers,

employees, investors, regulators or
suppliers, each plays a unique role in
shaping our operations and long-
term goals.

Throughout the year, we make a
conscious effort to create a variety
of opportunities for our stakeholders
to interact with us. This ongoing
dialogue helps us stay connected,
address their concerns and
incorporate their valuable insights
into our planning and decision-
making processes. By fostering
these meaningful relationships, we
ensure that our business remains
transparent, responsive and aligned
with the expectations of those who
are important to our success.




Our engagement process is more than a series of steps; it's about identifying,
Stake_hOId_er prioritizing, engaging and reporting on the value we deliver. We first identify our
Identification Process stakeholders to understand their interest in the Bank in the following manner:

Context Analysis
Understand the Bank's mission, operations and regulatory environment. |[dentify areas impacted by the Bank’s
products and decisions.

Initial Identification
List potential stakeholders affected by or influencing the Bank, including internal ([employees, management) and
external [customers, investors, regulators, community) groups.

Prioritization
Assess and rank stakeholders by their relevance and impact on the Bank's goals and compliance needs.

Stakeholder Engagement
Create communication channels with prioritized stakeholders to understand their concerns and expectations,
focusing on key areas like customer satisfaction and compliance.

Continuous Review
Regularly update the stakeholder list and engagement strategies to match changing conditions.

We prioritize the stakeholders who are crucial to our Bank's success and long-term value creation.

Stakeholders, By deeply understanding their needs, expectations, and concerns, we ensure that our strategies,
SDGs & their policies, and action plans address the key areas of environmental, economic, and social impact. This
interests approach allows us to align our efforts with the interests of those who matter most to our business,

fostering positive relationships and driving meaningful outcomes.

CUSTOMERS REGULATORS

* Reliable Banking Services
» Data Security

* Customer Satisfaction

* Relationship Management
» Transparency

* Compliance with Regulations
» Transparency & Fair Disclosure
* Risk Management

* Depositor's Interest Protection
© Timely Payment of Taxes

COMMUNITY

Employee Well-being

Fair Compensation
Employee Development
Diversity and Inclusion
Rewards and Recognition

HE

® Social & Environmental Impact
® Green Financing

® Sustainable Banking

* Employment Generation

SHAREHOLDERS VENDORS

* Corporate Governance
o Compliance

® Risk Management

* Financial Performance
*Brand Image

® Business Opportunities.
o Consistent Business Relationships
® Timely Payment of Dues

Muktinath Bikas Ba
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Stakeholders'
Engagement Influence,
Mediums & Frequency
and Key Insights

Through regular and open communication, we aim to strengthen relationships with
stakeholders who influence our business by focusing on trust, collaboration, and
mutual benefit. This is done through the following mediums and frequencies

Shareholders

Muktinath has over 56,000 shareholders. The Bank remains committed to evolving with changing times while continuing to excel in delivering

sustainable value to our shareholders and stakeholders alike.

Annual General Meeting Annual Annual General Meeting Notice | 2082/06/12

High as shareholders and Annual Report Annual Annual Report 2082/06/12
investors play a vital role - -
in the success of our Bank, Special General Meeting As needed Interim Financial Statement Published

roviding essential capital i i i
p ( g _ 3 p : Interim Financial Statements | Quarterly First 2081/07/07
and financial stability. Their :
. NEPSE Reporting As needed
investments enable our Bank Second 2081/10/07
to fund operations, expand our Press Releases As needed -
services and pursue growth Corporate Website Continuous Third 2082/01/07
opportunities. Social Media Platforms Continuous Fourth 2082/04/30

Customers

Muktinath has over 1.4 million happy customers. Our approach to customers centers on understanding their unique financial needs and
delivering solutions that add real value to their lives. We strive to build lasting relationships through trust, transparency and a consistently

superior service experience.

SOCI.al Ongoing & Continuous Social Media © 260K
media Reach
@ 34K
Customer . )
High, satisfied customers build feedback Ongoing & Continuous @ 79K
lasting relationships, trust, - - O 5K
and referrals, ensuring our Surveys Ongoing & Continuous
prosperity in a competitive Grievances o S Grievances * Grievances received: 1,434
market thus drives the revenue. redressal ngoing ontinuous Handled * Grievances resolved: 1,409
Perspnallzed Ongoing & Continuous No of Suggestion | 179
services Box Placed

Employees

Muktinath has over 1,500 employees. We foster a culture where employees feel valued, supported and inspired to perform at their best. Our focus
remains on nurturing talent, promoting teamwork and recognizing contributions that drive the Bank forward.

[ e N

High, as their diverse skills Training . : No. of trainings programs 208
and knowledge drive efficient Programs Ongoing & Continuous
operations, exceptional
p > p ) Staff Engagement _ _ No. of employee engagement events 11
customer service and sustained Programs Ongoing & Continuous
growth. Empowered employees . .
are our cornerstone, enabling Staffs Meet Ongoing & Continuous
us to excel in a competitive Email Ongoing & Continuous

landscape while upholding the
highest standards of integrity
and professionalism.




Government & Regulators

&

Muktinath Bikas Bank is regulated by Nepal Rastra Bank as a licensed financial institution. In addition, the Securities Board of Nepal and Nepal
Stock Exchange oversee our operations as a listed entity. We maintain a relationship of mutual respect and accountability with the Government
and Regulators.As a responsible corporate citizen, we remain fully compliant with all regulatory requirements and committed to timely and

transparent tax contributions to the nation.

T

High, as through oversight and
enforcing regulations, they
promote sound governance,
risk management, depositors
protection, safeguarding the
economy's overall health and
fostering public trust in the
Banking system.

Tax Assessment Annual

Regulatory Daily, Weekly, Monthly,
reporting Quarterly, Annually
Onsite As per central Bank
Supervision calendar

Offsite Ongoing and
Supervision continuous

Press Releases As needed

Tax Completed upto FY 2077/78
Assessment

Regulatory Submitted returns on time
reporting

NRB Onsite One

Supervision

Community and Society

Muktinath has a widespread presence across all provinces and 48 districts of Nepal. As we derive our resources from society, we remain committed
to giving back through social and developmental initiatives, promoting financial inclusion and contributing to the overall well-being of the communities

We serve.

High, as the community
and society form the very
foundation of our business
operations.

CSR Projects Ongoing & Continuous No. of CSR Programs 162
Elnanmal Literacy Ongoing & Continuous No. of Financial Literacy Programs | 64
rograms -
No. of lives touched 12,000+
Community . )
Outreach Ongoing & Continuous

Service Provider & Suppliers

We have a strong and collaborative relationship with more than 1,500 service providers and suppliers. We value them as key partners in delivering
quality products and services. Through fair, transparent, and ethical procurement practices, we foster cooperative interactions that ensure mutual
growth, timely support and the highest standards in all our operations.

e

High, as they play a crucial

role in ensuring the smooth
functioning of our Bank’s
operations by delivering quality
products and services on time,
which directly impacts our
efficiency, cost-effectiveness

No. of Bids Notice Published

Relationship ) _
Management Ongoing & Continuous
On-site Visits/ . .
Meetings Ongoing & Continuous
Relationship ) _
Management Ongoing & Continuous

and customer satisfaction.

Mukiinath Bikas Bank * 12/
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Materiality Assessment

In line with our commitment to global best practices,
we have initiated a structured materiality assessment
process to ensure our strategy remains responsive to a
dynamic banking environment. This process enables us
to identify and prioritize the topics most relevant to our
long-term business strategy and our stakeholders.

Our materiality assessment enables us to identify
and prioritize the topics most relevant to our business
and stakeholders, ensuring that our strategy remains
responsive to a dynamic banking environment. In line
with the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards and
emerging Business Responsibility and Sustainability
Reporting (BRSR] framework, we have institutionalized
a structured materiality assessment process that
integrates sustainability considerations into our
business strategy and disclosures.

Our Approach

Building on our ongoing stakeholder engagement

and capital-wise disclosures, we have adopted a
systematic, biennial materiality assessment that helps
us remain attuned to evolving stakeholder expectations
and a rapidly changing macro- and microeconomic
landscape.

This process combines internal insights and
external perspectives to evaluate the significance of
Environmental, Social andGovernance (ESG) topics in
relation to both business performance and stakeholder
importance. By continuously refining our approach, we
ensure that our strategic priorities are supported by
data-driven insights, aligning with global best practices
and our long-term value creation goals.

Key Focus Areas

The most recent assessment reaffirmed the importance
of several interconnected topics that form the
foundation of our sustainability and value creation
journey:

* Digital Transformation and Cybersecurity
* Sustainable Finance & ESG

* Employee Development and Engagement
* Governance, Ethics and Risk Management
* Social and Relationship Capital

Focusing on these material topics enables us to
make informed, future-ready decisions, strengthening
stakeholder trust, guiding responsible business conduct
and enhancing resilience in a dynamic environment.

f'--.,44 ¢ Muktinath Bikas Bank

Value of the Assessment

» Strategic Alignment:
Ensures that ESG priorities are fully integrated with
our long-term business strategy.

» Strengthening Stakeholder Trust:
Reinforces transparency and inclusiveness by
reflecting diverse stakeholder perspectives.

- Efficient Resource Allocation:
Enables informed decisions on deploying capital,
people andeffort toward high-impact ESG areas.

* Enhanced ESG Disclosures:
Supports meaningful and framework-aligned
reporting.




Material Topics and Performance Overview

Rationale for Materiality

Material Topic Our Performance

& Management Approach

Technology plays a key role in + System uptime maintained

Digital operational resilience and customer Gybersecurity & Data above 99%.
Transformation & Convenlehce.We continue to invest in Privacy « Strengthened cybersecurity
Cybersecurity robust IT infrastructure, cybersecurity governance and awareness
frameworks and process automation. programs.
5
=
@
(@]
Expanding access to finance and g
supporting green and inclusive growth c_'-;.
) are core to our purpose. Managing =]
Sustainable resource use and environmental _ . Increased exposure to
Finance & ESG footprint is vital for long-term resilience. Our Commitment to renewable and sustainable
We continue to integrate climate ESG Excellence projects.
considerations into operations and
lending.
Employee Our people are key to execution
excellence. We prioritize training, A Higher employee engagement
Development performance development, leadership Evolving Talent for a levels and expanded learning
and Engagement succession and employee well-being. Smarter Tomorrow hours per employee.
Strong governance and ethical
Governance, conduct form the foundation of )
stakeholder confidence. Transparent . Corporate Governance Zero tolerance on unethical

iz 2 reporting, risk oversight and . practices; robust risk oversight
Management compliance ensure responsible - Risk Management through board-level committees.

business conduct.

We proactively invest in community
development to build a more stable

. and prosperous environment for Evolving with
Community our business. This strengthens our g Expanded CSR outreach and

Well-being social license and fosters the long- \IIDVlthrhplonfe:al(E;celllng deeper stakeholder engagement.
term relationships that underpin P
our sustainability.

Our Way Forward »»

We will continue to refine our materiality assessment framework by integrating stakeholder insights,
emerging ESG risks andbusiness priorities. This ensures that our disclosures remain relevant, transparent

and reflective of the issues that matter most to our stakeholders and our sustained growth journey.
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Follow us for more
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Muktinath launches new digital
banking features for a seamless
user experience.

©
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u Muktinath Bikas Bank partners
with local communities to promote

financial literacy e

in Kathmandu, Pokhara, Butwal,
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As we envision with determination, evolve with
purpose and excel with consistency.
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Balance
Sheet Size

136.52 Bn

YOY 926%
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Key Ratios

@]
<
@
<
Our journey is defined by the drive to Envision the future, with insights and Excel in performance. The metrics g
presented here showcase how our efforts translate into tangible results illustrating our operational efficiency, financial
health and commitment to sustainable growth.
Financial Position
s
Balance Sheet Size (in Billion) Paid Up Capital (in Billion) =
(0]
Q
Froos-e, SN e Fros-e 05 g
Fy2080-81 NG 12495 Fy2080-81 NG 705 S
FY 2079-80 131.61 FY 2079-80 6.42
FY 2078-79 121.08 FY 2078-79 5.66
FY 2077-78 10113 FY 2077-78 481
o
=
©
3
Deposits (in Billion] Loans (in Billion] a
@
)
Froos-o, Y LN
@
Fy2080-8! S 11053 Fy2080-81 4NN 94.05 2
FY 2079-80 118.45 FY 2079-80 96.99
FY 2078-79 108.43 FY 2078-79 89.54
FY 2077-78 92.32 FY 2077-78 76.40
@
o
<
@
5
0]
3
Shareholders Fund (in Billion) @
Froos-e S e
Fy2080-81 4NN 1043 -
FY 2079-80 9.36
@
FY 2078-79 8.08 o
c
FY 2077-78 6.83 =)
<
p.o)
@
©
9
7]
Financial Performance o
Net Interest Income (in Million) Net Profit (in Million) -
2
)
Fros-e: SN 4T FY200.8 130 g
Fy2080-81 4NN 4,239 Fy2080-81 4D 1176 %
[¢]
FY 2079-80 4,104 FY 2079-80 1,248 5
FY 2078-79 3,330 FY 2078-79 1,342 7]
FY 2077-78 2,789 FY 2077-78 1156

Muktinath Bikas Bank * 49_..-'3
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Profitability Ratio

Earning Per Share (in NPR]
Fv2osl-82 (N 1916
Fr2080-81 LI 16.69
FY2079-80 19.44
FY2078-79 2372
FY 207778 2403

Return On Assets

FY20009

200061 S

FY 2079-80 {

FY 2078-79

FY 2077-78
Assets Quality
Non Performing Loans (in Percent]
P20 N 257
Fy2080-81 4NN 237%
FY 2079-80 ‘ 0.98%
FY 2078-79 0.21%
FY 2077-78 0.23%
Capital Adequacy
Capital Adequacy Ratio (in Percent]
oo SN 1206
Fy2080-81 4G 11.69%
FY 2079-80 / 11.77%
FY 2078-79 11.80%
FY 2077-78 11.19%

5"-.,50 ¢ Muklinath Bikas Bank

Return On Equity [in Percent]
Fr200c, QN 1224
Fy2080-81 I 11.28
FY2078-80 13.33
FY 2078-79 16.61
FY 2077-78 16.94

[in Percent)

1.03%

0.94%

0.95%

111%

114%
Provision Coverage Ratio (in Percent]
FY 2081-82 - 119.45%
FY 2080-81 . 123.39%
FY2078-80 | 208.48%
FY 2078-79 67273%
FY 2077-78 693.22%

Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio (in Percent)

Frooe-e? S 1084%
FY 2080-81 _ 9.46%
FY2079-80 | 8.84%
FY 2078-79 8.83%
FY 2077-78 9.94%



Stock Performance

&

Price Earning Ratio (in Times) Market Price (in NPR]
FY20815? 730 FY201e 40592
Fy2080-81 SEEINN 1855 Fy2080-81 N 367
FY 2079-80 20.94 FY 2079-80 407
FY 2078-79 21.99 FY 2078-79 4399
FY 207778 2118 FY 207778 657
Market Capitalization (in Billion)
FY2001-62 2860
Fy2080-81 SN 25.86
FY 2079-80 26.13
FY 2078-79 24.89
FY 2077-78 3161
Dividend Ratio
Dividend Payout (in Percent) Dividend Yield (in Percent]
Froee: SN 1020% 20010 SN 0%
FY 2080-81 0.00% FY 2080-81 0.00%
FY 2079-80 10.26% FY 2079-80 2.52%
FY 2078-79 14.21% FY 2078-79 3.23%
FY 207778 18.50% FY 2077-78 2.82%
Liquidity Ratio
Statutory Liquidity Ratio (in Percent] Cash Reserve Ratio (in Percent]
Frooe-s2 (N 23.41% FY 2081-82 415%
Fy2080-81 4NN 21.88% FY 2080-81 4.02%
FY 2079-80 24.08% FY 2079-80 4.08%
FY 2078-79 21.20% FY 2078-79 Iy 3.08%
FY 2077-78 20.63% ryoo7778 A 3.30%

MBIAIBAQ
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Net Liquidity Ratio (in Percent)

Credit-Deposit Ratio (in Percent)

2o S 2557

Fr2080-8! S 24.01%

FY2079-80 25.67%

FY 2078-79 26.32%

FY 207778 24.07%
Efficiency Ratio

Per Employee Business (in Million)

Y2009 I 14475

Fy2080-81 NG 13072
FY2079-80 129.55
FY2078-79 12731
FY 2077-78 109.07

Net Interest Income to Total Assets (in Percent)

Fr200c S 555%

Fr2080-8! 4N 3.39%
FY2079-80 | 312%
FY2078-79 275%
FY 2077-78 276%

Cost to Income Ratio (in Percent]

FY 2081-82 45.95%

FY 2080-81 4769%

FY 2079-80 / 4761%

FY 207879 -y 43.62%

Fy207778 A 52.45%
{52

¢ Muklinath Bikas Bank

P20 S 572

Fy2080-8! 4 85.83%
FY 2079-80 81.53%
FY 207879 81.40%
FY 2077-78 78.04%

Per Employee Profit (in Million)
Gy 089
Fy2080-81 (NG 075
FY2079-80 | 075
FY 2078-79 0.86
FY 2077-78 075
Non Interest Income to Total Assets (in Percent)
FY 2081-82 - 0.52%
Fy2080-81 SN 0.48%
FY 2079-80 0.47%
FY 2078-79 0.46%
FY 2077-78 1.02%
Cost of Funds (in Percent]
FY 2081-82 — 4.90%
Fr2080-81 I 6.54%
FY 2079-80 y 9.52%
FY 2078-79 9.24%
FY 2077-78 6.26%
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We are committed to a path

Envisioning our goals,
our execution and
relentlessly pursuing

Excellence in our performance.

W F; &

Translating

of continuous improvement by

FTN dfchare o do

Mur i Bikas Bank

.'-.Iv. .-_-.
I8 i

Strategies into Results

During the year, the Bank remained
committed to driving sustainable
business growth while navigating a
dynamic and competitive financial
landscape. We focused on translating
strategic intent into concrete actions
that deliver measurable results.
Through proactive engagement

with market opportunities, timely
interventions and innovative

approaches, the Bank worked to
expand its reach, strengthen its
offerings, and create long-term value
for customers, investors and other
stakeholders. Each initiative was
carefully implemented to ensure that
growth is not only achieved but also
sustainable, resilient and aligned with
the Bank's Strategic Plan.

In this section, we report on the

execution of our defined strategy.
demonstrating how we have
translated our priorities into action.
Our focused efforts across key pillars
including asset quality, revenue
growth, digital transformation

and operational efficiency have
collectively strengthened our

competitive position.

MBIAIBAQ
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Strategy &
(4

Enhancing
Asset Quality

Optimizing
Business
Growth

Broadening
Digital
Customer
Base

5"-.,54 ¢ Muklinath Bikas Bank

Maintaining portfolio quality
continued to be a central priority
during the year, with proactive
measures taken to identify
emerging stresses and assist
customers with financial
difficulties.

Initiatives »

¢ Robust recovery and follow-up
mechanisms strengthened

e Targeted restructuring support
provided to financially
stressed borrowers

The Bank focused on sustaining
healthy business growth by
expanding its lending portfolio
while ensuring prudent risk
management practices.

Initiatives »

* Launched the marketing
initiates of “aatt ABICH &”
(Loan Made Easy)

e Strategic targeting of
high-potential customer
segments

¢ Revised loan products to meet
evolving customer needs

Our strategy focused on
accelerating the adoption of our
digital channels, creating a
seamless and accessible
banking experience to serve the
evolving needs of a modern
customer base.

Initiatives »

e Launched new mobile banking
app, named Muktinath Faida
App.

¢ Implemented targeted digital
marketing campaigns.

e Partnered with fintech for
specialized solutions.

¢ Invested NPR more than 40
million on technologies.

Results (y

NPL
Position

2081-82
Muktinath @ 2.97%
Industry 4.62%

Business
Growth

2081-82
Muktinath = 510%
Industry 8.18%

Customer
Growth

Muktinath
M Banking - 9.88%
| Banking 21.38%
Debit Cards : 13.32%

2080-81
2.37%
3.86%

2080-81
(3.04%)
5.97%

Industry
12.55%

15.63%
5.99%




Strategy &
(4

Profitability
Optimisation

Strengthening
the Capital Base

Optimizing
ALM Position

Enhancing bottom-line performance
through strategic pricing, diversified
revenue streams, and disciplined
expense management.

Initiatives »

e QOptimized interest spread within
regulatory limits.

e Strengthened our Asset-Liability
Management (ALM) position.

e Expanded our digital customer
base to boost non-interest income

e Implemented right pricing
strategies across products and
segments.

e Launched cost efficiency programs.

Ensuring long-term stability and
growth capacity by optimizing
our capital structure and
maintaining buffers above
regulatory requirements.

Initiatives »

¢ Approval of Shareholders
received for the issuance of
preference shares.

e Optimized risk-weighted
assets to improve capital
efficiency

* Retained the profits

Strengthening the balance
between assets and liabilities to
ensure stable profitability,
manage market risks, and
maintain robust liquidity.

Initiatives »

* |Implemented a sophisticated
ALM monitoring system.

e Strategically re-priced deposit
and loan portfolios.
« Conducted regular stress

testing for interest rate
scenarios.

Results (g

Average Annual
Interest Spread

Muktinath 4.53%
Industry 3.91%

Return On Equity
Muktinath 12.14%
Industry 10.00%

Growth
Revenue 9.37%
Net Profit 1479%

Capital Adequacy
Position

2081-82
Muktinath 12.88%
Industry 12.95%
NRB 11.00%
Requirement
CD Ratio

2081-82
Muktinath 85.72%
Industry 7579%

Total Liquid Assets
to Total Deposits

2081-82
Muktinath 18.50%
Industry 24.92%

2080-81

11.69%
12.92%
11.00%

2080-81

85.83%
79.09%

2080-81

18.27%
26.44%

MBIAIBAQ
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Strategy &
(4

Streamlining
Operational
Processes

Talent
Management
Excellence

Giving Back
to Society

{ Muklinath Bikas Bank

Simplifying and automating internal
workflows to improve efficiency,
reduce costs and enhance service
delivery speed.

Initiatives »

e Implemented robotic process
automation (RPA] for repetitive
tasks.

e Enhanced our mobile banking
app,24*7 Al-powered chat support
and quick dispute resolution

e Digitize and simplified customer
onboarding and services through
website and Muktinath Faida App.

e (Centralized back office operations

for key functions wherever possible.

Building a future-ready workforce

by attracting, developing, and
retaining top talent to drive our
strategic objectives.

Initiatives »

¢ Redesigned key roles to better
align with strategic priorities

¢ Revised the salary structure to

ensure market competitiveness.

e Launched a structured talent
placement and succession
planning process

e Enhanced learning &
development platforms.

Fulfilling our role as a
responsible corporate citizen
through environmental initiatives,
strategic community investment,
financial literacy and sustainable
practices.

Initiatives »

e Provided financial
scholarships to deserving
students from underprivileged
backgrounds.

¢ Conducted financial literacy
programs in schools and
communities.

e Equipped government schools
with computers to bridge the
digital world.

¢ Implemented green banking
initiatives and prioritized
lending to sustainable energy
projects.

Results (y

e Average loan turnaround
time reduced
lday

® Repetitive task
automated
9 Tasks

® Cost to income ratio
improvement
174%

e Retention
Ratio
91.09%

® Promotion
Ratio
25.07%

e Students receiving )
scholarships
38

® Financial literacy
beneficiaries
4,100+

® Total CSR
beneficiaries
12,000+

® Power Generation
Capacity Supported
269 MW




Operating Environment o
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The financial year 2024-25 unfolded

against a backdrop of persistent

macroeconomic uncertainty, evolving —

regulatory landscapes and increased "Ci

competition from financial service %

providers. While global and regional credit g

markets showed signs of gradual recovery, =
=3

[

challenges remained in the form of effective
liguidity management, interest rate volatility
and sector-specific stress, particularly in
real estate and unsecured retail lending.

. Global Economic Outlook

In the year 2024-25, the world
economy has shown cautious
resilience, as inflationary pressures
ease and monetary policies shift
towards flexibility, while geopolitical
uncertainties and external

world economy remains uncertain,
demanding renewed commitment
to multilateralism, sustainable
investment and inclusive economic
governance.

The global economy, which was
pushed towards a recession due to

||”“|r; IL_

2024 to 3.7 percent in 2024 and 3.9
percent in 2025.The forecast for
global growth five years from now
is at 3.3 percent is at its lowest in
decades.

Regarding the financial sector,
banks are witnessing shifting
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o
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vulnerabilities continue to pose . - s = g)
challenges. The economic recovery :he tlght'mo-netary pollpy adopted demand fqr credit, with increased g
remains uneven and fragile, o} cohtaln higher inflation, hg{s focgs on risk managemen‘t and 5
particularly in developing regions remained stronger than anticipated. capital a_dequz_acy.The_ I_MFs %
where debt burdens, limited fiscal However, the long-term effect of Global Financial Stability Report @
space and climate vulnerabilities the Covid pandemic, along with highlights that global financial
continue to erode prospects for ongoing geopolitical tensions in stability risks have increased
inclusive growth and sustainable Russia-Ukraine and the Middle significantly, driven by tighter
development. At the same time, East, are expected to limit the world global financial conditions and -
new and ongoing shocks such economic growth. heightened trade and geopoalitical
as extreme weather events, uncertainty. Valuations remain 2]
regional conflicts and disruptions In the Ilght o_f ongoing risks and high in some key markets and_ ”C.i
in global supply chains have uncertalnty in the world, the global some hlghly leveraged ﬁ_narmal §
exacerbated humanitarian crises economy is expected to grow by institutions pose potential risks to <
and deepened socioeconomic only 2.8% in 2025.That's slower financial stability. Additionally, the o
disparities, threatening to reverse than the 3.3% growth expected growing systemic importance of __81
gains made toward the Sustainable in 2024 and much lower than nonbank financial intermediation o
Development Goals [SDGs). The the long-term average of 37% and its interconnectedness
risk of a further fracturing of the seen between 2000 and 2018, with the global banking system
global trading system driven by according to the IMF'S April necessitatejs. \-/igilar.wt‘management _
geopolitical rivalries, protectionist 2024 World Economic Outlook.A of vulnerabilities arising from
policies and technological slight dgceleration for gdvanced leverage and quuidity_mi_s_m.atches. %"
decoupling poses additional economies where decline is As such, ba_nks are prioritizing _ o
threats to industrial production, gxpected to fall from 1:8 percent rpbust capital buffers and proactive g.
innovation and global supply chain in 2024 to 1._4 percent_ln 2Q25 and rlsk_managemer\t strategies to_ _ -
stability. As financial conditions 1.5 percent in 2026. Likewise, there navigate potential market \{c?latlllty °
tighten and global cooperation will also be modest slowdown in and ensure long-term stability. %
(/7]

weakens, the road ahead for the

emerging market and developing
economies from 4.3 percent in

Mukiinath Bikas Bank > 2/
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2. Nepalese Economic Outlook

Nepal's economy is anticipated to
grow by 4.4% (at market prices] in
fiscal year (FY) 2025, up from actual
growth rate of 3.9% in FY2024,
says the latest Asian Development
Outlook (ADO) April 2024.This
growth is largely attributed to the
improved agricultural yield, electricity
generation and tourist arrivals.
Additionally, Inflation moderated,
driven by nonfood items, the current
account turned into surplus with

a reduced trade deficit and higher
remittance income. Further, GDP
growth is expected to reach 4.4% in
FY2025 and rise to 5.1% in FY2026
as all the key production areas

are expected to expand, inflation
expected to moderate, government
expecting to expediate capital
expenditure (targeting 85% execution
rate) and private investment will
increase.

The services sector is expected to
be the key driver of growth in the
coming years.Accommodation and
food services are poised to benefit
significantly from the rise in tourist
arrivals. The ongoing construction of
new five-star hotels and government
policies supporting real estate loans
are expected to further stimulate
the accommodation sub- sector.
Meanwhile, the industrial sector

is expected to grow, buoyed by
significant expansions in electricity
generation capacity, fostering a more
conducive environment for industrial
activities. Similarly, agricultural
growth which contracted in 2024 is
projected to expand this year due

to various factors such as above-
normal monsoon, timely availability
of fertilizers, high yielding variety
seeds as well as stable oil and raw
input prices, increased liquidity and
declining interest rates.

The banking and financial sector
remained stable and profitable
despite challenges. Overall, asset
quality remained stagnant, but
there were signs of deterioration.
Nonperforming loans increased,
with private commercial banks
experiencing a larger relative
rise. Average capital adequacy
ratio remained above regulatory
requirements, but pressures
were observed, particularly

with various private banks and

financial institutions falling below
the regulatory minimum for core
capital adequacy ratio. Liquidity
increased, supported by remittance
inflows, prompting the central bank
to implement measures to absorb
excess liquidity. Moreover, efforts
were made to mitigate further
decline in banks' profitability through
adjustments in loan loss provisions
and restructuring of loans for select
sectors.

The annual average consumer price
inflation for 2024/25 reached to 4.06
percent, down from 5.44 percent the
previous year, reflecting a moderation
in overall price pressures across

the economy. Similarly, year-on-year
consumer price inflation stood at 2.20
percent in mid-July 2025, compared
to 3.57 percent at the same time last
year, signaling a continued easing

of inflationary trends. Within the

food and beverage category, prices
showed mixed trends: the annual
average consumer price index
increased notably for vegetables by
10.71 percent, ghee and oil by 872
percent, pulses and legumes by 7.90
percent and cereal grains and their
products by 8.13 percent. In contrast,
prices for spices and meat & fish
recorded declines of 2.62 percent and
0.34 percent, respectively, indicating
some easing in selected food items
amid broader inflationary moderation.
These variations reflect supply-side
factors such as seasonal availability
and import price fluctuations, which
continue to influence food inflation.
Inflation has notably improved due

to increased domestic agricultural
production, declining inflation in
India, stabilized crude oil prices

in the international market and a
smooth domestic supply chain. Indian
inflation, which directly influences
Nepal's inflation, is projected to
gradually decline to around 3.7
percent in the coming year. In this
context, the inflation in 2025/26

is projected to remain around 5.0
percent.

The country's external sector showed
significant improvement across key
economic indicators. The current
account surplus rose to Rs. 409.20
billion, nearly doubling from Rs.

22171 billion in the previous year.
When measured in US dollars, the
surplus also increased substantially

from $1.67 billion to $3.01 billion.
Additionally, net capital transfers grew
from Rs. 5.81 billion to Rs. 9.84 billion,
reflecting stronger financial inflows.
Foreign direct investment (equity
only] inflows also reached Rs.12.02
billion compared to Rs. 8.47 billion in
the prior year, indicating increased
investor confidence. Overall, the
Balance of Payments (BOP)] recorded
a surplus of Rs. 594.54 billion, up from
Rs. 502.49 billion, with the dollar-
denominated surplus improving from
$3.77 billion to $4.37 billion. These
figures highlight a positive trend in the
country's external economic position
during the year.

In the fiscal year 2024/25, the
Government of Nepal recorded a
fiscal deficit of Rs. 404.42 billion,
slightly higher than the previous
year's deficit of Rs. 379.38 billion,
based on banking transactions.
However, when combining all

three levels of government federal,
provincial and local the overall

fiscal position showed a surplus

of Rs.130.73 billion by mid-July
2025. During this period, the total
government expenditure reached
Rs.1,523.11 billion, which included
Rs.980.38 billion in recurrent
expenses, Rs. 222.68 billion in

capital expenditure and Rs. 320.04
billion in financial expenditures. On
the revenue side, the government
mobilized Rs.1,178.82 billion in total
revenue, comprising Rs.1,049.88
billion from tax revenue and Rs.128.94
billion from non-tax sources, including
funds allocated for provincial and
local governments. This reflects a
robust revenue collection despite the
central government's fiscal deficit,
with the combined government
sectors maintaining a positive fiscal
balance.

The GoN has set a target of
achieving 8.0 percent economic
growth for 2025/286. Increased
capital expenditure allocations
across all three tiers of government,
ample liquidity for investment with
low interest rates and reforms

in investment-related laws have
promised a conducive investment
climate. In this context, the targeted
economic growth rate is expected to
be achieved through the development
and expansion of the agriculture,
service and infrastructure sectors.
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The forecast is subject to both
domestic and external risks.

a decade, could continue to deter
private investment.

&

the high dependency on remittance
inflows exposes the country to
external shocks.

Externally, geopolitical uncertainty o

could trigger a rise in commodity On the fiscal front, there is need ®

prices, impacting all sectors.A growth to strengthen the execution and Thus, there is a need to strengthen <

slowdown in partner countries efficiency of capital expenditure to Nepal's international competitiveness 2

as well as intensified geopolitical boost economic growth, as well as the in other sources of external

tensions in various regions might importance of reducing dependence earnings—such as increasing

also lead to a drop in remittances and on imports tax. revenue. Sound and electricity generation, promoting

tourism, hindering economic growth. consistent monetary policy will sustainable energy practices (which -

Persistent inflation expectations also be key to boosting confidence can significantly reduce the trade

and lower domestic demand could and stimulating economic growth. deficit by cutting fossil fuel imports],

further dampen economic activity. Addressing the increasing level of expanding tourism, attracting foreign <

Natural disasters pose additional non-performing loans in the financial direct investment and boosting goods %

risks to sustaining welfare gains. sector is crucial to strengthening exports as all these factors contribute g

Finally, frequent political changes, a financial stability and support private to economic growth. é

top headwind for businesses for over investment. On the external side, =3
=3

.Industry Overview

In FY 2024/25, Nepal's banking sector
faced mixed dynamics amid gradual
economic recovery. Non-performing
loans (NPLs] and non-banking assets
of BFlIs increased, putting pressure
on their capital funds and weakening
their credit expansion capacity, with

a rise in borrower blacklisting. To
address these challenges, the focus
has been on strengthening financial
stability by enhancing credit capacity,
improving credit management and
prioritizing the establishment of an
Asset Management Company (AMC)

Despite these issues, the banking
system benefited from abundant
liquidity and declining interest rates,
creating an environment conducive
to credit growth. NRB absorbed a
net liquidity of Rs. 24,648.65 billion
through tools like the Standing
Deposit Facility and deposit auctions,
while injecting Rs. 787 billion via

net foreign exchange purchases. In
terms of credit trends, term loans
rose by 71%, real estate loans by
5.9%, margin loans by 56.2% and
working capital loans by 13.2%,
though overdraft lending declined

by 8.6% from commercial banks,
6.1% from development banks and
8.4% from finance companies.
Average base rates dropped
significantly, with commercial banks
at 6.02%, development banks at
8.03% and finance companies at
8.97%, reflecting easing monetary
conditions. The sector is also moving
into a new era of technological
transformation, with an emphasis
on modernizing services, fostering
institutional diversity and adopting
risk-based, internationally aligned
regulatory frameworks to ensure
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to manage bad assets. by 10.4%. Private sector credit grew long-term financial stability. g
%
Q
The table below reflects the growth of Major Financial Indicators of BFIs during review period: N
Figuresin %
Total Deposit/GDP 119.59 113.86 5.03% o
Total Credit/GDP 91.60 90.63 107% n
Total Credit/ Total Deposit 76.59 79.60 -378% g
CD Ratio 7579 79.09 -4.18% S
Fixed Deposit/Total Deposit 48.02 56.08 -14.38% ;
Saving Deposit/Total Deposit 36.60 30.09 21.65% _c-g
Current Deposit/Total Deposit 723 5.88 22.92% ar
Call Deposit/Total Deposit 749 7.27 3.06%
NPL/ Total Loan 462 3.86 19.63% o
Total LLP/Total Loan 5.09 445 14.49%
Deprived Sector Loan/Total Loan 5.52 6.22 -11.25% m
Cash & Bank Balance/Total Deposit 8.00 743 7.67% §
Investment in Gov. Securities/Total Deposit 16.05 1792 -10.42% g-
Total Liquid Assets/Total Deposit 24.92 26.44 -577% %
Core Capital/RWA 1013 10.20 -0.68% 5
Total Capital/RWA 1295 1292 0.26% 3

Source: Nepal Rastra Bank
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Our Performance Review

Overview of Bank's Financial Position

A.Total Assets

The total assets of the Bank have
increased by 9.26%, increasing

from NPR 124,94776 million in the
previous period to NPR 136,520.2
million in the current period. This
increase in total assets is attributed
to various factors such as a increase

B.Loans and Advances
During the year, the net loans and
advances of the Bank have increased
by 5.10%. Credit risk management
and Portfolio diversification to ensure

The loan portfolio category wise is as follows:

Assets Class

in investments, loans and advances
and deposits by the Bank. It reflects
the bank’s efforts to optimize its asset
portfolio, assets liability position and
strengthen its capital base. This asset
expansion underscores the Bank’s
cautious stance, prioritizing long-term
stability over short-term growth in a

long-term stability and profitability
have remained the primary
objective of the Bank. The quality
of loan portfolio has been closely
monitored so as to minimize credit

challenging market. Such measures
are vital in safeguarding the Bank's
position against rising systemic risks
to ensure sustainable growth in the
future.

risk. Key indicators such as loan loss
provisions and non-performing loan
(NPL] ratios are carefully reviewed to
maintain a healthy and sustainable
loan portfolio.

Figures in Mn

Current Year Previous Year

Total Loan % of Loans Imp.le-;i)rtr?llent Total Loan % of loans Imp-erzci)rtrerlllent

Good 88,042.76 87.76% 878.24 82,379.39 87.02% 98122
Restructured 2,442.98 2.43% 121.50 5492.92 5.80% 27070
Watchlist 6,863.68 6.84% 341.53 4,651.45 4.91% 23729
Substandard 460.18 0.46% 113.94 854.21 0.90% 212.37
Doubtful 825.10 0.82% 41113 637.07 0.67% 315.54
Bad 1694.27 169% 1692.59 665.27 0.70% 748.24
Total 100,328.95 100% 3,558.93 94,680.30 100% 2,765.36
NPL 2.97% 2.37%

C.Loan Segmentation

Loan portfolio is diversified across various segments which allows to mitigate risks related to specific sectors and ensure a

balanced approach to lending.

- Priority Sector Lending

Priority sector lending reflects both
the regulatory compliance and
bank’s contribution in supporting
key sectors of the economy. A total
of 27974.43 million, or 27.88% of the
bank's loan portfolio, is allocated to
four priority sectors with 15.16%, the

largest of all to SME sector followed
by 2.94% to Agriculture sector,
6.86% to tourism sector and 2.91%
to energy sector. By directing funds
into these sectors, the Bank not only
complies with regulatory guidelines
but also actively contributes to the
development and upliftment of the

economy, supporting sectors that are
essential for long-term stability and
growth.The increase in hydropower
sector and decrease in agriculture
sector is due to credit sale and
reciprocal credit purchase worth
NPR 3 billion.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Mn) % Amount (Mn) %

Agriculture 2,953.68 2.94% 5,973.91 6.31%
Hydropower/Energy 2,822.49 2.91% 470.01 0.50%
Tourism 6.884.93 6.86% 4733.92 5.00%
SME 15,213.33 15.16% 19,46172 20.56%
Total 2797443 27.88% 30,639.57 32.36%
Total Loans and Advances 100,328.95 94,680.30
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+ Product wise term loans granted to businesses distribution of credit across different
In terms of product wise or individuals with fixed repayment sectors and customer needs,
segmentation, the term loan segment schedules ensuring the long term balancing risk and supporting
remains the largest portion of the followed by residential personal various segments of the economy.
portfolio with 47.78% or 4793272 home loan (15.15%)This diverse Breakdown of loan portfolio by
million, which are typically long- portfolio reflects the bank's strategic segment is as:
Particulars Previous Year
Amount (Mn) % Amount (Mn) %
Term Loan 4793272 4778% 4492847 47.45%
Overdraft 2,389.07 2.38% 3,145.60 3.32%
Cash Credit Loan 8,149.33 8.12% 8,700.25 9.19%
Demand & Other Working Capital Loan 4386.65 4.37% 638.08 0.67%
Residential Personal Home Loan (Up to Rs. 30 million) 15,196.35 15.15% 13,918.92 1470%
Real Estate Loan 8,675.42 8.65% 781371 8.25%
Margin Nature Loan 3.722.35 3.71% 2,805.44 2.96%
Hire Purchase Loan 1859.67 1.85% 2,165.38 229%
Deprived Sector Loan 5,318.01 5.30% 6,210.90 6.56%
Other Product 2,699.37 2.69% 4,353.54 4.60%
Total 100,328.95 100.00% 94,680.30 100.00% 2
)
+ Collateral wise highlighting the majority assets on property as collateral, while also E
The loan portfolio segmentation being backed by the security. The utilizing a range of other security 3
based on collateral has majority segmentation illustrates the Bank's types to mitigate risk. %
of loans (i.e. 86.08%) of total loans diversified approach to securing its ‘S"_
backed by property collateral, loan portfolio, with a strong emphasis g
Particulars Previous Year
Amount (Mn) % Amount (Mn) %
Collateral of Properties 86,360.72 86.08% 8212772 86.74%
Gold and Silver 946.28 0.94% 634.82 0.67%
Institutional Guarantee 1,846.61 1.84% 2,52071 2.66%
Fixed Deposit Receipts 699.15 0.70% 953.10 1.01%
Collective Guarantee 572.44 0.57% 199137 2.10%
Personal Guarantee 2728.26 272% 3.591.02 3.79%
Others 3453.13 3.44% 5275 0.06%
Non-Governmental Securities 3.722.35 3.71% 2,808.81 2.97%
Total 100,328.95 100.00% 94,680.30 100.00%
D.Investment government securities, which are yield in the government securities
The investment of the Bank considered safe, low-risk assets that has decreased. Further, the Bank
primarily comprised of investments provide a stable return, ensuring has made certain investment in
in government securities, shares the bank’s liquidity and financial shares and mutual funds to cater the
and mutual funds. Of the total, NPR security. However, due to excess opportunities for higher returns as
13,856.84 million is invested in liquidity in the market currently, the well as optimizing the portfolio.
Particulars Previous Year
Amount (Mn) % Amount (Mn) %
Government Securities 13,856.84 95.13% 13,857.03 96.98%
Shares 33113 227% 24188 169%
Mutual Funds 37875 2.60% 189.63 1.33%
Total 14,566.72 100% 14,288.54 100%
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E.Deposits
Deposits are a critical aspect of a
Bank's operations, representing
the primary source of funding for
its lending activities and overall
financial stability. During the period,
the Bank emphasized enhancing its
asset-liability position and aligning
deposits with current and potential
credit creation needs. The Assets

The deposit mix is highlighted below:

Liability Committee played a key role
in maintaining optimal liquidity at all
times while ensuring the net interest
margin remained unaffected by
excess liquidity. Additionally, interest
rates were published monthly

in compliance with regulatory
requirements considering internal
and external liquidity availability.

Deposit serves in managing liquidity
and ensuring that the Bank can
meet the withdrawal demands of
customers while simultaneously
having sufficient funds available

for lending. The Bank has a mix of
various deposits to ensure financial
flexibility and resilience. The deposit
mix is highlighted below:

Type of Deposit Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Mn) % Amount (Mn) %
Current 342784 2.91% 222342 2.02%
Saving 44,652.29 37.87% 34,553.26 31.37%
Fixed 61,406.46 52.08% 66.,75715 60.62%
Money at Call 8.334.67 7.07% 6,517.05 5.92%
Margin Deposit 92.32 0.08% 74.28 0.07%
Total 117,913.58 100% 110,125.17 100%

Further, the combination of individual
deposits, which offer consistency
and institutional deposits, which

Bank's funding sources. This helps the
Bank comply with regulatory reserve
requirements and strengthens its

and predictable source of funds.
The composition of individual and
institutional deposit as of Ashad 2082

provide larger sums, diversifies the financial position providing a stable is as follows:
Category of Deposit Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Mn) % Amount (Mn) %
Individual Deposit 85,451.37 72.47% 85,850.38 77.96%
Institutional Deposit 32,462.21 27.53% 24,27479 22.04%
Total 117,913.58 100% 110,125.17 100%

The overall composition of deposit
is well-balanced, with a clear focus

The ratio of individual deposits to
institutional deposit is 2.63:1 which

funding, ensuring non over-reliance on
short-term or market-sensitive sources

on securing stable, low-cost funding. reflects the conservative approach to of liquidity.
Concentration of Deposits Current Year Previous Year
Amount (Mn) % Amount (Mn) %
Top 20 Natural Persons 1610.48 1.37% 1656.00 1.50%
Top 20 Institutions 15,686.22 13.30% 11,.907.25 10.81%
Total 17,296.70 14.67% 13,563.24 12.32%
Total Deposit 117,913.58 110,125.17

the same whereas the reserves
increased significantly by 40.81%
reflecting the higher retention of
profits earned. The overall increase
in both retained earnings and
reserves contributed to the overall

F. Equity
The bank's total equity experienced
a growth of 13.24% in FY 2081/82,
increasing from NPR 10,429.51 million
in FY 2080/81 to NPR 11,810.07 million.
The share capital has remained

growth in equity, enhancing the
bankK's financial stability and the
capital base its ability to invest in
future opportunities and ensuring
compliance with capital adequacy
requirements.

Figuresin Mn

Share Capital 7,046.94 7,046.94 0.00%

Retained Earnings & Reserves 476313 3.382.57 40.81%

Total Equity 11,810.07 10,429.51 13.24%
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The key figures from the Bank's financial position are as follows:

Particulars

Total Assets

Loans from Customers [net]
Investment Securities

Total Equity

Deposit from Customers
Total Loan Loss Provision
Non-Performing Loans

136,520.20
97223.24
14,566.72

11,810.07
117,430.72
3,558.93
2,979.54

&

Figures in Mn

12494776 9.26%
91,907.31 578%
14,249.25 2.23%
10,429.51 13.24%
109,758.88 6.99%
2,765.36 28.70%
2241.08 32.95%

Overview of Bank's Financial Performance

A.Net Interest Income
The net interest income (NII) of the
Bank has increased by 7.98%, rising
from NPR 4,239.34 million in the
previous period to NPR 4,577.49

B.Fees & Other Operating Income
The fees and other operating
income have increased by 18.65%,
rising from NPR 597.15 million in
the previous period to NPR 708.49
million in the current period. Fees
and other operating income have
shown a increment due to increase

C.Personnel Expenses
The personnel expenses have
increased by 5.84%, rising from
NPR 1,555.41 million in the previous
period to NPR 1,646.27 million in
the current period. To optimize the
staff expenses, the Bank is aligning
the workforce by streamlining
processes and automating routine
tasks. Similarly, outsourcing non-core
functions, such as administrative
tasks or support services as well as
investing in employee training and
development to increase productivity

D.Depreciation & Amortization and
Other Operating Expenses
The Depreciation and Amortization
expense seems to have increased by
8.04%, rising from NPR 273.10 million
to NPR 295.06 million. This increase
is basically due to an increase in the
depreciation expenses of the newly
built central office building and other
assets installed in the building.
The total operating expenses have

million in the current period. The NI
has increased marginally due to
reduction in interest yielding assets,
increase in bad loans as well as
reduction in the yield of government

in credit growth resulting in the
increment of service fees as large
portion of the fees income is derived
from the credit disbursal. As fees
and operating income represent an
important revenue stream for, the
Bank is exploring ways to diversify
and enhance the sources of income

without adding to the headcount
has been carried out.As a result, the
Bank has reduced the head count
by 45 from 1,565 in the previous year
t0 1,520 in the current year. Further,
the possibility of implementing
technology solutions such as
Artificial Intelligence (Al) and Robotic
Process Automation (RPA] is being
explored to automate routine tasks,
enhance operational efficiency and
reduce costs. These technologies
can streamline processes, minimize
human error and enable the

increased by 4.43%, from NPR 795.85
million to NPR 831.10 million. Out

of other operating expenses, other
operating expenses have increased
marginally by 2.03%, increasing from
NPR 437.04 million in the previous
period to NPR 445.92 million in

the current period. The bank has
continuously adopted cost reduction
mechanisms. Notably the major
improvement in terms of cost has

securities. Further the improvement
is also the result of offloading the
excessive liquidity and improving the
credit to deposits ratio.

generation, particularly through
digital and innovative products
and services. The Bank continued
its focus on expanding the digital
customer base and increasing the
digital banking business income.

reallocation of resources to more
strategic and value-driven activities.
The Board-level Human Resource
Management Committee regularly
reviews human resource-

related matters and provides
recommendations to the Board.
This ensures a balance between
maintaining the quality of
management required for effective
operations and execution and
managing personnel expenses
efficiently.

been observed in professional and
legal expenses, business promotion,
office refreshment, printing &
stationery, expenses. This reduction
shows that the Bank has successfully
managed its cost minimization
strategies and enhanced operational
efficiencies, which is further reflected
in Notes 4.37 in the financial
statement.
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E.Impairment charges
During this year, the Bank has
recognized impairment charges
of NPR 793.57 million, compared
to the previous year's charges of
776.78 million.The increment in the
impairment charges has affected

E. Net Profit
In the current year, the Bank
reported a profit of NPR 1,350.36
million, a increase from NPR 1,176.33
million in the previous year, reflecting

the profitability of the Bank.The rise
in impairment charges is primarily
due to the unfavorable economic
situation prevailing in economy,
which have reduced the bank’s ability
to recover loans effectively. Despite
the excess liquidity in the market, the

a increment of 14.79%. Despite the
challenges posed by the economic
environment, low credit demand and
rising NPL levels, the bank has been
able to achieve around 15% profit

The key figures from the statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:

Particulars

economic slowdown and challenges
in manufacturing, trading and real
estate sectors have made it difficult
for businesses and individuals to
meet their financial obligations,
leading to an increase in NPL.

growth with effective management
of assets, cautious loan growth,
stringent recovery process.

Figures in Mn

Net Interest Income 4,57749 4,239.34 7.98%
Non-Interest Income 708.50 59715 18.65%
Total Revenue 5,285.99 4,836.49 9.29%
Impairment Charges 793.57 77678 216%
Personnel expenses 1,646.27 1,555.41 5.84%
Other Operating expenses 83110 795.85 4.43%
Non-operating expense 64.07 26.23 144.28%
Profit before taxes 1,950.98 168221 15.98%
Net Profit 1,350.36 1176.33 1479%

Capital Management

The Bank has formulated Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
([ICAAP] which has a sound and
comprehensive policy and process

for evaluating the Bank's capital
commensurate with the overall risk
profile, business projections and capital
management strategies.

It covers the capital management
policy of the Bank, set out the process

A.Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio
This ratio measures bank’s core
equity capital relative to its risk-
weighted assets (RWA]. As of Ashad
2082, CETl ratio stands at 10.84%,

B.Total Capital Adequacy Ratio
The Total Capital Ratio, which
includes both Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital,
is currently 12.88%, compared to the
required regulatory minimum of 11%.
This ratio indicated the bank's strong
financial foundation and ability to

for assessment of the adequacy

of capital to meet regulatory
requirements, support current and
future activities and meet the Pillar |
and material Pillar Il risks to which the
Bank is exposed to.

The Banks develops its strategic,
business and capital plans covering
five-year horizon. Based on this long-
term strategy, the annual budget of

which exceeds the minimum
regulatory requirement of 8.5%

as required by NRB.The Bank
continue to focus on maintaining a
strong CET1 ratio to ensure that a

meet obligations in the event of
adverse economic conditions.

These ratios are regularly reviewed
in light of regulatory changes and
business growth to ensure ongoing
compliance. In order to further
strengthen the capital base, the Bank

the Bank is prepared considering

the current economic and business
outlook. These two long- and short-
term plans ensure that adequate
levels of capital and optimum mix are
maintained by the Bank to support its
strategy and business requirements
The capital adequacy position of the
Bank stands at:

sufficient buffer is in hand to absorb
potential losses and meet regulatory
expectations.

is in the process of issuing Perpetual
Non-Cumulative Preference Shares
for this financial year and has
planned to issue similar long-term
capital components.
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Liquidity Management

Liquidity management is a critical
focus for the bank, as it ensures the
ability to meet short-term obligations

Ratios

while supporting ongoing operations
and growth. The liquidity position is
closely monitored through a variety of

&

key liquidity ratios and metrics on daily
basis. The major liquidity ratios are:

Regulatory Requirement Actual as of Ashad 2082

Cash Reserve Ratio [CRR) >=4% 415%
Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) >=10% 23.41%
Net Liquidity Ratio >=20% 25.57%

Key Ratios

In the current financial year, the Bank
has experienced several noteworthy
trends in its key financial ratios, which
offer important insights into both its
performance and areas that require
attention. Return on Assets (ROA)
has seen a increased from 0.94% to
1.03%.The Bank is actively working
on optimizing its asset portfolio and
exploring opportunities for better
utilization of resources to improve
this ratio in the coming year.The
Return on Equity (ROE) experienced
a rise of 7.66%, from 11.28% to 12.14%.
The increase is particularly due to

increment in profitability. Similarly,

the Bank recognizes that its Earnings
per Share (EPS) and Net Worth per
Share have seen a rise of 14.81% and
13.54%, respectively. Similarly, there

is improvement in Tier | Capital Ratio,
which increased from 9.46% to 10.84%.
This growth signifies that the Bank
has successfully strengthened its core
capital base in line with its strategic
aspirations which is a critical factor

in maintaining financial stability and
absorbing potential losses. A key
concern for the Bank is the significant
increase in the gross Non-Performing

The following provides the snapshot of key financial ratios.

Particulars

Loans (NPLs] and net Non-Performing
Loans which currently stands at

2.97% and 0.76% respectively. This is
particularly due to the uncertainties

in the economy and other factors.
However, the Bank is actively working to
reduce the NPL level through enhanced
credit risk management, more rigorous
loan monitoring and proactive recovery
strategies. Despite these challenges,
the Bank is committed to optimizing
operations and enhancing shareholder
value in the years ahead.

Return on Assets 1.03% 0.94% 9.88%
Return on Equity 12.14% 11.28% 7.66%
Net worth per share 167.59 148 13.24%
Earnings per share 19.16 16.69 14.81%
Liquidity Ratio 25.57% 24.01% 6.50%
Tier | Capital Ratio 10.84% 9.46% 14.59%
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 12.88% 11.69% 10.18%
Gross Non-Performing Loans 2.97% 2.37% 25.32%
Net Non-performing Loans 0.76% 1.02% -25.49%

In comparison to industry-wide averages, the Bank is performing well above the industry average. The table below provides a
snapshot of the comparison of Bank and industry:

Particulars

AT TR ST

el
o
=4
o
=
3
o)
=)
Q
o
A
@
=
)
3

Liquidity Ratio 24.92% 25.57%
CD Ratio 75.79% 85.72%
Gross NPL 4.62% 2.97%
Core Capital Ratio 10.13% 10.84%
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 12.95% 12.88%
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Operational Scale and Service Outreach

As at Ashad 2082, the Bank has a total
of 1,516 employees, a slight decrease
from 1,565 employees in Ashad 2081,
indicating a result of streamlining
operations or optimizing efficiency

in line with the bank’s strategic
goals.The Bank has maintained its
service outreach with 174 branches,

5 extension counters and 22 ATMs,
ensuring widespread access to

banking services for its customers.
The Bank is empowering the existing
branches to increase productivity in
terms and business and profitability.
In terms of account growth, the Bank
has made notable strides, with the
total number of deposit accounts
reaching 1.45 million. This growth in
deposit accounts reflects increasing
customer trust and a strong market

presence. The number of debit cards,
mobile banking and internet banking
issued has increased significantly
indicating growing customer
engagement and a positive shift
towards digital banking. In conclusion,
despite various challenges, the bank's
overall operational scale and service
outreach signals a positive trend.

SWOT Analysis

The Bank has
implemented Strategic
Plan "2080-85"to
ensure sustainable
growth, remain
competitive the long- O T
term value creation to Growing Digital Banking Business

the stakeholders the Supportive Regulatory Policies

L Increasing Scope of Green Financing
key areas of which is Increasing Remittance and Exports
as follows: Raising Low Cost Long Term Funds
Expected Economic Recovery

Wide Range of Products and Services
Dynamic Workforce

Strong Brand Recognition

Robust Financial Position

Well Established Customer Base

Rising Non-Performing Loans
Retention of Quality Manpower
Increasing Operational Cost
Increasing Legal Recovery Issues

Economic Slowdown
Cybersecurity Risks
Competition Non Bank Players
Reputational Risks

Political Instability

Low Private Sector Confidence

Strategic Initiatives

The Bank has implemented Strategic Plan "2080-85" to ensure sustainable growth, remain competitive the long-term value
creation to the stakeholders the key areas of which is as follows:

i. Statement of Strategy Vi.
ii. Business Strategy
iii. Financial Strategy viii. ESG Strategy

iv. Operational Strategy ix. Technological Strategy

v. Internal Control Strategy X. Human Resource/Capital Strategy

Risk Management/Mitigation Strategy
vii. Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Strategy

Conclusion

The Bank has shown satisfactory
performance in FY 2081-82,
maintaining an effective financial
position despite challenges like rising
credit risk, increased non-performing
loans (NPLs) and macroeconomic
uncertainties. Key metrics such as
net profit, return on equity (ROE)

and return on assets (ROA] indicate
resilience, reflecting effective cost
management, optimized asset use and
improved capital position.The bank's

diversified loan portfolio, robust capital
and liquidity management further
support its ability to navigate adverse
conditions.

However, challenges remain,
particularly in asset quality and credit
risk management, with the increase
in NPLs and loan-loss provisions
highlighting the need for continued
vigilance. The banking sector is

under pressure from rising NPL

ratios and liquidity concerns. Despite
this, the Bank is well-positioned for
future growth, focusing on strategic
initiatives such as market expansion,
digital transformation and cost
management. Its commitment to
sustainability through green finance
and ESG investments, along with
strong capital buffers, positions the
Bank to adapt to evolving market
trends and economic fluctuations.

As we look ahead, focus shall be made on leveraging core strengths,
maintaining financial discipline and building a resilient and future-ready
institution capable of creating long-term value for the stakeholders.
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Horizontal Analyis

of Financial Statement’

Statement of Financial Position

2081/82 2080/81 2079/80 2078/79

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalent 80% 64% 99% 76% 100%
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 638% 185% 142% 127% 100%

Placement with Bank and

Financial Institutions s = L L s

Derivative Financial Instruments 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Other Trading Assets 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Loans and Advances to BFls 269% 420% 452% S77% 100% c_:‘D'i
coans and Advances o 204% 198% 182% 153% 100% 3
Investment Securities 221% 335% 272% 220% 100% §
Current Tax Assets 25% 70% 24% B4% 100% .
Investment in Subsidiaries 208% 208% 100% 100% 100% %.
Investment in Associates 284% 284% 183% 183% 100% 2
Investment Property 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Property and Equipment 275% 251% 248% 106% 100%

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 109% 149% 204% 85% 100%

Deferred Tax Assets 275% 187% 204% 121% 100%

Other Assets 270% 384% 166% 112% 100%

Total Assets 206% 198% 182% 152% 100%

Liabilities

Pue to Banks and Financial 160% 86% 161% 233% 100%

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Derivative Financials Instrument 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Deposits from Customers 205% 203% 183% 152% 100%

Borrowings 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Current Tax Liabilities 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Provisions 0% 397% 94% 100% 100%

Deferred Tax Liabilities 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Other Liabilities 212% 258% 255% 128% 100%

Debt Securities Issued 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Subordinated Liabilities 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Total Liabilities 206% 202% 187% 156% 100%

Equity

Share Capital 163% 148% 131% 111% 100%

Share Premium 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%

Retained Earnings 221% 110% 131% 146% 100%

Reserves 418% 278% 198% 137% 100%

Total Equity 180% 161% 139% 117% 100%

Total Equity and Liabilities 206% 198% 182% 152% 100%
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This Horizontal Analysis of the of assets, liabilities, and equity over demonstrates solid growth in assets
Statement of Financial Position time, using FY 2077/78 as the base and equity, driven by an increase in
provides insights into the growth year (100%). This shows the the Bank loans, deposits, and reserves.

Statement of Profit or Loss

2081/82 2080/81 2079/80 2078/79 2077/78

Interest Income 168% 235% 175% 115% 100%
Interest Expense 149% 262% 190% 111% 100%
Net Interest Income 203% 182% 147% 123% 100%
Fees and Commission Income 127% 116% 98% 119% 100%
Fees and Commission Expense 396% 295% 219% 141% 100%
Net Fee and Commission Income 115% 108% 92% 118% 100%
:\let Interest, Fee and Commission 187% 169% 138% 122% 100%
ncome
Net Trading Income 146% 181% 135% 100% 100%
Other Operating Income 143% 32% 131% 1184% 100%
Total Operating Income 186% 167% 137% 136% 100%
:;”apnasir;%”é t‘i]'fr rl%zls[;es"ers""” for 250% 221% 24% 156% 100%
Net Operating Income 178% 160% 152% 133% 100%
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 184% 161% 136% 124% 100%
Other Operating Expenses 103% 106% 91% 91% 100%
Depreciation and Amortisation 224% 178% 162% 110% 100%
Operating Profit 200% 180% 192% 163% 100%
Non Operating Income 847% 0% 0% 8191% 100%
Non Operating Expenses 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Profit before Income Tax 193% 179% 191% 164% 100%
Income Tax Expenses
Current Tax 194% 185% 189% 166% 100%
Deferred Tax 92% 168% 72% 177% 100%
Profit for the Period 191% 176% 190% 163% 100%
The above horizontal analysis of the is set at 100%. This approach helps to strength, such as consistent interest
Statement of Profit or Loss requires each ~ understand growth patterns and shifts income growth, and areas of concern,
line item is expressed as a percentage in financial performance over the years. like increasing impairment charges
relative to the base year (2077-78), which This trend analysis highlights areas of and operating expenses
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Vertical Analyis .

of Financial Statement

Statement of Financial Position

2081/82 2080/81 2079/80 2078/79

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.82% 4.00% 6.69% 6.20% 12.36%
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 9.43% 2.84% 2.37% 2.54% 3.04%

Placement with Bank and
Financial Institutions

Derivative Financial Instruments - - = - -
Other Trading Assets - - = - -

Loans and Advances to BFls 119% 1.93% 2.25% 3.44% 0.91% ‘_:,“'i
coans and Advances o 71.22% 777% 7170% 72.11% 71.83% %
Investment Securities 10.67% 16.78% 14.81% 14.35% 9.94% §
Current Tax Assets 0.01% 0.04% 0.01% 0.04% 0.10% .:;1?
Investment in Subsidiaries 0.18% 0.19% 0.10% 012% 0.18% csn'
Investment in Associates 0.11% 0.12% 0.08% 0.10% 0.08% 2
Investment Property 0.31% 0.19% 0.04% - -

Property and Equipment 1.54% 1.46% 1.57% 0.80% 115%

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 0.01% 0.01% 0.02% 0.01% 0.01%

Deferred Tax Assets 0.09% 0.06% 0.08% 0.05% 0.07%

Other Assets 0.42% 0.62% 0.29% 0.23% 0.32%

Total Assets 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Liabilities

pue to Banks and Financial 272% 152% 310% 5.36% 3.50%

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 0.30% 0.16% 0.85% 0.82% 0.00%

Derivative Financials Instrument = = = = =

Deposits from Customers 86.02% 88.48% 86.45% 85.93% 86.38%

Borrowings 0.00% 0.01% 0.02% - -

Current Tax Liabilities = = = = =

Provisions 0.00% 0.01% 0.00% 0.00% 0.01%

Deferred Tax Liabilities - - - - -

Other Liabilities 1.39% 175% 1.88% 113% 1.35%

Debt Securities Issued 0.91% 0.95% 1.03% - -

Subordinated Liabilities = = = = =

Total Liabilities 91.35% 92.89% 93.33% 93.25% 91.23%

Equity

Share Capital 5.16% 4.88% 467% 476% 6.52%

Share Premium = - - - 0.10%

Retained Earnings 0.99% 0.51% 0.67% 0.89% 0.93%

Reserves 2.50% 172% 1.33% 111% 1.23%

Total Equity 8.65% 711% 6.67% 6.75% 877%

Total Equity and Liabilities 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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The Vertical Analysis of the Statement expressed as a percentage of the Total changes in assets, liabilities, and
of Financial Position for the last five Assets which is the base amount of equity, aiding in decision-making
years requires each item on the Vertical 100%. This analysis allows stakeholders and performance evaluation.
Analaysis of Financial Statement is to assess trends and the proportional

Statement of Profit or Loss

2081/82 2080/81 2079/80 2078/79 207778

Interest Income 93.97% 96.17% 95.44% 88.01% 92.28%
Interest Expense 55.04% 70.67% 67.95% 55.65% 60.65%
Net Interest Income 38.93% 25.51% 27.48% 32.36% 31.63%
Fees and Commission Income 5.51% 3.68% 411% 7.02% 713%
Fees and Commission Expense 0.77% 0.42% 0.41% 0.37% 0.32%
Net Fee and Commission Income 475% 3.27% 3.69% 6.65% 6.82%
et Interest. Fee and Gommission 43.68% 2877% 3118% 39.01% 38.44%
ncome

Net Trading Income 0.08% 0.07% 0.07% 0.07% 0.09%
Other Operating Income 0.43% 0.07% 0.39% 4.90% 0.50%
Total Operating Income 44.19% 28.91% 31.63% 43.98% 39.03%

Impairment charge/(reversal) for

loans and other losses 6.75% 4.34% 0.62% 575% 4.44%
Net Operating Income 37.44% 24.57% 31.02% 38.23% 34.59%
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 14.00% 8.94% 10.04% 12.89% 12.54%
Other Operating Expenses 379% 2.87% 3.25% 4.61% 6.09%
Depreciation and Amortisation 2.51% 1.45% 177% 1.68% 1.85%
Operating Profit 1714% 11.31% 15.96% 19.05% 14.12%
Non Operating Income 0.01% 0.00% 0.00% 0.16% 0.00%
Non Operating Expenses 0.56% 0.06% 0.02% 0.00% 0.00%
Profit before Income Tax 16.59% 11.25% 15.94% 19.22% 14.12%
Income Tax Expenses
Current Tax 5.23% 3.65% 4.95% 6.11% 4.44%
Deferred Tax -0.12% -0.16% -0.09% -0.32% -0.21%
Profit for the Period 11.49% 776% 11.07% 13.42% 9.90%
Total Revenue 11.757.37 16,090.89 12,116.03 8,616.93 7144.04
The Vertical Analysis of the Statement percentage of Total Revenue, enabling expense components to the overall
of Profit or Loss for the last five fiscal a better understanding of trends and revenue.
years expresses each line item as a the contribution of various income and
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Muktinath Bikas Bank substantial contributions to the including taxes, investments,
Limited being a responsible national exchequer, supporting the  and compliance with regulatory
corporate body recognizes its country's economic development requirements. The aggregate o
responsibilities towards society and government revenues. The contribution of bank to national
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In addition to corporate income Registration Tax, Advertisement income tax. »
tax, the bank contributes to the Tax, and Vehicle Tax. These taxes Other taxes include Business E
national economy through various highlight the bank’s broader Registration Tax, Advertisement Tax g*
taxes, including Tax Deducted financial contribution to the and Vehicle Tax. <
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Value Added Statement

{72

The value-added statement
shows how much valuelwealth)
has been created by the

bank through utilization of its
capacity, capital, manpower and
other resources and allocated
to employees, government,

community, shareholder, and
for the expansion and growth
of the Bank. It depicts the profit
generated by collective efforts
management, employees,
capital and its utilization that is
distributed among its various

stakeholder.

The value added by the Bank
stood at NPR 3,901.16 million as
on Asar end 2081 as compared to
NPR 3,524.05 million in previous

year.

In NPR Million
Interest earned 11,048.87 13,772.50 -19.78%
Other Income 708.50 59715 18.65%
Interest Expenses 6,471.38 OISSENS -32.12%
Other operating expenses 591.26 535.65 10.38%
Value added by banking services 4,694.72 4,300.84 9.16%
Impairment charge for loans and other losses 793.57 77678 216%
Gross Value added 3,901.16 3,524.05 10.70%

For the year ended Asar 2082, the
application statement comprises
of value addition to various
stakeholders of the Bank. The
current value addition of 42.20%
has been apportioned to employees
of the Bank for the salaries and
other benefit that is followed by the
shareholders 32.88% for dividends.
The retention for expansion and
growth, government and community
of the bank received 15.76%, 8.82%
and 0.35% of total value addition
respectively.

¢ Muktinath Bikas Bank

Employees

1,646.27
MILLION

Increment: 5.84%

ent: 100%

Government

614.68

MILLION

Increment: 14.93%

Gross
Value Added

3,901.16
MILLION

Increment: 10.70%

Community

13.50
MILLION

Increment: 14.67%




Economic Value Added

Economic Value Added (EVA]

is a financial performance
measurement tool developed by
Stern Stewart & Co. which is an
estimate of a Bank's economic
profit, or the value created more

Particulars

than the required return of the
Bank's shareholders. EVAis the
profit earned by the Bank less
the cost of financing the Bank's

The Bank has generated
Economic Value Added of NPR
805.46 million as on Asar 2082
which was NPR 529.12 million on

Net operating profit after tax
Average Shareholders' fund
Cost of capital Employed %*
Cost of capital Employed
Economic Value added

capital. Ashad 2081.
In NPR Million
1,350.36 1176.33
11120.43 9,896.28
4.90% 6.52%
54490 64722
805.46 529.12

DuPont Analysis

DuPont analysis is a comprehensive
method used to break down a
company's Return on Equity (ROE)
into several components, helping
analysts understand the underlying

Net Profit

Margin
25.99%

The DuPont analysis of the Bank shows
that the net profit margin increased
from 24.77% in 2081 to 25.99% in

FY 2081-82, which indicates the Bank
became more efficient at turning its
sales into profit. This is attributed
particularly to the growth on the
revenue. However, the Asset Turnover

Total Assets
Turnover

factors driving profitability, operational
efficiency, and financial leverage. The

basic DuPont formula focuses on three
main components, while a broader and
more detailed format include additional

12.14%

Leverage

1176 Times

3.97%

ratio improved from 3.38 in 2081 to 3.97
in 2082, indicating that the Bank used
its assets more effectively to generate
sales, showing better efficiency in
operations. At the same time, the Bank
reduced its Financial Leverage, with the
ratio falling from 11.98 in FY 2080-81 to
1176 in FY 2081-82.

ratios that are relevant for a Bank like
capital adequacy, asset quality, and
revenue generation.

Average
Shareholder’s
Equity
NPR 1112 Bn

The Return on Equity (ROE] improved
from 11.28% in FY 80-81to 11.14 in

FY 81-82.This implies the improvement
to all the indicators that are the part of
DuPont Analysis including ROA, ROE,
Net Profit Margin, Assets Turnover and
Leverage.
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Share Performance

Muktinath Bikas Bank is a listed reflects market conditions and investor  transparent view of the changes in
entity on Nepal Stock Exchange, activity which may vary due to broader  our share value and related metrics
and our shares are actively traded economic trends, sector developments  over the reporting period with relevant
in the market under the script name and other external factors. This insights while maintaining a neutral
MNBBL. The performance of our shares analysis aims to present a clear and perspective.

NPR 405.92 NPR 28.60 Bn

Share Price Market Capitalization
Previous Year NPR 367 Pervious Year (25.86 Billion)
YOY ® 10.6% YOY © 274 Billion | 10.6%
Monthly Share Price Monthly Trading Volume
»
S S o
S @ o 9« 2 nw N~ o 1B @
=/\o N MmN B g

EEEREEEEEEE : § 0§ s ' s 5 5 £ o203
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Price Sensitivity

2742.88 pe0413 >662.08 2794.78 16.00%
12.58%
2.62%
-5.42% ]
13.35% [ 4.98%
. -2.26%
416 368. 360.5 405.9
. . . . -11.32%
Ql 82 Q3 Q4 Ql Q2 Q3 Q4
H MNBBL BINEPSE Index HMNBBL BINEPSE Index
5"-.,74 { Muktinath Bikas Bank



Shareholding Pattern’

The Bank is supported by a

body of more than 56 thousand
shareholders, whose investment
forms the cornerstone of our financial

I. Category of the Shareholders

399
95,891 Promoter
Public Shareholders
Shareholders holding
holding

49%
of total
shares

stability and strategic execution. The
shareholding pattern comprise of 51%
promoter holding and a 49% public
float which is in full compliance with

the Banks and Financial Institutions
Act, 2073.

The following are more details about
the our shareholding patterns:

Il. Shareholding Pattern

Institutional

Mutual Fund Shareholders

33
Shareholders

2.68% of total

of Total shares

Shares 56,025
Individual

Shareholders

MBIAIBAQ
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lll. The table below provides a shareholding distribution as of 32nd Asar 2082 demonstrating the diverse ownership base: o
A.Promotor Shareholders %)
(0]

<

S.N. Category (Shares) No. of Holders % of Holders No. of Shares % to Equity o
-t <

1 1-1,000 7.29% 1,591.42 159,142 0.00% z
2 1,001-5,000 34 8.29% 107,959.14 10,795,914 0.30% 5
3 5,001-10,000 61 15.33% 466,623.00 46,662,300 1.30% P

4 10,001 - 20,000 59 14.82% 892,453.54 89,245,354 248%
S 20,001 - 30,000 24 6.03% 601,951.00 60,195,100 1.68% o
6 30,001-40,000 28 7.04% 973,046.00 97,304,600 271%

7 40,001- 50,000 22 5.53% 997469.00 99,746,900 278% -
8 50,001 -100,000 47 11.81% 3.329,872.02 332,987,202 9.27% g'
9 100,000 and above 95 23.87% 28,563,421.33 2,856,342,133 79.49% 3
Total 399 100.00% 35,934,386.45 3,593,438,645 100.00% %
5

=

7]
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B. Public Shareholders

S.N. Category (Shares) No. of Holders % of Holders No. of Shares % to Equity

1 1-1,000 49202 88.03% 9,701192.62 970,118,262 28.09%
2 1,001-5,000 6002 10.50% 11,681,696.48 1168,169,648 33.83%
3 5,001-10,000 506 0.91% 3,469,376.24 346,937,624 10.05%
4 10,001 - 20,000 172 0.31% 2,403,351.00 240,335,100 6.96%
S 20,001 - 30,000 68 012% 1,679,987.00 167,998,700 4.87%
6 30,001 -40,000 24 0.04% 822,348.22 82,234,822 2.38%
7 40,001-50,000 15 0.03% 676,184.22 67,618,422 1.96%
8 50,001-100,000 24 0.04% 1,589,399.00 158,939,900 4.60%
g 100,000 and above 12 0.02% 2,506,459.00 250,645,900 7.26%
Total 56025 100.00% 34,529,993.79 3,452,999,379 100.00%

IV. List of major shareholders holding more than 0.5% of total capital
The following table details shareholders holding 0.5% or more of the Bank's total paid-up capital as of 32nd Asar, 2082.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

No. of Shares % of Equity No. of Shares % of Equity
Tulasi Ram Dhakal 1,618,501.00 2.30% 1,639,743.00 2.33%
Krishna Man Shrestha 1,489,232.00 211% 1,496,232.00 212%
Min Prasad Gurung 1,381,980.00 196% 1,396,980.00 198%
Bharat Raj Dhakal 1100,945.00 1.56% 1100,945.00 1.56%
Jagat Bandhu Aryal 985,457.00 1.40% 985,457.00 140%
Gobind Gurung 947,205.00 1.34% 947,205.00 1.34%
Narayan Kumar Shrestha 907,536.00 1.29% 907,036.00 1.29%
Hari Bahadur Gurung 905,627.00 1.29% 905,627.00 1.29%
Khim Prakash Malla 850,421.00 121% 969,882.00 1.38%
Shanta Sharma 812,421.00 115% 812,421.00 115%
Khagendra Raj Regmi 781,851.00 111% 781,851.00 111%
Gajendra Man Shrestha 691,208.00 0.98% 639,584.00 0.91%
Dil Kumari Regmi 691,032.00 0.98% 691,032.00 0.98%
Sumit Kumar Agarwal 682,191.00 0.97% 682,191.00 0.97%
NMB Saral Bachat Fund-E 621,075.00 0.88% 355,386.00 0.50%
Narayan Prasad Sharma 518,728.00 0.74% 394,728.00 0.56%
Bharat Prasad Lamsal 518,309.00 0.74% 518,309.00 0.74%
Sandhya Poudel 497,959.00 0.71% 497,959.00 0.71%
Naresh Kumar Sharma Pokhrel 466,247.00 0.66% 466,247.00 0.66%
Rama Devi Sharma 444,522.00 0.63% 444,522.00 0.63%
Shiba Kumar Adhikari 401,792.00 0.57% 401,792.00 0.57%
Bimala Sharma Pokhrel 399,779.00 0.57% 399,779.00 0.57%
Sher Bahadur Rana 390,869.00 0.55% 390,869.00 0.55%
Sitaram Kaphle 376,276.00 0.53% 376,276.00 0.53%
Punya Prasad Pokharel 354,242.00 0.50% 354,242.00 0.50%
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Rating

Amount

Facilities (Rs. in Million)

Ratings! Rating Action

CARE-NP BBB (Is)

[Triple B (Issuer Rating)] Reaffirmed

Issuer Rating NA

CARE Ratings Nepal Limited (CRNL) has reaffirmed the issuer rating of ‘CARE-NP BBB (Is)’ [Triple B (Issuer Rating)]
assigned to Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited (MNBBL). Issuers with this rating are considered to offer moderate degree of

safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations, in Nepal. Such issuers carry moderate credit risk.

Detailed Rationale & Key Rating Drivers

The reaffirmation of the issuer rating assigned to MNBBL derives strength from its established track record of operations,
experienced board and management team supported by diversified geographical coverage and adequate capitalization
levels. The rating also factors in satisfactory financial performance in so far in FY25 (FY refers to the twelve-month period
ending mid-July), moderate CASA ratio and moderate liquidity profile. The rating, however, is constrained by MNBBL's
declining asset quality over FY24 and so far in FY25. The rating also factors in the bank’s exposure to the regulatory risk.
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Subdued scope for credit growth over the near-term and elevated provisioning requirements in the current market

dynamics are likely to add to the margin pressure of the bank over the near term. Although current capitalization levels
remain adequate, further slippages in asset quality leading to GNPL levels significantly higher than envisaged will remain
a key rating monitorable.

Going forward, the ability of the bank to manage growth while maintaining profitability levels and without compromising
on asset quality would be critical for the bank’s earning profile. The bank’s ability to improve capital adequacy indicators
with comfortable cushion from the minimum regulatory requirement levels, and manage the impact of any other regulatory
changes by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) would be the key rating sensitivities.

Detailed Description of the Key Rating Drivers

Key Rating Strengths

Established track record, experienced board and management team and diversified geographical coverage
Operating since 2007, MNBBL has more than 17 years of operational history and an established market presence in Nepal.
MNBBL is a professionally managed bank under the overall guidance of the Board of Directors (BoD) which includes
professionals with wide experience in the financial and economic sector. Mr. Khim Prasad Malla is the Chairman of MNBBL.
The management team is led by Mr. Pradyuman Pokharel, Chief Executive Officer, who has around three decades of
experience in banking sector and is aptly supported by an experienced management team.

MNBBL has diversified geographical presence in Nepal with 179 branches and 22 ATMs as on mid-January 2025 across

the country. The branches are spread over all seven provinces of Nepal.

Adequate capitalization levels
Tier I Capital Adequacy ratio of the bank improved to 9.79% as on mid-Jan 2025 from 9.46% as on mid-July 2024

(minimum requirement of 8.5% for national level Class-B Banks and Financial Institutions from mid-July 2024) and Overall

Complete definitions of the ratings assigned are available at www.careratingsnepal.com and in other CRNL publications
1 I CARE Ratings Nepal Limited
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Capital Adequacy ratio slightly increased to 11.87% as on Mid-Jan 2025 from 11.69% as on mid-July 2024 (minimum
requirement of 11%). The central bank of Nepal has increased regulatory capital to 8.5% and 11% (Tier I and total CAR,
respectively) from mid-July 2024 from 6% and 10% earlier. The slight improvement in Tier I levels and overall capital
adequacy ratio of the bank in H1FY25 was mainly on account of increased core capital of the bank as on mid-Jan, 2025
supported by internal capital generation despite loans and advances portfolio increasing by 4.57%. The profitability of the
bank has improved in H1FY25 as indicated by net profit of Rs. 503 Mn in H1FY25 (H1FY24: Rs. 420 Mn) mainly on account
of decrease in interest expenses. The bank’s ability to manage asset quality and growth in business while maintaining
enough cushion in its capitalization levels will remain critical from credit perspective. The bank is in process of issuing

perpetual preference shares of Rs. 1000 Mn, which is expected to provide additional cushion to its capitalization levels.

Satisfactory financial performance

During FY24, the MNBBL's total income decreased by 10.70% year-on-year to Rs. 14,370 Mn during FY24 which was Rs.
16,091 Mn during FY23. The decrease is mainly on account of lower yield on advances on loans and advances during
FY24. Nonetheless, the bank was able to report 3.29% y-0-y growth in net interest income during FY24 (FY23: Rs.4,104
Mn and FY24: 4,239 Mn). Pre-Provisioning Operating Profit (PPOP) remained relatively stable i.e. Rs. 2,509 Mn and Rs.
2,459 Mn during FY23-FY24. Impairment losses (loan loss provisioning) increased by ~11% y-0-y to Rs. 777 Mn during
FY24 amid rise in NPL and delinquency levels. The net profit of the company thus declined by 5.8% y-o-y to Rs. 1,176 Mn
during FY24 on account of higher impairment charges amid increasing GNPL levels. Consequently, ROTA declined to 0.92%
in FY24 from 0.99% in FY23. During H1FY25, total income declined by 23.03% year-on-year to Rs. 5,939. However, Net
Interest Margin (NIM) increased to 3.47% in H1FY25 (H1FY24: 3.23%). Net profit increased to Rs. 503 Mn in H1FY25
from Rs. 420 Mn in Q1FY24 amid decline interest expenses.

Moderate CASA ratio

MNBBL maintained 33.40% CASA deposits in FY24, marginal improvement from 24.64% in FY23 compared to industry
average of 30.86% and 34.37%, respectively. The higher CASA ratio led to decreased cost of funds at 6.54% in FY24
resulting into base rate of 8.78% in FY24. Lower cost of funds against its peers imposes competitive advantage for the
bank, especially in the “base rate plus lending rate” regime. CASA deposits were higher in FY23-FY24 industry-wide with
lower proportion of current deposits and higher proportion of fixed deposits as compared to previous quarters. MNBBL's
CASA proportion improved in H1FY25 to 36.58%. The bank’s ability to maintain the improving trend in CASA mix leading

to favourable cost of funds vis-a-vis peers for a sustained period remains to be seen.

Moderate liquidity profile

MNBBL has a moderate liquidity profile marked by Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) of 4.38%, Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) of
20.20% and Net Liquidity Ratio of 22.88% as on mid-January 2025 (CRR: 4.02%, SLR: 22.56% and Net Liquidity Ratio:
24.01% as on Mid-July, 2024) against regulatory requirement of 4%, 10% and 22% respectively which remain
satisfactorily above the regulatory norms. Furthermore, the bank’s liquidity profile remains moderate from the asset-

liability mismatch perspective with positive cumulative mismatches as of mid-January 2025.

2 | CARE Ratings Nepal Limited
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Key Rating Weakness

Weak asset quality

Although MNBBL continues to exhibit better asset quality profile vis-a-vis industry peers, its Gross Non-Performing Loans
(GNPL) levels have spiked to around 3.98% as on mid-Jan 2025 compared to 2.26% as on mid- July 2024. MNBBL has
historically maintained a relatively better asset quality profile vis-a-vis the industry reflective of the bank’s more efficient
risk management setup. MNBBL had GNPL ratio of 3.98% as on mid-Jan 2025, compared to the industry average of 4.79%
for class B financial institutions. The decline in asset quality of MNBBL and the overall banking industry over FY24 and so
far in FY25 can be attributed to sluggish economy coupled with low capital expenditure by the government. However,
some comfort is taken in MNBBL displaying a more resilient asset quality relative to peers. MNBBL's ability to improve the
asset quality indicators going forward would remain a key rating monitorable.

Competition from other banks and financial institutions

Currently there are 17 Development Banks, operating with total 1,132 branches all over Nepal (based on monthly statistics
published by NRB for mid-January 2025). MNBBL has 179 branches along with head office as on same date. Industry
(Class B Development Banks) had achieved total interest income of Rs. 29,332 Mn during H1FY25 with Rs. 10,884 Mn net
interest income; MNBBL's share on interest income is 19% (Rs. 5,574 Mn) and 20.15% share on net interest income (Rs.
2,194 Mn) for the same period. MNBBL's share on interest income decreased from 20.66% to 19.55% in FY23 however,
share on net interest income increased to 19.59% in FY24 from 19.26% in FY23. Despite being established national
development bank in the industry, it is challenging for MNBBL to maintain current market share and expand its business,
due to high competition among bank and finance companies, existence of large number of Development bank along with
Commercial banks and finance companies conducting similar kind of businesses and they lend at lower interest rate as

well as they offer wider banking services than development banks.

Exposure to regulatory risk related to industry

The Banking and Finance industry in Nepal is exposed to changes in the various regulatory measures issued by NRB from
time to time. In past, finance companies faced pressure from NRB for capital increment to Rs. 800 Mn from Rs. 200 Mn.
NRB had changed the minimum regulatory capital of national level development banks from FY24 end onwards. National
levels development banks are required to maintain tier 1 capital adequacy ratio of 8.5% and overall, CAR of 11% from
mid-July 2024 onwards, which is in line with the requirement for Class A commercial banks in Nepal. Furthermore, NRB
had changed to CD ratio mechanism from existing Credit to Core Capital plus Deposit (CCD) ratio measures. CD ratio
needs to maintain below 90% from mid-July 2022 from earlier provision of 85% for CCD. Risk weights of certain loans
including personal overdrafts, TR loans, hire purchase loans for personal purpose, margin lending, etc. have been
fluctuating between 100% to 150% via interim changes in monetary policies by the NRB. Unfavourable changes depending
on the bank’s exposures are likely to put downward pressure on capital adequacy ratios of the MFIs and limit their ability
for significant credit expansion, at least over the near term. Furthermore, increased interest rates will likely put upward
pressure on both lending and deposit interest rates of the MFIs over the near term.

3 | CARE Ratings Nepal Limited
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About the Company

Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited (MNBBL) is a national level class “"B” Development bank and started its commercial operations
from January 07, 2007. MNBBL was upgraded into a national level development bank in July 2015 after acquisition of Civic
Development Bank. The bank is listed on Nepal stock exchange and promoter and public shareholding was in the ratio of
51:49 as on Mid-July, 2022.

Contact Us

Analyst Contact
Ms. Sophiya Shahi
Contact No.: +977-01-4012628

Email: sophiya.shahi@careratingsnepal.com

Mr. Santosh Pudasaini
Contact no: +977-9802312855
Email: santosh.pudasaini@careratingsnepal.com

Relationship Contact

Mr. Ananda Prakash Jha
Contact No.: +977 9818832909
Email: anand.jha@careratingsnepal.com

About CARE Ratings Nepal Limited:

CARE Ratings Nepal Limited (CRNL) is licensed by the Securities Board of Nepal w.e.f. November 16, 2017. CRNL is
supported by CARE Ratings Limited through a technical services agreement to provide technical support in the areas such
as rating systems and procedures, methodologies, etc. from CARE Ratings on an ongoing basis. The technical support
shall ensure that CRNL has adequate resources to provide high quality credit opinions in Nepal.

Our parent company, CARE Ratings Limited commenced operations in April 1993 and over three decades, it has established
itself as one of the leading credit rating agencies in India. CARE is registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) and also recognized as an External Credit Assessment Institution (ECAI) by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

Disclaimer

CRNL's ratings are opinions on credit quality and are not recommendations to sanction, renew, disburse or recall the concerned bank facilities or to buy, sell
or hold any security. CRNL has based its ratings on information obtained from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. CRNL does not, however,
guarantee the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any information and is not responsible for any errors or omissions or for the results obtained from the
use of such information. Most entities whose bank facilities/instruments are rated by CRNL have paid a credit rating fee, based on the amount and type of
bank facilities/instruments.

In case of partnership/proprietary concerns, the rating assigned by CARE is, inter-alia, based on the capital deployed by the partners/proprietor and the
financial strength of the firm at present. The rating may undergo change in case of withdrawal of capital or the unsecured loans brought in by the
partners/proprietor in addition to the financial performance and other relevant factors. CARE is not responsible for any errors and states that it has no
financial liability whatsoever to the users of CARE's rating.

4 | CARE Ratings Nepal Limited
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Our approach to
Corporate Governance

Our approach to corporate governance
is built on a foundation of transparency,
accountability, integrity and effective
oversight. We are committed to
maintaining the highest ethical
standards in all our interactions and
decision-making processes. Our robust
governance framework, overseen by

an independent and diverse Board

of Directors, ensures effective risk
management, protects shareholder
interests and promotes the long-term
sustainable success of the company.
We believe that strong governance is
not just a regulatory requirement but a
fundamental driver of value creation for

% O4 F Muktinath Bikas Bank

all our stakeholders.

We work to deliver balanced outcomes
for stakeholders and sustainable
returns for our shareholders.

Muktinath believes in the principle
that good corporate governance
establishes a positive organizational
culture and it is evident by its
responsibility, accountability,
consistency, fairness and
transparency towards stakeholders.
The Bank is committed to ensuring that
its governance practices align with
all applicable regulatory frameworks
governing the bank and financial

institutions and Securities Board of
Nepal regulations.

The Board of Directors of the Bank
being the apex body accountable to
the regulators, investors and all other
stakeholders including society, sets
the purpose of the Bank, the values
with which it is guided, the strategies
with the combination of the vision and
mission and implementation of this in
the business strategy.



Governance Framework
of the Bank

The Board of Directors plays a crucial
role in shaping the bank's governance
framework and practices through its
decisions and leadership. The Board
is ultimately responsible for creating

and maintaining effective governance
mechanisms, including selecting and
appointing subcommittee members.
To safeguard the Bank's against
unforeseen events, risk management

and support functions operate
independently from regular business
activities. The governance structure of
the Bank is as follows:

Regulatory Requirements

Corporate Governance Framework

Internal Frameworks

- Companies Act, 2063
- Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2073
- Anti-Money Laundering Act, 2064
- Nepal Rastra Bank Unified Directives, 2081
- Securities Exchange Board of
Nepal's Regulations
- Other applicable laws and regulations.

Governance Structure

80UBUIBA0S

i RiskManagement
Committee P

- Memorandum of Associations

- Article of Associations

- Terms of Reference of the Committees
- Code of Condust and Ethical Principles
- Board approval policies and manuals

Employee Service and  :
|\ Facilities Committee  :
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Board of Directors:

Board is the Bank responsible the elected representatives of the The composition of the Board is in

for providing strategic direction, shareholders, focusing on the long-term  compliance with Section 14 of the Bank
governance oversight and guidance on stewardship and sustainable growth of and Financial Institution Act, 2073.

key decisions. The Board of Directors the Board.

exercises its fiduciary duties as

. Nominated Nominated by Public Independent
Directors by Promoter Shareholders including Director
Shareholders 1Women Director
r Changes in Board Changes in Board 1
Resignation Appointment
Mr. Bharat Raj Dhakal who was Mr. Khim Prakash Malla has been
appointed as directors by 17*" Annual appointed as director and elected as

L 4 years.

General Meeting and elected as

Chairman by the Board of Directors
Chairman of Board of Directors . with effect from 22" of Falgun 2081.
resigned citing the personal reasons
with effect from 21¢t Falgun 2081.
Retirement ‘ ‘

Mr. Shyam Sundar Sharma who was
appointed by the Board of Directors
as the independent directors has
retired with effect from 15t Shrawn
2081 after completing his tenure of

Appointment

Mr.Umesh Kumar Acharya appointed
as independent director by the Board
of Directors with effect from 15t
Shrawn 2081

L/

Key Matters Expressly Reserved for Board Consideration and Approval

To ensure strong governance and effective oversight, certain matters are expressly reserved for the Board's consideration
and approval. These include strategic, financial, operational and legal decisions that have a significant impact on the Bank's
direction, performance and compliance. Where applicable, such decisions are also aligned with regulatory requirements,
ensuring that the Board's actions uphold transparency, accountability and excellence.

Strategic Direction

Corporate
Governance

Financial
Matters

Operational
Matters

Legal Matters

2-..84 Muktinath Bikas Bank

O Approval of the Strategic Plan
O Approval of new products, services, and product lines
O Approval of annual action plans

O Appointment of senior management
O Approval of Board Committees and their structure
O Oversight of internal controls and risk management frameworks

O Approval of annual budget and capital expenditure
O Approval of strategic investments and divestments
O Approval of raising funds through equity, bonds or other instruments

O Approval of loans and credit facilities exceeding delegated limits
O Approval of loan auctions and assumption of Non-Banking Assets
O Approval and adoption of policies

O Approval of branch expansions or closures

O Approval of major IT systems or technology investments

O Approval of litigation or settlement of material legal disputes
O Oversight of regulatory compliance and legal risk management



Board Meetings and its Procedure:

The board meetings are convened

by giving appropriate notice well

in advance of the meetings. The
Directors are provided with appropriate
information in the form of agenda

items in a timely manner, to enable
them to deliberate on each agenda

item and make informed decisions and
provide appropriate directions to the
Management.To enable the Board to
discharge its responsibilities effectively
and take informed decisions, apart
from the Board Members and the
Company Secretary, the meetings are
also attended by the Business Heads,
Risk, Audit and Compliance Heads, Chief

Financial Officer and other Department
Heads.

The Board usually meets at least once
a month to approve the credit facilities
above the delegated limit, review the
Company's quarterly performance and
financial results, to consider business
strategies, and their implementation,
and reviews risk, audit, control,
compliance and other related matters.
The Board sets annual performance
objectives and strategies, oversees the

actions and results of the management,

and monitors the effectiveness of
the risk management and Bank's

&

governance practices for enhancing the
stakeholders'value.

The Bank has well-established
framework for conveying the

Meetings of the Board which seeks

to systematize the decision-making
process at the Meetings in an informed
and efficient manner.

During the financial year under review,
the 26 board meetings were held and
following were the attendance details of
the directors:

Khim \ETEWEN Bharat Binod Saroja Shyam Umesh
No. Raj Prakash Kumar Prasad Kumar Shrestha Sundar Kumar Attendees
Dhakal* Malla** Shrestha Lamsal Sharma [Koirala) Sharma# | Acharya##

330 02/04/2081 a - & a a = a = 5

331 11/04/2081 a - a a a - - 4

332 15/04/2081 a - a a a a a = B

333 28/04/2081 a - a a a a - a 6

334 06/05/2081 a - a a a a = a 8

335 25/05/2081 a - a a a a = a 8

336 09/06/2081 a - a a a a = a 8

337 21/06/2081 a - a & a a = a 8

338 21/07/2081 a - & a a = - & 5

339 17/08/2081 a - a a a a - a 6

340 01/09/2081 a - a a a a - & 8 5’
341 07/09/2081 a - a a a a - a 8 ‘3"
342 23/09/2081 a - a a a a = a 8 §
343 20/10/2081 a = a a a a = a 6 1
344 28/10/2081 a - a a a a - & 8
345 18/11/2081 ® = & a a a = & 6
346 21/11/2081 = = a a a = = a 4

347 22/11/2081 = a a a a = o & S
348 12/12/2081 = a a a a a o a 6
349 21/12/2081 = a a a a a = a 5
350 07/01/2082 = a a a = = & 4
351 28/01/2082 = a a a a a = a 6
352 27/02/2082 = ® ® a = a = & 3
353 04/03/2082 = a a a = a = a S
354 22/03/2082 = a a a a a = a 6
b5 27/03/2082 = a a a a a = a 6
Meetings Attended 16 S 26 26 23 20 2 23
Total Meetings Held 16 9 26 26 26 26 5 23
% Attendance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%  88.46% 76.92% 66.67% 100.00%

* Resigned with effect from 21st Falgun, 2081
** Appointed with effect from 22nd Falgun, 2081
# Retired with effect from 15th Shrawn, 2081
## Appointed with effect from 15th Shrawn, 2081

Muktinath Bikas Bank * 85,.:'3
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Meeting Allowances to the Directors
The Board members are provided with the sittings fees for attending the meetings which is approved by the shareholders in

the Annual General Meetings, Registrar of Companies and Nepal Rastra bank.

Meeting Allowance Fees to

Chairman Directors
15,000 13,000

Accordingly, the following allowance were provided to the directors:

Numbers Allowances Per Meeting Allowances Remarks
Meeting Paid

Resigned with effect

Bharat Raj Dhakal 15,000 240,000 from 2lst Falgun, 2081
. Appointed with effect
Khim Prakash Malla 9 15,000 135,000 from 22nd Falgun, 2081
Narayan Kumar 26 13,000 338,000 -
Shrestha
Bharat Prasad Lamsal 26 13,000 338,000 -
Binod Kumar Sharma 23 13,000 299,000 -
Saroja Shrestha 20 13,000 260,000 i
(Koirala)
Appointed with effect
Umesh Kumar Acharya 23 13,000 299,000 from 15th Shrawn. 2081
Retired with effect from
Shyam Sundar Sharma 2 13,000 26,000 15th Shrawn, 2081
Total 1,935,000

Board Committees:

The Board has constituted various Committees with specific terms of reference which clearly defines their purpose, roles,
and responsibilities in line with the provisions of the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073 and NRB Directors. The Board
Committees play a vital role in improving the Board effectiveness in areas where more focuses and extensive discussions are
required. The coordinator of the respective Committee presents the key matters before the Board.

There are 4 Board Level committees which are as follows:

Committees

: 86 Muktinath Bikas Bank
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The detailed description of the Board Committees are as follows:

AUDIT COMMITTEE 5

<.
(0]

The Audit Committee has been 164 and 165 of the Company Act 2063 risk management, financial reporting, g

constituted in accordance with the and Section 60 of the BAFIA.This adherence to legal and regulatory

regulatory requirements set forth in committee assists the Board in fulfilling standards, and the promotion of ethical

the NRB Unified Directives, as well as its obligations related to effective business practices. —

the stipulations outlined in Sections corporate governance, internal control,

L LLLLEEREEE O e <

¢ Terms of Reference - s

¢ The terms of reference of this Committee are as follows: S. Assure the Board of Directors that the financial Q

1. Evaluate financial status, internal controls, and Audit accounts are both precise and equitable, g

Program, while systematically analyzing the results accompanied by regular assessments of the g'

of the internal audit on a regular basis. Provide sufficiency of provisions for contingencies and

essential guidance to Management for taking suitable classified loans. .

actions in this regard and make recommendations -

to the Board of Directors concerning the necessary B. Review the compliance of the regulations issued by

measures to be implemented. Nepal Rastra Bank to the Bank and include the same o

in its report. 3"

2. Review the issues outlined in the audit report provided é

by the external (statutory) auditors and commence the 7. Evaluate the Bank's activities concerning their 3

implementation of required corrective measures. compliance, cost-effectiveness, rationality, and overall %

: efficiency, and provide appropriate recommendations e

3. Review the reports provided by Nepal Rastra Bank to the Board of Directors. g

: during the Supervision and Inspection process and

communicate to the Board of Directors whether the 8. To carry out any additional responsibilities or

observations noted during such supervision have obligations as outlined in the Companies Act, 2083,

been adhered to. the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073, and the

directives issued by the Nepal Rastra Bank.

. 4. Assists ensure annual reports be accurate and real.

.
®ecccccccccccccccccccscscscscsccccce ©0ccc0cc00c00000000000000000000000 ©00c000c000000000000000000000000000 eecccccccccccccce
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The following is the composition, attendance and allowance details of the Audit Committee for FY 2081-82:
- Upto 2081-04-15

Shyam Sundar Sharma Director Coordinator 17 10,000 2
)
Narayan Kumar Shrestha Director Member 171 9,000 %
<
Ishwar Budhathoki Head- Internal Audit Department =~ Member Secretary 1/1 Nil o
8
- From 2081-04-16 @
Umesh Kumar Acharya Director Coordinator 717 70,000 o
Narayan Kumar Shrestha Director Member 717 63,000 %-'
o
3
Ishwar Budhathoki Head- Internal Audit Department ~ Member Secretary 717 Nil g.
o
@
O
=
7]

Muktinath Bikas Bank 87_‘.3
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Activities of the Committee during the year

Reviewed the initiatives implemented by the Internal
Audit Department to enhance the Internal Control
Monitoring process and the overall effectiveness of
the internal audit was closely observed.

The Bank's Audit Committee discussed the reports
of the Internal Audit Department and forwarded its
reports to the Board for further discussion.

Approved the internal audit plan for effective
execution of the branch and departmental audits
during the FY.

Reviewed the independence, objectivity, and
performance of the internal audit function as well as
the adequacy of the Department's resources.

0000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000,
.

The committee recommended the name and
remuneration for appointment of Statutory Auditor for
FY 2081-82.

The committee reviewed the quarterly interim financial
statement and annual financial statements of the
Bank.

The observations provided by the External Auditors
regarding the internal control system were examined
throughout the year, and necessary measures have
been implemented to address them. The suggestions
put forth by the External Auditors concerning internal
control will be attended to in the future.

Reviewed the observations and suggestions made by
the Nepal Rastra Bank's inspection and monitored the
progress made.

.
© 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee has
been formed pursuant to the Clause
7(3) of the NRB Unified Directives.

The committee is constituted by the

Terms of Reference
The terms of reference of this Committee are as follows:

1

88

Report to the Board on the adequacy and
appropriateness of current Risk Management
Procedures of the Bank and make suggestions and
recommendations for improving and strengthening
Risk Management practice of the Bank.

Comprehensive evaluation of the Bank risk exposure
based on Risk Appetite and Risk Tolerance set by the
Board.

Ensure the procedure and procedural adequacy for
identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling
inherent risk within business operation.

Recommend the Board on the adequacy of existing
policies in regard to the business strategy and Bank's
Risk Tolerance.

Report to the Board with recommendations on the
appropriateness of the authorities delegated by the
Board.

¢ Muklinath Bikas Bank

Board of Directors to assist them

in the identification, evaluation and
mitigation of risks.The Committee has
overall responsibility for monitoring

10.

and approving the risk policies and
associated practices of the Bank.

Recommend the Board on any possible significant
impact on the Bank's financial position arising from
macro-economic environment.

Providing suggestion to the Board concerning the
Business strategy aligned with the Risk Weighted
Assets as stipulated by the Capital Adequacy
Requirement set by Nepal Rastra Bank and Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process.

Review stress testing carried out by the Bank on
regular basis and offer suggestions to the Board for
appropriate policies and decision making.

Recommend the Board for the formation of policies
and structures in line with the provision of NRB
Directives.

Monitor and review non-compliance, limit breaches,
Audit/Regulatory findings and policy exceptions with
respect to Risk Management Procedures.

©000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000°



Composition, meeting, attendance and allowance

&

The committee comprises of four members in total including two directors nominated by Board of Directors one being the

coordinator of the Audit Committee, Chief Operating Officer and Head of Integrated Risk Management Department as Member 9
Secretary. The Risk Management Committee meets at least on a quarterly basis to discharge its responsibilities. o
%.
|_Membersof Committee | Designation [ Position ] Attendance [ _SittingFees | )
Binod Kumar Sharma Director Coordinator 90,000
Umesh Kumar Acharya Director Member 9/9 81,000
Til Bahadur Gurung Chief Operating Officer Member 9/9 -
Pragalv Neupane Head- Integrated Risk Member Secretary 9/9 -
Management Department _
)
&
0
Activities of the Committee during the year §
1. Reviewed Credit Risk, Operation Risk, Market Risk, B. Reviewed the agendas discussed in the Assets §'
Legal Risk, Reputation Risk, Strategic Risk and Liability Committee (ALCQ) and its effectiveness.
Environment, Social and Climate Change Risk 7. Reviewed the risk associated with the various human
and other reports prepared by Integrated Risk factors within the Bank. —
Management Department.
8. Discussed interest risk of deposit portfolio of the e
2. Reviewed Credit and Operation Risk Rating of the Bank, cost of fund and suggested to improve the g..
Branches, Region and Bank as a whole. composition of retail deposit and improve CASA and 3
cost control. %
3. Reviewed and suggested various frameworks and ®
policies whenever deemed necessary. 9. Reviewed and suggested on amendment of product g
paper. o
4. Review the assets quality of the Bank including the =
detailed analysis on the non-performing, watchlist, 10. The committee presented risk-related reports at least

overdue and loan loss provision accounts.
S.  Monitored and reviewed the likelihood of the impact of

the various risk imposed by macroeconomic factors in
the industry.

AML/CFT COMMITTEE

AML/CFT Committee of the Board has

on quarterly basis to the Board for its consideration.

legal and regulatory requirements

80UBUIBA0S

implementation of Assets (Money)

various related risks along with use of our AML vendor
i-Care for various automatic monitoring purposes.

been formed in line with the provision Laundering Prevention Act, 2064, Assets  related to Money Laundering Prevention @
of Unified Directives of Nepal Rastra (Money) Laundering Prevention Rules, and Combating financing of Terrorism. DC'-J*

Bank.The Committee oversees 2073, NRB Unified Directives and other §

. . o

s Terms of Reference . =)

f The terms of reference of this Committee are as follows: : @

E 1. Review quarterly reports on implementation status of 4. To perform any other tasks as governed by Bank E

f AML/CFT framework in the bank and Financial Institution Act 2073, Asset Money E —
E Laundering Prevention Act 2064, Asset Money 3

f 2. Implementation status of NRB-FIU issued FATF Laundering Prevention Rules 2073, NRB Directives E m
Recommendations, Internal Policies and procedures and Board of the bank from time to time. 2

for better control measures 5
E S.  The committee should provide a quarterly report to 3 %
¢ 3. lssues Review relating to AML/CFT and discuss on the Board after due assessment of activities carried 5

assessment, measurement, monitoring and control of out by the AML/CFT department. —3
. M (/7]

.
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Composition, Meeting, Attendance and Allowance of Committee:

The Committee comprises of four members in total which includes one director, Head of Integrated Risk Management
Department, Head of Compliance Department and Head of AML/CFT Department as Member Secretary. The Committee
meets at least on a quarterly basis to discharge its duties.

The following is the composition attendance and allowance details of the AML/ CFT Committee for FY 2081-82:

Bharat Prasad Lamsal

Director

Coordinator 80,000

Pragalv Neupane

Head- Integrated Risk
Management Department

Member 8/8 -

Dandapani Dhakal*

Head-Compliance Department

Member 3/3 -

Subash Dhakal

Head-AML/Department

Member-Secretary

8/8 =

*Appointed with effect from 18th Falgun 2081

1

N

W

>

Activities of the Committee during the year

Annual review of know your customer (KYC] status.
Review and Revision of AML/CFT Policy of the Bank.

Conducted a comprehensive review of AML/CFT
banking reports from national and international
regulators. Performed detailed risk assessments
to identify vulnerabilities and authored a plan to
implement mitigating controls.

Reviewed the report regarding status of Customer
Due Diligence (CDD), Suspicious Transaction Report
(STR) and Transaction Threshold Report (TTR as per
regulators.

Discussion on various control measures in line with
implementation of internal and external policies, NRB
directives, as per regulations of various governing
bodies of Nepal.

Reviewed the reports of the internal auditors, external
auditors and NRB on the AML issues.

The formation of the Employee Service
and Facilities Committee is in line with
the provisions set forth in the "Employee

1
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Terms of Reference

Assists the Board in forming the "Remuneration
Policies and Practices"” of the Bank.

Report to the board on its periodical assessment
and analysis of the Bank's employee remuneration
structure, as well as that of the industry, and its
possible implications on the Bank.

Recommends the Board with the necessary rationales
and explanations to revise the existing remuneration
of all the employees including that of the Chief
Executive Officer in accordance with the Bank's
"Remuneration Policies and Practices".

Service Bylaws, 2079" of the Bank.The
Happiness & Recongnition Department
is responsible for managing the

administrative function of this
committee.

Develop and revise the metrics and procedures
for assessing the work performance of the Bank's
employees.

Develop and submit to the Board plans, guidelines,

and policies on hiring, posting, transferring, promoting,

and other labor-related issues as well as performance
reviews, rewards, and penalties for employees.

Present the Board for its approval of the succession
planning on the employees.
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Composition, Meeting, Attendance, and Allowance of Committee:
The committee is composed of four people: the non-executive director, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer,

and the Head of Happiness & Recognition Department. It meets as needed to accomplish its responsibilities as outlined in its 9
Terms of Reference. @
<
s
The following is the composition, attendance, and allowance details of the Employee Service and Facilities Committee for FY 2
2081-82:
Members of Committee m No. of Meetings Sitting Fees
Saroja Shrestha (Koirala) Director Co-ordinator 40,000 o
Pradyuman Pokharel Chief Executive Officer Member 4/4 Nil
Sanjiv Poudel Chief Financial Officer Member 4/4 Nil _
Head- Happi o
Shankar Prasad Baral ead_ . appiness & Member Secretary 4/4 Nil c
Recognition Department g
@
o
LR R R R R IRRY .. g'
:  Activities of the Committee during the year .
1. Recommended to the Board for its approval, the 4. Reviewed the nature and the adequacy of the training
revision on the staff's compensation and benefits. conducted for the staff. —_
¢ 2. Recommended to the Board for its approval, the 5. Evaluated turnover metrics to determine primary py
corporate position wise additional staff enrollment for factors influencing employee departure. g"
: FY 2081-82. : 3
: : 5
3. Review the position wise recruitment during the year. %
: 2
00 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000060000000000000000000000000000000000000 . o
=
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Approach to Risk Management
In today's dynamic and uncertain
financial environment, effective risk
management is critical to the Bank's
survival, growth, and sustained
long-term success. The Board and
management are fully committed to
enhancing the Bank's risk framework
to protect the interests of both
shareholders and stakeholders.

As a fundamental component of

our operational structure, the Risk
Management function empowers us
to confidently navigate uncertainties,
proactively address emerging
challenges, and capitalize on
opportunities.

s

¢ Muktinath Bikas Bank

Through robust governance, ongoing
risk assessments, and adaptive
strategies, we continuously refine our
practices to respond effectively to
macroeconomic shifts, reinforcing our
commitment to resilience and sustained
success in a changing financial
landscape.

To this end, the Bank has implemented
an Integrated Risk Management
Framework that adopts a holistic
approach to managing various

risk dimensions while proactively
safeguarding daily operations and
strategic goals. This framework clearly
delineates the Bank's governance,

policies, processes, and procedures,
enabling the effective management of
unforeseen risks.

Key areas within the framework

include credit risk management,

which emphasizes rigorous evaluation
of borrower creditworthiness and
portfolio composition to mitigate default
exposure. By regularly reviewing

risk controls in light of external
developments, the framework provides
timely alerts on emerging risks, allowing
the Bank to implement appropriate
measures to navigate the ongoing
volatile macroeconomic environment.
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Risk Governance Structure

The Board of Directors holds ultimate a robust governance framework that the organization while ensuring the

(@]
accountability for the Bank's overall supports the systematic identification, implementation of effective systems 5
risk management and is responsible assessment, monitoring, reporting, and and tools for the timely identification, 2
for approving the risk management mitigation of risks across the Bank. measurement, and reporting of risks, 2
strategies and guiding principles. The primary objective of the risk thereby enabling proactive risk
The Risk Management Policy, management platform is to foster management.
endorsed by the Board, establishes a strong risk-aware culture within o
The Bank operates under the following Risk Management Structure:
<
o
&
BOARD OF DIRECTORS Q
3
=
=3
Chief Executive Risk Audit 3
Officer [CEQ) Committe Management Committee 5
Committe 3
. . ‘ )
. : : =]
. : : Q
H : : @
: : z
Business Integrated Risk Internal Audit E

Department

SREEEn [Depeaer
4 Ist N 2nd N 2rd N\

Line of Defense Line of Defense Line of Defense g
2]
Branches, Business, and The Integrated Risk Management Department (Internal Audit Department is §
Support Units are the is an independent function that functionally established as the third S
primary risk owners and reports to Board's Risk Management Committee line of defense as an
takers with a responsibility and administratively to the ACEO. A primary role independent function which
for managing risk exposures of the Integrated Risk Management Department reports directly to the
within the Bank's defined risk as the 2nd line of defence is to ensure that the Board's Audit Committee.
appetite on a daily basis. Ist line adequately applies and complies with It ensures compliance with
risk and control policies and standards and to risk management policies »
This is done through provide independent oversight of the risk profile and procedures while o
controls that are integrated of the Bank. monitoring the adequacy, §
into the business processes effectiveness, and adherence E
and operations or via Compliance and AML/CFT is the other to the Bank's internal o)
specialized back-office independent function which for AML/CFT contrals, processes, 5
functions making sure risks functions reports to Board AML/CFT Committee and methodologies thus %
are managed appropriately and ACEO for the compliance function. The providing independent v
at an Operational level. function of Compliance function is to ensure assurance of the robustness
that the Ist line conducts the Operations in of the internal control and o
accordance with NRB directives, laws and risk management framework
regulations and internal policies. Meanwhile, the with recommendation to -
AML/CFT function focuses on mitigating risks improve 5
associated with money laundering through them wherever necessary. =
robust checks and balances. g-
\_ N\ AN -
©
=
7]
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Risk Management Process

The Board has established a dedicated
Risk Management Committee

tasked with the vital responsibility of
identifying, assessing, and managing
risks across the Bank, reporting
directly to the Board of Directors.The
Risk Management Policy is effectively
implemented through a well-defined
organizational structure, ensuring
comprehensive governance.Risk
oversight is centrally coordinated

by the Integrated Risk Management
Department, which works closely
with all Department Heads, including
the Bank's Asset-Liability Committee
(ALCO). The Board conducts a
thorough review of risk status and the
effectiveness of the risk management
framework on a quarterly basis
through the Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee, reflecting a
steadfast commitment to vigilance and
control.

As the first line of defense, individual
departments are accountable for the
rigorous implementation of the risk
management framework, policies,
systems, and methodologies as
approved by the Board. Department
Heads ensure that their respective

branches, units, and the Bank
operate strictly within the defined risk
tolerance levels within the defined
risk appetite. They are also charged
with the continuous identification

and management of emerging risks
within their areas, recognizing that risk
exposure evolves in response to an
ever-changing business environment.
While departments maintain focus

on their specialized functions,

the Integrated Risk Management
Department collaborates across the
Bank to aggregate critical information
and confirm adherence to the Bank's
articulated risk appetite as outlined in
the Risk Management Policy.

Further strengthening the risk
framework, a specialized unit is
tasked with identifying and mitigating
risks related to money laundering
and financial terrorism (ML/TF).
Complementing this, the Compliance
Department ensures strict adherence
to all applicable laws and regulations,
upholding the Bank's commitment to
regulatory excellence.

The Internal Audit Department conducts
audits in accordance with the approved
audit plan by the Audit Committee,

Policies and Manual for Effective Risk Management

Risk °
Management Policy,

2081

LiquidityManagement

Risk Monitoring and
Reporting Framework,

2081

Assets Liability

rigorously assessing both procedural
adequacy and compliance. Results
and recommendations from these
assessments are communicated
transparently to management and
reported to the Audit Committee,
reinforcing a culture of accountability
and continuous improvement.

In addition to internal audits, the

Bank undergoes external audits by
independent auditors, in compliance
with the Companies Act, 2063, and
Banks and Financial Institution Act,
2073.These audits provide assurance
that the Bank's financial statements
accurately represent its financial
position and performance.

To safeguard critical information
assets, specialized external firms
conduct comprehensive Information
System Audits. These evaluations
rigorously review the Bank's information
systems and controls, ensuring the
confidentiality, integrity, and availability
of data.

Together, these layered and robust risk
management processes exemplify the
Bank's unwavering dedication to sound
governance, operational resilience, and
regulatory compliance.

Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Procedur,

2079

Credit Risk

Framework, Management Framework, Grading Manual,
2080 2080 2079

Stress Testing Guidelines,

2080

{ Muklinath Bikas Bank

Reconciliation Manual,

2079

AML/CFT Policy,
2081
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Risk Culture

At Muktinath, Risk Management ensuring it is a core responsibility implement ongoing, targeted training o

transcends traditional departmental rather than a standalone task. By programs that enhance risk awareness 5

boundaries, seamlessly woven into cultivating a culture rooted in vigilance and equip our teams with the expertise 2

every stratum of the organizational and ownership, we empower every and tools necessary to effectively 2

structure. This comprehensive, employee to actively identify and navigate and mitigate risks within their

integrated approach embeds risk manage risks at their origin. To sustain specific roles.

mitigation directly into daily operations, and strengthen this culture, we o

Key Risk Areas and its Measurement _

Credit Risk these calculations, supporting multiple transactions, trade finance, foreign %

Our Credit Risk Management framework  configuration sets to adapt to evolving exchange dealings, the extension of Q

delivers a robust and flexible solution regulatory requirements and business commitments and guarantees, as well g

designed to accurately measure and needs. as transaction settlements. =)

report regulatory credit risk metrics Credit risk remains a fundamental Our comprehensive risk management

across the Bank's portfolio. This challenge in banking, representing the approach encompasses the

advanced system enables the Bank to primary risk faced in routine lending identification, measurement, continuous —_

optimize credit risk mitigation strategies  and credit underwriting activities. monitoring, and effective control of

by providing precise calculations Beyond traditional lending, the Bank all credit risk exposures, ensuring py

of credit risk exposures. It offers encounters credit risk across a broad that the Bank maintains resilience g"

full configurability of all regulatory spectrum of financial instruments, and soundness in an ever-changing é

parameters and options affecting including acceptances, inter-bank financial landscape. 2
(0]
43

a.Credit Concentration based on NRB Threshold é'

Particulars

25% of core capital 717%

Maximum Loan to single Obligor

Maximum Margin lending 40% of core capital 35.56%
Maximum Real Estate Loans 25% of total loans 8.64%
g
b. Sector Wise Loan and Advances &
NPR in'Mn 3
Agriculture and Forest Related 2,619.98 2.61%
Fishery Related 45.34 0.05%
Mining Related 474 0.00%
Agriculture, Forestry & Beverage Production Related 1111.51 1.11%
Non-food Production Related 3,59778 3.59% 2]
Construction 57418 057% =
Power, Gas and Water 2,995.43 2.99% g
Metal Products, Machinery & Electronic Equipment & Assemblage 218.95 0.22% X
Transport, Communication and Public Utilities 1,341.51 1.34% 3
Wholesaler & Retailer 12,443.35 12.40% a'
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 12,314.29 12.27%
Tourism Service 6,131.71 6.11% o
Other Services 1930.16 1.92%
Consumption Loans 21,504.44 21.43% 1-!
Local Government - 0.00% 2
Others 33,495.58 33.39% é.
Total 100,328.95 100% -
[¢]
8
&
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c. Measurement of Credit Risks

The table depicts the 11 categories of Risks and the risk weighted exposure measured in line with on the Standardized
Approach prescribed by the NRB's Capital Adequacy Framework, 2015:

Categories

NPR in‘"Mn

Current Year Previous Year

Claims on Government and Central Bank
Claims on Other Official Entities

Claims on Banks 744.69 791.83
Claims on Domestic Corporates and Securities Firms 15,872.10 12,622.98
Claims on Regulatory Retail Portfolio 35,895.20 36,599.74
Claims Secured by Residential Properties 9,386.15 8,638.99
Claims Secured by Commercial Real Estate 2,226.45 2.214.62
Past Due Claims 4,233.92 3,034.87
High Risk Claims 9,161.61 9,636.21
Other Assets 8,488.98 6.855.16
Off Balance Sheet Items 1630.22 775.01
Total 87,639.33 81,169.41

Operation Risk

and reinforce the Bank's commitment

Operational Risk Management (ORM) at
the Bank embodies a disciplined and
comprehensive approach to identifying,
assessing, monitoring, and mitigating
risks inherent in our daily operations.

This proactive framework is designed to

safeguard the Bank's financial integrity,
uphold its reputation, and ensure
stringent compliance with regulatory

Recognizing that operational risks can
originate from diverse sources ranging
from human error and technological
disruptions to fraud, legal challenges,
compliance breaches, and unforeseen
external events, our Operation Risk
Management strategy focuses on
minimizing the likelihood and impact
of such risks. By embedding robust

to sustainable and secure business
practices.

The following capital allocation,

based on Basel lll's Basic Indicator
Approach, has been outlined to ensure
that sufficient capital is set aside to
effectively address operational risk

mandates.

controls and continuous oversight,

we fortify our operational resilience

2078-79 2079-80 2080-81

Net Interest Income 3,329,779.38 4,239,341.31 4,104,093.96
Commission and Discount Income 497493.26 548,579.78 592,895.44
Other Operating Income 46,878.50 48,035.47 19,972.60
Exchange Fluctuation Income 844476 533.94 2,788.08
Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense during the period = = =
Gross income (a) 4,719,750 3,882,596 4,836,490
Alfa [b) 15% 15% 15%
Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb]] 707,963 582,389 725474
Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of c) 671,942
Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%] in times () 9

6,107,951

Equivalent Operational Risk Weight Exposure [f=[d*g]]

(96
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Liquidity Risk Management
Liquidity risk is the risk that a company
or Bank may be unable to meet its
short-term financial obligations due

to the inability to convert assets into
cash without incurring a loss. It arises
from mismatches in the timing of

cash flows, especially during stress

secure necessary funding for liquid
assets on acceptable terms.To manage
liquidity risk, Banks use financial ratios
to assess liquidity and ensure effective
liquidity management policies.

The Asset and Liability Committee
(ALCO]) plays a crucial role in overseeing

&

Liability Management (ALM) framework,
which ensures proper balance between
assets, liabilities, and liquidity. The
Treasury Department monitors liquidity
daily, ensuring compliance with
regulatory requirements and mitigating
potential risks.

situations, when the Bank cannot these strategies within the Asset and

a. Liquidity Profile
The following table depicts the maturity profile of the assets and liabilities as at the closing date which is closely monitored to
determine the liquidity level.

In 000's
Particulars 1-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 Over Total

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 6,583,140 - - - - 6,583,140

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 12,874,425 - - - - 12,874,425

Loans and Advances 9,471,643 4,857,241 3.163,529 3133,570 78,219,192 98,845,177

Investment Securities 6,250,000 - - - 8,316,722 14,566,722

Current Tax Assets - - - 17184 - 17184

Investment in Subsidiaries - - - - 244,046 244,046

Investment in Associates - - - - 155,550 155,550

Investment Property 428,785 428,785

Property and Equipment - - - - 2,101,433 2,101,433

Goodwill and Intangible Assets - - - - 10,618 10,618

Deferred Tax Assets - - - - 124,762 124762

Other Assets 4,408 - - - 563,954 568,362

Total Assets 35,183,616 4,857,241 3.163,529 3.150,755 90,165,062 136,520,203 ®
Liabilities 2
Due to BFls 3,718,026 - - - - 3,718,026 é
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank = = = = 415,630 415,630 é
Deposits from Customers 2,105,732 3,597,868 5,213,407 6,463,660 100,050,052 117.430,719

Provisions - - - - - -

Debt Securities Issued - - - - 1,248,017 1,248,017

Other Liabilities 109,518 216,776 - - 1,571,448 1897742

Total Liabilities 5,933,277 3.814,643 5,213,407 6,463,660 103,285,147 124,710,133

Net Assets 29,250,339 1,042,598 (2,049,877) (3,312,905) (13,120,085) 11,810,070
Cumulative Assets 29,250,339 30,292,937 28,243,060 24,930,155 11,810,070 (0.00)

b. Concentration of Deposits:
The concentration of the deposit below implies that the liquidity risk is proactively managed by the bank.

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Total deposits from twenty largest depositors

a. Group-wise 13,343,759,982 11,907,247,230
b.As per individual customers 4,478,747940 3,545,000,000
Percentage of deposits from twenty largest depositors to total deposits
a. Group-wise 11.32% 10.81%
b.As per individual customers 3.80% 3.22%
Muktinath Bikas Bank * 97,.-5:
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Market Risks

Market Risk refers to the risk a Bank
faces due to fluctuations in market
prices, including interest rates, foreign
exchange [FX] rates, and equity prices.
The goal is to manage market risk
exposures within acceptable levels in
line with the Bank's risk appetite. The

Translation Risk:

The impact of currency fluctuations on
the consolidation of foreign subsidiaries
or foreign-denominated assets.

key risk indicators [(KRIs), and stress
testing for the following risks:

Transaction Risk:

Changes in exchange rates affecting
future cash flows from foreign currency
denominated assets or liabilities.

Economic Risk:
The long-term effect of currency

gek:)

Bank employs a comprehensive market
risk management framework with limits,

a.Foreign Exchange Risk

changes on a Bank's competitive

position

The net open position including the capital allocation for market risk is mentioned below:

In 000's
Currency Open Position Exchange Open Position Relevant Open
Indian Rupee 25,000.00 160 40,019 40,019
United States Dollar 457,004.45 13740 62,792,411 62,792,411
Great Britain Pound 1337.33 186.48 249,385 249,385
Euro 44,988.92 160.25 7.209,249 7209,249
Thai Baht 174,790.00 423 739,362 739,362
Swiss Franc 3,540.00 172.26 609,783 609,783
Australian Dollar 8,966.71 9171 822,292 822,292
Canadian Dollar 34,605.00 100.15 3,465,691 3,465,691
Singapore Dollar 12,233.00 107.04 1,309,359 1,309,359
Japanese Yen 1,930,000.00 0.93 1793,935 1,793,935
Hong Kong Dollar 55,160.00 17.48 963,921 963,921
Danish Kroner - - - -
Swedish Kroner - - - -
Saudi Arabian Riyal 41,570.00 36.36 1,511,485 1,511,485
Qatari Riyal 5,621.00 3749 210,703 210,703
Emirati Dirham 88,580.00 3744 3,315,992 3,315,992
Malaysian Ringgit 1,800.00 32.01 57,618 57,618
South Korean Won 2,162,000.00 0.10 214,687 214,687
Chinese Yuan 23,560.00 19.13 450,585 450,585
Kuwaiti Dinar 510.00 44764 228,294 228,294
Bahraini Dinar 321.00 363.83 116,789 116,789
(a) Total Open Position 86,101,561 86,101,561
(b) Fixed Percentage 5%
(c] Capital Charge for Market Risk (=axb) 4,305,078
(d) Risk Weight [reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times 9.09
(e) Equivalent Market Risk Weight Exposure (=cxd) 39,133,159

b. Interest Rate Risks

Interest rate risk for Bank refers to the potential impact that fluctuations in interest rates can have on a Bank's profitability
and financial stability. Banks hold a portfolio of assets, such as loans, and liabilities, such as deposits, which may be sensitive
to changes in interest rates. When interest rates rise or fall, the value of these assets and liabilities can change, affecting the
Bank's net interest income and the overall balance sheet. So, managing interest rate risk is crucial for the Bank to ensure
profitability and maintain financial stability in changing market conditions. The interest rate risk is being measured and
managed appropriately by using the difference between the rate sensitive assets (RSA) and rate sensitive liabilities (RSL)

which shows the impact of interest changes on the net interest income.

Muktinath Bikas Bank



Environment and Social Risk Management

The Bank's Environmental and Social
Risk Management Policy underscores
its steadfast commitment to proactively
identifying, assessing, and managing
the environmental and social risks
inherent in its financial activities. This
policy embodies the Bank's dedication
to advancing sustainability and social

Legal Risk Management

The Bank's Legal Risk Management
Policy establishes a comprehensive
framework dedicated to the
identification, assessment, and
management of legal risks inherent

in its operations. This policy is
fundamental to safeguarding the Bank’s

Reputation Risk Management

The Bank's Reputation Risk
Management Policy defines a strategic
framework to identify, assess, monitor,
and mitigate risks that could impact

its reputation. Committed to protecting
its brand integrity, the Bank promotes
ethical conduct, transparency, and

a proactive approach to managing
reputational risks. This comprehensive
strategy integrates proactive

Strategic Risk Management

The Bank is committed to actively
managing strategic risk through

a comprehensive framework that
includes robust strategic planning,
scenario analysis, and continuous
monitoring of the external environment.
This approach ensures agility and
responsiveness to dynamic market
conditions.Advanced stress testing
models are regularly employed to
evaluate potential strategic risks within
the banking sector, reinforcing the
Bank's resilience.

The Strategic Risk Management
Policy is meticulously designed to
systematically identify, assess, and

responsibility across all operations,
recognizing its pivotal role in fostering
long-term positive impact. Central to
this commitment is strict adherence
to all relevant environmental and
social regulations and standards, with
a proactive approach to monitoring
and adapting to evolving regulatory

compliance with all applicable local,
regional, national, and regulations

and regulations, thereby protecting

the institution from potential legal
liabilities. It also fosters a strong culture
of legal and regulatory risk awareness
throughout the organization.

communication, unwavering adherence
to regulatory standards, and robust
crisis management to safeguard public
trust. Key elements include establishing
clear and transparent communication
channels, enforcing stringent process
controls, and regularly evaluating
customer satisfaction. The Bank actively
monitors public sentiment through
systematic tracking of social media and

manage risks that may threaten

the Bank's strategic objectives and
financial performance. Emphasizing
strategic planning and execution,

the policy incorporates continuous
monitoring, transparent reporting, and
effective mitigation strategies to foster
a proactive risk culture. Regular reviews
and updates ensure the policy remains
adaptable to an evolving business
landscape.

The Integrated Risk Management
Department plays a critical role by
conducting quarterly evaluations

of the Bank's market share and
competitive positioning against peer

&

requirements. Through this policy, the
Bank reinforces its responsibility to
integrate sustainable practices into its
risk management framework, ensuring
resilience and accountability in every
aspect of its business.

The Bank has established a separate
Legal Department as the first line of
defense against legal risks. Regular
reporting and approvals from the
Board are in place to ensure effective
monitoring and mitigation of such risks.

other media platforms, enabling swift
and effective responses to any negative
developments. Through continuous
grievance management and real-time
market sentiment analysis, the Bank
ensures its reputation remains resilient
and positively perceived.

development banks nationwide. Based
on these insights, the department
recommends strategic risk mitigation
measures to the Board via the Risk
Management Committee. Furthermore,
an annual comprehensive review
compares budgeted versus actual
deposits, lending volumes, and profits.
This analysis, accompanied by
recommended mitigation strategies, is
presented to the Board through the Risk
Management Committee as necessary,
ensuring informed oversight and
strategic alignment.

Muktinath Bikas Ba
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Information Security

At Muktinath Bikas Bank, IT Risk
Management is a cornerstone of our
operational resilience, with a prime
focus on safeguarding information
security and defending against cyber
threats. We have implemented a robust
and multi-layered cybersecurity
framework designed to proactively
identify, assess, and mitigate potential

AML/CFT Risks

As a responsible financial institution,
the Bank remains fully committed to
preventing its operations from being
used, intentionally or unintentionally, for
money laundering or terrorist financing
activities.

The Bank has adopted a Board-
approved Know Your Customer (KYC)
and Anti-Money Laundering (AML]
Policy, in line with the Asset (Money)
Laundering Prevention Act, 2064,
Asset (Money] Laundering Prevention

Key AML Practices

Maintaining
Records

risks that could compromise the
confidentiality, integrity, and availability
of our data and systems. Our
comprehensive approach includes
continuous monitoring, advanced
threat detection, and incident
response capabilities, supported by
stringent access controls and regular
security audits. By fostering a culture

Rules, 2081 and Directives issued by
Nepal Rastra Bank. The Policy outlines
the Bank's framework for customer
identification, due diligence, transaction
monitoring, and reporting obligations
under the prevailing regulatory regime.
The AML/CFT Committee of the Board
oversees the implementation of the
Bank's KYC and AML Palicy. The policies
and related procedures are periodically
reviewed by this independent function
and form part of regular reporting to the
Board.

of cybersecurity awareness and
leveraging cutting-edge technology.
We are committed to maintaining

the highest standards of information
security, ensuring the protection of

our customers' assets and trust in an
increasingly digital banking landscape.

All employees are required to complete
mandatory AML and KYC training
during induction and undertake

annual refresher programs to ensure
continuous awareness and compliance.
In addition, the Bank's AML/CFT
framework is subject to periodic
independent reviews to evaluate its
effectiveness and identify areas for
further enhancement.

The Bank maintains customer identification records and transaction records as per the FATF
and NRB recommendations the date of closure of the account or end of business relationship
and from the date of transaction respectively.

Politically Exposed
Persons [PEPs)

Enhanced due diligence is conducted for PEPs and their close associates prior to account
opening and on an annual basis. Such accounts are placed under enhanced and continuous
monitoring.

Customer Due
Diligence (CDD)

The Bank adheres to the prescribed norms for collecting and verifying KYC documents from
reliable and independent sources, where applicable. Beneficial ownership is identified and
verified in the case of legal entities. CDD information is periodically updatedat least once every
year for high-risk customers, once every fiveyears for medium-risk customers and once every
seven years for low-risk customers.

Name
Screening

The Bank adheres to the prescribed norms for collecting and verifying KYC documents from
reliable and independent sources, where applicable. Beneficial ownership is identified and
verified in the case of legal entities. CDD information is periodically updatedat least once every
year for high-risk customers, once every fiveyears for medium-risk customers and once every
seven years for low-risk customers.

Transaction

Arobust transaction monitoring mechanism is in place to ensure that customer transactions

align with their declared profile, business activities, and source of funds by. Any suspicious or
unusual transaction identified is reported to the Financial Information Unit [FIU) in accordance
with regulatory requirements.

Monitoring and
Reporting

100 Muktinath Bikas Bank



Internal Control

Muktinath Bikas Bank has established a
comprehensive Internal Control System
designed to strengthen the reliability
and integrity of information, ensure
compliance with laws and applicable
laws and regulations and safeguard
assets and promote the efficient

use of resources. These controls

are systematically implemented

across front offices, back offices and
IT infrastructure to ensure that all
operational processes are closely
monitored, risks are mitigated and
transactions are executed accurately
and securely.

These controls are periodically tested
to ensure their effectiveness. They are

In line with these principles, the Bank has established the following controls:

‘ Preventive
Controls

To deter issues

Detective
O ‘ Controls

Segregation of Duties

Dual Control & Custody
Checker and Maker
Authorization & Approval Limits
Physical Security

Access Controls

Policies & Procedures

System Access Passwords
& Biometrics

Network Security

Deak Leakage Prevention

In summary, the Bank's strength lies in a multi-layered system of controls designed to prevent, detect and correct issues. The
independent validation provided by internal, information technology and external audits ensures this system remains reliable

Reconciliations
Internal Audits
Exception Reports
Transaction Monitoring
Trial Balance Reviews
Compliance Monitoring
Credit Surveillance
Privileged Access Monitoring
Network Monitoring
Budgetary Control
Root Cause Analysis

forming the essential foundation for trust and stability in our system.

continuously reviewed by the Bank's
internal auditors, information security
auditors and external auditors to
ensure they remain relevant and
responsive to changing banking
dynamics and technological
advancements.

st ‘ Corrective
Controls

To rectify issues

= Incident Response Plan

= Disaster Recovery &
Business Continuity Plans

= Disciplinary Action
= Patch Management
= Revoking Access

Muktinath Bikas Ba
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With rising cybersecurity threats, we have evolved with robust defense
systems and continuous monitoring to not only excel in safeguarding data
but also to ensure seamless access to Banking and total digital resilience.

In the modern digital era, organizations
like Banks increasingly rely on
sophisticated IT systems to manage
operations, process transactions and
deliver services. While these systems
offer efficiency and connectivity, they
also introduce significant risks if not

properly managed. Cybersecurity
extends beyond a technical challenge
and is a fundamental business risk that
affects stakeholder trust, reputation and
the ability to deliver services effectively.
Acknowledging its strategic importance,
the Bank's Board has embedded

cybersecurity as a regular component
of its risk oversight responsibilities,
ensuring that IT systems and controls,
coupled with cybersecurity and data
privacy, remain critical components of
organizational resilience.



Understanding IT Systems
and Controls

IT systems and controls encompass
structured policies, procedures and
technologies designed to ensure
that information systems operate
securely, reliably and in alignment
with Bank objectives. These controls

Identify

Q

N

= Steering Committee

* NRB IT Policy

= Cyber Resillience Guideline

= Asset Management

» IS0 27001 & PCI DSS Compliance

are vital for preventing operational
disruptions, protecting sensitive data
and maintaining trust with stakeholders
such as customers, partners and
regulators. Effective IT controls include
measures like access management,
system monitoring and regular updates
to ensure systems remain secure

Cyber Security
And Data Privacy

= Access Control and Authentication
= Application Security

= Endpoint Protection

= Network Protection

= Secure Configuration Management
= Email and Phishing Protection

= Awareness and Training
= Physical Security

&

and functional. By implementing
these controls, Banks can mitigate
risks associated with system failures,
cyberattacks, or data breaches,
ensuring seamless operations and
stakeholder confidence.

Respond &

Recovery

= Cyber Incident Response Plan
= Business Continuity Plan

= Disaster Recovery Plan

» DR Drills

= Backup and Restoration

= Continuous Improvement

= 24x7 Security Operations Center

= Security Information and Event Management

= Vulnerability Assessment & Penetration Testing
= Threat Intelligence & Feeds

= Intrusion Detection & Prevention Systems

Cybersecurity Measures

Cybersecurity is the practice of
protecting IT systems and networks
from unauthorized access, cyberattacks
and data breaches. Threats today are
more sophisticated than ever, ranging
from phishing attacks and malware
to ransomware and insider threats.
To mitigate these risks, the Bank

has adopted multi-layered defenses,
including firewalls, intrusion detection
systems, endpoint security and multi-

factor authentication. These measures
work together to reduce the Bank's
exposure to cyber threats and enhance
its overall security posture.

Disaster Recovery and
Resilience

The Bank has established a
comprehensive Disaster Recovery

Plan [DRP), which serves as a single
repository for all information describing
the Bank's ability to withstand a

disaster and the processes required to
achieve recovery.A dedicated Disaster
Recovery Team is responsible for
making all decisions related to disaster
recovery efforts, evaluating the disaster
and determining the steps needed to
restore normal business operations.

To ensure preparedness, the Bank
conducts regular Disaster Recovery
(DR] drills to test the continuity of
critical operations and minimize
disruptions in the event of a disaster.

Muktinath Bikas Ba
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Security Audits and
Vulnerability Assessments

To maintain a robust cybersecurity
posture, the Bank conducts regular
security audits to assess its IT systems,
applications and infrastructure against
established security policies and
standards. These audits help identify
vulnerabilities, ensure compliance

with regulatory requirements and
strengthen the overall security
framework. Additionally, the Bank
performs Vulnerability Assessment
and Penetration Testing (VAPT) to
proactively identify weaknesses in IT
systems, applications and network
infrastructure. VAPT involves two key
activities:

1. Vulnerability Assessment:
Systematic scanning of IT assets
to detect known vulnerabilities,
misconfigurations, or outdated
components that could be
exploited by attackers.

2. Penetration Testing:
Simulated cyberattacks performed
by security experts to evaluate the
effectiveness of existing controls
and identify potential attack
vectors.
These proactive measures ensure that
the Bank remains vigilant in addressing
potential weaknesses before they can
be exploited.

Continuous Monitoring

Continuous monitoring is a proactive
approach that involves tracking
system activities, network traffic

and user behavior in real time. This
enables the Bank to detect suspicious
activities promptly, respond to potential
threats and prevent breaches before
they escalate. By combining regular
audits with continuous monitoring,
the Bank creates a robust framework
for safeguarding data, maintaining
operational resilience and upholding
stakeholder trust

Ensuring Data Privacy

Data privacy focuses on safeguarding
personal and sensitive information from

misuse or unauthorized disclosure. For
Banks handling financial and customer
data, privacy is not only a regulatory
requirement but also a critical trust
factor. The Bank implements robust
policies and guidelines, supported by
technical measures such as encryption,
access controls and secure data
storage, to ensure that customer
information remains confidential and
protected from breaches. The Bank
adheres to ISO 27001 standards and
other relevant guidelines for data
security, ensuring that sensitive
customer and Bank information is
protected.

To further strengthen its security
posture, the Bank conducts regular
cybersecurity awareness and training
programs for all staff, emphasizing best
practices to mitigate risks. Throughout
the year, the Bank experienced no
significant security breaches or data
loss, underscoring the effectiveness of
its cybersecurity measures.

Board Oversight and Strategic
Alighment

The Bank's Board plays a pivotal role
in overseeing cybersecurity, engaging
closely with the risk management
department and management

team throughout the year. Regular
briefings are provided through the
risk management committee, covering
emerging threats, the effectiveness of
defense measures and the readiness
of incident response plans.These
briefings enable the Board to gain a
clear understanding of how the Bank
safeguards sensitive information

and ensures operational resilience.
Board members actively participate

in discussions, posing questions

and offering insights to ensure that
cybersecurity is viewed not only as a
risk to mitigate but also as a catalyst for
innovation.

The Board also supports management's
initiatives to enhance security
awareness across the Bank,
recognizing that people are as vital
as technology in defending against
cyber threats. This support includes

ongoing training programs for all

staff on cybersecurity best practices,
ensuring that employees are equipped
to identify and respond to potential
threats. Additionally, the Bank conducts
proactive awareness campaigns to
educate customers on safe practices
when using digital channels. These
campaigns are delivered through
regular articles and awareness posts
on social media, the mobile Banking
app and the Bank's website, ensuring
that customers are informed about
emerging threats and best practices for
staying secure.

As digitalization continues to expand,
IT systems, cybersecurity and data
privacy are not optional elements

but they form the backbone of

secure operations. By implementing
comprehensive IT controls, conducting
regular audits and VAPT and fostering a
culture of security awareness, the Bank
protects critical information, sustains
business continuity and maintains
stakeholder confidence. The Bank
remains steadfast in prioritizing data
security with the same commitment as
the quality of its Banking services.

Through active Board engagement,
strategic alignment of cybersecurity
initiatives and a commitment to ongoing
training and customer education, the
Bank demonstrates its dedication

to safeguarding its operations. This
integrated approach ensures that

the Bank is well-prepared to face
evolving cyber risks while continuing
to deliver secure and reliable services.
By embedding cybersecurity into
strategic decision-making, supporting
management initiatives and promoting
a culture of awareness across the
Bank, the Bank enhances operational
resilience and upholds the trust and
confidence of its customers, partners
and communities.
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Our Commitment to ESG Excellence

At Muktinath, sustainability is the foundation of
our operations and strategic vision. Integrating
environmental, social and governance (ESG)
considerations into every facet of our Banking
activities allows us to create lasting value

for clients, communities and the nation at

large. Nepal's journey toward the Sustainable
Development Goals ([SDGs) and its climate
commitments requires significant financial
resources. Recognizing this need, we have
strategically positioned itself to channel funds
into initiatives that accelerate low-carbon
growth, foster social inclusion and promote
robust governance practices. Through proactive
ESG integration, we have is not only aligning

its business with global best practices but also
setting a benchmark for responsible Banking in
Nepal. Our approach emphasizes measurable
impact, rigorous risk management and
collaboration with diverse stakeholders.
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Environmental Responsibility: Financing a Low-Carbon Future
The Bank actively supports initiatives that reduce carbon emissions, promote renewable energy and foster environmentally
responsible practices across sectors.

Renewable Energy Investments:

We continue to invest in hydropower, enhance their expertise in evaluating 7 (Affordable and Clean Energy) and
solar and other renewable energy and managing renewable energy SDG 13 (Climate Action)These initiatives
projects, recognizing their crucial role investments. As of this reporting year, directly contribute to SDG 7 (Affordable
in reducing greenhouse gas emissions total financing for hydropower projects and Clean Energy) and SDG 13 (Climate
and fostering sustainable development.  stands at NPR 2,922 million, marking Action) by supporting the expansion
The Bank has also organized capacity a significant increase from previous of clean energy infrastructure and
development programs for credit staff, year.This growth demonstrates our fostering climate-resilient development.
including comprehensive training on strong commitment to promoting clean

Hydropower Project Financing, to energy financing and advancing SDG

.............................................................................................................................................

Sustainable Agriculture:

sustainable practices that NPR 2,953.66 million. strengthening rural livelihoods
enhance productivity while The consistent year-on-year and advancing SDG 2 (Zero
conserving natural resources. increases highlights growing Hunger) and SDG 13 (Climate
This year, our financing for commitment to promoting Action) through environmentally
agriculture loan reached sustainable agriculture, responsible lending practices.

......................................................................................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................................

Green Transportation:

The Bank provides financing Your Vehicle" program to staffs, 11: Sustainable Cities and

for electric vehicles under its the Bank offers 10% higher Communities by encouraging
Auto Loan and Hire Purchase financing for electric vehicles, environmentally friendly
Loan categories, as outlined promoting the transition transportation and helping

in the Unified Lending Product to cleaner urban mobility. reduce urban pollution levels.

Paper 2081. Through the "Own This initiative supports SDG

......................................................................................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................................

On-Site Water Recycling at Our Central Office

This year, we took a supports UN Sustainable We ensured that 1.87 million
significant step towards Development Goal 6 [Clean litres of purified water free of
water independence by Water and Sanitation). harmful contaminants, was
commissioning a new Sewage The plant treats our office returned to the ecosystem.
Treatment Plant (STP) at our wastewater to a high standard, We ensured 100% of our central
Central Office. This initiative transforming it into recycled office's wastewater is now

is a cornerstone of our water water for non-potable uses like treated and repurposed on-site.
stewardship strategy and toilet flushing and irrigation.

......................................................................................................................................................
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Supporting the Low-Carbon Transition: Employee EV Charging o)
@
In line with our commitment to stations directly supports SDG sustainable energy system %'
reduce Scope 3 emissions and 7 (Affordable and Clean Energy) This also provides a valuable =
support employee sustainability by providing the infrastructure employee benefit enhancing
choices, we installed electric needed to shift from fossil our value proposition and
vehicle (EV] charging stations fuels to clean electricity for supporting a modern and -
at our central office. Our transportation, promoting sustainable workplace.
installation of EV charging energy efficiency and a modern,
&
Q
&
Our Environmental and Social Risk underscores its commitment to sound risk management, adherence to &
Management [ESRM] framework integrating sustainability principles national standards and proactive efforts -
ensures that all financing decisions into every lending decision. Aligned to enhance sustainability performance,
are carefully evaluated for their with NRB's 2022 ESRM Guidelines, the while also identifying opportunities —
environmental impact. This robust Bank maintains strong governance to strengthen post-assessment
assessment process aligns us with through approved policies, a dedicated monitoring and expand financing for p
SDGs 7 (Affordable and Clean Energy),9  E&S Officer and continuous capacity- green and socially beneficial projects. g..
(Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure],  building initiatives engaging over 450 A summary of our key ESRM activities 3
11 (Sustainable Cities] and 13 (Climate employees in ESG training programs and performance indicators for FY e
Action). during FY 2081/82. Throughout the 2081/82 is presented in the table below. 3
year, 96 transactions underwent g
Our robust Environmental and Social Environmental and Social Due Diligence o
Risk Management (ESRM) framework (ESDD). These results reflect our =

: ESRM Policy Approved in 2022 and updated in 2024 b
Policy & Governance <
ESRM Procedure Formulated and approved ‘52
ESRM Budget Allocation Included in all four quarters e
Capacity Building No. of ESRM Trainings Conducted 4 sessions (Q1-Q4) 3
Total Participants 457 employees
Loan Applications Screened under E&S Due Diligence (ESDD) 96 transactions
Environmental Share of ESDD in Commercial Loan Portfolio 52.91%
& Social Risk Disbursed Transactions by Risk Rating 96 (Low Risk]
Integration Total Value of Low-Risk Disbursed Loans NPR 4,631 million 2]
Transactions Rejected on E&S Grounds None %
5]
<
o)
We are actively improving internal sustainability practices. The Bank is committed to calculating and reporting GHG Scope 3
emissions in its annual report, reflecting a rigorous approach to understanding and reducing its operational carbon footprint. %,
This demonstrates a holistic commitment to environmental sustainability by combining external investments with internal
initiatives.
I
=
[0))
3
Q
o
P
[¢]
©
=
7]
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Social Impact: Promoting Inclusion, Equity and Resilience
We believes that social responsibility is inseparable from sustainable growth. The Bank contributes directly to building a more
equitable society, by fostering financial inclusion and empowering marginalized communities:

.............................................................................................................................................

Collaborative Rural Programs:

We collaborated with
organizations such as SNV

and the DFCD to develop

bulk lending products for

rural cooperatives, enhancing
climate resilience, climate-smart

agriculture and cooperative
enterprise development. The
partnerships with UC Davis,
BFA Global and the Bill &
Melinda Gates Foundation
under the Resilience and

Workforce Diversity and Gender Equality:

Workforce Diversity and Gender
Equality: Currently, 42.22% of our
workforce are women, reflecting
the Bank's strong commitment
to SDG 5 [Gender Equality).
Beyond gender balance, we

Financial Inclusion:

emphasize inclusivity for all
underrepresented groups and
upholds social due diligence
standards that cover labor
conditions, non-discrimination
and health and safety,

We maintain a strong inclusive
Banking portfolio that provides
small-scale loans to individuals
with limited access to formal
financial services.As part

of its inclusive Banking
initiatives, the Bank also

offers wholesale lending to
cooperatives and microfinance
institutions, enabling them to
extend financial support to
underserved communities.
These initiatives empower rural
communities to access formal
Banking services, save securely
and invest in income-generating
activities, thereby contributing
to SDG 1 (No Poverty) and SDG
10 (Reduced Inequalities).
Social due diligence is
embedded in our credit and

operational processes. Labor
conditions, anti-discrimination
measures and health and safety
standards are evaluated for all
employees and borrowers. By
doing so, we directly advances
SDG 3 [Good Health and Well-
being), SDG 8 [Decent Work and
Economic Growth) and SDG 10
(Reduced Inequalities).
Collaboration is central to our
social impact strategy. We
extend risk management and
resilience-building solutions
to farming communities

by partnering with global
organizations such as UC
Davis, BFA Global and the Bill
& Melinda Gates Foundation.
These partnerships amplify
impact, improve access to

Innovation Facility provide
risk management solutions
to farmers, advancing SDG 17
(Partnerships for the Goals).

.....................................................................................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................................

contributing to SDG 8 [Decent
Work and Economic Growth)
and SDG 3 [Good Health and
Well-being).

.....................................................................................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................................

resources and strengthen
community capacity, aligning
with SDG 17 [Partnerships

for the Goals). In addition to
financing initiatives, we actively
promote climate awareness
among youth.The Bank
organized the "Art for Earth”
competition, inviting students
from Class 8 to 10 across Nepal
to create artwork addressing
climate change and global
warming, with recognition and
prizes awarded to regional
winners and a grand winner.
This initiative complements
broader environmental strategy
by fostering awareness,
creativity and engagement on
climate issues at the community
level.

.....................................................................................................................................................
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Governance: Upholding Integrity, Transparency and Accountability

Strong governance forms the foundation of our sustainable Banking model. Ethical conduct, transparency and inclusivity
guide every decision and action across the organization. To ensure effective governance, the Bank has established several
key committees, including the Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee, AML/CFT Committee and Employee Service

and Facilities Committee among others which provide oversight and strategic guidance. The Bank also maintains prudent
operational safeguards, such as the Business Continuity Plan, 2079 and Disaster Recovery Plan 2079, to ensure resilience and
preparedness in all circumstances.

0000 60000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000cscscssscsas so,
.

Leadership Diversity:

(57.8%) and 640 female [42.2%)
employees, reflecting the Bank's
continuous efforts to achieve
gender balance and inclusive
representation.

The Bank also demonstrates

a commitment to gender
diversity, with several women
in managerial positions. Our
workforce consists of 876 male

The Board and Executive
Committee integrate diverse
perspectives, enhancing
decision-making and promoting
a culture of accountability.
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Responsible Borrower Assessment:

In line with NRB's ESRM governance, labor practices,
Guidelines 2022, we have health and safety, community
integrated environmental and impact and environmental
social risk assessment into compliance and applies due
its credit appraisal process. diligence and action plans
The Bank evaluates borrowers' for high- and moderate-risk

projects. This ensures lending to
borrowers with ethical conduct,
compliance with regulations
and sustainable business
practices.

.
.
.
.
.
.
.
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These governance initiatives not only
strengthen our risk management but
also establish the Bank as a model

of responsible and resilient finance

in Nepal. We supports SDG 8 (Decent
Work], 16 (Peace, Justice and Strong
Institutions) and 17 [Partnerships for the
Goals), by integrating ESG principles
into governance.

We continue to embed ESG principles
across all Banking operations, ensuring
that sustainability is at the heart of
strategic decision-making. Muktinath
contributes meaningfully to Nepal's
sustainable development trajectory by

considering environmental stewardship,

social equity and governance
excellence. Looking forward, we remain
committed to innovation, collaboration

and leadership in sustainable
Banking.As Nepal moves toward a
greener, more inclusive and ethically
governed economy, we stand ready

to deliver impactful solutions, support
communities and advance sustainable
growth for generations to come.

Muktinath
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Evolving Talent fora
Smarter Tomorrow

Our employees have always been the driving force of our success!!

The past years have continued to
demonstrate the pace of transformation
across industries, driven by digital
innovation, evolving business

models and a rapidly changing

global landscape. At the heart of this
transformation lies our employee who
demonstrates the resilient, adaptable
and future-focused traits. At Muktinath,
we view change not as a disruption, but
as a powerful catalyst for opportunity.
Our HR strategy remains committed

to building a workforce that is agile,
digitally skilled and aligned with the

The Team of
1,516 Individuals

needs of tomorrow, blended with the
value of our culture.

Recognizing the pivotal role of

digital capability, we have invested
significantly in upskilling and reskilling
our teams. Through targeted learning
programs, leadership development
initiatives and enhanced digital
literacy training, we are equipping our
employees with the tools they need to
thrive in a dynamic environment. From
cloud platforms to data analytics and
Al integration, our people are not only

Our Dynamic Team of

32.7 Years

embracing new technologies — they
are driving their adoption across the
organization.

Our commitment to workforce resilience
has been foundational. We always have
focused on employee wellbeing and
inclusive workplace culture. This holistic
approach ensures that our people are
not only technically equipped but also
emotionally supported and engaged,
enabling sustained performance and
innovation.

(@)

\_
Retention Ratio of

91.09%

We proudly welcomed 80 new members to our team this fiscal year, strengthening our journey ahead.

110
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Rewards and Recognition: Celebrating Excellence, Inspiring Performance

We believe that recognizing and
rewarding our people is not only a
reflection of our values but a vital
driver of employee engagement and
organizational success. Our Rewards
and Recognition (R&R] framework is
designed to celebrate achievements,
foster a culture of appreciation

and motivate high performance

across all levels of the organization.
Special emphasis was placed on
recognizing innovation, adaptability and
contributions that supported our digital
transformation goals.Employees who
demonstrated exceptional commitment
in times of change, embraced new
technologies, or delivered customer-
centric solutions were spotlighted

through targeted campaigns and
leadership acknowledgments.As we
look ahead, we remain committed to

evolving our recognition approach to be

more inclusive, data-driven and aligned
with our business goals. By celebrating
the achievements, we continue to
empower our people and strengthen
our culture of excellence.

Leave Facility: Supporting Work-Life Balance and Employee Wellbeing
Muktinath wants to be more than just a workplace, we wish to be a part
where people feel valued, supported and inspired!!

At Muktinath, we recognize that a
healthy work-life balance is essential to
the overall wellbeing, productivity and
satisfaction of our employees. Our leave
policies are thoughtfully designed to
provide flexibility, support diverse life
needs and promote a culture of care
and trust within the organization. Our
comprehensive leave facility includes

a range of paid and unpaid leave such
as annual leave, sick leave, maternity
and paternity leave, bereavement leave
and other special categories to address
personal, family, or medical needs.
These policies are compliant with all

Job Rotation

We are committed to developing a
versatile, agile workforce that can adapt
to evolving business needs. Our Job
Rotation program plays a pivotal role

applicable labor laws and regularly
reviewed to ensure they remain relevant
and employee centric.

We foster a culture that values balance,
care and togetherness by offering 24
days of Home Leave, 12 days each of
Sick and Casual Leave and 10 days

of Force Leave every year to ensure
rest, flexibility and well-being. With

98 days of Maternity Leave and 15
days of Paternity Leave, both provided
twice during service, we proudly
support our colleagues in cherishing
family milestones In moments of loss,

in this strategy by offering employees
opportunities to expand their skill sets,
gain cross-functional exposure and
enhance their career development.

we stand beside our team with 15
days of Mourning Leave, reinforcing
our commitment to compassion and
humanity at every stage of life.

During the year, 70 of our colleagues
availed Maternity Leave and we

are proud to share that not a single
resignation was received thereafter
reflecting our supportive environment
where returning mothers feel valued,
empowered and encouraged to
continue their journey with us.

This has not only supported individual
growth but also contributed to optimal
workforce planning and internal
mobility.

Muktinath Bikas Bank g
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Succession Planning

We recognize that succession
planning is a critical component of
sustainable growth and business
continuity. By identifying and
developing future leaders within our
organization, we ensure that key
roles are filled with capable, confident

Occupational Health and Safety

The health and safety of our employees
is a paramount priority. We are
dedicated to maintaining a workplace
environment that safeguards the
physical and mental wellbeing of

every team member while complying
with all regulatory standards and

and culturally aligned talent—ready
to lead us through the challenges

and opportunities ahead. Our
succession planning framework is
closely integrated with performance
management, leadership development
and workforce planning. To ensure

best practices. Over the past years,
we have continued to strengthen
our occupational health and safety
programs through comprehensive
risk assessments, proactive hazard
management and ongoing employee
training. Our commitment extends

alignment with evolving business
needs, succession plans are regularly
reviewed by senior leadership and HR.
These reviews help us stay agile and
responsive in an increasingly dynamic
business environment.

beyond compliance, focusing on mental
health support and ergonomic practices
to enhance overall employee wellbeing.
We strive to create a supportive and
resilient workforce.

Spirituality

We recognize that employee wellbeing
extends beyond physical and mental
health to include a sense of purpose,
meaning and connection. Integrating
spirituality into our workplace

culture supports holistic wellness,
encourages mindfulness and nurtures

Strategic Workforce Planning

The ability to anticipate and respond
to future talent needs is essential for
sustainable growth and competitive
advantage. Our Strategic Workforce
Planning framework enables us to
proactively align our human capital
with long-term business priorities,

values that unite and inspire our
people. We have embraced initiatives
that foster reflection, empathy and
ethical leadership key elements

that contribute to a harmonious and
inclusive environment. Programs such
as mindfulness workshops, gratitude

ensuring we have the right people, in
the right roles, at the right time. We
strengthened our workforce planning
capabilities by integrating data-driven
insights, scenario modeling and

close collaboration between HR and
business leaders. This has allowed us

practices, yoga and meditation
sessions have been introduced to help
employees cultivate inner balance,
resilience and alignment with our
company's mission.

to identify critical skill gaps, forecast
future workforce demands and develop
targeted strategies to close those
gaps through hiring, reskilling, or
redeployment.
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Commitment to Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

At Muktinath, we firmly believe that
diversity, equity and inclusion [DEI)
are foundational to building a thriving,
innovative and resilient organization.
Our commitment to DEI goes beyond
compliance it is embedded in our

culture, values and business strategy,
driving better decision-making and
fostering a workplace where every
individual feels valued, respected and
empowered to contribute their best. By
fostering a culture of belonging and

&

openness, we are not only enriching
our workplace but also enhancing our
capacity to innovate, collaborate and
respond effectively to the evolving
needs of our customers and markets.

% Gender Ashad 2082 Ashad 2081

Brahmin 804 53.03% Male 876 5778% 913 58.34%
Chhetri 253 16.69% Female 640 42.22% 652 41.66%
Dalit 27 178% Total Staff 1,516 1,565

Gurung a2 3.43%

Kirat 20 1.32%

Madhesi 72 475% Gen Z 20%

Magar 49 3.23%

Muslim 6 0.40%

Newar 171 11.28% Gen x 4%

Other 2 0.13%

Sanyashi 17 112%

Tamang 17 112%

Tharu 26 172%

Grand Total 1516 100.00%

Employee Engagement

We understand that employee
engagement is a critical driver

of productivity, innovation and
organizational success. A highly
engaged workforce reflects a culture
where people feel valued, heard and
inspired to contribute their best and
we are proud to continue building
that culture every day. We have
taken deliberate steps to deepen
employee engagement through open
communication, recognition, career
development and a renewed focus on
wellbeing through various programs,

#;E.

sports and recreational activities.

We launched new initiatives that foster
collaboration, celebrate achievements
and support personal and professional
growth. These included leadership
connect sessions, virtual town halls,
peer recognition programs and cross-
functional projects — all designed to
keep employees informed, aligned and
connected, especially in a hybrid work
environment.

Moreover, we emphasized transparency,

inclusivity and purpose-driven work

to ensure that employees feel part of
something larger. Engagement scores
improved year-over-year, reflecting
increased trust, motivation and
alignment with our values and mission.

Looking forward, we remain committed
to enhancing employee engagement
through continuous dialogue, data-
driven strategies and a strong focus on
belonging and wellbeing. Because when
our people thrive, our business thrives.
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Continuous Learning & Development

Continuous learning is essential to a culture of curiosity and innovation. personalized and impactful learning
building a future-ready, high-performing  Our L&D strategy align with business experiences. Key focus areas included
workforce. Our Learning & Development  priorities and the evolving needs of digital skills, leadership development,
(L&D] initiatives are designed to our workforce. Through a mix of in- project management, customer-
empower employees at every level by person workshops, virtual learning centricity and behavioral competencies.
enhancing their skills, strengthening platforms and on-the-job development,

leadership capabilities and fostering we provided employees with flexible,

In House Training 90 Total Amount spent in training 2177 Mn
Externa_lTralnlng_ - 15 Total No. of Participants 7679
International Training 2

Total Training Hours 1,863 Investment per Employee 14,359.69

L ey iy
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Women in Leadership Roles

The Bank continues to promote a culture of inclusion where women play an integral role in leadership and
decision-making. Female leaders across various levels are driving meaningful progress, inspiring teams and

contributing to the Bank.

Following are our managerial level female leaders:

*Namrata Shrestha
*Malina Shrestha
*Sarmila Lamsal
*Shristi Pokhrel
*Binju Dahal

Compensation and Benefits

A well-structured compensation and
benefits program is fundamental to
attracting and retaining top talent,
fostering employee satisfaction and
driving organizational performance.
Our approach is designed to be
competitive, equitable and aligned
with both market standards and

our company values. We conducted
comprehensive market benchmarking
to ensure our compensation packages
remain attractive and fair across all

Salary

Allowances

Bonus

Festival Bonus
Leave fare allowance

Transportation facility for late working hours

Telecommunication and Data facility

HR as a Business Partner

Human Resources is not just a support
function, it is a strategic business
partner integral to driving growth,
innovation and competitive advantage.
Our HR team works closely with
leadership and business units to align
talent strategies with organizational

levels and geographies. Our salary
structures are regularly reviewed to
reflect evolving economic conditions,
industry trends and internal equity. In
addition to competitive base salaries,
our total rewards program includes
performance-based incentives, long-
term benefits and recognition schemes
that reward individual and team
contributions. We have been providing
various staff loan facilities to ensure the
financial needs of staff are well taken

care of. we have always prioritized the
financial growth and stability of our
staff members as a cornerstone of our
people strategy. We understand that
empowering our employees with secure
and rewarding financial opportunities

is essential not only for their personal
wellbeing but also for fostering a
motivated and committed workforce.

as per required by job nature
Career growth and advancement

Opportunities for learning and development
Reward and recognition

Long-term and short-term staff loans
Medical and Accidental insurance benefits
Accommodation for staff working outstation

agility and resilience. This partnership
approach enables us to attract, develop
and retain the right talent, optimize
workforce capabilities and foster a
culture that supports transformation.

goals, ensuring that people initiatives
fuel performance and long-term
success. By embedding HR deeply

into business planning and decision-
making, we proactively identify
workforce needs, anticipate challenges
and co-create solutions that enhance

Muktinath Bikas Bank *
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Evolving with PUrpose’j?
Excelling with Impact!!




"Our journey from responsibility to real impact.”

At Muktinath Bikas Bank, we believe
progress is only meaningful when it
uplifts communities, hence Bank is
deeply committed create impact and
sustainable change through Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR] in such
evolving times of today. Bank, with

a purpose want to drive collective
progress with comprehensive approach
and focusing on key areas of impact
such as promoting quality education,
promoting healthcare, environmental
stewardship, community development

and financial inclusion. Our unwavering
commitment lies in building the nation
and shaping a more equitable and
inclusive Nepal.

With vision to promote sustainable
development, Bank draws inspiration
from the United Nations' Sustainable
Development Goals, ensuring that CSR
initiatives also contribute to broader
global development objectives. Each
CSRinitiative is thought for and
advocated with sincerest expectations

Overall Outlook on CSR Fund Utilization

Every fiscal year 1% of net profit is set
as budget in CSR Fund of the Bank
which is utilized across the provinces
of nation under various headings.

Education &

Empowerment

Environment &
Sustainability

Considerable contributions of NPR
10.32 Million have been made in various
CSR headings including sustainable
goals for FY 2081-82. The unspent

Social Projects

& Community
Development

Our Key Focus
Areas for
Impact

Health &
Wellbeing

&

of exceling impact and empowering
communities. Collaboration with various
partners such as non-governmental
organizations (NGOs]), social institutions,
local government bodies, corporate
entities, affiliated companies, and
dedicated employee volunteers is

taken as priority while designing the
initiatives, each milestone reflects the
power of collaboration, the spirit of
courage, and the promise of change.

amount has been carried forward to the
next financial year for our upcoming
CSRinitiatives.

Financial
Literacy &
Inclusion

Muktinah Bikas Bank - 1177
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Education & Empowerment

Bank believes that education is a education to bolstering basic education  items support and infrastructural
bridge to opportunity, dignity, and in rural villages, our initiatives aim to support for schools & students
empowerment in addition to being guarantee inclusive, equitable, and specially to elevate the standard of
a right, particularly for people high-quality learning. Bank's initiatives education in government schools of
coming and living in the isolated and under education and empowerment Nepal.

underprivileged areas. From promoting includes scholarships, financial support,

innovation and research in higher integration of FSM models educational

O Scholarships

A. Muktinath Utkrishta Scholarship

It is a flagship CSR initiative background, marginalized

initiated from FY 2079/80 and is communities across various

one such program that provides provinces of Nepal.As of today 38

scholarship to various students students have already benefitted 4

of GRADE 11 & 12 at various from the program.This year alone L.'“
government/ community colleges 16 students have benefitted from i
who came from weak economic the program across the nation. SDGs Covered:

B. Scholarships through Collaboration with Social Organizations

Apart from Muktinath Utkrishta coming low economic background
Scholarship, Bank also provided or underprivileged communities.
scholarships to students through Total 5 students benefitted
collaboration with various social through the collaboration.

organizations. The collaboration
was done to support the students

118 Muktinath Bikas Bank



O Financial Stimulation Model [FSM) integration

With the aim to increase attendance  their academic and non-academic

of students in government school, performance such as attendance,
Bank collaborated with social their cleanliness, classroom
organization to include Financial interaction. At the end of the month-

Simulation Model (FSM] in their daily  long period, the token numbers were
routine, a month-long program was added up and they could exchange

organized at a school for students it for various items with equal value
of Grade 4 to 6 were the students such as pen, toys, sport items, etc
were given token numbers equal to from a marketplace organized. In

case, the student doesn't want to
spend their token number, they
could save it on a token Bank for
next month and get interest rate on
it as well. This indirectly also taught
the students about savings, banking
system and money concept. Total
45 students benefitted from this
initiative.

O Handover of School essentials for Students & Infrastructure to Schools

To motivate more students at the country. 391 students have
government schools, Bank handed benefitted directly from the program
over school bags, uniforms, warm across the nation. Also, Bank have
clothes as sweaters, stationery items  supported 5 government schools

to various students of government by handover of 4 set of computers
schools at various locations across & 1set of smart LED TV financially

supported for development of
infrastructure to differerent schools
for purchase of books for their
libraries.

Muktinath Bikas Bank g
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Financial Literacy & Inclusion

A significant portion of Nepal's inclusion. Through outreach programs decisions. Initiatives employ multiple
population remains excluded from targeting unbanked and underbanked models, including classroom sessions,
the formal economy, limiting access individuals in rural and semi-urban and mass media campaigns, ensuring
to its benefits. Recognizing this gap. areas and in some city areas, the Bank that financial literacy becomes a key
Muktinath Bikas Bank is committed aims to create awareness and empower  driver of inclusive economic growth.
to promoting financial literacy and communities to make informed financial

Financial Literacy Programs
targeted for Entrepreneurs, Farmers,
Women, Youth

Bank have conducted various financial literacy
programs across nation targeting entrepreneurs,
farmers, women, youth. The target of such
programs to create more awareness about banking
knowledge and bring change in behavior of the
participants. Over 4,100 have benefitted from the
programs conducted.

Celebration of
GLOBAL MONEY WEEK

Y THINN BEFORE
AL L0 Th0K ot

* & WIS

This year Global Money Week 2025 theme was

“Think before you follow, wise money tomorrow".

Bank have celebrated the occasions by participation
in various rallies and programs conducted along with
regulatory body. Bank also organized Banking literacy
programs for students of various colleges and schools
as the week is celebrated especially for bring more
awareness about financial literacy among students.
Total 398 have benefited from the programs.
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platforms to deliver consistent, targeted messages N e 1 I o
on responsible borrowing, effective savings, scam
prevention, and other essential financial practices. _
Through this initiative, the Bank aims to broaden nci
its outreach, raise awareness, and equip a larger %
audience with fundamental financial literacy skills, @
fostering informed and empowered communities. né*.
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Financial Literacy g
Partnership Programs ®
43
<.
2
The Bank also collaborated with for organizing literacy programs at through various channels. Total
various related parties to amplify different locations, promoting and of 1,376 People benefitted directly
the reach about Banking literacy. development of content regarding from such collaborations.
For that collaboration was done financial and digital literacy

80UBUIBA0S

Milestones Achieved for Financial Literacy

92]

Provinces No. of Individual :
Covered Programs Beneficiaries 2

7 64 4,100+ :

' (/2]

Participants reached: Women, Entrepreneurs, Farmers, Youth & Students o
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Environment & Sustainability

Nepal's unique environmental
challenges, including climate change,
glacier melt, deforestation, air pollution,
and inadequate waste management,
demand responsible corporate action.
Recognizing the critical role of the

The Bank organized and
participated in various tree
plantation programs to take
a step towards combatting
climate change. 234 plants
samplings [fruit bearing &
non fruit bearing) have been
planted under the program
by the Bank.The program
was organized on various
locations.

{ Muklinath Bikas Bank

environment in supporting livelihoods
and enhancing quality of life, the Bank
is deeply committed to ecological
conservation and climate resilience.
Bank integrates environmental
considerations into its CSR strategy

to create maximum awareness
regarding the matter. Different unique
initiatives are made under this key area
of focus for impact.

The Bank also wanted

to create awareness
regarding the textile waste,
had contributed for the
donation box for clothes
collection. For waste
management, Bank also
handover dustbins to local
organizations.




To raise awareness about climate
change and global warming, Bank

had organized Muktinath Art for Earth
Competition 2081 for students from
Class 8 to 10. The competition was
aimed This competition focused to
engage the community and encourage
participants to express their thoughts
on these critical environmental

issues through art. It was specifically
dedicated to sync with two of the
Sustainable Development Goals(SDGs])
to create awareness on Climate Action
(SDG 13), Affordable, and Clean Energy
(SDG 7).

Combining Creativity and

Art to create awareness about

Climate Change

476 students registered to participate
in the competition from all over the

nation while 403 students participated.

A grand competition was organized on
Poush 08, 2081 (Saturday] for all the
participants to come and create their
imagination. Colors and creativeness
filled the 11 event centers where Bank
organized the competition. After the
designated competition time was over,
the art paper was handed over by the
participants and were sent to Central
Office for screening and evaluation.
Bank appointed two very talented and
well-experienced artists as JURY and

a volunteer secretariat to evaluate and
judge the arts collected. On various
criteria, markings were done, and 11
REGIONAL WINNERS were selected.

Among the 11 Regional winners further
evaluation was done and One GRAND
WINNER was also chosen. So overall,
10 REGIONAL WINNERS and 1 GRAND
WINNER were selected an announced-
on Poush 19, 2081. The winners can be
viewed from the website

https://muktinathbank.com.np/award-winners

©

SDGs Covered:

80UBUIBA0S
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Health & Wellbeing

The Bank adopts a holistic approach to
health and well-being. CSR initiatives
include organizing health camps,
facilitating blood donation drives and

Blood Donation Program

The Bank self-organized and
collaborated for various blood
donation drive programs in the nation.
In a program organized by the Bank.
Over 660 blood pints were collected
by the Bank directly and through
collaboration from local clubs and
social organizations.

124 Muktinath Bikas Bank

collaborating with organizations to needed for smooth administration of
raise awareness about critical health health-related institutions.

issues such as cancer.Additionally, the

Bank supports for various infrastructure

181 ¢

Eye Camps & Health
Camps

The Bank also supported for
various eye and health camps

to facilitate good health and
wellbeing of people in remote
areas. Total 2,062 had benefited
from eye camps and 448 had
been benefited from health camp.

SDGs Covered:



Health Related materials and
Infrastructure Support

MBIAIBAQ

Bank has support two provincial hospitals,
one with wheelchairs for easy management of
patients who have difficulty in walking while
availing the medical services, another with
proper seating arrangement infrastructure for

smooth flow of administration that will provide i
relied to patients visiting the hospital. Both &
initiatives is believed to have brought certain g
level of comfort thus increasing the wellbeing %’r_
of the patients visiting the hospital. Bank also =
supported for maintenance of water filter
system to a local organization to supply the
water to many households. Also, Bank handed o
over dustbins for waste collection supporting -
hygiene which directly impact health. e
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WORLD

MEDITATION DAY

*Mindfulness is the key to unlocking peace *
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WORLD
HEALTH DAY Social Media Awareness

Campaign
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Various messages on social
media platforms of the Bank are

W
posted on important days such o
as World Meditation Day, World g.
e Health Day, World Donor Day >,
Day, etc to create awareness of Y
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I Q i Bws B the subject matter. Additionally, S
Bank collaborates with various 74
r'l”m organization for programs to

create cancer awareness.
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Social Projects & Community Development

Muktinath Bikas Bank strives to make aligned with Sustainable Development the best approach to create inclusive
a lasting social impact through self- Goals (SDGs] and are aimed at development for all residing in a
initiated and collaborative CSR projects ~ promoting inclusive growth for all and community.

with government bodies and social community empowerment. A community

organizations. These initiatives are is represented by all, Bank have placed

..............................................................................................

The Bank collaborated with Police The Bank handed over 3D printed Bank also handover over
force & local organizationand prosthetic hands to 5 children : 38 crutches for person with
supported for cameras for better : from various places across nation. disability.

surveillance and security to
reduce crimes.

Bank also supported old age Bank also supported for Bank also installed solar water

homes, orphanages through construction of community heater at old age home for
food materials distribution building of Nepal Red Cross sustainable use of energy and for
and materials needed for Society. the well being of the elderly.

reconstruction for rehabilitation.

SDGs Covered:
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MBI YDA gfe 1 @D & | AU DRISRS J=&,
faRaAGNIAT I IRl AUH & | UM oTechl fAbRicT JR&T
YoIdIES U1 2T §oT FNTGTRDaN AN [IhRE b JuUA IR & a1l
TITAT GAATAED D! ATl JTet AARAD IR AVHEDD! BT I
Jrp! BRI SIgITdTel JTof cadIeN JRDI & |

TR JR&T ATTGEN SIS GG JTei 98 A TUST DG
PRIEIEIE 3iGoTeiel JTof Julicliad! U=l JTRED & | 3T yumedt
YaiaeoT Ufel GIRAEPT & |

S A &foTs JUST ol BRIGR TNl BB BIABISTRSS
TR MENRT & RiEeclsss Jot ol JIREM! & | Bt IA®RA
yaen, WY IARA Y, Lo Pla PRIGR JgecH Erauht qen
MRS T JFULRY LYf&THRUT 3IGTdeT 3N, BIAES B HEATEC
7St J1REDT B | A YUNCHSIE AT I BT AT A Fad
LD & |

8. JITATHY IaRNooldl TAT 316 JITARIN Mo/ anfdiel
JAddoddll

I (oI St aQall AIRUT Jamler YAl WRE IR, Az
Spat TaRIoaild gol olddl {5NahI AUCUS YJol STeadict ArT T
MIAD TR ATSToN IR & | A1, STUed I Sped! rIfTasal
§AGET A Qe §o ufer Acquisition/Merger @I aiiT
IBRICHAD IEDT & | A [ABRA FHA0T IR SaI [&ATaR
JTet ST IUYTH Scb AT AT JTA MU JNgol/JMfdior drfetrs
TIANb [G5o18 |

Y. dATeld JATEIGID RAaATUA I faddrRa

Jsulctad AfNIGEC TR AoTGoNcdids eral qell cIdod! SAlfTaT
@l’% ADATAT CDCJ"|‘U|Q| cIdIAMUa] JMEDT B | Q0TI dlg dAdled
JAFSTSN SIGAN 9,40 STell B aNIES BT GG Pl B | A0
I JUYH BIAARND Balle, BIYRB, &aTal Mgl I I RABIIATS
3Td MARFHAT RZUDT & | Icd IAID! JMED Jdl, JaTd qeu=adl,
W SR (oIS m ol dial ] dlqlulmdw HUlddg SlciRITh
TR Jlof GID dRDI DBAARIGDS oo alfddT el URTTUTh!
BIhIES ModRD Tl AR URITBESEIE Uell JIe e & |

&S MU AT J53/cT I ANAD 85T SIAR & T Fuasia
BRIIES I A 3igoTdiel BRICIESM! IAMTeT I Jaran
MG FoIl JURER T3 BIRTY JRTCDT 8 | BT SBeAs orged
BT MARATD Uol SIoIRITE ADATH JME B IR Jas Bl
T 3rgerdl qer WY CARBATs figda! ol Uehfa e & |
Mo BUAT URY gl GIIdol STaTeN STUat 3o S da [T
JTETIN UAftq AIAAT I NI STUdHT STeIRIThers foreh ot
JIRTD & | BAANEID! e Il TTT Tolls ATATDT g T
3%.’@ aﬁm UIRdlcdal 313‘f [didical UchIRahl [T ar j—\r Iddid
UlcATaoIdol CDI\’E?bcHﬁ(J I>TTcTal JRDPI B | IF (b a.CIJCDI FQBS
THIA! AT U U I 3IGRNIT Fol3al fafdioe] cAqIAMTBIA
SAMAED SdcTdaal JREDT B |




&. AP JaRGIRIca

A oI oot FAIST T JHEGRID! AT FRAIT YIo! BIRIGHAA
ABEAAY @ FrFrarS fB1afE IR & | JAIIS SATT JATAESDT
JASAENGT JTof ar Arelel I JAITDT ST BT A Ja FLA,
JCT T TABEDATS IFADN Jlot bl IRDI & | ATAMID
FAREINICT AJeoE IRATATS IDIFA Ja UL, &5 T goleia
faf3Teel [QENETeN JRATIN JTof UG SabeT fTTDI B |

. IETRAY YIS

D! IAIEEIAS F&, AT T TANT AdTep! JrARAId Uciol
JTat 6T JIaTs ool JraUIyul SehTschl Sl JRDI & | AN Shlscl
JANEEIC fAfdea SEATRIEIC Utd gol Il I JaBIARDab!
JdbcTel I AT JTof 1B | FRB BRICIRS Jobld UfeasT
JMATDT & | 3 UIHIAN Adbeial SUah! Jablactls 3% bIATcrar
3T5eT AT foTapTaIeT ATeTal Jlof I WL DBIATCIIA UBTIal,
31 IMBA Jdbetard! el grievance@muktinathbank.com.
NP, BIdl AMBd Jdbetol TNl Jaars Jlot idl of 09-YQOOTTY, ST
Jaasean RFea! Feedback Collection Form, Customer
Satisfaction Form §Ic Jobldse UNd ol dMEANES I8BT
Bol | FoNg Saftia et 9,838 el J[olAT/JOPARS U TeahIo
QY TTT JGIRIES JSMENGIDT FoaTel IHD B | Sapep! I Jool
SMABIRAD! AT SHBI JAAFE TAT SBDT A BIRIAAGDHAT
JIT IAMTCDI B |

J[GTRAT Yool JMEIBIRITHI fAa=UT GBI AT B! B |

G : SUSUTGN GapIcT
uc : haUch I
BIa of : 09-YQOOTTY
AEEA TFIR  © QLOI06093

&

€. Aaufa YfGdoT (Anti-Money Laundering) ferareor

AU YlGDRUT [o1dRUT Ad et U5, (o AHAD foTepT, MG T

eeRifte RimNIeT FTEd! oifd deNl Hodidicls I D St
SIGRA UTeTall J1¢, M TBIISToN oS eSB! AT ] IR DI
B | IJDHT ScTal BT Sbot BTN 1ol DBIicils adUdhd el
T IS WIBRACTEDD! IS ATl T3l JED UlRdIeT qor
SiguTcTell Sff Q0Tq TR Il BIIleaITdl TAludhl & | A, b
M T A&t URSASTGT I1¢, TEDT B | AU RN (AT
BRSBTS JUAT 3goTdial Jicf Bed BIIE JHEAAII
MENRa Iaarerd yunett (i-care) U=ioT O JN&e e JMEDET
BRIGRES JIgoleial Jlof caazen JIRUdl & | 3eclf[d e
USIAaB) qaRal Dol oY Glauddl ferfdid 3igioTdiel I Siaahl
JaIcTs  ANATS SNaRIAD Jabld dAl SMeidrl ol I IR
DGR IATDBDI FASTdcad Uy fEHRUN GTarRur Al
J166T JRED! & | 3 A FBa AU YRGBT [T ATTcEn
B! UfdeeT qaR I RIK JUS JaITD ATATTS Jabid
ol JRDI B | ScbeT JIATH BRI orall FaIT JRIeT DA aIEDDI
ST JIRIGRE Jlet IF JJGoEN alfeidl Yarel JI& 3Meedl & | A1,
FGTeh! AR it JTef ufdl J1RTD! & |

v, JRATITA JRARAS :

SpeT ITADTT JRIAGICTS Icd 3Td FRcd 3G 3MeadT I 3Moman
RTaDaT AIADIT JIeT qell IUICTAID! JATACTS AT AT I
J&6 T3S SOl Scb Uldiag; IXDT 8 | F>ulctad A Jer Sbale
Jouied BrfES URERT JUT A>Tl I AZADT JRAIETS JG8
J1E S1TeT Scb BEARMNeT I& LD & | Sulet I §b U 316 JTaG
T fSTBIIGBEIC AT AU ST HUDT SN U f618 GTRS TS
Sepcr Quisua dmrafeader J1E ST & | FIADTT TR, AT
IR, URGRIAT Jhol de Seibien Ugd omeIaeh! fawa
TIJEDAAT AN T S cATIAST UG IZDT & |
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Ul Val, 2063 Bl GBI 90t TR D! 3ifdRwe fdazor

(e af 2oTa/TR)

®. [o1d af ol BRISR®! RigaciideT

I>ATcTh JfAID! I Colan Acioel JIRTDT |

[, MG qen oaRifige IRRAREE BIUND BRISRAS Bol IR

{142

R 8¢ AT 3RR

ae 3nffas afan oruTetan! Jafteod siefdesicl Sfioy BRISRN Yedel
gEE Ri5lal JR®T B | 3Mfeb glaer 8.69 HIARITST A gar Arpl
PR 3cUca, fordin, tefeat qer H3if ST<dl UgRT &xae SR BT
fOTdR gol Jdoio] | oI &i5ihl SIoMGNaN SMedhl dalt I 3refdesian
3NMUHT FGE BRI 31l TGN I IICT AR STUDI B | AT s
JIAIRAIRIES TG TEeT il SIYSH SIbF &icd! ST gl goirdiapT
BUF SRIEDT & | IR oy JFUMR [RBHI AIAT &F U I & |

oo 3ivd JEREIT 8.06 UM IR TN SUSNHID! 56D
3CCT AN JUSHT GTaGBIeT JGARTh IS OI JeR GIACST | Jfehron
JoqeTol IBRICIHD IFSDT A A1 <M FgT AT FTa IAR S YTt
TRIEAAT TR S UfSl, AJST b3l UAdIRaT SN Jfes camsel Jdol |
fANWUT 3MYATE Q.2 UARIAST gl §aT S 93.3 UfdRTdeT X fornfd Ta.c
UlRIeT i aTEchl 8 STAchl hIRUT AN 3o areidch! 3t
oGl | 3IMEIs AR STEThIeT AIDIRT UM I LT [FeTah! gufer
HGoT JIUDIST ST SAER UfeT SHIIRT: TS Il & |

SreaRiffeer TR UldT gairdiguf RAEd! & | UgT srefdosiazd gl
TR A ITa AN I, -IISToNfs dolld, Sloar e AR
IRTAT 3 I TR R oaR AR -Teldet RATacAT araaR UIclTs
S TSP & | T A MAT-57afR aIGRBd! o AT
3MT-1370f} FADERD! J[HIoN Aoqeiolal Gald At Jiof SRJT
DR E |

TGOl AR e TS aT i cdT SUGIRE I SIS JTef, Uof aQRIe!
JIFGEIST JTTGTD AlANAD! ERUT
I>ATcTh JfAAD! I Colan Acioel JIRTDT |

BHIYoND! FANDID al CATANAD JFEOE

I BT Spet 3ol PRITR RIFAR T MU IgpIDr T
AE DD fRifdiesl IRBRT, IRINBR] I, ATANABG ud
SANTE UAGBIoTES, ABID JT-IIARS, Hoaifed g AIAED,
AMrcd A Jigpicelicl AIA, BB &5l I OIIAD (IBIIEDIN
AWl da cUGANAD Adeetl BIST IRG 2l AR IS
DT & | o IR SHd! IGAII UcdeT Jgd Jlof fAfdeet
AT AT UGRIBES, el qen forsiae el dacias, Jdol
UIAE] UGRIh ShdUeiad CIITRI Adl UGRIc dhdUoigduT Ufel JaioasT
IR 3 BT BRfES I IZDI & |

AT IS STEDT FIB I AT BRI

I BT Shdl I>dlcicd AAA & Sfolich! UlAfolftled I§ehT & |
JfAAI AIAUH YAREGTHD! THAE 3 Toll, JdJENRUT JAREIGTDT
TABEIC Q 36T X 9 3ol TATeH J5UICTh IR NPT & | BITe! J>ATTD
JARITS [&.F. 20T WY 9T I JdUool SUD! AH BT SBDI 90
3 eI AEMRUT AeiieT Bolie TR DI R |

8.3, 2000 AT HTAUT g I IdTcTch Afdifde! BFTh IR I FadeH
I>TICTRA 9 FAGYoER A DT 8 a¥edI BRidIT It uaTd
ff QOTA HTAUT Y I SADI AT AlAADT 333K JodDaIE 9
3 HAR TS TadeH I5AADBD! JUST fGrITh IMRTDT & |

1 faciatier 3Eer 9 AR 3T epIcTal Al 20T HIJel 29 I1d
MBS cARBIT BRUGT Sl Jsdleichbddl BUA & B Jlel
3Tt} I TATAIRT 3GRIE JIS, BTl Rgjeivadl I Ay 20T
BIOJET 9 I ST IAAdD Al 9 (¥ UBIRT FAeciclls St
SIATEDT ST STEAETHT JUS J5UIcTd foIIh IR DI & |

U [ABIT TBD! IAABRDD! [AART foigel SIS IKDI & |

ot uG foryfdra farfa
9 RIS YDIRT diced JrEre Q9/99/0Ta
it GRS HAR IS F>AIcTh QT/0RQ/R0TO
# RA UATG AFATeT A>dloTch QCT/0Q/R0TO
4t fire dgaTR <At JI>TTAD QT/0Q/Q0TO
9t IR 255 (PrS=e) J>AICTD QT/0Q/R0TO
it I PAR 3T IadcH IdUCI  9Y/08/20TA

. DRIGRETE 3R Ul 7 TRIEE

Yoo de A ITAGID! BRISRAS [Afdfool JoaRd del digd
deasdel 3RR IR IRDI go® | fARW I AIRY dedddl BueT
1ot 3I0TRS T IG5 AT RIS (STBIIKHT SfAIIT cATT AR
UGS UaTd URY IZHT §oal | A . A SR Uddget nffas
SAIAD! BRUTS RIB GRAID! &ald, B3l onel, I RIS
ol SRATD! & |

MedR® BRIGRDI (AAA [Afal gol Adkor fAfIer Tamfad
SNRIGTES 3ol oifdel Scp TATIAST Ja1oT I ABHY IZDI & | A
UBR BT NRAAEDD! Ud 3igfdiier I ATl SAGT AT Tl GIAGNTBIUT
JTet AfdTeel dgoTd IRTaT I BIFHARIZS AIfHEd! & |

. CTATIIGIT YA GoToN agol DB 301 U T8 Al JUR J5UCID

JAADT UABHATRR

U B BB A>TUCIDD! Sigeddll JISeT U ST HIULIEIT
JIMATST 3MGaR®D STAUIGU [FSOIT TIR IR DI STAULIET
A COTATS STEXRIST JTT SITAD JUSHT Ui col A>UTAD A JHer
UQT O1f JIEE | SMGART qaT AR CTAUNIGUI! hoTal &A1 U Thl
FE T DBITEIEIS Ao STLIF TGN T 5hafall, qcahlc Jrd
SleTe Mg JaR IT AT YeTIuT JFarafties J1R68 | IALT JeR IR DI
TSN SIATLE WAIGeIDT UASTRAN JHT AL Il IMRSE |
BT I Jeol X I JNFR UfAdT F& T BT Bl Ul
B3l | Jdod BRI I B JTe] LD BERDAS (o afeid I
JPUDT & | AW JFTGEH AMAT SIAGI AT o1 Aol e &
afol AT AT JER 1S NSIZDT & |




. T8N SISWBs JTel [AWBIRY JNREDT IHd

.9,2T, Y82, 0Y/-

. AUR B STEDT 8T8 A ST AR I, TITAT JWURDT 31Ed
oI, AR IR B Gejetoal oMY Al SUd BIUeior Wtd IR DI
SIS IBaT I TALAT AR B STEUR A1 AR {56 I Bauoiar
Ut DR IGHdT T SBA STedT JAEUT I bl IRDI 818
JD! JFaur

I BRI el 31.d. Q0TI/T T Tgof Ufe AR 6 IR BT B |

. fAord e afam el I IYD! JEID BIUGID! BRISRD

I X A a5 af T areaen IxET R JoREcdwal
I By S el IJD! IFID BTl YOIl (a0 I i
WA COIIN Be WUSAT 3o\ JIRUDI & |

. OISl qoll cIAID! IBNID DIUcTA 3Mfd afdn JdUool IR DY

19 ORIGRAES I A ARG HIUNd! BRIGRST MeDT Tgor
gicayl uRader

U AT SdBer 3. Q0TIY/TR T G Sepg BRITRES IR DI
I Al e I U Ao WUSEHAN el JIRUMDT & |
I RADBRI SBD! IFNID BTN Jpelel AT a1 UfdT el
TIGARID! GRIRT 315 IXT BRI BRISRES JIg LD & | 35
TIAMCHAD! IR BRIFS USHITAT TATIATS, AIADT URTaAL,
RIS yeanigfdl, IR IBER 3T (oThIIel qoll fsh Usetid, 3
IR DT e | I AT dgol AFcayul URad el areaT da |

. o anfes afan BIUGID! MR ITRECIFIS BEUGIETS
IUCTEE! IRTEDT FGTBIRT
DA FASCDT |

Rora i afen dUsior J>UAD TNl UGIIDRIGEET AU
IURD TAMTCAD! AU I HIUHD! IR DBRISRI IIES
JcooT IZDI o8 W JISoEST fOPIFIEIc DHIUolal Utd IR DI
STIoTBRY

BE ST |

. foTa 3N afan DaUsiioT Fdelota FFEDIAIRDA Tgol I>TICID
TA BID! SBIDOD SIAGRDI ARG IATFDI TR JUGTEE
IRISED! FTBRIDB IRRT

BE FeTEd |

. @Il TS AR MBS ARG IRD &¢I T AR
JRG TGP BRUT, A AYRDT AXA T [T Fod qA A7
IR ARG IR UG HIUoHeT Jehion IR DI IHd

WBIUSicT Mol YR M JRE IRDT B |

. 3TGAR T [GTIGIUT UTieT &TE G G8Te! I 8T8 81 Arcdl g e
I [dmrg E'dacﬂ [oIAAD [oIidbIEIaDeT dldb I, a.ld.')ﬁ‘ &IoICBT Ididioal
JFARIEHC! ICAHE HNNAYDT I 3Nl SSARBC! YNABRT &RATDI
MGAR D (BTN YIS oM I SATAR A ] IR BT & | Sl

&

JTGEICHds ST Jaf T T AsANcTas AlAfAeT fAldTceT AT
3MGAR T fGTIGHUT JUNeAich! 3goTaial N1 JeRTCoich bl AT
JopId (ol IRDI & |

I>UADESD!  JASIDCAd JToe JIRUDT AAAFD, AT AT
3loaoid JIoeT STUdT SUANARD, [Afdice fAaTIT I fePIESeTS AlfcpudD]
SIFHa, BIATAIRDD! TR JITGT, DB 1375 UfeT [AfdieaT UG
Y GIFIHARNDT BAARNGDAS AIfBYDI DBId, DA I JMTBRESCT
fe1cs I F>TIcTolels Fast I LMET UeTol Jgjad! A el Tuteiian
URGRIAN T3l Y JIRTDT & |

1Y, AILATHT (31 ATED, AR D SNARD, BIRIARIES I URUEDD]
UIGTGTT 378 GTeTedh Sifd JTet AoTaalcaTas AT TR IR TP & afol o7e
JR®I JARATHI BN cAAIATST AAg JT qll SGIcbI<T 3M3al
YUkl [T J1RED & |

. foTa anffas af a1 dget cuaTeNuel W @GR

BN A (A Srory SR D)
DRIfea Jsareial Jd
T AT I

1. 9,80Q,8TR &0/~
;. T39,900,0°C/-
1D, Q&0 ¥TR &3T/-

. CIANSIET JMMADT ASIARBD! olidact, folPigdel Ud IR DI

IR TSI, STaT el JrEn, Ar At IR D DI BRETAID! G
T A AT T3oT JobId UM 7E AT a0

it uG dow s 3uRafa/me
=) dob J==
9t RIS Joe A IAFB 90,000/~ a/9
9 3N PAR M JABFB ©0,000/- ©/©
S GIRINUT PR 6 AT ©R,000/- T/T
ECE 9,42,000/-

3T, Q0TY/TR N AU AHAD! IoB T Tedhd TADI &
I JMARDT USRBRIGRS o ol dlud dael . 9,49,000/-
HIe JIRTMDT & | AT NMedRdB IR [ASoTdT afids
o Ao T IR AE TGS AMedRDB TR DBEIAS
DBRIGRDT & I i JTef URTIciel JTof, SUlct I Scb el AR
TR QBT UIIACeIa! SIEINIGl I fAReTNuT JTef, SfapaT offdy
foTIgT el A>TTctol ATTGEN T8 IR bl DldT HRIFDD! YoRIact bl
JTef, Tl BILNES URTIST Jlol, JERICHD JIBARS A>ACID
JAY BT AT AGITTS (o1, e Ror TATIA IZI B | A, orure
I B A TR TR REddT Ufddes 3R R Buat
BAGA IR F>UICTD AMHACTS MAAD Jobld Gedl & | T
fUaH! JYobld SUR TAAIAGT! IR DI JEREBD! U AR UATTR
a1 X ArepT 3rEAE Jlof IR B |

JUARECA aT RIS SIBTDDT SNAGR al 31T AcTIol XD B, THIUon
al AT ATAGT TBIUSNCATS TgoT T §obidoT St 81 A I
BE DT |
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G F5IeTaD, YEGH A5TICTaD, BB YA Tl UGIIBRIGDaTS a[eoon JNREm! WR M, 8Tl qe JAEnD! e

H>ATTDHD! ol uG do® oran () uRReAfda/de do® A=A

S IR 5T GBIt SrEre Q,80,000/ - 9&/9&

9t RAdT YhIRT dicet 3EE 9,34,000/- Q/R

i GIRTAUT HAR IS I>TTCTh 3,3C,000/- QG/QG

S IR UATG STt A>AIAD 3,3T,000/~ Q&/%

9 fAiaiG TR e I>TATCTD 2,Q,000/- 23/

9 AT IS (BTSN I>ATAD 960,000/~ Q0/2%&

9 QATIHIoER A Iade A>ATAD 98,000/~ /3

it 31T HaR 3rairef Tadosl J>ATAD 2,9%,000/- /33

SCEil 9Q,3Y,000/-

3. QOTI/T TN IBWH ST TAJY A>TUICTDHERETS et B.9Q TIRA 3Y FIR T ARG, SfHABIST, SoCI0IT, UHUBIEHT TAT 36 Wd ITBU . © I
©8 B3R Y A TBloN JMRED! B |

U U BRI SfEmaes alids JUeT Uelel JIRTE! MRHMID, o/l B, AURECIESe! FIobloTal siast I&D TISIRIDI IDa

A JEEES 3. 98,429,Q98/~
. o gfaen §. Wl 989 FSST6T JFUR [RG AT 56l IR DT HRID! a0
I 35 afan ST ddUCT Ve, Q063 BT GBI 989 SN JFURY
A IMRId doedel I 3. &O,00,000/-
JRE Tl &6 TRDT Fel |
Q. oTdl IBA aiffes B. 30,00,000/-
3 YT arfes . 600,000/- 8. ST 90y SN JITaE DIUGT & STEcT BRISRD! Aa0T
8. o .6,90,000/~ Y JFoEN AT A cp U Gorn! [ AR UIehT SIcal 3oeid
Y. mda de 3.9Q,T9,Q36/82 JIRUD & |
& T figTaUd  3.3,09,000/-
PR .04,000/- d. I Vo deN Ualdd Digel Solioiel Ialcicd AloTaddl U Geran
C. ER fdeT dua 3.§00,000/- ¥ auﬁfmﬁ@r

ﬁ Ulddcalchl [didical AUSED AT 3cei 9 MBI |
3.CO TTIRA JJITh! I, TTeIh, Sotlal,

Q YAl IS IR, didiad Jd AR JaT Al

——- T 3T NAIAD TRIED
YT Ul T WBlaiel SANMIG JsaICTh AMANADT WA ST JE3g] Uot
0. o e IRARID et [ 3o > Gl IR e & |
5 U
W od] [ddURD UlddGaldil 3ceTd 1
Q.  37AIY ol JEET  B.YQ,8,QY/-
Q.  gHcal diam 3.2Y,00,000/-

Q3. JIWEiugR @lel  3.9,00,000/-
TGS U el .3 Y00/, AT ACESA
ST TN 3o 900 SHIIRTBI 8RR, 36 ACEBHI YO
arar SIRBT SR, AT doIl AT et
IR, ARG AW RS AR |

Q8.
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fErdiust Gaf den foredrere forRietactl, 2003 @Y 3TeRy-ay

(f3TraT 6 TP JUMSIIST 2 JHIT JSTISEd)
9. I>UICTED AfAeIDT Uidcol & I qAT FAAES

I URAAGIAIT ToTool TR |

2 TR D! UdceT

I UGN Actoel IR |

3. CIATTNEUT STedDY AT faa=ur
TRAGI, St TTlT SHCFATeT, G016 Yallg faeRuT el JJalsed SiIdieD
I UAACaIAIT Teioel JIREDT |

8. Igoll PRAE JFeoEl AT

. J1d 3Mcs a¥a Scbot qAT SdHBT RIBE Ao ATANAD
PRITR FFEGEN el Siieh 3o el GRAD! |

. Spd! JTAUD aT J5dlcicbet al JLAUDH dl J5UICTBD! (DL
YT foTIaTan! SIarl a1 WISIEIST SIURTET JRaDT ATTGEST el TR
&TeaB! Tgol ST UILd GIaTedhT |

J1. g0l AIADH a1 J>TTAD [ADg M RN TRDBI ATTEST
JET GRR ATETT ol SEIcEISY UL S1aTeadl |

Y. IOIST AIATDT JUR BRIER AT YIB! &auT
TAGLATUGID! ENRUT
U BRI SHDT IUEX oUlcT ICh TaAUoIIN JRRd TS
ST RIAIUST SISehl IAGTA Fooll TRe! (Gl IRDT Fod
TAGH BRIER 7S IKDT B | IR BRIGRS gol 3aR Teld
Jooll S31ReT GTeff0T IR T F<l 315jBU gol STUdbIeT AT JFTGEIST
TAGLASIH! EMRUN AT IHDT |

[, 1 a¥eBT SAAD BUI JAIDT [T
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Independent
Auditor's Report

AP A.P. & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited (hereafter
referred to as the "Bank") and its subsidiary (hereafter referred to as the "Group"), which comprise the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements including a summary of significant

accounting policies and explanatory information (referred to as the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
consideration of report of other auditor on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of subsidiary and based on consideration of financial information on separate financial
information of the associate provided by the management, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
Ashad 32, 2082, its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Qur responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal's (ICAN's) Handbook of Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Nepal, and we have-fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

1. Identification of non-performing assets (NPA) on Loan and Advances and assessment of
impairment loss allowance based on expected credit loss (ECL) and Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB)
Unified Directive on Loans and Advances (Refer note no. 4.35, 4.6 and 4.7 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements)

Key Audit Matters How our audit expressed the key audit matters

As at Ashad 32, 2082, the outstanding | Our audit approach included testing the design,
balances of Loans and Advances granted by | operating effectiveness of internal controls and
the Bank agaregated to Rs. | substantive audit procedures in respect of income
102,404,106,650 and the associated |

House No :27-1, Kandevata Than, Kupondole, Lalitpur, Kathmandu Valley, Nepal
Phone: +977 (1) 4102740 | Cell: +977 9851170987, Email : info@apna.com.np, Website : www.apna.com.np
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‘How our audit expresseg.l_.‘.tﬁe_;ltéy audit matters

impairment loss allowance recognised in
the books aggregated to Rs. 3,558,930,146.
The impairment loss allowance s
recognised on credit exposures as the
higher of total ECL calculated as per NFRS
9 and existing regulatory provisions in
Unified Directives.

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model specified
under NFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’.
carve-outs issued by ICAN on NFRS-9,
Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines,
2024 issued by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB} and
relevant prudential norms issued by the
NRB in respect of income recognition, asset
classification and provisioning pertaining to
advances (hereinafter referred as "NRB
Directives") involves exercise of judgement
by the management in estimating the
expected losses and income.

The ECL methodology requires
management  to  apply  significant
judgement in estimating expected losses,
considering factors such as Probability of
Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD),
Exposure at Default (EAD), staging of loans,
and expected drawdowns. Both
quantitative indicators (such as days past
due, portfolic behaviour, historical default
trends, macroeconomic variables, and
recovery rates) and qualitative
considerations (such as the nature and
credit quality of exposures,
macroeconomic correlations, probability
weighting of scenarios and applicable
carve-outs or regulatory guidance) are
factored into the computation.

In view of the significant management
judgment around  determination of
impairment loss and the complexity of the
ECL model, we determined this to be a key
audit matter.

recognition, asset classification and provisioning
pertaining to Loans and Advances. In particular:

Our audit procedures related to the allowance for ECL
included the following, among others:
s Assessed the Bank's accounting policy in respect of

We evaluated and understood the Bank's internal
control system in adhering to the relevant NRB
Directives regarding income recognition, asset
classification and provisioning pertaining to
advances.

We analyzed and understood key IT systems/
applications used and tested the operational
effectiveness of relevant controls, including
involvement of manual process and manual controls
in relation to income recognition, asset classification
and provisioning pertaining to advances.

We checked advances to examine the validity of the
recorded amounts, loan documentation, examined
the statement of accounts, indicators of impairment,
impairment provision for non- performing assets, and
compliance with income recognition, asset
classification and provisioning pertaining to
advances; and

We evaluated past trends of management judgment,
governance process and review controls over
impairment provision calculations and discussed the
provisions made with senior management

loans and related ECL provisioning for compliance
with NFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' and its carve-
outs,

With the assistance of auditor's experts, verified the
appropriateness of the methodology and models used
by the Company and assessed reasonableness of the
assumptions used within the computation process to
determine the impairment loss allowance as per the
requirements of NFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and
ECL policy of the Bank,

Tested, on a sample basis, the completeness and
accuracy of the source data used;

Evaluated the reasonableness of the assumptions and
judgements involved in management overlays
forming part of the impairment loss allowance, and
the related approvals;
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Key Audit Matters

How our audit expressea'.\'tlll'le ke'}'-}:_é'udit matters

s Evaluated the adequacy of presentation and
disclosures in relation to impairment loss allowance
in the financial statements.

Our Result: We considered the identification of Non-

Performing Advances and their provisioning to be

acceptable.

.2. Information Technology Systems and Controls Impacting Financial Reporting

Key Audit Matters

How our audit expressed the key audit matters |

The Information Technology of the Bank is
complex and involves a large number of
independent and interdependent IT
Systems used in the operations of the Bank
for processing and recording a large volume
of transactions. As a result, there is a high
degree of reliance and dependency on such
IT systems for the financial reporting
process of the Bank.

Appropriate IT General Controls and
application controls are required to ensure
that such IT systems are able to process the
data, as required, completely, accurately,
and consistently for financial reporting.

We have considered this as a key audit
matter as any control lapses, validation
failures, incorrect input data and
inaccurate extraction of data may result in
inaccurate  reporting of data to
management, stakeholders, and regulators.

Other Matter

We conducted an assessment and identified key IT |

applications, databases and operating systems that was

relevant to our audit and identified Central Banking

System (CBS) and Treasury System primarily as relevant

for financial reporting. Our audit approach was based on

Information Technology Guidelines 2012 issued by NRB

which involved testing of design and operating

effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive
testing as follows:

s Obtained an understanding of the Bank's IT control
environment, IT policies and key changes during the
audit period.

+ Reviewed the design, implementation, and operating

effectiveness of the Bank's General IT controls over

the key IT systems that are critical financial
reporting on test check basis.

Tested key automated and manual business cycle

contrals and logic for system generated reports

relevant to the audit on test check basis.

+ Reviewed the IS Audit Reports and discussed with IT
teamn on compliance to key IS Controls.

Our Result: We considered the information technology
systems and their relevant controls to be adequate.

We did not audit the financial statement of the subsidiary whose financial statement reflect total assets
of Rs. 1,037,130,016 as at Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), total revenues of Rs. 102,851,999 and net
positive cash flows of Rs. 413,979,836 for the year ended on that date as considered in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Management.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements in so far as it relates to accounts and disclosures
included in respects of this subsidiary is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Financial Statements also include the Group's share of net profit of Rs. 22,339,850 for
the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements,
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in respect of one associate whose financial information have been provided to us by the Management.
This financial information is unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion
on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included
in respect of this associate, and our report, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is based
solely on such unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management, this financial information is not material to the Group.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The management is responsible for the other information presented in the Bank's Annual Report including
the report of the Board of Directors. The annual report, including the report of the Board of Directors,
is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. Our opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for.the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
override of internal control,
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. |f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. :

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Report on the other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. The Consolidated Financial Statements
have been prepared in the format prescribed by the Nepal Rastra Bank’s Unified Directives no. 4 and in E
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2063 and Section 59 of the Bank and Financial 5
Institution Act, 2073, and are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Bank, and the accounts Q
and records are properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws. We have not come across o
any accounting fraud so far as it appeared from our examination of the books of accounts. g-
=3
To'the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit,
we observed that the Bank has taken actions for protection of the interest of depositors and investors,
the capital fund and risk bearing fund were adequately maintained; loans have been written off as .
specified; the business of the Bank was conducted satisfactorily, and the Bank's transactions were found
to be within the scope of its authority. We did not come across to the cases where the board of directors .-
or any director or any office bearer of the Bank has acted contrary to the provisions of law or has caused o]
loss or damage to the Bank or committed any misappropriation or violation of directive of o
Nepal Rastra Bank, 3
S
]
Al 2
| » @
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3 =
A.P. & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 25091BCAQ0784x2nYe
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal g
Date: September 16, 2025 (Bhadra 31, 2082) S
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As on 32nd Asar 2082 Figures in NPR
Note Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalent 41 7.210,366,692 3.382,291,381 6.583.139,582 3,134,539,704
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 42 12,874,425,202 9,606,142,194 12,874,425,202 9,606,142,194
Placement with Bank and Financial
Institutions 8 ) ) ) )
Derivative Financial Instruments 44 - - - -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 170,818,862 102,940,286 - -
Loans and Advances to BFls 46 1,621,933,849 2139,626,534 1,621,933,849 2,139,626,534
Loans and Advances to Customers 47 97,223,242,655 91,907,309,025 97,223,242,655 91,907,309,025
Investment Securities 48 14,609,822,135 14,282,403,355 14,566,721,514 14,249,248,106
Current Tax Assets 49 4,805,862 36,927.739 17184,441 40,722,092
Investment in Subsidiaries 410 - - 244,045,905 244,045,905
Investment in Associates 411 161,723,322 139,383,300 155,550,000 155,550,000
Investment Property 412 461,900,708 465,619,924 428,785,028 432,504,244
Property and Equipment 413 2,107,.915,593 2253,247253 2,101,433,314 2,242,422,321
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 414 11,562,048 12,110,169 10,617,716 11,767,646
Deferred Tax Assets 415 125,877.258 116,305,788 124,762,354 116,115,309
Other Assets 416 627,386,295 739,586,466 568,361,765 666,470,976
Total Assets 137,211,780.,481 125,183,893,414 136,520,203,325  124,946,464,056
Liabilities
Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 417 3.718,026,296 769,621,798 3.718,026,296 769,621,798
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 415,629,581 415,629,581 415,629,581 415,629,581
Derivative Financials Instrument 419 - - - -
Deposits from Customers 420 117335,442,710  109,693,104,367 117430,718,877 109,758,876,134
Borrowings 421 2,083,333 10,416,667 2,083,333 10,416,667
Current Tax Liabilities 49 - - - -
Provisions 4.22 - - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 415 - - - -
Other Liabilities 423 2,462,960,184 2424777199 1,895,658,330 2.314,968,531
Debt Securities Issued 424 1,248,016,742 1,247443,582 1,248,016,742 1,247443,582
Subordinated Liabilities 425 - - - -
Total Liabilities 125,182,158,846 114,560,993,194 124,710,133,159 114,516,956,292
Equity
Share Capital 4.26 7.046,938,049 7,046,938,049 7,046,938,049 7,046,938,049
Share Premium - - - -
Retained Earnings 1.382,459,889 200,590,279 1.354,101,747 194,701,418
Reserves 4.27 3,418,410,902 3,195,076,839 3,409,030,370 3,187,868,297
g%t:Jei‘L‘;ggr':t‘r'b“tab'e L Zgpely 11847808840 10442605167 11810070166  10,429,507764
Non Controlling Interest 181,812,795 180,295,053 - =
Total Equity 12,029,621,635 10,622,900,220 11,810,070.166 10,429,507,764
Total Equity and Liabilities 137.211,780,481 125,183,893,414 136,520,203,325 124,946,464.056
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 4.28 4,200,123,216 3,255,936,461 4,200,123,216 3,255,936,461
Net Assets Value per share 17071 150.74 167.59 148.00

Sanjiv Poudel
Chief Financial Officer

Pradyuman Pokharel
Chief Executive Officer

Binod Kumar Sharma
Director

Bharat Prasad Lamsal
Director

3lst Bhadra, 2082 | Kathmandu, Nepal
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Khim Prakash Malla
Chairman

Saroja Shrestha (Koirala)
Director

Narayan Kumar Shrestha

Director

Umesh Kumar Acharya

As per our report of even date

Anil Paudel
Proprietor

A.P.& Associates

Independent Director

Chartered Accountants



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

&

As on 32nd Asar 2082 Figures in NPR -
Note Group §
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 %-
Interest Income 4.29 11,060,229,590 13,804,588,287 11,048,870,736 13,772,495,922 z
Interest Expense 4.30 6,469,708,845 9,530,877908 6,471,380,952 9,533,154,614
Net Interest Income 4,590,520,745 4,273,710,379 4,577,489,784 4,239,341,308
Fees and Commission Income 431 718,180,524 606,285,343 648,291,957 548,579,782 -
Fees and Commission Expense 4.32 97771738 92,028,063 90,119,934 85,714,934
Net Fee and Commission Income 620,408,786 514,257,280 558,172,023 462,864,848
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 5,210,929,531 4,787,967,659 5,135,661,807 4,702,206,156 E
Net Trading Income 4.33 26,239,212 17344741 9,158,922 8,808,470 i
Other Operating Income 4.34 57,642,528 45,079,485 51,044,730 39,760,934 g
Total Operating Income 5,294,811,271 4,850,391,885 5,195,865,459 4,750,775,560 §'
T ST reversallforloansand 4 35 793,566,535 777014734 793,566,535 776782215
Net Operating Income 4,501,244,736 4,073,377151 4,402,298,924 3,973,993,345 .
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 4.36 1673,485,862 1,581,504,102 1646,265,133 1,555,408,031 py
Other Operating Expenses 4.37 456,675,300 447,063,445 445,922,198 437,040,607 g“
Depreciation and Amortisation 4.38 299,824,064 278,633,243 295,057,896 273,098,632 é
Operating Profit 2,071,259,510 1,766,176,361 2,015,053,697 1,708,446,075 5
Non Operating Income 4.39 1466,664 155,554 1,466,664 155,554 %
Non Operating Expenses 440 65,540,656 26,388,242 65,540,656 26,388,242 %.
Profit before Income Tax 2,007,185,518 1,739,943,673 1,950,979,705 1,682,213,387 =
Income Tax Expenses 441
Current Tax 632,208,873 549,576,078 614,682,731 534,814,985 o
Deferred Tax (14,987,825) (27,815,337) (14,083,401 (28,936,515)
Profit for the Period 1,389,964,470 1,218,182,932 1,350,360,375 1176,334,917 -
Profit attributable to: e
Equity-holders of the Bank 1,376,192,902 1203,471,253 1,350,360,375 1176,334,917 5
Non-Controlling Interest 13,771,568 14,711,679 - - %
Profit for the Period 1,389,964,470 1,218,182,932 1,350,360,375 1176,334,917 N
Earnings per Share
Basic Earnings per Share 1972 1729 19.16 16.69
Diluted Earnings per Share 1972 1729 19.16 16.69 -
As per our report of even date 2]
Sanjiv Poudel Pradyuman Pokharel Khim Prakash Malla Narayan Kumar Shrestha Anil Paudel ué
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director Proprietor o
AP.& Associates <
Bharat Prasad Lamsal Binod Kumar Sharma Saroja Shrestha (Koiralal Umesh Kumar Acharya Chartered Accountants z
Director Director Director Independent Director -8
&
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Consolidated Statement Other Comprehensive Income

As on 32nd Asar 2082

Note

32nd Asar 2082

Group

3lst Asar 2081

32nd Asar 2082

Figures in NPR

3lst Asar 2081

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income, net of Income
Tax

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss

Gains/(losses] from investment in equity
instruments measured at fair value

Gains/[losses) on revaluation

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit
plans

Income tax relating to above items

Net Other Comprehensive Income that will
not be reclassified to profit or loss

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to
profit or loss

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/(losses] (arising from
translating financial assets of foreign
operation)

Income tax relating to above items
Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income that are or
may be reclassified to profit or loss

c) Share of other comprehensive income
of associate accounted as per equity
method

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of income tax

1,389,964,470

49,509,809

(31,455,289)
(5,416,356)

12,638,164

12,638,164

1,218,182,932

(25,527,907)

17209,674
2,485,470

(5.822,763)

(5,822,763)

1,350,360,375

49,509,809

(31,455,289)
(5,416,356)
12,638,164

12,638,164

1176,334,917

(25,527,907)

17209,674
2,485,470

(5.822,763)

(5,822,763)

Total comprehensive income for the year

1,402,602,634

1,212,360,169

1,362,998,539

1170,512,154

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

1,388,831,066
13,771,568

1197,648,490
14,711,679

1,362,998,539

1170,512,154

Total comprehensive income for the period

1,402,602,634

1,212,360,169

1,362,998,539

1170,512,154

Sanjiv Poudel
Chief Financial Officer

Pradyuman Pokharel
Chief Executive Officer

Binod Kumar Sharma
Director

Bharat Prasad Lamsal
Director

3lst Bhadra, 2082 | Kathmandu, Nepal

f’-.164‘: Muktinath Bikas Bank

Khim Prakash Malla
Chairman

Saroja Shrestha (Koirala)
Director

Narayan Kumar Shrestha

Director

Umesh Kumar Acharya

As per our report of even date

Anil Paudel
Proprietor

A.P.& Associates

Independent Director

Chartered Accountants



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

&

As on 32nd Asar 2082 Figures in NPR -
Particulars Group Bank §
<
2N BistAsar208l  S9CPSET 3istAsar 2081 2
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 8,966,158,461  11,310,432,603 8.954,799,607 11,278,340,238
Fee and Other Income Received 719,647,188 606,440,897 649,758,621 548,735,336
Dividend Received - - - - o
Receipts from Other Operating Activities 68,699,505 55,289,677 27,633,211 41,434,855
Interest Paid (6,360,333,697)  (9,421,502,910) (6,362,005,804] (9,423,779,616)
Commissions and Fees Paid (97771,738) (92,028,063) (90,119,934) (85.714,934) <
Cash Payment to Employees (1284,261181)  (1,281798,969) (1262735,360)  (1,261,580,704) c
Other Expenses Paid (522,215,956 (473,451,687) (511,462,854) (463,428,849) %
Oparating Bash Flows before Changes in Operating Assats 1489922582 703381548 1405867486 634,006,326 g
(Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets S
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank (3,268,283,008]  (5,874,010,061) (3,268,283,008]  (5,874,010,061)
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions = = = =
Other Trading Assets (67,878,576) (54,321,683) - - —
Loans and Advances to BFls 517,692,685 396,812,736 517,692,685 396,812,736
Loans and Advances to Customers (5,010,395,326)  3,060,705,784 (5,010,395,326) 3,060,938,303 py
Other Assets (20226346.48) (53.917,294) (41,977107) (37,226,277) gn
Increase/(Decrease] in Operating Liabilities 3
Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 2948404498 (1,229,925391)  2,948404,498 (1,229,925,391) @
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank = 199,754,733 = 189,754,733 b
Deposits from Customers 7642,338,343 (6,604,074,565) 7671842744 (6,690,994,821) 2
Borrowings (8,333,334) (8,333.333) (8,333.334) (8,333,333 <.
Other Liabilities (184,287,446 (212,457,209) (636,085,723) (187,832,032 2
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities before Tax Paid 4,038,954,072 (9,676,384,735) 3,578,732,915 (9,736,809,817)
Income Tax Paid (617,221,048) (521,760,741) (600,619,330) (505,878,470) —
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 3,421,733,024 (10,198,145,476) 2,978,113,585 (10,242,688,287)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investment Securities (190,224,579) 8,092,726,242 (157939,185)  7.945,482,069
Receipts from Sale of Investment Securities 5,662,092 5,662,092 5,662,092 5,662,092 &
Purchase of Property and Equipment (154,492,404) (597,468,046) (154,068,889  [595,669,790) §
Receipts from Sale of Property and Equipment = = = = >
Purchase of Intangible Assets - - - - §
Receipts from Sale of Intangible Assets 548,121 3,099,614 1149,930 2,769,670
Purchase of Investment Properties 3,719,216 (176,423,462) 3.719,216 (176.423,462)
Receipts from Sale of Investment Properties - - - -
Interest Received 828,212,040 1,099,177,365 828,212,040 1,099,177,365 —
Dividend Received 15,182,235 7134,549 32,570,441 7134,549
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 508,606,721 8,433,908,354 559,305,645  8,288,132,493 »
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES o
Receipts from Issue of Debt Securities - - - - E
Repayments of Debt Securities - - - - 5
Receipts from Issue of Subordinated Liabilities = = = = o
Repayments of Subordinated Liabilities = = > = 5
Receipt from Issue of Shares = = = = ,%
Dividends Paid (915169)  (32,949,357) - (32949357 .
Interest Paid (109,375,148) (109,374,998) (109,375,148) (109,374,998
Other Receipts/Payments 8,025,883 (37,231,927) 20,555,796 (37.119,896)
Net Cash from Financing Activities (102,264,434) (179,556,282) (88,819,352) (179,444,251)
Net Increase (Decrease] in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,828,075311 (1,943793,403) 3,448599,878 (2134,000,044) -
Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1 3.382,291,381  5,326,084,785 3.134,539,704  5,268,539,748 g'
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash =)
equivalents held ) B ) ) 8-
Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end 7.210,366,692 3,382,291,381 6,583,139,582 3.134,539,704 2
As per our report of even date _cgp
Sanjiv Poudel Pradyuman Pokharel Khim Prakash Malla Narayan Kumar Shrestha Anil Paudel =+
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director Proprietor @
Bharat Prasad Lamsal Binod Kumar Sharma Saroja Shrestha (Koirala) Umesh Kumar Acharya A.P.& Associates
Director Director Director Independent Director Chartered Accountants
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

1

2.
21

22
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Reporting Entity

Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited [The Bank? is domiciled
and incorporated in Nepal under the Companies Act, 2063
on 22nd Chaitra 2062. The Bank received the license to
commence banking operations as a ‘B Class' financial
institution from Nepal Rastra Bank on 18th Poush, 2063.
The bank is a limited liability company having its shares
listed on Nepal Stock Exchange. The registered office of
the Bank is situated at Lazimpat, Kathmandu, Nepal.

The bank’s principal offerings include comprehensive
range of financial services encompassing accepting of
deposits, corporate and retail credit, project financing,
hire purchase financing, micro credit, trade financing,
personal and corporate banking, foreign currency
operations, issuing of debit cards, internet banking, mobile
banking, remittance facilities, dealing in government
securities and treasury products, agency services and
others ancillary services permitted by the Banking and
Financial Regulation Act, 2073.

The Bank has Muktinath Capital Limited (formerly known
as Vibor Capital Limited) and Muktinath Krishi Company
Limited as its subsidiary and associate respectively.
Muktinath Capital Limited is engaged in merchant
banking business and provides the services of registrar
to shares, issue management, underwriting, depository
participants, portfolio management services and other
advisory services. Muktinath Krishi Company Limited is
engaged in the business of agricultural products which
includes the production, manufacturing, trading and
marketing of the agricultural products.

Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited and Muktinath Capital
Limited are hereinafter referred to as "The Group".

Basis of Preparation
Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis, as the Bank has the resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making
this assessment, the Board of Directors have considered
a wide range of information relating to present and future
conditions, including future projections of profitability,
cashflows and capital resources.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared on going
concern basis and under historical cost conventions
except where the standards require otherwise. The
financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) developed by the Accounting
Standards Board, Nepal (ASB, Nepall and pronounced
for application by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

51/ YF Muktinath Bikas Bank
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The financial statements comprise of Statement of
Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
in Changes in Equity, Statement of Cashflows and
Notes to the Accounts. These financial statements
comply with the regulations of Nepal Rastra Bank,
requirements of the Companies Act and also provide
appropriate disclosures required under regulations of
the Securities Board of Nepal (SEBON).

Reporting Period and Approval of Financial
Statements

Reporting Period:

The Group follows the Nepalese financial year based
on Nepali calendar starting from 1st Shrawan 2081
and ending on 32nd Asar 2082. (16th July 2024 to 16th
July 2025).

Approval of Financial Statements:

The accompanied financial statements have been
approved and authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors in its meeting held 31st Bhadra 2082 and
have been recommended for approval by shareholders
in the Annual General Meeting.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese
Rupees [NPR] which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Bank.

The financial information presented has been rounded
off to nearest rupee except where otherwise stated.

Use of Estimates, Assumptions and
Judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions in the application of accounting policies
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses.Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the
estimation and judgments based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been
included in the relevant sections of the notes wherever
the estimates have been applied along with the nature
and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

Reporting Pronouncement

The Bank has, for the preparation of financial statements,
adopted the NFRS (updated 2018] pronounced by
Accounting Standards Board of Nep (ASB). The NFRS



26.

27.

28.

conform, in all material respect, to International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB].

Changes in Accounting Policies

Accounting policies have been consistently applied
except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

New Standards Issued but not yet effective
The financial statement is prepared applying all the
accounting standards along with carve outs, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN].

IASB has issued certain amendments to the Standards
and the applicability of the new Standards has been
notified for IFRS. However, such amendments and new
Standards become applicable in Nepal only when they
are formally pronounced by ASB-Nepal. The Standards
issued but not yet effective as the date of issuance of
these financial statements are outlined below. The Bank
will adopt these Standards once they become effective.

Discounting

The Group determines amortized cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability using the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
throughout the expected life of a financial asset or

a financial liability to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or liability. If expected life cannot be
determined reliably, then the contractual life is used.

In case where the Group assesses that the transaction
amount of a financial asset or a financial liability does
not represent its fair value, the related future cash
flows are discounted at prevailing interest rate to
determine the initial fair value.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1

3.2.

Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for the following material
items:

Investment Securities

through SOCI Fair Value

Present value of defined
benefit obligation less the
fair value of the plan assets

Employees Defined Benefit
Obligation

Basis of Consolidation

a. Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method in line with the NFRS 03 "Business
Combination". The consideration transferred in the

&

acquisition and identifiable net assets acquired are
measured at fair value. Any goodwill that arises is
tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain
purchase is recognized in profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if
they are related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amount
related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships.
Such amount is generally recognized in profit or loss.
Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at
the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent
consideration that meets the definition of a financial
instrument is classified as equity, then it is not re-
measured and settlement is accounted for within equity.
Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss.

b. Non-Controlling Interest

The interest of non-controlling shareholders is initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests' proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. Subsequent to acquisition, the
carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the
amount of those interests at initial recognition plus
the non-controlling interests' share of subsequent
changes in equity of subsidiaries.

c. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities controlled by the bank.
The Bank controls an entity if it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee.

The Consolidate Financial Statement includes the
financials of the subsidiary from the date the control
commences until the date control ceases. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the financial
statements are combined by adding the like items

of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows of the parent line by line with those of its
subsidiary and eliminating the transaction with the
companies within the group.

d. Loss of Control

When the Group loses control over a Subsidiary, it
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the Subsidiary,
and any-related NCI and other components of equity.
Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.Any interest retained in the former Subsidiary

is measured at fair value when control is lost and is
accounted depending on the level of control retained.

e. Special Purpose Entity (SPE)

Special purpose entities are created to achieve a
narrow and well-defined objective with restrictions
around their activities. Special purpose entities are
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3.3.

3.4.

172

consolidated when the substance of the relationship
between the Bank and the special purpose entity
indicates the Bank has power over the contractual
relevant activities of the special purpose entity, is
exposed to variable returns, and can use that power to
affect the variable return exposure.

The Bank does not have any interest on special
purpose entities during the reporting period.

f. Transaction elimination on consolidation
Intra-group balances, transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in preparing

the Consolidated Financial Statements as per

the provision of NFRS 10- Consolidated Financial
Statement. Unrealised gains arising from transactions
with equity accounted investees are eliminated against
the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in
the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Cash & Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent comprise short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value and carried at amortised cost.

The cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
cash flow statement include cash in hand, balances
with banks, money at call and money market funds
and financial assets with original maturity less than 3
months from the date of acquisition.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

a. Recognition

The Group recognizes financial assets and financial
liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets

and liabilities are measured at fair value on initial
recognition. Transaction costs in relation to financial
assets and financial liabilities, other than those carried
at fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL), are added to
the fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs in
relation to financial assets and financial liabilities which
are carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

b. Classification

The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost or fair value based on
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets.

Financial assets are classified under three categories
as required by NFRS 8, namely:

{ Muklinath Bikas Bank

i. Financial Assets measured at amortised cost:
Financial assets that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR') method less impairment,
if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from
impairment, if any is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

ii. Financial Assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income:
Financial assets that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both,
selling financial assets and collecting contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest, are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI).

iii.

=

Financial Assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss:

The Group classifies the financials assets as fair
value through profit or loss if they are held for trading
or designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Any other financial asset not classified as either
amortised cost or FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified under two categories

as required by NFRS 9, namely:

i. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Upon initial recognition, transaction cost directly
attributable to the acquisition are recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent
changes in fair value is recognized at profit or loss.

ii. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
All financial liabilities other than measured at
fair value though profit or loss are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost using
effective interest method.

c. De-recognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the asset.

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.



d. Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 9
@
The Group follow three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy are described below: %'
Level I: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets; 2
Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable or valuations of quoted for
similar instrument in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instrument in inactive markets; and
Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable. —
Investment in Unquoted Equity Instrument are carried cost as the market price of such shares could not be ascertained
with certainty at the reporting date. <
5
e. Impairment o
Impairment has been calculated higher of the regulatory loss provisioning requirement and the excepted credit loss as o
per NFRS 9 in line with the carve-out issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal. g'
I. Regulatory impairment
As per Nepal Rastra Bank's directive loans and advances are broadly categorized into performing and non- —_
performing loans, primarily based on past due period of interest or principal receivable. Pass and watchlist categories
fall under performing loans whereas non-performing loans include substandard, doubtful, loss and restructured/ p
rescheduled loans. The fixed percentage is applied to the loans outstanding to arrive at the impairment allowances. g..
é
The details is as follows: 3
[ Cass | Netwe [GeneraiCriteria[ mpairment | OtherCriterion ] A
l-month davs Loans against fixed deposits, government bonds 2_
Pass Performing 4 1% and gold loans amounting to less than NPR 1 million o
past due b . ’ s
are classified as Pass irrespective of days past due.
Additionally, loans with following indicators are o
categories as watchlist irrespective of days past
due:
- Negative net worth or net loss for 3 consecutive
years except relaxation is provided separately.
) ) 1to 3 months - Debt equity ratio greater than 80:20 @
G PELCIIITE days past due S - Inadequate Debt to income ratio %
- Single borrower exposure of more than 2 billion in 3
multiple banks not through the consortium. E
- Non-performing loans at other banks and financial 2
institutions
- If mandated by the central bank inspection report.
R GF Restructuring and rescheduling of accounts carried
Performing - 5% out in accordance with the circulars issued by the
rescheduled . n _
NRB from time to time.
Sub-Standard Non-Performing SO Bl 25% = o
past due &
Doubtful Non-Performing ks 50% - =
days past due S
Apart from 1-year days past due, accounts with ;
following criteria are classified as bad. )
- Borrower not in contact with the Bank 5
- Misuse of Credit facilities ar
Greater than 1 - Business/Project not in operation
Bad Non-Performing T 100% - Force Loans, Credit card and purchased/
Y discounted bills with more than S0 days past due.
- Loans to blacklisted people
- Diversion of Loan to related person
- Inadequate security coverage over loan
- If required by the central bank inspection report.
e Restructuring and rescheduling of performing
Non-Performing - 12.50% loans carried out outside the scope of regulatory

rescheduled ;
relaxation
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:Exemptions/concessions on above rates exist for projects with longer grace period, loans insured with deposit and
credit guarantee fund and others. Furthermore, additional 20% in addition to existing provision, is applicable for loans
without adequate security and loans with security of personal guarantee only, with some exceptions.
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Il. Expected Credit Loss

Impairment allowances based on ECLs, are
measured on a forward-looking basis using a
broad range of financial metrics and application
of complex judgements. The Bank is required to
recognise expected credit losses (ECLs] based
on unbiased forward-looking information for all
financial assets at amortised cost and financial
guarantee contracts. Expected credit losses are
a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses
-1.e., the present value of cash shortfalls over the
expected life of the financial instrument.

i. Portfolio Segmentation

The bank has adopted a portfolio-based approach
for the development of its credit risk models,
ensuring that the methodology aligns with the
unique characteristics and risk profiles for its loan
portfolios which are as follows:

- Corporate Loans

+Micro Wholesale Loans

- Micro Loan

- Personal (Retail] Loans

+SME Loans

At the reporting date, an allowance is required for
the 12-month (Stage 1) ECLs. If the credit risk has
significantly increased since initial recognition
(Stage 2), or if the financial instrument is credit
impaired (Stage 3], an allowance (or provision)
should be recognised for the lifetime ECLs.

ii. Stage Assessment

The following criteria shall be considered while
categorizing the loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and
Stage 3:

Stage 1

It includes the following:

a. Initially recognized financial instruments, unless it
is purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets.

b. Financial instruments that do not have significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

c. Financial instruments that have low credit risk at
the reporting date.

d. Financial assets for which contractual payments
are not overdue or are overdue for up to 30 days.

Stage 2

It includes the following:

a.Financial Instruments having significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition

b. Financial instruments having contractual
payments overdue for more than 30 days but not
exceeding 90 days.

c. Loans classified under ‘Watchlist' as per NRB
Directive on prudential provisioning.

{ Muklinath Bikas Bank

d. Loans without approved credit line or with credit
line revoked by the bank

e. Loans that have been restructured/rescheduled
but not classified as non-preforming loans as per
existing provisions of NRB directives. However,
rescheduling installment/EMI based loans resulting
in reduction in number of installments due to
prepayments or change in number of installments
due to change in interest rates under floating
interest rates are not applicable.

Stage 3

It includes the following:

a. Financial Instruments having contractual
payments overdue for more than 90 days.

b.The bank considers that the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the bank in full,
without realizing security [(if held).

c.Loan is classified as non-performing as per the
NRB prudential provisioning directive.

d. Credit impaired financial instruments with
objective evidence of impairment.

iii. Significantincrease in Credit Risk

To determine if the risk of default of a financial

instrument has increased significantly since initial

recognition, the current risk of default at each
reporting date is compared with the risk of default at
initial recognition.An asset is moved into and out of

the lifetime expected credit losses category (Stage 2

and 3) based on a predefined pattern obtained from

the historical default rates or delinquency status

of accounts across various internal rating grades,

products or sectors.

The following instances are considered as

indicators of significant increase in credit risk.

- More than 30 days past dues

- Absolute lifetime PD is 5% or more

- Relative lifetime PD is increased by 100% or more.

- Risk rating downgraded by 2 notches since initial
recognition.

- Risk rating downgraded to non-investment grade
by external credit rating agency.

- Deterioration of relevant determinants of credit
risk

- Expectation of forbearance or restructuring due to
financial difficulties

- Deterioration of prospects for sector or industries
within which a borrower operates

- Borrower affected by macroeconomic conditions
based on reasonable and supportable forecasts.

- Modification of terms resulting in restructuring/
rescheduling.

- Credit Quality Indicators determined as per
internal credit assessment of performing loans
which are subject to individual monitoring
and review, are weaker than that in the initial
recognition.



3.5.

- Management decision to strengthen collateral
and/or covenant requirements for credit
exposures because of changes in the credit risk of
those exposures since initial recognition.

iv. ECL Calculations

The measurement of ECL is calculated using three
main components: probability of default (PD), loss
given default (LGD) and exposure at default (EAD).
The 12-month and lifetime ECLs are calculated by
multiplying the respective PD, LGD and the EAD.

Probability of Default

Probability of Default (PD) is the likelihood that a
borrower will default on their financial obligation
within a specified time horizon, usually within 12
months (for 12-month expected credit losses) or over
the lifetime of the loan (for lifetime expected credit
losses]. The 12-month and lifetime PDs represent
the PD occurring over the next 12 months and the
remaining maturity of the instrument respectively.
Observed Default rates are analyzed to identify the
series of trends of the default history for the bank
and statistical methods are used to compute the
Probability of Default (PD).

Loss given default

Loss given default (LGD) is usually defined as the
amount of credit that is lost by a financial institution
when an obligor default. The LGD represents
expected losses on the EAD given the event of
default, taking into account, among other attributes,
the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is
expected to be realised and the time value of money.

Exposure at default

The EAD represents the expected balance at default,

taking into account the repayment of principal and
interest from the balance sheet date to the default
event together with any expected drawdowns of
committed facilities calculated based on Credit
Conversion Factor (CCF) and utilization ratio.

Trading Assets

Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held
for trading] if they have been acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the near term, or form part of
a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of
a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are
recognised on trade date, when the Bank enters into
contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are
normally derecognised when sold. They are initially
measured at fair value, with transaction costs taken to
profit or loss. Subsequent changes in their fair values
are recognised in profit or loss.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

&

Derivative Assets and Derivative Liabilities
Derivative instruments include transactions like
interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign
exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk
management purposes. Derivative financial instruments
are initially measured at fair value on the contract date
and are subsequently re-measured to fair value at each
reporting date. The Group does not have any derivative
instrument during the reporting period.

Property and Equipment

Recognition and measurement: The Group applies
the cost model to all property and equipment and
recognise these at the cost of acquisition plus
expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset, less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost also
include the cost of replacing part of the equipment
when the recognition criteria are met.

Depreciation: The Bank depreciates property, plant and
equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-
line basis from the date the assets are ready for
intended use. Assets acquired under finance lease and
leasehold improvements are amortized over the lower
of estimated useful life and lease term. The estimated
useful lives of assets for the current and comparative
period of significant items of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Type of Assets Useful Life

Buildings 50 Years
Leasehold Properties 8 Years
Computer & Accessories S Years
Vehicles - Two-Wheeler S Years
Vehicles - Four-Wheeler 7 Years
Furniture & Fixtures SYears
Equipment & Others — Equipment SYears
Equipment & Others — Others 2 Years

The Group has not measured the any property and
plant at revaluation model and at fair value.

Assets having acquisition cost less than or equal NPR
10,000 have been written off as an expense in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Goodwill/Intangible Assets

a. Goodwill

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
values of the identifiable net assets acquired in
Business Combination is recognised as goodwill.
Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The Group follows the partial
goodwill method for the computation of goodwill

in business combinations. Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.
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b. Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are recognised when the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably, there is control over
the asset as a result of past events, future economic
are expected from the asset. These intangible assets
are recognised at historical cost less impairment less
amortisation over their estimated useful life.

Amortisation of the intangible assets is calculated
using the straight-line method over the useful life of 5
years.

Investment Property

Investment properties are land or building or both
other than those classified as property and equipment
under NAS 16 - "Property, Plant and Equipment”; and
assets classified as non-current assets held for sale
under NFRS 5 -"Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”. Land and Building acquired
as non-banking assets are recognized as investment

property.

Investment properties are initially measured at

cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently

all investment properties are reported at fair value
with any gains or losses in fair value reported in

the statement of profit and loss as they arise. No
depreciation is charges in investment property as they
are not intended for the owner-occupied use.

. Income Tax
Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred
tax.

a. Current Tax

Current tax is the income tax expense is recognized in
the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it
relates to items recognized directly in equity or other
comprehensive income in which case it is recognized
in equity or in other comprehensive income. Current
tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland Revenue
Department in respect of the current year, using the tax
rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of prior years.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the balance sheet and the amounts attributed to
such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that

future taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

{ Muklinath Bikas Bank

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected
to apply in the periods in which the assets will be
realised or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates

and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are offset when they arise in the same tax reporting
group and relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority, and when the group has a legal right
to offset.

Deposit, debt securities issued and
subordinated liabilities

a. Deposits

Deposits by banks & customers are financial liabilities
of the Bank as there is an obligation to deliver cash

or financial assets back to the depositing bank or
customer and are initially recognised at fair value, plus
for those financial liabilities not at fair value through
profit and loss. The transaction price is considered as
the fair value for measuring the deposits.

b. Debt Securities Issued

Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value
less incremental direct cost and subsequently at their
amortised cost using effective interest method except
where the Bank designates liabilities at fair value
through profit t or loss.

c. Subordinated Liabilities

These are the liabilities subordinated, at the event of
winding up, to claims of depositors, debt securities
issued and other creditors. It shall include redeemable
preference shares, subordinated notes issued,
borrowings etc.

. Provisions

A provision is recognized if as a result of a past event,
the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation. The amount recognised is the
best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date, taking in
to account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation at that date. Provisions are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates and are reversed if there is not the
probability of outflow of resources.

The contingent liability are the liabilities for which it is
uncertain as to whether it will become an obligation
as it depends on the occurrence of an uncertain future
event. These amounts are off-balance sheet items

and are disclosed when there is a possible obligation
that may but probably will not require an outflow of
resources.



3.13.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when
the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from
a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of
meeting its obligations under the contract.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to Bank and the
consideration can be reliably measured. The following
specific recognition criteria shall also be met for
revenue recognition:

a. Interest Income

Interest income is recognized as per the Guidance
Note on Interest Income Recognition, 2025 issued

by the Nepal Rastra Bank and carve-out provided by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal. For
all financial instruments measured at amortized cost
and interest-bearing financial assets through other
comprehensive income interest income or expense is
recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) except
for those recognized as per Cash Basis (Incremental)
Approach. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter

period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of

the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation
of effective interest rate includes all charges and fees
paid or received that are integral part of the effective
interest only if considered material. Such immaterial
charges are not amortized over the life of the loan
and advances as the income so recognized closely
approximates the income that would have derived
under effective interest method and are recognized
directly in statement of profit and loss.

The interest income recognised in the statement of

profit and loss includes the following:
Interest income on financial assets measured at
amortized cost calculated on an effective interest
rate method, except for Stage 3 loans where the
interest income has been determined using the
incremental cash approach Under this approach,
for stage 3 or purchase or credit purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income recognized on accrual basis (coupon rate
or effective rate) shall be adjusted against the
movement in accrued interest receivable during the
current quarter and interest suspense at beginning
of quarter and only cash based interest income
during the current quarter shall be recognized.
As per carve out on NFRS 9, the Bank has not
included the fees and paid or received in loans and
advances that are immaterial or impracticable to
determine reliably the effective interest rate and
have recognized them directly as revenue in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.
Interest in investment securities is calculated on
effective interest rate.

3.14.

&

Income on discounted instruments like bills
purchased, documents negotiation is recognized
over the period of discounting on accrual basis
using effective interest rate.

Interest income on all trading assets is considered
to be incidental to the Group's trading operations
and are presented together with all other changes
in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net
trading income.

b. Fee and Commission Income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an

accrual basis when the service has been provided.

c. Dividend Income

Dividend income received from equity shares is
recognized in the books when the bank's right to
receive the dividend is established.

d. Net Trading Income

Net Trading Income includes all gains and losses
from changes in fair value, related capital gain/loss
and dividend from financial assets through profit and
loss. Trading expenses are deducted from the trading
income and the amount net of trading expenses are
disclosed in statement of profit and loss.

e. Net Income from Other Financial Instrument at Fair
Value Through Profit or Loss

Net income from other financial instrument measured
at fair value through Profit or Loss includes all gains/
(losses] arises from the revaluation of financial
instrument at fair value.

f. GrantIncome

Government grants is recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the entity
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the

grants are intended to compensate. Income approach is

followed in recording grant income. Government grants
related to the assets including non-monetary grants

at fair value is presented in the statement of financial
position by setting up Deferred Grant Income.

Grant received towards purchase of fixed assets has
been recognised to asset account. Any depreciation on
the assets, in the income statement will be reduced pro

rata in accordance with grant relative to the asset value.

Grant received as reimbursements of operating
expenses incurred or to be incurred are recognized in
profit or loss as and when the cost is incurred.

Grants related to income are presented as part of profit

or loss under other operating income.

Interest Expenses

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including
deposits is recognized in profit or loss using effective
interest rate method.
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3.15. Employee Benefits

a. Short term employee benefits

The Group's short-term employee benefits mainly
include wages, salaries, allowances, socials security
expenses, bonuses as provided in the law and other
employee related expenses. Short term employee
benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are charged to statement of profit and loss as and
when the related service is provided.

b. Long term employee benefits
Defined Contribution Plans
The contributions to defined contribution plans
are recognised in profit or loss as and when the
services are rendered by employees which the
Bank contributes fixed percentage of the salary to
the Employee's Provident Fund. The Group has no
further obligations under these plans beyond its
periodic contributions.

Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit
plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
bank's net obligation in respect of defined benefit
plans is calculated separately for each plan

by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in
current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted
to determine its present value.Any unrecognized
past service costs and the fair value of any plan
assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield
at the reporting date on corporate bonds, that have
maturity dates approximating the terms of the bank’s
obligation and that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The defined benefit obligation is recognised on the
basis of the report of qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. The Bank recognizes
all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined
benefit plans immediately in other comprehensive
income and all expenses related to defined benefits
plans in employee benefit are expensed in profit and
loss account.

Measurements of the net defined benefit liability
comprise actuarial gains and losses. The return
on plan assets (excluding interest income) and

the effect of the assets ceiling (if any excluding
interest] are recognized immediately in Other
Comprehensive Income. The Bank determines the
net interest expense [income) on the net defined
liability (assets) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period

to the then net defined benefits liability (assets),
taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result

of contribution and benefits payments. Net interest
expenses and other expenses related to defined
benefit plans are recognized as personnel expenses
in Statement of profit and Loss.

The Group provides gratuity and leave encashment
as the defined benefits plans to its employees.

3.16. Leases

3.17.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the

Group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements
in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term

of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low
value leases. For these short-term and low value
leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as
an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior

to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. The ROU assets
are depreciated from the commencement date on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized
cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities
are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to
the related ROU asset in case of any modification that
is not accounted for as a separate lease. Lease liability
and ROU assets have been separately presented in
the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately
presented in the Statement of Financial Position and
interest expenses on lease liability and depreciation of
the ROU assets are provided on the Statement of the
Profit or loss.

Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese
Rupees which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Company. Transactions in foreign
currencies are initially recorded in the relevant
functional currency at the rates prevailing at the date
of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency
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3.18.

3.19.

at the closing exchange rate prevailing as at the
reporting date with the resulting foreign exchange
differences, on subsequent re-statement / settlement,
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as the
gain/losses on the revaluation of foreign currencies.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rate prevalent, at the
date of initial recognition (in case they are measured
at historical cost) or at the date when the fair value

is determined (in case they are measured at fair
value] — the resulting foreign exchange difference, on
subsequent re-statement / settlement, recognised

in the statement of profit and loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in the other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. An amount
equivalent to the net exchange gain /loss during the
year is transferred to/other operating Income.

Financial Guarantee and Loan Commitments
Financial Guarantees are contingent liabilities that
arise out of the contract that the Bank might make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for loss
that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when it is due in accordance with terms of
debt instrument. Guarantee liabilities being the off-
balance items are disclosed if the outflow of economic
resources is probable.

Loan commitment is the commitment where the

Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to

a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form

of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether
cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Bank
has not made payments at the reporting date, those
instruments are included in these financial statements
as commitments.

Share Capital and Reserves

Equity is the residual interest in the total assets of
the Bank after deducting all of its liability. Shares

are classified as equity when the Bank has an
unconditional right to avoid delivery of cash or
another financial asset, that is, when the dividend

and repayment of capital are at the sole and absolute
discretion of the Bank and there is no contractual
obligation whatsoever to that effect. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity
instrument are deducted from the initial measurement
of the equity instruments considering the tax benefits
achieved thereon.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares
classified as equity are recognized in equity in the
period in which they are declared. Reserves are the
allocation out of profit or retained earnings. These are
created as statutory requirement, accounting standard
requirement and bank's own requirement.

3.20.

3.21.

3.22.

&

Earnings per Share (EPS] including

diluted EPS

Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share
(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable
to ordinary equity holders of Bank by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both
the profit and loss attributable to the ordinary equity
holders and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

Segment Reporting

The Bank's operating segments are organized

and managed separately through the respective
department/business managers according to the
nature of products and services provided with each
segment representing a strategic business unit. These
business units are reviewed by Chief Executive Officer
of the Bank.

The Bank has identified three segments namely:
Modern Banking, Small and Micro Banking, Treasury
Operations as operating segments and the segment
report is set out in Notes 5.4.

Segment report include items directly attributable to

a segment as well as those that can be allocated on
areasonable basis. The income, expenses, assets &
liabilities that cannot be allocated to aforesaid segment
or those related to head office are unallocated are
included in Modern Banking. The unallocated items
generally comprise of head office assets, head office
expenses, and tax assets and liabilities.

The geographical segment has been identified on
the basis of the location of the branches in 7 different
provinces of the country.

Investment in Associates

For the purpose of consolidation, the Bank applies
NAS 28 - Investments in Associates. Associates are
entities in which the Bank has significant influence, but
not control, over the operating and financial policies.
Generally, the Bank holds more than 20%, but less than
50%, of their voting shares.

The investments in associates are initially recognised
at cost and increased (or decreased) each year by the
Bank's share of the post-acquisition profit/(loss] using
equity method. The Bank ceases to recognise its share
of the losses of equity accounted using associates
when its share of the net assets and amounts due from
the entity have been written off in full, unless it has a
contractual or constructive obligation to make good its
share of the losses.

Muktinath Bikas Bank *

179:

| 80UBUIBA09 | meiney souewiopiad | uonealn anjep | MBIAIBAQ

suoday Aioinieis

T
5
o
=)
Q,
ol
A
)

o
o
2
(7




i
!?"Annee!.!?seert

1180

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Cash and Cash Equivalent Note 4.1
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Cash in Hand 1,495,601,453 1,334,065,402 1,495,592,368 1,334,058,220
Balance with Bank and Financial Institutions 1160,037.323 398,355,956 533,048,830 150,966,652
Money at Call and Short Notice 1,554,484,316 1649,496,175 1,554,484,316 1649,496,175
Other 3.000,243,600 373,848 3,000,014,068 18,657
Total 7.210,366,692 3,382,291,381 6.583,139,582 3,134,539,704

1. Cash and Cash Equivalent includes the cash, bank balance, money at call and treasury bill with maturity of three months or
less from the date of acquisition and is carried at amortised cost. The cash and balance with BFls are maintained to manage
the liquidity at the branch level. The money at call and other cash and cash equivalents are the highly liquid assets made by
the bank.

2. Cash at vault and cash transit are adequately secured for the physical loss. The foreign convertible currency held in hand
and banks are subject to price fluctuation due to market movement. The Bank continuously monitors and manages the
market risk involved in foreign currency thus they are considered to be exposed to insignificant risks.

3. The Bank entered into a reciprocal loan arrangement with another domestic banks amounting to NPR 3 billion with recourse
and obtained exposure to loans of an equivalent amount from the counterparty banks. As substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the transferred loans were retained, the Bank has continued to recognise the transferred loans under
“Loans and advances to customers” in accordance with IFRS 9 as the arrangement does not meet the derecognition criteria.
Corresponding interbank receivable has been presented under "™Other” section of “Cash and cash equivalents” as the
arrangement has a maturity of less than 80 days, while the related payable has been recognised under "Others" of "Due to
Banks and Financial Institutions” amounting to NPR 3 billion each in the Statement of Financial Position.

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank Note 4.2
Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Statutory Balances with NRB 4,549,614,295 3,353,627,243 4,549,614,295 3,353,627,243
Securities Purchased under Resale Agreement - - - -
Other Deposit and Receivable from NRB 8,324,810,907 6.252,514,951 8.324,810,907 6.252,514,951
Total 12,874,425,202 9,606,142,194 12,874,425,202 9,606,142,194

Other Deposit and Receivable from NRB includes:

Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Placement in Standing Deposit Facility 5,700,936,986 6,250,000,000.00 5,700,936,986 6,250,000,000.00
Placement in Deposit Auction 2,605,087,233 - 2,605,087,233 -
Balances in Foreign Currency Accounts 18,786,688 2,514,951 18,786,688 2,514,951

Statutory Balance with Nepal Rastra Bank represent the cash balance that is required to be held as the Cash Reserve Ratio as
per the regulatory norms. The foreign convertible currency deposit are subject to price fluctuation due to market movement.

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions Note 4.3
Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Placement with domestic B/Fls - = 5 -
Placement with foreign B/Fls - - = -
Less:Allowances for impairment - = - -

Total - - - -
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Derivative Financial Instruments Note 4.4
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap - = - -
Currency Swap - = - -
Forward Exchange Contract - = - -
Others = = - -
Held for Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap - = = -
Currency Swap - = - -
Forward Exchange Contract - = - -
Other - = - -
Total - = = -

Assignificant part of the derivatives in the portfolio are related to servicing corporate clients in their risk management to hedge.
Mostly, foreign currency exposures. However, bank does not have any derivative financial instruments as on reporting date.

Other Trading Assets Note 4.5

32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3l1st Asar 2081
Treasury Bills = =

Government Bonds = = = =
NRB Bonds = = = =
Domestic Corporate bonds = =
Equities 170,818,862 102,940,286 - -
Other - - - -
Total 170,818,862 102,940,286 -

Pledged = =
Non-pledged 170,818,862 102,940,286 - -

Other trading assets includes the non derivative financial assets that are primarily held of trading purpose. The other trading
assets are recognised at fair value through profit and loss and includes the securities, the Group, has acquired for generating
the short term profit.

Loans and Advances to BFls Note 4.6
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Loans to Microfinance Institutions 1,638,293,129 2,165,571,339 1638,293,129 2,165,571,339
Other - - - -
Less:Allowances for Impairment (16,359,280) (25,944,805) (16,359,280) (25,944,805)
Total 1,621,933,849 2,139,626,534 1,621,933,849 2,139,626,534

Loans and Advances to BFls has been carried at amortised cost and includes following accrued interest receivable.

Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Accrued Interest 2,365,110 3,504,266 2,365,110 3,504,266
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4.6.1: Allowances for impairment
Impairment as per NRB Directives

Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Balance at Shrawan 1 25,944,805 33,316,893 25,944,805 33,316,893
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year 16,359,280 25,944,805 16,359,280 25,944,805
Recoveries/reversal (25,944,805) (33,316,893) (25,944,805) (33.316,893)
Amount written off = = = =
Balance at Asar end 16,359,280 25,944,805 16,359,280 25,944,805
Loans and Advances to Customers Note 4.7
Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 100,765,813,521 94,646,727,830 100,765,813,521 94,646,727830
Less: Impairment allowances
Collective Impairment (983,378,005 (1,463,262,532) (983,378,005) (1,463,262,532)
Individual Impairment (2,559,192,861) (1.276,156,273) (2,559,192,861) (1,276,156,273)
Net amount 97,223,242,655 91,907,309,025 97,223,242,655 91,907,309,025
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - - - -
Total 97,223,242,655 91,907,309,025 97,223,242,655 91,907,309,025

The loans and advance to customers are carried at the amortised cost. After the initial recognition, loans and advances are
subsequently measured at gross carrying amount using effective interest rate less the provision for impairment. The loan
administration charges charged from the customer are considered immaterial thus are not considered while calculating the

effective interest rate.

As per the regulatory backstop measures prescribed under NFRS 9- Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024 issued by
NRB, the Bank has measured impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed
by Unified Directives for loan loss provision and total ECL calculated as per NFRS 9. The losses arising from impairment are

recognised in ‘Impairment charge for loans and other losses' in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

471:Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Product

Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Product
Term Loans 47932,722,888 44,928,474,709 47932,722,888 44,928,474,709
Overdraft 2,389,072,321 3.145,601,822 2,389,072,321 3.145,601,822
Trust Receipt/Import Loans = = = =
Demand And Other Working Capital Loans 12,535,985,421 9,338,326,033 12,535,985,421 9,338,326,033
Personal Residential Loans 15,196,352,389 13,918,920,818 15,196,352,389 13,918,920,818
Real Estate Loans 8,675,420,411 7.813,714,410 8.675,420,411 7.813,714,410
Margin Lending Loans 3,722,353,615 2,805,439,551 3,722,353,615 2,805,439,551
Hire Purchase Loans 1,859,671,093 2,165,384,256 1,859,671,093 2,165,384,256
Deprived Sector Loans 3.682,077,298 4,048,834,014 3.682,077,298 4,048,834,014
Bills Purchased - - - -
Staff Loans 976,050,817 843,934,061 976,050,817 843,934,061
Other 2,699,367,540 4,353,538,832 2,699,367,540 4,353,538,832
Sub total 99,669,073,792 93,362,168,505 99,669,073,792 93,362,168,505
Interest Receivable* 1,096,739,729 1,284,559,325 1,096,739,729 1,284,559,325
Grand total 100,765,813,521 94,646,727,830 100,765,813,521 94,646,727,830

Out of total interest receivable of NPR 1,096,739,729 the amount of NPR 75,139,387 pertains to staff's loans and advances.
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47.2:Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Currency

&

Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Nepalese Rupee 100,765,813,521 94,646,727,830 100,765,813,521 94,646,727,830
Indian Rupee - - - -
United State Dollar - - - -
Great Britain Pound - - - -
Euro - - - -
Japanese Yen - - - -
Chinese Yuan - - - -
Other - - - -
Total 100,765,813,521 94,646,727,830 100,765,813,521 94,646,727,830
47.3:Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Collateral
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Secured
Movable/immovable assets 86.360,717.110 82,127724,533 86.,360,717110 82,127724,533
Gold and silver 946,281,376 634,824,558 946,281,376 634,824,558
Guarantee of domestic B/Fls - - - -
Government guarantee - - - -
Guarantee of international rated bank - - - -
Collateral of export document - - - -
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt 699,151,706 953,095,934 699,151,706 953,095,934
Collateral of Government securities - - - -
Counter guarantee = = = =
Personal guarantee 3,704,314,304 4,434,953,368 3,704,314,304 4,434,953,368
Other collateral 9,055,349,025 6.496,129,438 9,055,349,025 6.496,129,438
Subtotal 100,765,813,521 94,646,727,830 100,765,813,521 94,646,727,830
Unsecured - - - -
Grand Total 100,765,813,521 94,646,727,830 100,765,813,521 94,646,727,830
4.74: Allowances for Impairment
Impairment as per NRB Directives Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 1,276,156,273 751,917761 1,276,156,273 751917761
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year 1,348,577,244 550,626,754 1,348,577.244 550,626,754
Recoveries/reversal during the year - - - -
Write-offs (65,540,656) (26,388,242) (65,540,656) (26,388,242)
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency B B B ~
impairment
Other movement - - - -
Balance at Asar end 2,559,192,861 1,276,156,273 2,559,192,861 1,276,156,273
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 1463,262,532 1,203,346,742 1463,262,532 1203,346,742
Impairment loss for the year: - -
Charge/[reversal) for the year (479,884,527) 259,915,790 (479,884,527) 259,915,790
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency _ B B B
impairment
Other movement - - - -
Balance at Asar end 983,378,005 1,463,262,532 983,378,005 1,463,262,532
Total allowances for impairment 3.542,570,866 2,739,418,805 3,542,570,866 2,739,418,805
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Investment Securities Note 4.8
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Investment securities measured at amortized cost 13,899,940,559 13,890,181,038 13,856,839,938 13,857,025,789
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 709,881,576 392,222,317 709,881,576 392,222,317
Total 14,609,822,135 14,282,403,355 14,566,721,514 14,249,248,106

Investment Securities measured at Amortized Cost:

The investment made in government bonds and treasury bills with original maturities of more than three months from the
acquisition date measured at the amortised cost using the effective interest rate and are presented under this head. It includes
accrued interest receivable as presented below:

Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Accrued Interest Receivable 154,039,938 154,045,789 154,039,938 154,045,789

The details of the investment made in these securities are presented in Note 4.8.1.

Investment in Equity measured at FVTOCI

The Bank's investment in shares and mutual fund are carried at fair value through other comprehensive income. The bonus
share received is accounted by increasing the number of shares without changing the cost of the shares. Investment in
unquoted equity securities have been valued at face value. Further, investment in Promoter shares has been valued at intrinsic
value as of latest reporting dates. The details of the investment made in these securities are presented in Note 4.8.3.

4.8.1: Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Debt Securities 4,100,621 13,155,249 - -
Government Bonds 13,856,839,938 13,857,025,789 13,856,839,938 13,857,025,789
Government Treasury Bills - - - -
Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds - - - -
Nepal Rastra Bank Deposits Instruments - - - -
Other 39,000,000 20,000,000 - -
Less: specific allowances for impairment - - - -
Total 13,899,940,559 13,890,181,038 13,856,839,938 13,857,025,789

4.8.2: Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Equity instruments

Quoted Equity Securities 692,060,689 389,127,517 692,060,689 389,127,517
Unquoted Equity Securities 17,820,887 3,094,800 17,820,887 3,094,800
Total 709,881,576 392,222,317 709,881,577 392,222,317
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4.8.3: Information relating to investment in equities
Investment Securities measured Group
at fair value th_roqgh other 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
comprehensive income:
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

MBIAIBAQ

In Quoted Equity Instruments:

Arun Kabeli Power Ltd.
2 equity shares of Rs 100 each - 526 200 370 - 526 200 370
PY: 2 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited

15,000 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY:15,000 equity shares of Rs 100 9629216 9245400 9629216 9480,000 9629216 9245400 9,629,216 9,480,000

each

Himalayan Reinsurance Limited
11,990 equity shares of Rs 100 each HUZASR YR 57

Nepal Insurance Co. Ltd.

21,700 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY:14,000 equity shares of Rs 100
each

- - 10735646 11,064,132 - -

12784,867 14,000,406 12,224,867 12,320,000 12,784,867 14,000,406 12,224,867 12,320,000

uonealn enjep

Ngadi Group Power Ltd.

21,000 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY:10,000 equity shares of Rs 100
each

4,680,807 8372070 3114400 3410000 4,680,807 8,372,070 3114400 3,410,000

Sanima Reliance Life Insurance

Limited

5,992 equity shares of Rs 100 each 2,341,891 2457858 1802875 1,887710 2,341,891 2457858 1802875 1,887710
PY: 3,996 equity shares of Rs 100

each

Suryajyoti Life Insurance Company

Limited

6,001 equity shares of Rs 100 each 2784104 2,680,587 2446845 2281909 2784104 2680587 2446845 2281909
PY: 5,308 equity shares of Rs 100

each

MBIABY 80UBW.I0LIEd

Taragaon Regency Hotel Limited
12,000 equity shares of Rs 100 each 9,840,835 11,353,440 9,840,835 9,684,000 9,840,835 11353440 9,840,835 9,684,000

Mountain Energy Nepal Limited

23,258 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY:19,004 equity shares of Rs 100 12460,095 14,866,281 11617504 11345388 12,460,095 14,866,281 11617504 11,345,388

each

National Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

1,400 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY:3,000 equity shares of Rs 100 690,417 873012 1593270 1785,000 690,417 873,012 1593270 1785,000

each

Neco Insurance Limited

17,584 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY: 3,490 equity shares of Rs 100 11,808,780 12490970 2661998 29817640 11808780 12490970 2661998 2917640

each

9JueUlaA09

Sanima Mai Hydropower Ltd.
2,200 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY: 22,000 equity shares of Rs 100
each

- 1379202 6451200 7469,000 - 1379202 6451200 7469,000

Siddhartha Premier Insurance Limited
10,000 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY: 9,303 equity shares of Rs 100
each

9491700 8403500 8,810,592 7999650 9491700 8403500 8,810,592 7999,650

Chilime Hydropower Company

Limited

880 equity shares of Rs 100 each 327,740 469436 2,048,400 2,325,000 327740 469436 2,048,400 2,325,000
PY:5,000 equity shares of Rs 100

each

suoday Aioinieis

Life Insurance Corporation (Nepal)

Limited

3,817 equity shares of Rs 100 each 3,097,046 3394191 2798800 2876,000 3,097,046 3394,191 2798,800 2,876,000
PY: 2,000 equity shares of Rs 100

each

Sanima GIC Insurance Limited

78,321 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY: 72,857 equity shares of Rs 100 7285700 23887513 7285700 21019245 7285700 23887513 7285700 21,019,245

each

Bottlers Nepal [Terai) Limited
100 equity shares of Rs 100 each 1405440 1280000 1405440 1300000 1405440 1280000 1405440 1,300,000
PY:100 equity shares of Rs 100 each
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at fair value through other 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
COmprehenSlVe Income:

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Api Power Company Ltd.

1,536 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY: 23,047 equity shares of Rs 100
each

322,918 454,533 4,719,500 4,401,977 322918 454,533 4,719,500 4,401,977

CEDB Hydropower Development
Company Limited

1 equity share of Rs 100 each
PY:1,275 equity shares of Rs 100 each

- 2,642 907,826 1477725 = 2,642 907,826 1477725

Himalayan Distillery Limited
16012 equity shares of Rs 100 each 19,558,427 19,799,478  1630,807 1217920 19,558427 19799478 1,630,807 1217920
PY:880 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Rastriya Beema Company Limited*
100 equity shares of Rs 100 each 1,467,699 1511,000 1467699 1349,000 1467699 1511000 1467699 1,349,000
PY:100 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Arun Valley Hydropower

Development Co. Ltd.

10,011 equity shares of Rs 100 each 2224714 2,920,109 2224714 1729188 2224714 2,920,109 2224714 1729188
PY: 8,720 equity shares of Rs 100

each

Sahas Urja Limited

18,230 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY: 3,000 equity shares of Rs 100
each

10,423,604 11667929 1538100 1557000 10,423,604 11667929 1538100 1557000

Universal Power Company Limited
1,899 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY:1,899 equity shares of Rs 100
each

404,012 766,949 404,012 391,384 404,012 766,949 404,012 391,384

Citizen Investment Trust

27803 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY: 20,417 equity shares of Rs 100
each

53261966 55128515 42399,097 39711065 53261966 55128515 42,399,097 39,711,065

Nepal Doorsanchar Company

Limited

25,500 equity shares of Rs 100 each 25,002,165 22,370,385 7557750 6,337,500 25,002,165 22,370,385 7557750 6,337,500
PY:7,500 equity shares of Rs 100

each

Shivam Cements Limited

28,648 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY:11,285 equity shares of Rs 100
each

17669,817 15327826 8225861 5668456 17669817 15327826 8225861 5668456

Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd.
18,222 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY:16,565 equity shares of Rs 100
each

28,730,867 14,085,059 28,730,867 10,253,735 28,730,867 14,085,059 28730,867 10,253,735

Nepal Reinsurance Company

Limited

2,000 equity shares of Rs 100 each 2156,286 2,520,220 6,118,365 3,746,864 2156286 2,520,220 6,118,365 3,746,864
PY: 5,368 equity shares of Rs 100

each

Asian Life Insurance Co. Limited
32,021 equity shares of Rs 100 each
PY: 20,783 equity shares of Rs 100
each

13,741,284 15957986 12100794 12947809 13741284 15957986 12100794 12947809

Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd.
28,295 equity shares of Rs 100 each

PY- 25722 equity shares of Rs 100 36,202,943 21887031 36,202,943 18,597006 36,202,943 21887031 36,202,943 18,597,006

each

Bishal Bazar Company Limited*

500 equity shares of Rs 100 each 3620,000 2691995 3,620,000 2043500 3,620,000 2691995 3,620,000 2,043,500
PY: 500 equity shares of Rs 100 each

Sub-total 314,151,085 313,310,183 241,580,578 209,531,040 314,151,085 313,310,183 241,580,578 209,531,040

In Unquoted Equity Instruments:

Nepal Clearing House Ltd.

23,962 equity shares of Rs.100 each
PY:15,670 equity shares of Rs 100
each

300,000 5,185,137 300,000 3,094,800 300,000 5,185,137 300,000 3,094,800

National Banking Institute

25,000 equity shares of Rs. 100 each 2,500,000 2635750 - - 2500000 2635750 - -




Investment Securities measured
at fair value through other
comprehensive income:

Group

32nd Asar 2082

3lst Asar 2081

&

Bank

32nd Asar 2082

3lst Asar 2081

Cost Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

Cost Fair Value

Reliable Private Equity and Venture
Capital
10,000 equity shares of Rs.100 each

10,000,000 10,000,000

10,000,000

10,000,000

Sub-total

12,800,000 17,820,887

300,000

3,094,800

12,800,000

17,820,887

300,000 3,094,800

In Mutual Funds:

NIBL Stable Fund
250,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY: 250,000 units of Rs 10 each

2,500,000 2,472,500

2,500,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

2,472,500

2,500,000 2,500,000

NIC Asia Growth Fund-2
250,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY: 250,000 units of Rs 10 each

2,500,000 2,380,000

2,500,000

2,050,000

2,500,000

2,380,000

2,500,000 2,050,000

NMB Sulav Investment Fund - 2
200,0000 units of Rs 10 each
PY:200,0000 units of Rs 10 each

20,000,000 22,580,000

20,000,000

20,120,000

20,000,000

22,580,000

20,000,000 20,120,000

Nabil Flexi Cap Fund
300,000 unit of Rs 10 each
PY: 300,000 unit of Rs 10 each

3,000,000 3,501,000

3,000,000

3,192,000

3,000,000

3,501,000

3,000,000 3,192,000

Sanima Growth Fund
200,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY: 200,000 units of Rs 10 each

2,000,000 2,064,000

2,000,000

2,028,000

2,000,000

2,064,000

2,000,000 2,028,000

Sunrise Focused Equity Fund
300,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY: 300,000 units of Rs 10 each

3,000,000 3,012,000

3,000,000

2,472,000

3,000,000

3,012,000

3,000,000 2472000

Prabhu Smart Fund
600,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY: 600,000 units of Rs 10 each

6,000,000 6,882,000

6,000,000

5,766,000

6,000,000

6,882,000

6,000,000 5,766,000

Kumari Sunaulo Lagani Yojana
300,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY:300,000 units of Rs 10 each

3,000,000 3,693,000

3,000,000

3,552,000

3,000,000

3,693,000

3,000,000 3,552,000

NIBL Growth Fund
300,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY: 300,000 units of Rs 10 each

3,000,000 2,958,000

3,000,000

3,192,000

3,000,000

2,958,000

3,000,000 3,192,000

Citizens Super 30 Mutual Fund
100,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY:100,000 units of Rs 10 each

1000,000 1,008,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,008,000

1,000,000 1,000,000

Siddhartha Investment Growth
Scheme 3

250,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY: 250,000 units of Rs 10 each

2,500,000 2,610,000

2,500,000

2,362,500

2,500,000

2,610,000

2,500,000 2,362,500

RBB Mutual Fund 2
100,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY:100,000 units of Rs 10 each

1,000,000 1,008,000

1,000,000

950,000

1,000,000

1,008,000

1,000,000 950,000

Shubha Laxmi Kosh
500,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY: 500,000 units of Rs 10 each

5,000,000 6,190,000

5,000,000

5,380,000

5,000,000

6,190,000

5,000,000 5,380,000

Global IME Balanced Fund-1
500,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY: 500,000 units of Rs 10 each

5,000,000 5,455,000

5,000,000

4,550,000

5,000,000

5,455,000

5,000,000 4,550,000

Kumari Equity Fund
250,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY: 250,000 units of Rs 10 each

2,500,000 2487500

2,684,725

2,632,350

2,500,000

2,487,500

2,684,725 2,632,350

Laxmi Unnati Kosh
100,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY:100,000 units of Rs 10 each

1,000,000 1,039,000

1,000,000

900,000

1,000,000

1,039,000

1,000,000 900,000

NIC Asia Flexi CAP Fund
3,000,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY: 3,000,000 units of Rs 10 each

30,000,000 30,450,000

30,006,288

27757400

30,000,000

30,450,000

30,006,288 27757400

Sunrise First Mutual Fund

150,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each
PY:150,000 equity shares of Rs 10
each

1,500,000 1,602,000

1730,055

1,816,477

1,500,000

1,602,000

1730,055 1,816,477

Citizens Mutual Fund -1
PY: 250,000 equity shares os Rs 10
each

2,500,000

2,410,000

2,500,000 2,410,000

Muktinath Bikas Ba

| 80UBUIBA09 | meiney souewiopiad | uonealn anjep | MBIAIBAQ

suoday Aioinieis

J!
5
o
=)
Q,
ol
A
o)
o
o
=t
(7




A

£ % 19Annual Report

at fair value through other 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
COmprehenSlVe Income:

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Nabil Balanced Fund-2

250,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each
PY: 250,000 equity shares of Rs 10
each

2,500,000 2527500 2500000 2250000 2500000 2527500 2,500,000 2,250,000

NIBL Sahabhagita Fund
200,000 units of Rs 10 each 2,000,000 2,284,000 2000000 2108000 2000000 2284000 2000000 2108,000
PY: 200,000 units of Rs 10 each

NIBL Samriddhi Fund -2
1,000,000 units of Rs 10 each 10,000,000 8,830,000 10,000,000 8,250,000 10,000,000 8,830,000 10,000,000 8,250,000
PY:1,000,000 units of Rs 10 each

NIC Asia Dynamic Debt Fund
200,000 units of Rs 10 each 2,000,000 2132,000 2000000 2218000 2000000 2132000 2000000 2218000
PY: 200,000 units of Rs 10 each

NIC Asia Balanced Fund
150,000 units of Rs 10 each 1500,000 1465500 1500,000 1440000 1500000 1465500 1500000 1440,000
PY:150,000 units of Rs 10 each

NIC Asia Growth Fund

PY:100,000 units of Rs 10 each - - 1,000,000 990,000 - - 1,000,000 990,000
NIC Asia Select Fund 30

750,000 units of Rs 10 each 7500,000 6967500 7500,000 7200000 7500000 6967500 7500000 7200,000
PY:750,000 units of Rs 10 each

Prabhu Select Fund

1,468,090 units of Rs 10 each 14,680,900 16,574,736 14,680,900 14,372,601 14,680,900 16,574,736 14,680,900 14,372,601

PY:1,468,090 units of Rs 10 each

RBB Mutual Fund 1
1,000,000 units of Rs 10 each 10,000,000 9,960,000 10,000,000 8,160,000 10,000,000 9,960,000 10,000,000 8,160,000
PY:1,000,000 units of Rs 10 each

Sunrise Bluechip Fund

250,000 units of Rs 10 each 2,500,000 2500000 2,500,000 2067500 2,500,000 2,500,000 2500000 2067500
PY: 250,000 units of Rs 10 each

Siddhartha Equity Fund

150,000 units of Rs 10 each 1,500,000 1,543,500 1,500,000 1258500 1,500,000 1543500 1500,000 1,258,500

PY:150,000 units of Rs 10 each

Siddhartha Investment Growth
Scheme -2

1,000,000 units of Rs 10 each
PY:1,000,000 units of Rs 10 each

10,000,000 10,500,000 10,000,000 9,490,000 10,000,000 10,500,000 10,000,000 9,490,000

Sanima Large Cap Fund
250,000 units of Rs 10 each 2,500,000 2557500 2500000 2322500 2500000 2557500 2,500,000 2,322,500
PY:250,000 units of Rs 10 each

Mega Mutual Fund -1
436,340 units of Rs 10 each 4,363,400 4180137 4,363,400 3,368,545 4,363,400 4180137 4363400 3,368,545
PY:436,340 units of Rs 10 each

Kumari Dhanabriddhi Yojana
2,000,000 units of Rs 10 each 20,000,000 20,100,000 20,000,000 19,340,000 20,000,000 20,100,000 20,000,000 19,340,000
PY: 2,000,000 units of Rs 10 each

Nabil Balanced Fund-3
16,680 units of Rs 10 each 166,800 166,633 166,800 130,104 166,800 166,633 166,800 130,104
PY: 16,680 units of Rs 10 each

Garima Samriddhi Yojana

2000,000 units of Rs 10 each 20,000,000 19,900,000 - - 20,000,000 19,900,000 - -
Muktinath Mutual Fund 1

16,250,000 units of Rs 10 each 162,500,000 160,875,000 - - 162,500,000 160,875,000 - -
NMB Hybrid Fund L- I

200,000 units of Rs 10 each 2,000,000 1,812,000 - - 2,000,000 1,812,000 - -
Reliable Samriddhi yojana B B B ~
250,000 units of Rs 10 each 2500000 2482500 2500000 2482500

Sub-total 372711100 378750,507 189,632,168 179,596,477 372711100 378750,507 189,632,168 179,596,477
Total 699,662,185 709,881,577 431,512,746 392,222,317 699,662,185 709,881,577 431,512,746 392,222,317

*Investment not yielding dividend in last 3 financial year.
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Current Tax Assets Note 4.9
Group

32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets 635,637,785 592,439,145 630,503,387 579,527,867
Tax assets of prior periods - -
Current tax liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities 630,831,923 555,511,406 613,318,946 538,805,775
Tax liabilities of prior periods = = - -
Total 4,805,862 36,927,739 17,184,441 40,722,092

Current Tax Assets is the net of the advance tax plus Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) and the corporate income tax liability
computed as per the provision of the Income Tax Act, 2058.

Investment in Subsidiaries Note 4.10
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries = = = =
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries - - 244,045,905 244,045,905
Total investment - - 244,045,905 244,045,905
Less: Impairment allowances = =
Net carrying amount - - 244,045,905 244,045,905
4.10.1: Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Total - - - - - -
4.10.2: Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
R e - - - 244,045.905 244,045,905 244,045,905 244,045,905
Total - - - - - - -
4.10.3: Information relating to subsidiaries of the Bank
Group Bank
Percentage of ownership held by the  Percentage of ownership held by the
Bank Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Muktinath Capital Limited - - 60.26% 60.26%
4.10.4: Non controlling interest of the subsidiaries
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Muktinath Capital Limited
Equity interest held by NCI (%) 39.74% 3974%
Profit/(loss] allocated during the year 13,771,568 14,711,679
Accumulated balances of NCl as on Asar end 181,812,795 180,295,053
Dividend paid to NCI 12,071,625 -
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Investment in Associates Note 4.11
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Investment in quoted associates 161,723,322 139,383,300 155,550,000 155,550,000
Investment in unquoted associates - - - -
Total Investment 161,723,322 139,383,300 155,550,000 155,550,000
Less: Impairment allowances - - - -
Net Carrying amount 161,723,322 139,383,300 155,550,000 155,550,000

Muktinath Krishi Company Limited is recongised as the Associates as the Bank holds 22.22% of the shares of the company and
Board of Directors comprise of two Bank's nominees. Investment in associates is accounted for using the equity method as per
NAS 28 "Investment in Associates” considering the management certified financial statement of the associates.

411.1: Investment in Quoted associates
Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082

Cost

32nd Asar 2082
Cost

3lst Asar 2081
Cost

3lst Asar 2081
Cost

Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value

Muktinath Krishi Company Limited 155550 999 2326110255 155,550,000 2162145000 155,550,000 2326110255 155,550,000 2162145000

15,55,500 Shares of Rs. 100 each

Total

155,550,000 2,326,110,255 155,550,000 2,162,145,000 155,550,000 2,326,110,255 155,550,000 2,162,145,000

The shares of associate are subject to a promoter lock-in and cannot be sold until the lock-in period is released. The fair
value has been arrived using the level 1 inputs however, this has been accounted for using the equity method as per NAS 28
“Investment in Associates” considering the management certified financial statement of the associate.

4.11.3: Information relating to Associates of the Bank

Percentage of ownership

ST ST

Percentage of ownership

held by the Bank held by the Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Muktinath Krishi Company Limited 22.22% 22.22% 22.22% 22.22%
4.11.4: Equity Value of Associates
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Muktinath Krishi Company Limited 161,723,322 139,383,300
Investment Property Note 4.12
Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Investment Properties measured at Fair Value
Balance as on 1st Shrawan - - - -
Addition/(Disposal) during the year - - - -
Net Changes in fair value during the year - - - -
Adjustment/Transfer - - - -
Net Amount = = = =
Investment Properties measured at Cost
Balance as on 1st Shrawan 465,619,924 289,196,462 432,504,244 256,080,781.56
Addition/(Disposal) during the year (3,719,216) 176,423,462 (3,719,216) 176,423,462
Net Changes in fair value during the year - - - -
Adjustment/Transfer = = = =
Net Amount 461,900,708 465,619,924 428,785,028 432,504,244
Total 461,900,708 465,619,924 428,785,028 432,504,244

Refer notes 5.13 for the erstwhile borrowerwise details of Investment Property.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets Note 4.14
Goodwill Software Other PG
Purchased Developed 2082
Cost
As on 1st Shrawan = 37,192,486 = = 37,192,486
Addition during the year =
Acquisition 2,463,398 - - 2,463,398
Capitalization - - - -
Disposal during the year (1,782,575) (1,782,575)
Adjustment/Revaluation -
Balance as on Asar end 2081 - 37,873,309 - - 37,873,309
Addition during the Year -
Acquisition 4,808,012 4,808,012

Capitalization -
Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Revaluation -

Balance as on Asar end 2082 - 42,681,321 - - 42,681,321
Amortisation and Impairment

As on 1st Shrawan - 21,982,702 - - 21,982,702
Amortisation charge for the year - 5,563,008 - - 5,563,008
Impairment for the year - - -
Disposals (1,782,570) (1,782,570)
Adjustment -
As on Asar end 2081 - 25,763,139 - - 25,763,139
Impairment for the year -
Amortisation charge for the year 5,356,134 5,356,134
Disposals - -
Adjustment -
As on Asar end 2082 - 31,119,273 - - 31,119,273

Capital Work in Progress - - - - -
Net Book Value -
As on Asar end 2081 - 12,110,169 - - 12,110,169
As on Asar end 2082 - 11,562,048 - - 11,562,048
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Gooduwill Software Other SPALEE
Purchased Developed 2082
Cost
As on 1st Shrawan - 35,018,290 - - 35,018,290
Addition during the year -
Acquisition 2,295,000 2,295,000
Capitalization - - - -
Disposal during the year (1782,575) (1,782,575)
Adjustment/Revaluation -
Balance as on Asar end 2081 - 35,530,715 - - 35,530,715
Addition during the Year -
Acquisition 3,847,512 3,847,512
Capitalization -
Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Revaluation -
Balance as on Asar end 2082 - 39,378,227 - - 39,378,227
Amortisation and Impairment
As on 1st Shrawan - 20,480,974 - 14,152,056
Amortisation charge for the year = 5,064,665 = 5,064,665
Impairment for the year -
Disposals (1782,570) (1,782,570)
Adjustment -
As on Asar end 2081 - 23,763,068 - - 23,763,068
Impairment for the year -
Amortisation charge for the year 4,997,442 4,997442
Disposals -
Adjustment -
As on Asar end 2082 - 28,760,511 - - 28,760,511
Capital Work in Progress - - - - -
Net Book Value =
As on Asar end 2081 - 11,767,646 - - 11,767,646
As on Asar end 2082 - 10,617,716 - - 10,617,716
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Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities Note 4.15
Group
32nd Asar 2082 32nd Asar 2082
Det:rred Tax De_ferre_c_l Tax .:}i_’ it &de;tr;(/i Deferred De_ferl_'l.?c_i Tax l'\ll'Z:( szseertr:/d
ssets Liabilities Liabilities Tax Assets Liabilities e

Deferred tax on temporary
differences on following items

Loans and Advances to BFls - - - - - -

Loans and Advances to Customers - - - - - -

Investment Properties - - - - - -

Investment Securities - 259,396 (259,396) - 3,065,818 (3,065,818)

Property and Equipment 2,022,100 - 2,022,100 1477377 = 1477377

Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 89,808,668 - 89,808,668 89,386,891 - 89,386,891

Lease Liabilities 257,628,326 221,097111 36,531,215 257628326 221,258,400 36,368,926

Provisions = = = = = =

Other Temporary Differences 255,789 (594,977) 850,766 - (594,977) 594,977
Deferred tax ontemporary differences 349,714,883 220,761,530 128,953,353 348,492,593 223,730,240 124,762,354
Deferred tax on carry forward of B B ~ B B B
unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - - - - -
Net Deferred Tax Asset [Liabilities) as on year end of 2082 128,953,353 124,762,354
Recognised in profit or Loss 114,256,179 110,065,180
Recognised in other comprehensive income 14,697174 14,697,174
Recognised directly in equity - -
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01 116,305,789 116,115,309
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 12,647,564 8,647,045
Deferred Tax expense (income] recognized in profit or loss (18,063,920) (14,063.401)
Deferred Tax expense (income] recognized in OCI 5,416,356 5,416,356
Deferred Tax expense (income] recognized directly in Equity - -

Group
3lst Asar 2081 3lst Asar 2081
Det:.rred Tax De_ferrgc_l Tax ',I}la E:(t &Zfse;tr;(/j Deferred De_ferrl.?c_i Tax ’.\Il.:; izfsirtr:/d
ssets Liabilities Liabilities Tax Assets Liabilities b

Deferred tax on temporary
differences on following items

Loans and Advances to BFls - - - - - -

Loans and Advances to Customers = = = = = =

Investment Properties - - - - - -

Investment Securities 10,591,489 - 10,591,489 11,787129 - 11787129

Property and Equipment 5,503,249 - 5,503,249 4,888,894 - 4,888,894

Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 71,709,687 - 71709,687 71,322,535 - 71,322,535

Lease Liabilities 273,551,960 246,032,194 27519766 273,551,960 246,202,134 27,349,826

Provisions = = = = = =

Other Temporary Differences 214,671 (766,925) 981,597 - (766,925) 766,925
Deferred tax ontemporary differences 361,571,058 245,265,269 116,305,789 361,550,518 245,435,209 116,115,309
Deferred tax on carry forward of B B ~ B B B
unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - - - - - -
Net Deferred Tax Asset [Liabilities) as on year end of 2081 116,305,789 116,115,309 g'
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01 85,994,981 84,683,324 2
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 30,310,807 31,431,985 o
Deferred Tax expense (income] recognized in profit or loss (27,815,337) (65,047729) g
Deferred Tax expense (income] recognized in OCI (2,495,470) 33,615,743 g'_
Deferred Tax expense (income] recognized directly in Equity - - 2

Muktinath Bikas Bank :'-19 5



£ % 19Annual Report

Other Assets Note 4.16
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Assets Held for Sale - - - -
Other Non-Banking Assets - - - -
Bills Receivable - - - -
Accounts Receivable 37,339,556 71,102,685 4,407,500 18,981,159
Accrued Income - - - -
Prepayments And Deposit 220,593,982 203,439,484 219,852,254 203,008,299
Income Tax Deposit - - - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure 329,888,622 418,215,925 329,888,622 418,215,925
Other Assets 39,564,135 46,828,372 14,213,389 26,265,593
Total 627,386,295 739,586,466 568,361,765 666,470,976
Due to Banks and Financial Institutions Note 4.17
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Money Market Deposits - - - -
Interbank Borrowing = = = =
Other Deposits from BFls 718,026,296 769,621,798 718,026,296 769,621,798
Settlement and Clearing Accounts - - - -
Others 3,000,000,000 - 3,000,000,000 =
Total 3.718,026,296 769,621,798 3,718,026,296 769,621,798

Other deposits from BFls includes the balance maintained in the call and current account by B, C and D class financial
institutions. The amount due to counterpary to the reciprocal loan arrangement as mentioned on Note 4.1 is presented under

"Others".

4.171 Nature wise segregation of other deposits from BFls

Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Current Deposits 5,131,538 6,957,056 5,131,538 6,957,056
Fixed Deposits 55,000,000 40,000,000 55,000,000 40,000,000
Call Deposits 657,894,757 722,664,742 657,894,757 722,664,742
Accrued Interest Payable - - - -
Total 718,026,296 769,621,798 718,026,296 769,621,798
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank Note 4.18
Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Refinance from NRB - - - -
Standing Liquidity Facility - - - -
Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB - - - -
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - - - -
Other Payable to NRB 415,629,581 415,629,581 415,629,581 415,629,581
Total 415,629,581 415,629,581 415,629,581 415,629,581

The amount payable to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, lender of last resort, sale

and repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc. The other payable from the NRB includes the amount received in line with
the tripartite agreement between KfW Development Bank, Germany, Nepal Rastra Bank, and Muktinath Bikas Bank under
Sustainable Economic Development in Rural and Semi-Urban Areas- MSME Finance Phase Il (SEDRAI1). This facility is received
for refinancing sustainable ad target group-oriented loans to micro, small and medium-sized enterprises in rural and semi-

urban areas.

1196
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Derivative Financial Instruments Note 4.19
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Held for Trading
Interest Rate Swap - - - -
Currency Swap - - - -
Forward Exchange Contracts - - - -
Others - - - -
Held for Risk Management
Interest Rate Swap - - - -
Currency Swap - - - -
Forward Exchange Contracts. = = = =
Others - - - -
Total - - - -
The bank does not have any foreign currency exposures as on reporting date.
Deposits from Customers Note 4.20
Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3l1st Asar 2081
Institutions Customers:
Term Deposits 21,412,513,702 16,047,999,346 21,422,513,702 16,072,999,346
Call Deposits 7.591,502,272 5,753,616,957 7676,778,438 5,794,388,723
Current Deposits 2,513,168,526 1,544,225,802 2,513,168,526 1,544,225,802
Other 151,070,675 163,090,259 151,070,675 163,090,259
Individual Customers:
Term Deposits 40,144,929,531 51,014,983,011 40,144,929,531 51,014,983,011
Saving Deposits 44,612,611,663 34,496,837.970 44,612,611,663 34,496,837.970
Current Deposits 909,535,342 672,240,069 909,535,342 672,240,069
Other 111,001 110,953 111,001 110,953
Total 117,335,442,710  109,693,104,367 117,430,718,877  109,758,876,133
Deposits from customer is carried at amortised cost thus includes the accrued interest payable on the deposits.
4.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Nepalese Rupee 117,331,603,170  109,690,045,641 117,426,856,816 109,755,817,407
Indian Rupee - - - -
United State Dollar 3,839,540 3,058,726 3,862,061 3,058,726
Great Britain Pound - - - -
Euro - - - -
Japanese Yen - - - -
Chinese Yuan - - - -
Other - - - -
Total 117,335,442,710  109,693,104,367 117.430,718,877  109,758,876,133

The foreign currency deposit is converted to NPR equivalent by using closing rate of the reporting data as per NAS 21.
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4.20.2: Nature wise segregation of other deposits from customers

Group

32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Current Deposits 3,327,427700 2,150,694,105 3.422,703,867 2.216,465,871
Saving Deposits 44,652,293,748 34,553,259,228 44,652,293,748 34,553,259,228
Fixed Deposits 61,351,464,594 66.,717153,168 61,351,464,594 66.,717153,168
Call Deposits 7676,778,438 5,794,388,727 7676,778,438 5.794,388,727
Margin Deposits 92,316,024 74,281,168 92,316,024 74,281,168
Accrued Interest Payable 235,162,206 403,327971 235,162,206 403,327971.00
Total 117,335,442710  109,693,104,367 117,430,718,877  109,758,876,133
Borrowings Note 4.21

Group

32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government 2,083,333 10,416,667 2,083,333 10,416,667
Other Institutions - - - -
Other - - - -
Sub total 2,083,333 10,416,667 2,083,333 10,416,667
Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Multilateral Development Banks - - - -
Other Institutions - - - -
Sub total - - - -
Total 2,083,333 10,416,667 2,083,333 10,416,667

The borrowing includes the amount received from Nepal Government, Ministry of Youth and Sports as the refinancing for the
concessional rate loan to be provided by the Bank to deprived community engaged in agriculture, animal husbandry, small and
micro enterprises and other income generating activates. The outstanding amount as on year end amounts to 2,083,333.

Unwind of discount

Provisions Note 4.22
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Provisions for redundancy = = = =
Provision for restructuring = = = =
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - - - -
Onerous contracts - - - -
Other = = = =
Total - - - -
4.22.1:Movement in provision Note 4.22
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Balance at Ist Shrawn - 14,806,030 - 14,806,030
Provisions made during the year - - - -
Provisions used during the year - - - -
Provisions reversed during the year - (14,806,030) - (14,806,030)

Balance at Asar end
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Other Liabilities Note 4.23
Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Liability for employees Defined Benefit Obligations 169,148,250 135,947,317 169,148,250 135,947,317
Liability for long-service leave 130,464,550 99,492,692 128,673,165 98,005,176
Short-term employee benefits 3,365,976 3.775,965 3187278 3,698,059
Bills Payable - 64,741 - 64,741
Creditors and Accruals 565,092,150 184,052,533 16,806,112 101,100,512
Interest payable on Deposit - - - -
Interest payable on Borrowing = = = =
Liabilities on Deferred Grant Income - - - -
Unpaid Dividend 1124,484 1124,484 1124,484 1124,484
Liabilities under Finance Lease = = = =
Employee Bonus Payable 222,646,990 192,966,963 216,952,082 187,089,157
Other - - - -
- Customer Protection Fund (Refer Notes]) 217168,516 546,223,146 217168,516 546,223,146
-TDS Payable 92,915,037 88,423,286 92,711,731 87,966,205
- Lease Liability under NFRS 16 862,615,936 917,842,240 858,761,086 911,839,868
- Interest Payable on Debenture 56,809,524 56,761,714 56,809,524 56,761,714
- Others 141,608,771 198,102,117 134,316,102 185,148,152
Total 2,462,960,184 2,424,777199 1,895,658,330 2,314,968,531

Liabilities relating to employees benefits like liabilities for defined benefit obligation gratuity and pension fund, liabilities for long-

service leave, short-term employee benefits etc., Creditors and accruals, unearned income, unpaid dividend etc. are presented

under this account head of other liabilities.

4.23.1: Defined benefit obligations

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Present value of unfunded obligations 297.821,415 233,952,493 297,821,415 233,952,493
Present value of funded obligations 134,888 3,789,289 134,888 3,789,289
Total present value of obligations 297,956,303 237,741,782 297,956,303 237741782
Fair value of plan assets 134,888 3,789,289 134,888 3,789,289
Present value of net obligations 297.821,415 233,952,493 297,821,415 233,952,493
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 297,821,415 233,952,493 297,821,415 233,952,493
4.23.2: Plan assets
Plan assets comprise:
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Equity securities - - - -
Government bonds - - - -
Bank deposit - - - -
Other 134,888 3,789,289 134,888 3,789,289
Total 134,888 3,789,289 134,888 3,789,289

Actual return on plan assets
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4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 237,741,782 176,658,600 237,741,782 176,658,600
Actuarial losses 51,992,676 14,193,675 51,992,676 14,193,675
Benefits paid by the plan (29,286,134) (20,886,843) (29,286,134) (20,886,843)
Current service costs and interest 57507979 67,776,350 37507979 67,776,350
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end 297,956,303 237,741,782 297,956,303 237,741,782
4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 3,789,289 16,609,896 3.789,289 16,609,896
Adjustment to Opening Fund = = = =
Contributions paid into the plan - - - -
Benefits paid during the year (3,951,855) (14,299,658) (3,951,855 (14,299,698)
Actuarial (losses] gains - -
Expected return on plan assets 297454 1,479,091 297454 1479,091
Fair value of plan assets at Asar end 134,888 3,789,329 134,888 3,789,289
4.23.5:Amount recognised in profit or loss
Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Current service costs 35,648,048 33,982,238 35,648,048 33,982,238
Interest on obligation 19,260,593 15,331,543 19,260,593 15,331,543
Expected return on plan assets 20,403,136 30,822,962 20,403,136 30,822,962
Total 75,311,777 80,136,743 75311777 80,136,743
4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Actuarial [gain)/loss 31,455,289 (17,209,674 31,455,289 (17.209,674)
Total 31,455,289 (17,209,674) 31,455,289 (17,209,674)
4.23.7:Actuarial assumptions
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Discount rate 8.00% 9.00% 8.00% 9.00%
Expected return on plan asset 8.00% 9.00% 8.00% 9.00%
Future salary increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Withdrawal rate 4.00% 2.00% 4.00% 2.00%

4.23.8 Disclosure of Customer Protection Fund
Customer Protection Fund is established with a aim to provide the relief and work for the welfare to the customers availing non

collateral based lending facilities from the Bank under the microfinance model with following salient features:

i.  The clients used to make the voluntary payment of 1% of the credit facilities availed to avail the facility of the this fund.

il. The objective of the fund is:

- to provide the financial relief to the customers in the inevitable circumstances from waiving off the loans to providing the

financial support;

- toimprove the socio economic status of the customers with the skills development program and
- toconduct various financial literacy programs to the backward community.
iii. Interest has been provided to the fund at the rate of call deposit.
iv. The separate committee under the coordination of the Chief Executive Officer has been formed for the operation and

monitoring of the fund.
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The movement to/from the fund during the year is as follows:
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Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Opening Balance of the fund 546,223,146 554,339,630 546,223,146 554,339,630
Add: Interest to fund 5,626,033 678,057 5,626,033 678,057
Add: Contribution to the fund - 9,457,540 = 9,457,540
Less: Withdrawal from the fund (334,680,662) (18,252,081) (334,680,662) (18,252,081)
Closing Balance of the fund 217,168,516 546,223,146 217,168,516 546,223,146
Debt Securities Issued Note 4.24
Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3l1st Asar 2081
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value B ~ _ _
through profit or loss
Debt securities issued at amortised cost 1,248,016,742 1247443,582 1,248,016,742 1247443,582
Total 1,248,016,742 1,247,443,582 1,248,016,742 1,247,443,582
Subordinated Liabilities Note 4.25
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Redeemable preference shares - - - -
Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities ~
component) - - B
Other = = = =
Total - - - -
Share Capital Note 4.26
Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Ordinary shares 7,046,938,049 7,046,938,049 7,046,938,049 7,046,938,049
Convertible preference shares (equity component B ~ B B
only)
Irredeemable preference shares (equity component B ~ B B
only)
Perpetual debt [equity component only) - - - -
Total 7,046,938,049 7.046,938,049 7,046,938,049 7,046,938,049
4.26.1: Ordinary shares
Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Authorized Capital
Issued capital
Subscribed and paid up capital
ZlgrgagL?SBSeOa:d?;%S%aBrg Sfrclfii.;?yosﬁacrls of 100 each) /046,938,048 /046,938,049
Total 7,046,938,049 7,046,938,049

The 18th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Bank has approved the issuance of 8.5% Muktinath Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference

Shares, totaling NPR 1 billion, which is currently in the process of being issued
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The reconciliation of the number of share outstanding and the amount of share capital as at 32nd Asar 2082 and 31st Asar 2081

is as follows:
32nd Asar 2082 31st Asar 2081
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount

l’;‘é’é’l‘fﬁlz g?ﬁﬁgt poef ‘shares outstanding at the 70469380  7,046,938,049 64209003  6420,900,273
Add: Bonus shares issued - - 6,260,378 626,037.777
Add: Right share issued - - - -
Add/(Less): Others adjustments - - - -
Number/ Amount of share at the end of the period 70,469,380 7.046,938,049 70,469,380 7,046,938,049

4.26.2: Ordinary share ownership

32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Percent Amount Percent Amount

Domestic ownership
Nepal Government - - - -
"A" Class Licensed Institutions - - - -
Other Licensed Institutions - - - -
Other Institutions 4.26% 300,377,634 3.53% 248,642,400
Public 95.74% 6,748,560,414 96.47% 6.798,295,649
Other - - - -

Foreign Ownership - - - -

Total 100.00% 7.046,938,048 100.00% 7,046,938,049

4.26.3: List of principal shareholders holding 0.5% or more share of the total share of the bank

Name Nos. of Shares % of Holding

1. Tulasi Ram Dhakal 1,618,501 2.30%
2. Krishna Man Shrestha 1,489,232 211%
3.Min Prasad Gurung 1,381,980 1.96%
4.Bharat Raj Dhakal 1100,945 1.56%
5. Jagat Bandhu Aryal 985,457 140%
6. Gobind Gurung 947205 1.34%
7.Narayan Kumar Shrestha 907,536 1.29%
8. Hari Bahadur Gurung 905,627 129%
9. Khim Prakash Malla 850,421 1.21%
10. Shanta Sharma 812,421 115%
11. Khagendra Raj Regmi 781,951 1.11%
12. Gajendra Man Shrestha 691,208 0.98%
13. Dil Kumari Regmi 691,032 0.98%
14. Sumit Kumar Agarwal 682,191 0.97%
15.NMB Saral Bachat Fund-E 621,075 0.88%
16. Narayan Prasad Sharma 518,728 0.74%
17.Bharat Prasad Lamsal 518,309 0.74%
18. Sandhya Poudel 497959 0.71%
19. Naresh Kumar Sharma Pokhrel 466,247 0.66%
20.Rama Devi Sharma 444,522 0.63%
21. Shiba Kumar Adhikari 401,792 0.57%
22.Bimala Sharma Pokhrel 399,779 0.57%
23.Sher Bahadur Rana 390,869 0.55%
24.Sitaram Kaphle 376,276 0.53%
25.Punya Prasad Pokharel 354,242 0.50%
202
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Reserves Note 4.27
Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Statutory General Reserve 1,994,276,317 1718,603,381 1,985,983,136 1712,398,288
Exchange Equilisation Reserve 3,394,634 2747436 3,394,634 2747436
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 15,801,895 12,534,985 15,271,420 12,088,412
Capital Redemption Reserve - - - -
Regulatory Reserve 825,235,550 1153,354,021 825,235,550 1153,354,021
Investment Adjustment Reserve - - - -
Capital Reserve - - - -
Assets Revaluation Reserve - - - -
Fair Value Reserve 7710,450 (26,946,416) 7153,574 (27503,292)
Dividend Equalisation Reserve - - - -
Debenture Redemption Reserve 500,000,000 250,000,000 500,000,000 250,000,000
Actuarial Gain 41,446,981 63,465,684 41,446,981 63,465,684
Special Reserve - - - -
Staff Skill Development Fund 30,545,075 21,317,748 30,545,075 21,317,748
Other Reserve - - - -
Total 3,418,410,902 3.195,076,839 3,409,030,370 3,187,868,297

The brief description of the reserves are as follows:

Statutory General Reserve

Pursuant to Section 44 of the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073 banks and financial institutions are required to allocate
20% of the net profits of each fiscal year to the general reserve until the reserve is twice the paid up capital and thereafter
minimum 10% of the net profit as this reserve being made pursuant to the statute, is not available for distribution. In line with the
legal requirement the Bank has appropriated following amount in the Statutory General Reserves:

Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Opening Balance of Statutory General Reserves 1712,398,288 1477131,305
20% of Net Profit appropriated as per BAFIA 273,584,848 235,266,983
Closing Balance of Statutory General Reserves 1,985,983,136 1,712,398,288

Exchange Equilisation Reserve

Section 45 of the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073 requires every banks and financial institutions to set aside the 25% of
the of the revaluation profits earned as a result of fluctuations in the exchange rates of foreign currencies, other than the Indian
currency. Following is the movement of Exchange Equilisation Reserves:

Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Opening Balance of Exchange Equilisation Reserve 2747436 2,613,952
25% of revaluation gain appropriated as per BAFIA 647198 133,484
Closing Balance of Exchange Equilisation Reserve 3,394,634 2747436

Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve

NRB Directive 6 requires BFls to create Corporate Social Responsibility Fund and appropriate an amount equivalent to 1% of net
profit annually into this fund for covering expenditure related to CSR activities in the subsequent year. Accordingly, the bank has
allocated the amount of NPR 13,503,604 to corporate social responsibility reserves for this year.

32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Particulars

Opening Balance of Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 12,088,412 13,814,579
1% of net profit appropriated as per NRB Unified Directives 13,503,604 11,763,349
Less: CSR expenses during the year (10,320,596) (13,489,516)
Closing Balance of Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve 15,271,420 12,088,412
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Regulatory Reserve

Regulatory Reserve is the statutory reserve made as per Directive No. 4 of the Nepal Rastra Bank. The regulatory reserve
comprise of the interest income recognized against interest receivables, difference in loan loss provision as per NRB directive
and impairment on loan and advance as per NFRS, amount equal to deferred tax assets, actuarial loss recognized in other
comprehensive income, difference in provision on investment securities as per Directive No.8 and as per NFRS, amount of the
non banking assets recognised and interest capitalized reserve created as per Unified Directive.

Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 3lst Asar 2080

Opening Balance of Regulatory Reserves 1153,354,022 665,751,880 342,160,759
Interest Receivable on Loans and Advances (236,701,338) 327153,840 240,172,918
Change in Fair value on equity instrument (27)503,292) 17,869,535 (37.983,389)
Deferred Tax Assets (6,050,129) 31,431,985 (7767,264)
Non Banking Assets (59,071,365) 111,146,781 129,168,856
Actuarial Loss recognized - - -
Interest Capitalized Reserve 1207653 - -
Closing Balance of Regulatory Reserves 825,235,550 1153,354,022 665,751,880

The component wise break-up of the regulatory reserve is as follows:

Particulars Interest Fair Value Deferred Tax | Non Banking Interest Total
Receivable Loss Assets Assets Capitalized
Reserve
Balance as on Asar 3lst, 2076 21,876,083 53,867,602 39,066,937 - - 114,810,622
Addition during the year FY 2076-77 4,306,836  (39,077002) 6,233,705 = - [28,536,461)
Balance as on Asar 3lst, 2077 26,182,919 14,790,600 45,300,643 = = 86,274,161
Addition during the year FY 2077-78 38,779,869  (14,790,600) 9,717,362 - - 33,706,631
Balance as on Asar 3lst, 2078 64,962,788 - 55,018,004 - - 119,980,792
Addition during the year FY 2078-79 104,968,201 47617146 37,432,584 32,162,036 - 222179967
Balance as on Asar 3lst, 2079 169,930,989 47617146 92,450,588 32,162,036 - 342160759
Addition during the year FY 2079-80 240172918  (37.983,389) (7767264) 129,168,856 - 323,591,121
Balance as on Asar 31st, 2080 410,103,907 9,633,757 84,683,324 161,330,892 - 665751880
Addition during the year FY 2080-81 327153,840 17,869,535 31,431,985 111,146,781 - 487,602,141
Balance as on Asar 3lst, 2081 737257747 27,503,292 116,115,309 272477673 - 1153,354,021
Addition during the year FY 2081-82 (236,701,338)  (27,503,292) (6,050,129)  (59,071,365) 1207653  (328,118,471)
Balance as on Asar 32nd, 2082 500,556,410 - 110,065,180 213,406,308 1207653 825,235,550

Fair Value Reserve
The fair value reserve is created as the part of the compliance of NFRS which comprise of the amount resulting from the fair
value recognition of the investment securities which are carried through the other comprehensive income.

Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Opening Balance of Fair Value Reserve (27503,292) (9.633,757)
Appropriations during the year 34,656,866 (17.869,535)
Closing Balance of Fair Value Reserves 7153,574 (27,503,292)

Fair value reserves comprise of :

Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Fair Value Reserve created as a result of change in fair value of instruments routed through
ocl 7153,574 (27503,292)

Fair Value Reserve created as a result of the application of equity method of accounting of
Associates

Closing Balance of Fair Value Reserves 7,153,574 (27,503,292)
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Debenture Redemption Reserve

The Bank has issued debentures worth Rs. 1.25 billion having the maturity of 7 years during financial year 2078/79. NRB
Directive 16 requires the bank to create the Debenture redemption reserve on all the years till maturity of debenture on
proportionate basis except for the year of issue and redemption of debenture. Accordingly, the bank has allocated the
amount of Rs.250,000,000 to debenture redemption reserve for FY 2081/82.

Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 31st Asar 2081

Opening Balance of Debenture Redemption Reserve 250,000,000 =
Appropriations during the year 250,000,000 250,000,000
Closing Balance of Debenture Redemption Reserve 500,000,000 250,000,000

The details of the appropriations made and planned annually for the redemption of debentures maturing in FY 2085-86 are as

follows
FY 2080-81 250,000,000.00 250,000,000 Appropriated
FY 2081-82 250,000,000.00 500,000,000 Appropriated
FY 2082-83 250,000,000.00 750,000,000 To be appropriated
FY 2083-84 250,000,000.00 1,000,000,000 To be appropriated
FY 2084-85 250,000,000.00 1,250,000,000 To be appropriated

The balance of DRR will be tranferred to retained earning on the maturity of the debenture.

Actuarial Gain

Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Opening Balance of Actuarial Gain 63,465,684 51,418,912
Actuarial gain/(loss) on employee's defined benefit obligation valuation (22,018,703) 12,046,772
Closing Balance of Actuarial Gain 41,446,981 63,465,684

Staff Skill Development Fund

Nepal Rastra Bank Directive No. B, requires the Bank and Financial Institutions to spend at least 3% of the previous year's
salary and allowance for the training and skill development of the employees. Any unspent amount shall be appropriated to the
reserves and carrried forward till the year it is spent.

Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Opening Balance of Staff Skill Development Fund 21,317.748 17123,113.91
Less: Expense made from this reserves = -
Add: This year additions to reserves 9,227,327 4,194,634
Closing Balance of Staff Skill Development Fund 30,545,075 21,317,748
Contingent liabilities and commitments Note 4.28

Particulars Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3l1st Asar 2081
Contingent liabilities 881,702,415 755,929,526 881,702,415 755,929,526
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 3,318,420,801 2,500,008,935 3,318,420,801 2,500,006,935
Capital commitment - - - -

Lease Commitment = S - -
Litigation - = - -
Total 4,200,123,216 3.,255,936,461 4,200,123,216 3,255,936,461
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4.28.1: Contingent Liabilities

Particulars Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Acceptance and documentary credit 163,217,877 214,384,946 163,km/,217.877 214,384,946
Bills for collection = = = =
Forward exchange contracts = = = =
Guarantees 718,484,539 541,544,580 718,484,539 541,544,580
Underwriting commitment = = = =
Other commitments = = = =
Total 881,702,415 755,929,526 881,702,415 755,929,526
4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
Particulars Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Undisbursed amount of loans 1,801,010,208 861,348,188 1,801,010,208 861,348,188
Undrawn limits of overdrafts 1,517,410,593 1638,658,747 1,517,410,593 1638,658,747
Undrawn limits of credit cards - - - -
Undrawn limits of letter of credit - - - -
Undrawn limits of guarantee = = = =
Total 3,318,420,801 2,500,006,935 3,318,420,801 2,500,006,935

4.28.3: Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements is as

follows:

Particulars

Group

32nd Asar 2082

3lst Asar 2081

32nd Asar 2082

3l1st Asar 2081

Capital commitments in relation to Property and
Equipment

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets
Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Total
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4.23.7:Disclosure pursuant to NFRS 16, Leases

The Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted the Bank's incremental borrowing rate.

Particulars Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

a. Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted

cash flows

Upto one Year 192,336,921 177,816,300 189,474,973 177,816,300

More than one year to five Years 772,030,343 792,419,277 770,550,978 792,419,277

More than five years 348,847,487 560,434,795 348,847487 560,434,795
Total Undiscounted cash flows as at year end 1,313,214,750 1,530,670,372 1,308,873,438 1,530,670,372
b. Lease Liabilities included in the statement of

financial position

Current 147196,564 114,921,976 144,725,406 112,746,656

Non current 715,419,372 802,920,264 714,035,680 799,093,212
Total Lease Liability 862,615,936 917,842,240 858,761,086 911,839,868
c. Reconciliation of Right To Use Assets

Right To Use Assets

Right of Use as of 1st Shrawan 826,109,686 872,063,868 820,673,781 864,676,909

Addition during the year 109,412,066 129,723,963 109,412,066 129,590,929

Disposal during the year (52,770,993) (40,349,226) (52,770,993 (40,349,226)

Depreciation (141,871,277) (135,328,920] (139,783,522) (133,244,831)
Closing Balance 740,879,481 826,109,686 737,531,332 820,673,781
d. Reconcilation of Lease Liabilites

Opening Lease Liabilities 1st Shrawan 917,842,240 905,399,368 911,839,868 897715753

Addition during the year 109,412,066 129,685,608 109,412,066 129,590,929

Disposal during the year (50,195,447) (33,006,422 (50,195,447) (32,916,683)

Interest 71,843,203 89,503,850 71,237,983 88,694,096

Lease Payments (186,286.,126) (173.740,164) (183,533,384) (171,244,227)
Closing Balance 862,615,936 917,842,240 858,761,086 911,839,868

e. Discount Rate 4.90% 6.54% 4.90% 6.54%
f. Actual Rental Paid during the year 193,265,810 197,513,648 190,379,495 195,017,711

4.28.5: Litigation
1. The Bank does not have any other litigation except the cases in ordinary course of business. The Bank does not anticipate
any financial liability in these pending lawsuits.

Muktinath Bikas Bank :‘-2073

Interest Income Note 4.29
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Cash and Cash Equivalent 59,661,308 40,612,181 56,607,179 40,612,181

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 112,764,400 17145,205 112,764,400 17145,205

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -

Loan and Advances to Bank and Financial Institutions 202,493,208 326,570,568 202,493,208 326,570,568

Loans and Advances to Customers 9,678,564,989 12,132,516,789 9,678,564,989 12,132,516,789 m
Investment Securities 761,136,248 1,092,459,672 752,831,523 1.060,367.307 §
Loan and advances to Staff 245,609,437 195,283,872 245,609,437 195,283,872 g.
Other Interest Income - - - - 2
Total 11,060,229,590 13,804,588,287 11,048,870,736 13,772,495,922 -cgp
Refer Note 13(a) for interest income recognition criterion. a..
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Interest Income Note 4.29
Particulars Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Cash and Cash Equivalent 59,661,308 40,612,181 56,607,179 40,612,181
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 112,764,400 17145,205 112,764,400 17145,205
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Loan and Advances to Bank and Financial Institutions 202,493,208 326,570,568 202,493,208 326,570,568
Loans and Advances to Customers 9,678,564,989 12,132,516,789 9,678,564,989 12,132,516,789
Investment Securities 761,136,248 1092,459,672 752,831,523 1,060,367.307
Loan and advances to Staff 245,609,437 195,283,872 245,609,437 195,283,872
Other Interest Income - - - -
Total 11,060,229,590 13,804,588,287 11,048,870,736 13,772,495,922
Interest Expense Note 4.30
Particulars Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3l1st Asar 2081
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 19,925,754 4,952,329 19,925,754 4,952,329
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 15,750,995 18,772,497 15,750,995 18,772,497
Deposits from Customers 6,245,220,838 9,306,336,936 6,247,498,165 9,309,428,403
Borrowing 400,885 733,441 400,885 728,434
Debt Securities Issued 109,948,308 109,900,798 109,948,308 109,900,798
Subordinated Liabilities - - - -
Other Charges - On Lease Liability 71,843,203 89,503,850 71,237,983 88,694,096
- On Customer Protection Fund 6,618,862 678,057 6,618,862 678,057
Total 6,469,708,845 9,530,877,908 6,471,380,952 9,533,154,614
Fees and Commission Income Note 4.31
Particulars Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3l1st Asar 2081
Loan Administration Fees 308,353,746 237,657,374 308,353,746 237,657,374
Service Fees 234,702,207 205,995,484 234,702,207 221,141,384
Consortium Fees 7,091,670 525,000 7,091,670 525,000
Commitment Fees 489,090 457,006 489,090 457,006
DD/TT/Swift Fees 59,662 18,750 59,662 18,750
Credit Card/ATM Issuance and Renewal Fees 47,201,685 43,648,137 47,201,685 43,648,137
Prepayment and Swap Fees 18,767,890 17.983,668 18,767,890 17983,668
Investment Banking Fees - 1,448,622 - -
Asset Management Fees 12,053,422 4,755,056 - -
Brokerage Fees - - - -
Remittance Fees 6,739,865 25,206,645 6,739,865 10,060,745
Commission on Letter Of Credit 1,278,388 808,040 1,278,388 808,040
Commission on Guarantee Contracts Issued 18,013,646 11,559,996 18,013,646 11,559,996
Commission on Share Underwriting/Issue - - - -
Locker Rental 982,750 752,111 982,750 752,111
Other Fees and Commission Income 62,446,503 55,469,454 4,611,358 3,967,571
Total 718,180,524 606,285,343 648,291,957 548,579,782
208
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Fees and Commission Expense Note 4.32
Particulars Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
ATM Management Fees - - - -
VISA/Master Card Fees 66,252,105 54,387,032 66,252,105 54,387,032
Guarantee Commission - - - -
Brokerage - - - -
DD/TT/Swift Fees - - - -
Remittance Fees and Commission - - - -
Other Fees and Commission Expense 31,519,633 37,641,031 23,867,829 31,327902
Total 97771738 92,028,063 90,119,934 85,714,934
Payouts on account of fee and commission for services obtained by the bank is presented under this head.
Net Trading Income Note 4.33
Particulars Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3l1st Asar 2081

Changes in Fair Value of Trading Assets (3,120,810) = = =
Gain/loss on Disposal of Trading Assets 20,201,211 8,536,234 - -
Interest Income on Trading Assets - - - -
Dividend Income on Trading Assets = = = =
Gain/loss Foreign Exchange Translation 9,158,811 8,808,507 9,158,922 8,808,470
Other = = = =
Total 26,239,212 17,344,741 9,158,922 8,808,470

Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realized interests,
dividends and foreign exchange differences as well as unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities are

presented under this head.

Other Operating Income Note 4.34
Particulars Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Foreign Exchange Revaluation Gain 2,588,793 SS8iUSS 2,588,793 SiEEElE)
Gain/loss on sale of Investment Securities 9,408,182 11,911,679 9,408,182 11,899,063
Fair value gain/loss on Investment Properties - - - -
Dividend on Equity Instruments 16,828,389 7,861,108 32,570,441 7,385,200
Gain/loss on sale of Property and Equipment 1921764 (1773,945) 1921764 (1773,945)
Gain/loss on sale of Investment Property 641,614 4,036,594 641,614 4,036,594
Operating Lease Income - - - -
Gain/loss on sale of Gold and Silver = = = =
Other Operating Income - - - -
- Share of Profit of Associates 22,339,850 4,830,027 - -
- Provision written back - 13,506,030 - 13,506,030
- Grant Income 354,576 750,000 354,576 750,000
- Other Income 3,559,360 3.424,057 3,559,360 3,424,057
Total 57,642,528 45,079,485 51,044,730 39,760,934
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Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses Note 4.35

Particulars Group

32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Itrggelxzilrsment charge/(reversal) on Loan and Advances (9,585,525) (7372,088) (9,585,525) (7.372,088)
Impairment charge/lreversal) on Loan and Advances 803,152,060 784,154,303 803,152,060 784,154,303
Impairment charge/(reversal) on Financial Investment = 232,519 = =
Impairment charge/(reversal) on Placement with BFIs - - - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on Property and B ~ B B
Equipment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on Goodwill and B ~ B B
Intangible assets
Impairment charge/(reversal) on Investment B ~ B B
Properties
Total 793,566,535 777,014,734 793,566,535 776,782,215
Personnel Expenses Note 4.36

Particulars

32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Salary 558,701,572 557,665,871 549,185,007 549,115,853
Allowances 483,349,046 492,612,345 475,200,671 484,339,994
Gratuity Expense 32,482,949 48,116,856 32,482,949 48,116,856
Provident Fund 50,939,226 49,964,743 50,939,226 48,224,289
Uniform 15,485,000 - 15,485,000 -
Training & Development Expense 22,368,015 26,416,778 21,776,348 26,063,626
Leave Encashment 106,086,566 62,627,589 105,492,120 62,078,238
Medical - - - -
Insurance 10,931,244 9,970,958 10,365,439 9,402,919
Employees Incentive 560,000 127833 560,000 93,233
Cash-Settled Share-Based Payments - - - -
Pension Expense - - - -
Finance Expense under NFRS 166,754,250 106,914,728 166,754,250 106,914,728
Other Expenses related to Staff 3,357,563 34,295,996 1,248,600 34,145,696
Subtotal 1,451,015,431 1,388,713,697 1,429,489,610 1,368,495,432
Employees Bonus 222,470,431 192,790,405 216,775,523 186,912,599
Grand Total 1,673,485,862 1,581,504,102 1,646,265,133 1,555,408,031

Employees Bonus is provided at 10% of net profit before bonus and taxes as per the requirement of Bonus Act, 2030. Expenses
covered under this head include employees' salary, allowances, pension, gratuity, contribution to provident fund, training
expenses, uniform expenses, insurance, staff bonus, finance expense under NFRS, cash-settled share-based payments etc.

Loans to staffs are fair valued using the market rates.
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Other Operating Expenses Note 4.37
Particulars Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Directors' Fee 2,925,000 2,668,000 2,393,000 2,293,000
Directors' Expense 1,440,645 1126,858 1436,801 1126,858
Auditors' Remuneration 2,663,825 1,659,411 2,500,000 1,500,000
Other Audit Related Expense 181,926 151,009 181,926 151,009
Professional and Legal Expense 3,447,033 2,237,420 3,366,353 2,224,990
Office Administration Expense 422,317,378 391,486,523 416,301,862 386,044,135
Operating Lease Expense 7,095,394 23773484 6,846,111 23,773,484
Operating Expense of Investment Properties - - - -
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 10,349,816 13,526,061 10,320,596 13,489,516
Onerous Lease Provisions - - - -
Other 6,254,283 10,434,679 2,575,549 6,437,615
Total 456,675,300 447,063,445 445,922,198 437,040,607

All operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized and presented under this head. The
expenses covered under this account head includes office administration expense, other operating and overhead expense,
directors'emoluments, remuneration and non audit fee paid to auditors, professional and legal expense, branch closure cost
expense, redundancy cost expense, expense of restructuring, impairment of non financial assets, expense of corporate social
responsibility, onerous lease provisions etc. Furtherthe details of the office administration expenses is presented in Note 4.37.1.

4.37.1: Office Administration Expense

Particulars Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Water & Electricity 38,092,432 36,621,479 37,578,025 36,106,173
Repair & Maintenance
(a) Building 114,010 43,890 114,010 43,890
(b) Vehicle 8,555,626 7957,285 8,507,141 7,852,416
(c) Office Equipment & Furniture 5,836,582 4,592,526 5,689,545 4,422,335
(d) Computer & Accessories 1,626,749 922,432 1,626,749 922,432
(e]) Others 5,345,108 4,759,392 5,193,707 4,589,800
Insurance 10,781,129 9,711,817 10,735,665 9,652,860
Postage, Telex, Telephone & Fax 55,047,884 51,980,947 54,401,605 51,451,205
Printing, Stationery & Small Purchases 30,863,938 32,377,628 30,305,761 31,808,033
Newspaper, Books and Journals 61,701 88,340 51,941 67,690
Advertisement 9,405,065 8,613,200 9,256,314 8,464,168
Donation = = = =
Security Expenses 76,815,700 64,740,244 76,575,320 64,515,590
Deposit and Loan Insurance Guarantee Premium 52,989,818 51,010,798 52,989,818 51,010,798
Travel Allowance & Expenses 10,038,782 12,344,359 9,720,309 12,326,144
Entertainment = = = =
Annual/Special General Meeting Expenses 3,198,190 2,513,355 2,914,891 2,282,559
Others:
Business Promotion & Sponsorship 14,993,087 12,184,384 14,668,968 11,783,557
Cleaning & Sanitation 7,006,583 5,051,415 6,885,101 5,051,415
Fuel & Gas 24,090,563 24,724,248 23,828,665 24,563,964
Official Program Expenses 2,705,244 3,370,424 2,705,244 3,370,424
Renewal & Registration 13,003,446 13,687,228 12,656,930 12,990,448
Small Office Utilities 2,867799 2,525,980 2,867799 2,525,980
Software Subscription & Support 40,754,649 31,278,132 39,121,160 29,854,234
Share Related Expenses 1,000,000 2,356,282 1,000,000 2,356,282
Tea, Coffee and Snacks 6,402,179 5,951,947 6,402,179 5,951,947
Plant & Property Written Off - 61,257 - 61,257
Other Administrative Expenses 721114 2,017,534 505,015 2,017,534
Total 422,317,378 391,486,523 416,301,862 386,044,135
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Depreciation and Amortisation Note 4.38
Particulars Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Depreciation on Property and Equipment 155,043,100 137,741,316 150,276,932 134,789,136
Depreciation on Right To Use Assets 139,783,522 135,328,919 139,783,522 133,244,831
Depreciation on Investment Property - - - -
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 4,997442 5,563,008 4,997442 5,064,665
Total 299,824,064 278,633,243 295,057,896 273,098,632
Non Operating Income Note 4.39
Particulars Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Recovery of loan written off 800,000 - 800,000 =
Other income 666,664 155,554 666,664 155,554
Total 1,466,664 155,554 1,466,664 155,554
The income that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions is presented under this head.
Non Operating Expenses Note 4.40
Particulars Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Loan Written off 65,540,656 26,388,242 65,540,656 26,388,242
Redundancy Provision - - - -
Expense of Restructuring - - - -
Other Expense - - - -
Total 65,540,656 26,388,242 65,540,656 26,388,242

The expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of Bank's regular transactions is presented under this head.

Income Tax Expenses Note 4.41
Particulars Group
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Current tax expense 632,208,873 549,576,078 614,682,731 534,814,985
Current year 630,845,088 553,566,868 613,318,946 538,805,775
Adjustments for prior years 1,363,785 (3,.990,790] 1,363,785 (3,990,790)
Deferred tax expense (14,987,825) (27,815,337) (14,063,401) (28,936,515)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (14,987,825) (27.815,337) (14,063,401 (28,936,515)
Changes in tax rate - - - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - - - -
Total income tax expense 617,221,048 521,760,741 600,619,330 505,878,470
4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
Particulars Group Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Profit before tax 2,007185,518 1739,943,673 1,950,979,705 1,682,213,387
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 602,155,655 521,983,102 585,293,912 504,664,016
;Aadxdi?;g;fsot of expenses that are not deductible for 35,662,662 36,725,152 34279795 37938,047
Less: Tax effect on exempt income 12,956,715 5,141,386 6,254,760 3,796,287
Add/less: Tax effect on other items 5,983,486 = = =
Total income tax expense 630,845,088 553,566,868 613,318,946 538,805,775
Effective tax rate 31.43% 31.82% 31.44% 32.03%
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Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss o
For the year ended 32nd Asar 2082 3
(As per NRB Regulation) Figures in NPR g
Bank
32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Net profit or (loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss 1,350,360,375 1176,334,917 —
Appropriations: 1,350,360,375 1,176,334,917
a. General Reserve
b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Fund (647198) (133.484) <
c. Capital Redemption Reserve (250,000,000) (250,000,000) g
d. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund (13,503,604) (11,763,349) Q

[}
e. Staff Skill Development Fund (9.227,327) (4,194,634) 2
f. Other 1350,360,375 1176,334,917 S

- Investment Adjustment Reserve - 50,000,000

- CSR Expenses routed through Statement of Profit & Loss 10,320,596 13,489,516 o
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 813,717,994 738,465,983
Regulatory adjustment: 1,350,360,375 1,176,334,917 p
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) 236,701,338 (327153,840) =z
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) = = 3

)
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+] - - 2
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+) 59,071,365 (111,146,781) %
e. Deferred tax assets recognised [-)/ reversal (+) 6,050,129 (31,431,985) 2
f.  Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+] - - 2
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/reversal [+) = =
h. Actuarial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+] = 3 o
i. Other (+/-) 1350,360,375 1176,334,917

- Gains/(losses] from investments in equity instruments 27,503,292 (17.869,535]

- Interest Capitalized Reserve (1.207653) - g
Net profit for the year ended available for distribution 1,141,836,465 250,863,841 g
Opening Retained Earnings as on Shrawan 1 194,701,417 673,938,061 %
Adjustment (+/-) 17,563,865 (71,113,352) @
Distribution: - (658,987,133)

Bonus shares Issued - (626,037.777)

Cash dividend paid - (32,949,357) _
Total Distributable profit or (loss) as on Year end 1,354,101,747 194,701,417
Annualised Distributable Profit/Loss per share 19.22 276 %
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Risk Management

The robust risk management capabilities is imperative
in order to achieve an effective risk management
framework and contain the risks associated with

the business, a fully functional Risk Management
Committee is responsible for identifying reporting,
controlling and managing credit risk, operational risk,
market risk & liquidity risk. The Risk Management
Committee oversees global, macro, micro and
departmental level risk that arise out of daily business
operation as well as on periodic basis and are put to
the oversight of Senior Management, Risk Management
Committee and the Board committee to discuss the
reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate.

Risk Management Committee:

The Risk Management Committee is an independent
committee of the Directors that has, as its sole

and exclusive function, responsibility for the risk
management policies of the Bank and oversight of
implementation of risk management framework of
Bank.The committee assists the Board of Directors

in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with regard

to risk appetite that the Bank is able and willing to
assume in its exposures and business activities, risk
management, compliance framework, and governance
structure that supports it. It periodically reviews the
risk management process to ensure its integrity,
accuracy, and reasonableness. It also reviews whether
the internal control and risk management system is
adequate or not to ensure well-ordered and prudent
conduct of business. The committee reviews the
overall risk management structure and monitor the
effectiveness of the risk management system.

Risk Governance

The Bank implemented policies and procedures to
mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising to the Bank
and has trained risk culture among the employees by
establishing ownership mentality, capacity building
programs, well defined job responsibilities and
inhabiting good ethical culture. The Risk Management
Committee is responsible for the establishment of, and
compliance with, policies relating to Operation risk &
Credit risk.

The BankK's risk governance structure is such that
the responsibility for maintaining risk within the
Banks risk blanket is dropped down from the Board
to the appropriate functional, client business, senior
management and committees. The Board has set
policies and procedures of risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk mitigation, and control/ monitoring

in line with NRB directives, and has effectively
implemented the same at the Bank. The effectiveness
of the Bank's internal control system is reviewed
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regularly by the Board, its committees, senior
management, and internal audit committee.

Credit Risk

Credit risk management strategies include effectively
managing the risk of financial losses arising out

of booking an exposure on counterparty and also
ensuring independence of the credit risk function
from the origination, trading and sales function. Credit
risk is managed through a defined framework which
sets out policies, procedures and standards covering
the measurement and management of credit risk.
Clear segregation of duties has been established
between transaction originator in the business and the
approvers in the risk function.

Credit Risk Mitigation (CRM])

The Bank follows the well defined procedures to
manage and mitigate the credit related risk at the
various level:

« The credit applications are initially reviewed at
the branch where the branch assess the credit
worthiness of the proposed borrower and the quality
of the security offered.

« As asecond level of defense the Business
Development Officers have been appointed at the
regional level to independently oversee whether the
proceeding of the loan approval, creditworthiness
and collateral offered complies with the Bank's and
central Bank's norms.

« The credit proposal, if exceeds the prescribed
threshold are then reviewed by the Risk
Management Department which evaluates the
underlying risk of the proposal and decides whether
the proposal is within the risk appetite of the Bank.
This department is independent of the business unit
and reports directly to the Board level committee,
Risk Management Committee.

« After due review and identification of the underlying
risk by the Integrated Risk Management Department,
the proposal passes through different approving
authorities depending upon the type of the
proposallfunded or unfunded), level of underlying
risk and amount of the proposal.

« Once the proposal is approved by the prescribed
approving authority, the execution of security
documents, post approval proceeding are initiated
and completed at the branch level. The Credit
Administration Department reviews the security
documents to ensure compliance with the Bank's
and Central Bank's norms before disbursement of
the credit facilities.

« As a measure to mitigate the risk after disbursal, the
Bank monitors and reviews on quarterly to annual
basis depending upon the type of the facilities.



The separate Enforcement Unit under the Risk
Management Department has been stabilised to
check the post disbursal compliances. The level of
risk and early warning signals (EWS] are identified
on every review and necessary actions are taken if
required.

« Theinternal audit function of the Bank on the
periodic basis independently observes the
compliance and the status of the borrowers and
recommends the management with the best
practices that has to be adopted. The internal audit
department directly reports the Audit Committee
which is a board level committee.

« On the portfolio level, the Bank's risk management
strategies includes diversifying the borrowing
pool, risk based pricing, establishing the suitable
exposure limits for borrowers and group of
borrowers to ensure the risk exposure is under the
risk appetite expressed by the Risk Management
Policy of the Bank.

Operational Risk

Operational risk stems from the risk of loss resulting
from inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and systems or from external events. Operational
risk is recognized as a separate risk category which

Risks Potential Risk

&

the Bank manages through Risk Management Policy
approved by the Board. The primary oversight body
for the management of operational risk is the Risk
Management Committee. The Bank has also in

place the dedicated Integrated Risk Management
Department for monitoring and reporting the
operational risk faced by the Bank. The Bank have
"Operational Risk Monitoring & Reporting Framework
2079" to identify and mitigate the operational risk at
Bank as a whole, implementing control points and
creating measures for any hostile circumstances.

Risk management generally encompasses the process
of identifying risks to the Bank, measuring exposures
to those risks, ensuring that the risk is below the risk
appetite of the Bank and monitoring program is in
place, monitoring risk exposures and corresponding
capital needs on an ongoing basis, taking steps to
control or mitigate risk exposures and reporting to
Risk Management Committee and the Board on the
Bank's risk exposures and capital positions. Internal
controls are typically embedded in a Bank's day-to-
day business and are designed to ensure, to the extent
possible, that Bank activities are efficient and effective,
information is reliable, timely and complete and the
Bank is compliant with applicable laws and regulation.

Risk Mitigants

Overriding the implemented
standard operating procedures
and processes.

Internal Process Risks

The Bank has implemented the well defined set of polices and
processes for the execution of the every type of task in branch
and department. The compliance to the same is examined by
Internal Audit Department on an ongoing basis.

Untrained or underdeveloped

staffs

Poor HR management

Fraud and Misappropriations
Feisjple sl Absenteeism and late
attendance

Attrition Risk

Ensure employees are well trained on the basis of their
functions.

Ensuring right and adequate staff at the right place.
Regular internal check and reconciliations.

Checked through the implementation of bio metric attendance
device and human resource software.

Formal process are in place for succession planning. Further
the various staffs facilities have been extended to the
employees to retain, motivate and reduce the attrition risks.

Physical Threats
Cyber Attacks

Information System Risks  |nfrastructure failures

Loss of Data

CCTV, access door, panic alarm is placed in various places.
Use of firewall, antivirus, other software and regular monitoring.

Separate disaster recovery site [near site and far site) has been
set up.

Data back up is kept on regular basis.

The Bank has in place the "“Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Policy” which set outs the contingency and alternative
plans in case system failure due to external and internal events and ensure minimum down time. The Bank's systems is

regularly updated to keep pace with information requirement.

Compliance Risks Breach of laws and regulations.

To ensure the compliance with all regulatory requirements
including reporting impact of regulatory changes separate
Compliance Department has been set up.

Theft or Destruction of Bank's
Assets

External Events Natural Disaster Risk

Physical security of the Bank is under 24 hour surveillance
both vide CCTV and security guard.

“Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Policy” are
followed in case of the unfavourable circumstances due to
natural disasters.
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Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk to a Bank resulting from
movements in market prices, in particular, changes in
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity and
commodity prices. The main market risk factors include
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other market
benchmarks. The main objective is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable levels
in line with the BankK's risk appetite. The risks subject to
this requirement are as follows:

The Bank has developed a comprehensive framework
for market risk management which includes limits,
KRIs and risk management tools. Moreover, the Bank
conducts stress testing and sensitivity analysis to
review the Bank's performance under various stress
conditions. The Treasury Department and the Chief
Financial Officer monitors the asset and liability
positions under the supervision of ALCO.

The Bank recognizes market risk as the possibility for
loss of earnings or economic value to the Bank caused
due to adverse changes in the market level of interest
rates or prices of securities (equity), foreign exchange
rates and volatilities of those prices. Bank has an Asset
Liability Management Committee [ALCO) which meets
periodically to discuss product pricing for deposits and
advances and maturity profiles of assets and liabilities,
articulating interest rate, view of Bank, funding policy,

transfer pricing policy and balance sheet management.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity riskis theriskthat a company or Bank may

be unable to meet short term financial demands. This
usually occurs due to the inability to convert a security
or hard asset to cash without a loss of capital and/or
income in the process. Liquidity risk arises because of
the possibility that the Bank might be unable to meet its
payment obligations when they fall due, as a result of
mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both
normal and stress circumstances. Such scenarios could
occur when funding needed for liquid asset positions is
not available to the Bank on acceptable terms.

The Bank measures the liquidity by the various
financial ratios. The favourable liquidity ratios are the

outcome of the effective liquidity management policies
of the Bank.The Bank monitor these ratios closely

and determine whether the liquidity management
strategies and policies adopted by are appropriate

in circumstances. These ratios also function to fill the
void that may exists between the changing economic
environment vis-a-vis the Bank liquidity management
policies. The liquidity risk is daily monitored by the
Treasury Department and the liquidity ratio is also
maintained above the regulatory requirement.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is the risk of potential harm to

the Bank's name and reputation as well as the risk

to earnings, capital, or liquidity resulting from any
associations, actions, or inactions that may be viewed
as inappropriate, unethical, or at inconsistent with the
Bank's values and principles. The Operational Risk
Management unit of the Bank evaluates reputational
risks using data obtained through procedures

like loss event and near-miss identification, peer
group comparison, and assessments of issues like
employee conduct and competency, customer service
and grievances. The Integrated Risk Management
Department keeps track of reputational risk using a
risk framework and mitigating measures. The Bank
makes an ongoing effort to maintain and raise the
calibre of its services.

Money Laundering and Terrorism Financing Risk
Both money laundering and terrorism financing can
have serious consequences for banks and financial
institutions, including reputational damage, financial
losses, and legal and regulatory penalties.

To mitigate these risks, the Bank has implemented a
range of measures, such as customer due diligence,
transaction monitoring, and suspicious activity
reporting. These measures are designed to identify and
prevent the flow of illicit funds through the financial
system.The Bank also have the robust and effective
programs in place to identify and prevent money
laundering and terrorism financing. This includes
ongoing training for employees, regular assessments
of the effectiveness of their programs, and the
development of strong relationships with regulatory
authorities and law enforcement agencies.
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5.2 Capital Management

i. The Bank manages its capital to meet regulatory norms and current and future business needs considering

&

the risks in its business. For the purpose of effective management of the capital the bank has formulated and 9
implemented the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Procedure (ICAAP) which encompasses policies, processes g
and methodologies to determine the adequate level of capitalisation for the Bank to meet regulatory norms and o
current and future business needs under normal as well and under stress scenarios. The board of directors on the =
frequent interval monitor the capital adequacy position and the risk weighted assets and take a necessary steps as
appropriate.
The Bank capital comprise of the fully paid equity shares, statutory reserves and other reserves. During the reporting
period the bank has not raised the capital through the hybrid capital instrument.
&
%
ii. Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy Q
1. Tier1 Capital and a breakdown of its components is as follows: E
Rs.in'000 g'
i. Paid up Equity Share Capital 7,046,938 7,046,938
ii. Share Premium - - o
iii. Statutory General Reserves 1,985,983 1,712,398 -
iv. Retained Earnings 1,354,102 194,701 c_-eh
v. Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss] - - %
vi. Capital Redemption Reserve 500,000 250,000 o
vii. Capital Adjustment Reserve - - ®
viii. Dividend Equalization Reserves - - §
ix. Other Free Reserve - - )
X. Less:Goodwill - - =
xi. Less:Deferred Tax Assets - - —
xii. Less:Intangible Assets (10,618) (11,768)
xili. Less:Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions - -
xiv. Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests (399,596) (399,596) ®
xv. Less:Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits - - %
Xvi. Less:Investments arising out of underwriting commitments - - é
xvii. Less:Reciprocal crossholdings = = 3
xviii. Less:Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized - = v
xix. Less: Other Deductions (10,000] -
Total Tier 1 Capital 10,466,809 8,542,674
2. Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components is as follows:
Rs.in'000 %
i. Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share - - 5
ii. Subordinated Term Debt 750,000 1,000,000 ?
iii. Hybrid Capital Instruments = - -_81
iv. General loan loss provision 1,095,867 1,014,618 7]
v. Exchange Equalization Reserve SEYS 2,747
vi. Investment Adjustment Reserve = -
vii. Asset Revaluation Reserve - -
viii. Accrued Interest Receivable on pass loan included in Regulatory Reserve 122,945 m
ix. Interest Capitalized Reserve included in Regulatory Reserve 1208 §
x. Other Reserves - - g.
Total Tier 2 Capital 1,973,414 2,017,365 2
2
o)
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3. Details of Subordinated Term Debt including Hybrid Capital Instruments.
Following is the details of subordinate term debts raised by the Bank:

Rs.in'000
S.N. Name Maturity Period Outstanding Amount recokned
Amount as Capital Fund
1. 875% Muktinath Debenture/ Rinpatra 2084/85 7 Years 1,250,000 750,000
Total Tier 1 Capital 1,250,000 750,000
The Bank has not raised any funds through the hybrid capital instruments.
4. Deductions from Capital:
Rs.in'000
S.N. Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
i. Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests* 399,596 399,596
iii. Intangible Assets 10,618 11,768
Total Deductions 410,214 411,364

* Investment made in Bank's subsidiary, Muktinath Capital Limited and Bank's associate company, Muktinath Krishi
Company Limited.

5. Total Qualifying Capital:

Rs.in'000
S.N. Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 31st Asar 2081
i. Core Capital (Tier1) 399,596 399,596
ii. Supplementary Capital (Tier 2] 10,618 11768
Total Deductions 410,214 411,364
*Investment made in Bank's subsidiary, Muktinath Capital Limited and Bank's associate company, Muktinath Krishi
Company Limited.
B. Capital Adequacy Ratio:
Rs.in'000
S.N. Particulars Regulatory 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Requirement
i. Tier1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 8.50% 10.84% 9.46%
ii. TierlandTier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 11.00% 12.88% 11.69%
iii. Risk Exposure
1. Risk Weighted Exposures and Capital Adequacy Table
Rs.in'000

S.N. Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

1. Risk Exposures:

Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 87,669,326 81,169,412
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 6,107,951 5,646,910
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 39133 22113
Risk Weighted Exposures under Credit, Operational and Market Risk 93,816,410 86,838,435
Adjustments under Pillar Il 2,763,140 3,463,204
Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (7) 879,274 858,051
Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a (9) 1,883,866 2,605,153
Total Risk Weighted Exposures 96,579,550 90,301,639
2. Capital Fund
Core Capital (Tier 1) 10,466,809 8,542,674
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 1973414 2,017,365
Total Capital Fund 12,440,223 10,560,039
3. Capital Adequacy Ratios
Total Core Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 10.84% 9.46%
Total Capital Fund to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 12.88% 11.69%
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Rs.in'000

S.N. Categories 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

i. Claims on Government and Central Bank - -

2. Risk weighted exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk

ii. Claims on Other Official Entities - -

iii. Claims on Banks 744,692 791,829

iv. Claims on Domestic Corporates and Securities Firms 15,872,099 12,622,981

v. Claims on Regulatory Retail Portfolio 35,895,201 36,599,741

vi. Claims Secured by Residential Properties 9,386,149 8,638,993
vii. Claims Secured by Commercial Real Estate 2,226,450 2,214,624
viii. Past Due Claims 4,233,919 3,034,870
ix. High Risk Claims 9,161,609 9,636,205

x. Other Assets 8,488,984 6,855,161

xi. Off Balance Sheet Items 1.630,222 775,008
Total Credit Risk 87,639,326 81,169,412

3. Types of eligible credit risk mitigants used and the benefits availed under CRM:

Rs.in'000

i. Deposits with Banks 699,152 953,096

ii. Deposits with other banks/financial institutions = =

iii. Gold 946,281 634,821

iv. Government and NRB Securities = =

v. Guarantee of Government of Nepal - -

vi. Securities/Guarantee of other Sovereigns - -
vii. Guarantee of Domestic Banks = =
viii. Guarantee of Multilateral Development Banks - -
ix. Guarantee of Foreign Banks = -
Total Credit Risk 1,645,433 1,587,917

4. Amount of Performing and Non Performing Loans & Advances and Provisions

Rs.in'000

S.N. Loan Classification 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

A.Performing Loans

i. Good Loans 88,042758 878235 82,292,812 981218
i giiﬂ”cwred Loans classified as 2.442,975 121502 5,445,208 270701
iii. Watchlist 6,863,680 341533 4701202 237288
Sub -Total 97,349,413 1,341,270 92,439.222 1,489,207

B. Non-performing Loans
i. Restructure/Reschedule Loan - = - -

il. Substandard Loan 460,176.99 113,943.53 854,655.57 212,372.82
iii. Doubtful Loan 825,095.49 411130.12 633,816.52 315,540.66
iv. Loss Loan 1,694,265.29 1692,586.27 752,607.64 748,24279
Sub -Total 2,979,53777 2,217,659.91 2,241,079.74 1,276,156.27
Total 100,328,951 3,558,930 94,680,302 2,765,364
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5. Non Performing Assets Ratios:
In %

S.N. Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

As per Revised Assets Classification norms of NRB
i. Gross NPAto Gross Loan and Advances 2.97% 2.37%
ii. Net NPAto Net Loan and Advances 0.76% 1.02%

6. Movement on Provision for Good and Non Performation Loans:

S.N. Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 Change in %

For loan classifies as Good

i. Pass 999,737 1,251,919 -20.14%

ii. Watchlist 341,533 237,288 43.93%
For loan classifies as NPA

i. Substandard Loan 113,944 212,373 -48.35%

ii. Doubtful Loan 411,130 315,541 30.29%

iii. LossLoan 1,692,586 748,243 126.21%
Total 3,558,930 2,765,364 28.70%

7. Write off of Loans

S.N. Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

i. Write Off of Loans 65,540,656 26,388,242
Total 65,540,656 26,388,242

8. Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk

Rs.in'000
A.Balance Sheet Exposures Book Specific Eligible Net Risk
Value Provision CRM Value Weighted
Exposures

Cash Balance 1,495,592 - - 1495592 0% -
Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank 4,568,401 - - 4,568,401 0% -
Gold - - - - 0% -
Investment in Nepalese Government Securities 22,002,800 - - 22,002,800 0% -
All Claims on Government of Nepal - - - - 0% =
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities - - - - 0% -
All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank - - - - 0% -
Claims on Foreign Government and Central B B B B 0% B
Bank (ECA0-1)
Claims on Foreign Government and Central B B B B 20% B
Bank [ECA-2)
Claims on Foreign Government and Central B B B B 50% B
Bank [ECA-3) 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central B B B - 100% B
Bank (ECA-4-6) ?
Claims on Foreign Government and Central B B B B 150% B
Bank ([ECA-7)
Claims On BIS, IMF, ECB, EC and MDB's

A - - - - 0% -
recognized by the framework
Claims on Other Multilateral Development B B B B 100% B
Banks
Claims on Domestic Public Sector Entities = = = = 100% =
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2) - - - - 50% -
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA7) - - - - 150% -
Claims on domestic banks that meet capital B B ®
adequacy requirements 3,723,461 3.723,461 20% 744,692
Claims on domestic banks that do not meet B B B - 100% B

capital adequacy requirements

220 Muktinath Bikas Bank



A.Balance Sheet Exposures Book Specific Eligible Net Risk
Value Provision CRM Value Weighted
Exposures
Claims on foreign bank ([ECA Rating 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2 - - - - 50% -
Claims on foreign bank [ECA Rating 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7) - - - - 150% -
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in SAARC
region and China operating with a buffer of B B B B 20% B
1% above their respective regulatory capital
requirement
Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating B B B B 50% B
score equivalent to AAA] °
Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating B B B B 70% B
score equivalent to AA+ to AA-) ?
Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating _ _ B B 80% B
score equivalent to A+ to A-)
Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating B B B - 100% B
score equivalent to BBB+ & below)
Claims on Domestic Corporates (Unrated) 15,872,099 - - 15,872,099 100% 15,872,099
Claims on Foreign Corporates ([ECA 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Claims on Foreign Corporates ([ECA 2) - - - - 50% -
Claims on Foreign Corporates ([ECA 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Claims on Foreign Corporates ([ECA7) - - - - 150% -
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue) 49,450,572 - 1590304 47860,268 75% 35,895,201
Claims fulfilling all criterion of regularity retail
: - - - - 100% -
except granularity
Claims secured by residential properties 15,135,041 - - 15135,041 60% 9,081,024
Claims not fully secured by residential B B B B 150% B
properties
Claims secured by residential properties 395,054 89,930 B 305125 100% 305125
(Overdue)
Claims secured by Commercial real estate 2,226,450 - - 2226450 100% 2,226,450
Pt Al el [ egir Bkins S22l 07 | aommess|  nemE - 2822613 150% 4233919
residential properties)
High Risk claims 2,703,852 - 55,130 2,648,722 150% 3,973,084
Real Estate loans for land acquisition and
development (Other than mentioned in Capital selsiel s = =| &8ssz 125% 4,949,154
Adequacy framework 2015-point 3.3(j)1)(k))
Lending against securities (bonds) - - - - 100% -
Lending against Shares(upto Rs.5 Million) 3,719,904 - - 3719804 100% 3,719,904
Trust Receipt Loans for Trading Firms - - - - 120% -
Real Estate loans for land acquisition and
development (For institutions/projects
registred/licensed and approved by - - - - 100% -
Government of Nepal for land acquisition and
development purposes)
Personal Hirepurchase/Personal Auto Loans 239,372 - - 239,372 100% 239,372
Investments in equity and other capital
instruments of institutions listed in stock 525,024 - - 525,024 100% 525,024
exchange
Investments in equity and other capital
instruments of institutions not listed in the 173,350 - - 173,350 150% 260,025
stock exchange
Staff loan secured by residential property 798,069 - - 798,069 S50% 399,035
Intere_s.t Receivable/claim on government 162107 B B 162107 0% B
securities
Cash in transit and other cash items in the
; = = - - 20% -
process of collection
Other Assets (as per attachment] 3,586,297 1,300 - 3584997 100% 3,584,997
Total (A) 135477000 2,008,850 1645433 131,822,717 86,009,103
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B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures Book Specific Eligible Net Risk
Value Provision CRM Value Weighted
Exposures
Revocable Commitments - - - - 0% -
Bills Under Collection - - - - 0% -
Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities = = = = 10% -

LC Commitments With Original Maturity Upto 6

months domestic counterparty — ; ; eI DS Sthezz
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2] - - - - 50% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) - - - - 150% -
months domestio coutersarty 8100 : - el09 0% 4554
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2] - - - - 50% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) - - - - 150% -
Gusrantas domesti countarperty 355,056 - 275 352341 40% 140836
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) - - - - 20% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2] - - - - 50% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) - - - - 100% -
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) - - - - 150% -
Underwriting commitments - - - - 50% -
Lending of Bank's Securities or Posting of

Securities as collateral ) ) ) - o :
rReeC%uurfsr;ase Agreements, Assets sale with 3,000,000 B - 3000000 20% 600,000
Advance Payment Guarantee 361,669 - 1985 359,684 100% 359,684
Financial Guarantee 1760 - - 1760 100% 1760
Acceptances and Endorsements - - - - 100% -
Unpaid portion of Partly paid shares and B B B - 100% B
Securities

Irrevocable Credit commitments (short term) 2,462,329 - - 2462329 20% 492,466
Irrevocable Credit commitments (long term) - - - - 50% -
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in SAARC

region operating with a buffer of 1% above their - - - - 20% -
respective regulatory capital requirement

Other Contingent Liabilities - - - - 100% -
Unpaid Guarantee Claims - - - - 200% -
Total (B) 6,344,032 - 4,700 6,339,332 1,630,222
Total RWE for Credit Risk [A) +(B) 141,821,032 2,008,850 1,650,133 138,162,049 87,639,326
Adjustments under Pillar Il

SRP B.4a(3) - Add 10% of the loans & facilities in

excess of Single Obligor Limits to RWE

SRP B.4al4] - Add 1% of the contract (sale] value

in case of the sale of credit with recourse to 30,000
RWE

;g;iLfﬂi{g[}gg‘ﬁ';ﬁ;jflfﬂer Bank's 141821032 2008850 1650133 138162,049 87,669,526
Total RWE for Credit Risk (A] +(B) 141,821,032 2,008,850 1,650,133 138,162,049 87,639,326
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9 Eligible Credit Risk Mitigants
Rs.in'000

A.Balance Sheet Exposures Deposits | Deposits Gold i Sec/ Guarantee | Guarantee Sec/ Total
with Bank | with other Guarantee of of MDBs | Guarantee

banks/Fl of Other | domestic of Foreign

Sovereigns| banks Banks

Balance Sheet Exposures = - - - - - = - o -

Claims on Foreign government
and Central Bank ([ECA-2)

Claims on Foreign government
and Central Bank [ECA-3)

Claims on Foreign government
and Central Bank ([ECA-4-6)

Claims on Foreign government
and Central Bank [ECA-7)

Claims on Other Multilateral
Development Banks

Claims on Domestic Public
Sector Entities

Claims on Public Sector Entity
[ECA0-1)

Claims on Public Sector Entity
[ECA2)

Claims on Public Sector Entity
[ECA 3-6)

Claims on Public Sector Entity
[ECA7)

Claims on domestic banks
that meet capital adequacy - - - - - s = a A -
requirements

Claims on domestic banks that
do not meet capital adequacy = - - - - s = 2 A -
requirements

Claims on foreign bank (ECA
Rating 0-1)

Claims on foreign bank (ECA
Rating 2)

Claims on foreign bank (ECA
Rating 3-6)

Claims on foreign bank [ECA
Rating 7)

Claims on foreign bank
incorporated in SAARC region
and China operating with

a buffer of 1% above their
respective regulatory capital
requirement

Claims on Domestic
Corporates [Credit rating - - - - - - - - - -
score equivalent to AAA)

Claims on Domestic
Corporates [Credit rating - - - - - - - - - -
score equivalent to AA+ to AA-]

Claims on Domestic
Corporates [Credit rating - - - - - - - - - -
score equivalent to A+ to A-)

Claims on Domestic
Corporates [Credit rating
score equivalent to BBB+ &
below)

Claims on Domestic
Corporates (Unrated)

Claims on Foreign Corporates

[ECAD-1)

Claims on Foreign Corporates i i i i B il n i i _

[ECA2)

Claims on Foreign Corporates A i i A i A i A B -

[ECA 3-6) I

2

Claims on Foreign Corporates i i i i R il n i i _ 8

[ECA7) Q
. . o

Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not 65425117 936,052.38 A i i i A - 1590304 =

Overdue) g

Claims fulfilling all criterion o

of regularity retail except = = = = = . > n ‘ - 2

granularity o

Muktinath Bikas Bank 225



A\

% 19'Annual Report

A.Balance Sheet Exposures Deposits | Deposits Gold Govt.& | Guarantee Guarantee Sec/ Total
with Bank | with other NRB of Govt. of | Guarantee of MDBs | Guarantee

banks/Fl Securities Nepal of Other | domestic of Foreign

Sovereigns| banks Banks

Claims secured by residential
properties

Claims not fully secured by
residential properties

Claims secured by residential
properties (Overdue)

Claims secured by Commercial
Real Estate

Past due claims [except for
claims secured by residential - - - - - - = s A -
properties)

High Risk claims 44,900.53 10,229.00 - - - - - - 55,130

Lending against securities
[bonds])

Lending against Shares(upto
Rs.5 Million)

Trust Receipt Loans for Trading
Firms

Real Estate loans for land

acquisition and development

(For institutions/projects

registred/licensed and - - - - - - - - - -
approved by Government of

Nepal for land acquisition and

development purposes)

Personal Hirepurchase/
Personal Auto Loans

Investments in equity and
other capital instruments of
institutions listed in stock
exchange

Investments in equity and
other capital instruments of
institutions not listed in the
stock exchange

Other Assets (as per

attachment)
Total (A) 699152 - 946,281 - - - = = - 1645433
B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures Deposits | Deposits Gold Govt.& | Guarantee Sec/ Guarantee| Guarantee Sec/ Total

with Bank | with other NRB of Govt. of | Guarantee of of MDBs | Guarantee

banks/Fl Securities Nepal of Other | domestic of Foreign

Sovereigns| banks Banks

Forward Exchange Contract
Liabilities
LC Commitments With Original

Maturity Upto 6 months - - - - = - o o . -
domestic counterparty

Foreign counterparty (ECA
Rating 0-1)

Foreign counterparty (ECA
Rating 2)

Foreign counterparty (ECA
Rating 3-6)

Foreign counterparty (ECA
Rating 7)

LC Commitments With Original

Maturity Over 6 months - - - - = 5 o 2 A -
domestic counterparty

Foreign counterparty (ECA
Rating 0-1)

Foreign counterparty (ECA
Rating 2)

Foreign counterparty (ECA
Rating 3-6)

Foreign counterparty (ECA
Rating 7)

Bid Bond, Performance Bond
and Counter guarantee 271466 - - - - - - - - 2715
domestic counterparty

Foreign counterparty (ECA
Rating 0-1)
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B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures Deposits | Deposits Gold Govt.& | Guarantee Sec/ Guarantee | Guarantee Sec/ Total
with Bank | with other NRB of Govt. of | Guarantee of of MDBs | Guarantee

banks/Fl Securities Nepal of Other | domestic of Foreign

Sovereigns| banks Banks

Foreign counterparty (ECA
Rating 2)

Foreign counterparty (ECA
Rating 3-6)

Foreign counterparty (ECA
Rating 7)

Underwriting commitments - - - - = 5 o 2 A -

Lending of Bank's Securities
or Posting of Securities as - - - - - - = s A -
collateral

Repurchase Agreements,
Assets sale with recourse

Advance Payment Guarantee 1985.00 = = = = = = - - 1,985

Financial Guarantee - - - - = = o A 4 -

Acceptances and
Endorsements

Unpaid portion of Partly paid
shares and Securities

Irrevocable Credit
commitments (short term)

Irrevocable Credit
commitments (long term)

Other Contingent Liabilities = - - - - = = a a -
Unpaid Guarantee Claims - - - - g o . . . -
Total [B) 4700 - - - - - - - - 4,700
Total Credit Risk Mitigants (B) 703,851 - 946,281 - - - - - - 1650133

10.Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk

Rs.in'000
2078-79 2079-80 2080-81
Net Interest Income 3,329,779.38 4,239,341.31 4,104,093.96
Commission and Discount Income 497,493.26 548,579.78 592,895.44
Other Operating Income 46,878.50 48,035.47 19,972.60
Exchange Fluctuation Income 8,44476 533.94 2,788.08
Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense during the period - - -
Gross income (a) 4,719,750 3,882,596 4,836,490
Alfa (b) 15% 15% 15%
Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb]] 707963 582,389 725,474
Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of c) 671,942
Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times (e) 9
Equivalent Operational Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe]] 6,107,951
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11. Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk

Rs. in full figures

(FCY) (NPR) Position
Indian Rupee 25,000.00 160 40,019 40,019
United States Dollar 457,004.45 13740 62,792,411 62,792,411
Great Britain Pound 133733 186.48 249,385 249,385
Euro 44,988.92 160.25 7,208,249 7,208,249
Thai Baht 174,790.00 423 739,362 739,362
Swiss Franc 3,540.00 172.26 609,783 609,783
Australian Dollar 8,966.71 9171 822,292 822,292
Canadian Dollar 34,605.00 100.15 3,465,691 3,465,691
Singapore Dollar 12,233.00 107.04 1,309,359 1,309,359
Japanese Yen 1,930,000.00 0.93 1,793,935 1793,935
Hong Kong Dollar 55,160.00 1748 963,921 963,921
Danish Kroner - - - -
Swedish Kroner - - - -
Saudi Arabian Riyal 41,570.00 36.36 1,511,485 1,511,485
Qatari Riyal 5,621.00 3749 210,703 210,703
Emirati Dirham 88,580.00 3744 3,315,992 3,315,992
Malaysian Ringgit 1,800.00 32.01 57,618 57,618
South Korean Won 2,162,000.00 0.10 214,687 214,687
Chinese Yuan 23,560.00 19.13 450,585 450,585
Kuwaiti Dinar 510.00 44764 228,294 228,294
Bahraini Dinar 321.00 363.83 116,789 116,789
(a) Total Open Position 86,101,561 86,101,561
[b) Fixed Percentage 5%
[c) Capital Charge for Market Risk (=axb) 4,305,078
(d) Risk Weight [reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times 9.09
(e) Equivalent Market Risk Weight Exposure (=cxd) 39,133,159
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5.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

&

The financial assets and liabilities are classified in Amortised Cost, fair value through profit and loss and fair value
through other comprehensive income. The following table exhibit the the classification of financial assets and liabilities:

32nd Asar 2082
Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Total

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 7.210,366,692 - - 7.210,366,692
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 12,874,425,202 - - 12,874,425,202
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - 170,818,862 - 170,818,862
Loans and Advances to BFls 1,621,933,849 - - 1,621,933,849
Loans and Advances to Customers 97,223,242,655 - - 97,223,242,655
Investment Securities 13,899,940,558 - 709,881,577 14,609,822,135
Other Assets 583,919,947 - - 583,919,947
Total Financial Assets 133,413,828,903 170,818,862 709,881,577 134,294,529,342
Financial Liabilities

Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 3,718,026,296 - - 3,718,026,296
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 415,629,581 - - 415,629,581
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Deposits from Customers 117.335,442,710 - - 117,335,442,710
Borrowings 2,083,333 - - 2,083,333
Other Liabilities 1,300.731,448 268,157,511 31,455,289 1,600,344,248
Debt Securities Issued 1,248,016,742 - - 1,248,016,742
Total Financial Liabilities 124,019,930,110 268,157,511 31,455,289 124,319,542,910

32nd Asar 2082
Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Total

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 6,583,139,582 - - 6,583,139,582
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 12,874,425,202 - - 12,874,425,202
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - - - -
Loans and Advances to BFls 1621,933,849 - - 1621,933,849
Loans and Advances to Customers 97,223,242,655 - - 97,223,242,655
Investment Securities 13,856,839,938 - 709,881,576 14,566,721,514
Other Assets 525,028,705 - - 525,028,705
Total Financial Assets 132,684,609,931 - 709,881,576  133,394,491,507
Financial Liabilities

Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 3.718,026,296 - - 3.718,026,296
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 415,629,581 - - 415,629,581
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Deposits from Customers 117430,718,877 - - 117430,718,877
Borrowings 2,083,333 - - 2,083,333
Other Liabilities 739,075,829 266,366,126 31,455,289 1,036,897,244
Debt Securities Issued 1,248,016,742 - - 1,248,016,742
Total Financial Liabilities 123,553,550,658 266,366,126 31,455,289 123,851,372,073
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31st Asar 2081
Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Total

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 3,382,291,381 - - 3,382,291,381
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 9,606,142,194 - - 9,606,142,194
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - 102,940,286 - 102,940,286
Loans and Advances to BFls 2139,626,534 - - 2,139,626,534
Loans and Advances to Customers 91,807,309,025 - - 91,907,308,025
Investment Securities 13,890,181,038 - 392,222,317 14,282,403,355
Other Assets 712,155,726 - - 712,155,726
Total Financial Assets 121,637,705,898 102,940,286 392,222,317  122,132,868,501
Financial Liabilities

Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 769,621,798 - - 769,621,798
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 415,629,581 - - 415,629,581
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Deposits from Customers 109,693,104,367 - - 109,693,104,367
Borrowings 10,416,667 - - 10,416,667
Other Liabilities 1,271,494,950 252,649,683 (17.209,674) 1,506,934,959
Debt Securities Issued 1,247443,582 - - 1247443,582
Total Financial Liabilities 113,407,710,945 252,649,683 (17.209,674) 113,643,150,954

3lst Asar 2081
Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Total

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 3,134,539,704 - - 3.134,539,704
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 9,606,142,194 - - 9,606,142,194
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - - - -
Loans and Advances to BFls 2,139,626,534 - - 2,139,626,534
Loans and Advances to Customers 91,907,308,025 - - 91,907,308,025
Investment Securities 13,857,025,789 - 392,222,317 14,249,248,106
Other Assets 639,172,527 - - 639,172,527
Total Financial Assets 121,283,815,773 - 392,222,317 121,676,038,090
Financial Liabilities

Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 769,621,798 - - 769,621,798
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 415,629,581 - - 415,629,581
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Deposits from Customers 109,758,876,133 - - 109,758,876,133
Borrowings 10,416,667 - - 10,416,667
Other Liabilities 1169,176,170 251,162,167 (17.209,674) 1403,128,663
Debt Securities Issued 1,247443,582 - - 1,247443,582
Total Financial Liabilities 113,371,163,931 251,162,167 (17.209,674) 113,605,116,424
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5.4 Operating Segment Information
1. General information

Factors that management used to identify the entity's reportable segments 9
An operating segment is a component of the Bank that engages in business activities from which it may earn g
revenue and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Bank's o
other components, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make =
decisions about resources allocated to each segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available.
Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management have identified three
reporting segment for the purpose of financial reporting:
s
i. Banking Operation g
The banking of the Bank provides the customer with the services like personal and corporate banking, corporate Q
and retail credit, project financing, hire purchase financing, trade financing, foreign currency operations, issuing of f_.%
debit cards, internet banking, mobile banking, money remittance facilities and other incidental services. The income g'
includes all the revenue generated for providing aforesaid services while expenses includes interest income,
personnel expenses and operating expenses including the impairment charges created on the assets of
the segment. —
ii. Treasury Operation py
Treasury function of the bank manages the liquidity on the branch level and of the banks as a whole. This segment g"
encompasses the incomes derived from government securities, treasury bills, dividend on investment securities, forex é
trading and revaluation gain/loss. The interest cost of borrowing, personnel expenses, depreciation, provisions on the 2
securities and other operating expenses are the cost included in this segment. %
2
iii. Digital Banking Operation g
Digital Banking Operation encompasses the revenue generated through the mobile banking, internet banking,
different wallets, remittances and processing of digital transactions. —_
2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Particulars Banking Treasury Digital Banking Total o
Revenues from external customers 10,594,377,089 975,929,440 188,526,480 11,758,833,009 %
Inter Segment Expenses/revenues = = = = é
Net Revenue 10,594,377,089 975,929,440 188,526,480 11,758,833,009 §
Interest Revenue 10,126,667,634 922,203,102 = 11,048,870,736
Interest Expense 6.325,355,010 146,025,942 - 6.471,380,952
Net interest expenses/revenue 3,801,312,624 776,177,160 - 4,577,489,784 o
Depreciation and Amortisation 294,597,963 49,088 410,845 295,057,896
Segment Profit /(Loss) 1,069,017.783 776,128,072 105,833,850 1,950,979,705 o
Impairment of Assets 3.558,930,146 - - 3.558,930,146 ,@:
Segment Assets 103,587,809,142 32,928,470,173 3,924,010 136,520,203,325 %
Segment Liabilities 122,945,349,634 1,665,729,656 99,053,869 124,710,133,159 ‘;20
@
3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities §
(/2]

Revenues from external customers comprise of gross interest revenue, gross fee and commission revenue, net
trading revenue, other operating incomes and intersegment revenue.

The transaction between the department are recorded using the interbranch and interdepartmental account.
These accounts are reconciled and interdepartmental balances are cancelled out at each reporting date. The
interdepartmental revenue and expenses are the transfer pricing of the funds which is calculated using the
bank's policy.
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4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

a.Revenue

Particulars Amount in NPR

Total revenues for reportable segments 11,758,833,009
Other revenues =

Elimination of intersegment revenues -
Entity's revenues 11,758,833,009

b. Profit or loss

Particulars Amount in NPR

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 1,950,979,705
Other profit or loss -

Elimination of intersegment profits -
Unallocated amount =

Profit before income tax 1,950,979,705

c.Assets

Particulars Amount in NPR

Total assets for reportable segments 136,520,203,325
Other assets -

Unallocated amounts -
Entity's assets 136,520,203,325

d.Assets

Particulars Amount in NPR

Total liabilities for reportable segments 124,710,133,159
Other liabilities =
Unallocated liabilities =

Entity's liabilities 124,710,133,159

S. Information about products and services

Particulars Amount in NPR

Funded and Non Funded Credit Facilities 10,480,662,064
Treasury Operations 975,929,440
Remittance 6,739,865
Service Fees 235,684,957
Digital Banking Services 47.261,347
Other Allied Products and Services 12,555,336
Total Revenue 11,758,833,009
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5.5

5.6

5.7

6. Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical areas

&

Provinces Amount in NPR

Koshi Province 1403,359,698
Madesh Pradesh 894,133,449
Bagmati Pradesh 4,805,181,995
Gandaki Pradesh 2,627762,867
Lumbini Pradesh 1,604,569,091
Karnali Pradesh 162,321,021
Sudur Paschim Pradesh 261,504,887
Total 11,758,833,009

7. Information about major customers
The Bank do not have any customer, which generate more than 10% of the entity's revenue.

Share options and share based payment
A share-based payment is a transaction in which the bank receives goods or services either as consideration for
its equity instruments or by incurring liabilities for amounts based on the price of the entity's shares or other equity

instruments of the entity. The Bank do not extend the share options and share based payment to any of its employees.

Thus, during the reporting period the bank does not have any transactions that are to be accounted as per NFRS 2*
Share based payments".

Contingent liabilities and commitment
Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and commitments are made on Note 4.28.

Related Party Disclosures

Arelated party is a person or entity that is related to the reporting entity ("the Bank") by virtue of having control or
joint control, significant influence or being key managerial personnel of the entity as defined in "NAS 24 Related Party
Disclosures”. The Bank has identified the following related parties and transactions with them.

i. List of related party
The following parties have been identified as the related party transaction as per NAS 24:

Name of the Related Party Relationship

Muktinath Capital Limited Subsidiary Company
Muktinath Krishi Company Limited Associate Company
Bharat Raj Dhakal* Chairman
Khim Prakash Malla* Chairman
Narayan Kumar Shrestha Director
Bharat Prasad Lamsal Director
Binod Kumar Sharma Director
Saroja Shrestha [Koirala) Director
Umesh Kumar Acharya Independent Director
Pradyuman Pokharel, Chief Executive Officer Key Managerial Personnel
Samir Sekhar Bajracharya, Deputy Chief Executive Officer Key Managerial Personnel
Til Bahadur Gurung, Assistant Deputy Chief Executive Officer Key Managerial Personnel
Govinda Bahadur Raut, Assistant Chief Executive Officer Key Managerial Personnel

*The chairman Mr. Bharat Raj Dhakal resigned from the post vide 346th Board Meeting dated 2081/11/21 and Mr. Khim
Prakash Malla was appointed as the Chairman of the Bank vide 347th Board Meeting dated 2081/11/22.

031}
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ii. Related Party Transactions
Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities

Particulars No of Meetings Sitting Fees

Board Meeting 26 1,935,000

Audit Committee Meeting 8 152,000
Risk Management Committee 9 171,000
Assets Money Laundering Prevention Committee 8 80,000
Employees Facilities Committee 4 40,000
Building Management Committee 2 15,000
Total 2,393,000
In addition to above meeting allowance, the following amount have been paid to directors:
Particulars Chairman Other Directors Total Amount Paid

Reimbursement for Mobile & Newspaper 8,000 per month 8,000 per month 572,000
Total 572,000

Key Managerial Personnel's Emoluments and Facilities

Particulars Assistant Chief Asst. Deputy Chief Deputy Chief Executive | Chief Executive Officer
Executive Officer Executive Officer Officer

Salary and Allowances 4,205,820 4,989,000 6,430,000 9,775,000

Provident Fund 178,488 226,800 319,200 600,000

Leave and Gratuity 207,519 366,300 229,900 975,000

Statutory Bonus 651,235 790,855 1113,055 1,981,936

Total 5,243,062 6,372,955 8,092,155 13,331,936

In addition to above, the key managerial personnel are entitled to other benefits as per the policy of the bank.

Subsidiary and Associate Company
The transaction with the subsidiary and associate company during the year are as follows:

Particulars Muktinath Capital Ltd. Muktinath Krishi Co. Ltd.
Nature of Relationship Subsidiary Associate
Deposits Outstanding 95,317,433 47119,406
Interest Paid 2277327 1,023,696
Non-funded facilities - 4,704,043
Fees on non-funded facilities - 152,851
Dividend Received 17,388,206 -
RTS & Other Service Fees Paid 704,489 -
Rent Received - 266,664

Apart from the above transactions the Muktinath Capital Limited has been managing the portfolio limit of NPR 153.5
Millions on behalf of the Bank.

5.8 Merger and Acquisition

The Bank has neither entered into merger not acquired any bank and financials institutions during the reporting period.

5.9 Additional disclosure of non consolidated entities
The group financials includes the figures of the Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited and its subsidiary Muktinath Capital
Limited as per the provisions of NFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements. There are no such entities which are
required to be consolidated but not done during the year.

5.10 Events after reporting date
Events after the reporting period are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the
reporting period and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. The Bank follows NAS-10 "Events
after the Reporting Period" to account for and report the events that have occurred after the reporting period. Such
events may be adjusting and non-adjusting and are disclosed below.
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a. Adjusting Events
i. Recovery of Interest after reporting date and up to Shrawan 15, 2082

The Nepal Rastra Bank Directive requires the Bank and Financial Institutions to transfer the equivalent amount of 9
interest on loans and advances accounted as an interest income under the accrual basis of accounting but not °
recovered up to the end of reporting period to the Regulatory Reserve from the Retained Earnings. However, the same %'
directives has relaxed this provision with which Bank may not appropriate such amount in case it is recovered within z
the 15 days after the year end, i.e. 15th Shrawan.
In line with the aforesaid relaxation the gross amount of NPR 93,365,620 which was otherwise required to be —
appropriated to the Regulatory Reserves has not been so appropriated. The details are as follows:
Accrued interest receivable mm E
Less: Cessation of the interest on loan 376,398,587 168,862,971 &
Less: Interest recovered up to 15th Shrawn as per Directives No. 4 93,365,620 117,813,199 %
Amount required to be appropriated to Regulatory Reserves [before staff bonus & tax] 1.005,739,220 1170,250,392 %-
Amount already appropriated to Regulatory Reserves (before staff bonus & tax] 1481,329,610 650,958,582 -
Gross appropriations to the Regulatory Reserves [before staff bonus & taxes) (475,590,391) 519,291,810
Net appropriations to the Regulatory Reserves for unrecovered interest (236,701,338) 327,153,840 .
5.11 Additional Disclosures e
a. Loans and Advances extended to Promoters: %
The Bank has not extended any loans to promoters during the year. 3
£
b. Staff Skill Development Fund 3
The Bank and Financial Institution are required to allocate and spent at least 3% of the previous year salary and .
allowances for the staff skill development as per Directive 6 of the Nepal Rastra Bank Directives. In case the allocated %'
amount isn't spent, the same has to be carried forward to the next financial year in a Staff Skill Development Fund. In 2
line of this requirement, the movement on the Skill Development Fund is as follows: o
Opening Staff Skill Development Fund 21,317748 17123114
3% of the previous year salary and allowances 31,003,675 30,258,260 )
Total amount incurred for employee training and skill development program 21,776,348 26,063,626 %
Excess/[Deficit) amount incurred for employee training and skill development program 9,227,327 4,194,634 é
Staff Skill Development Fund carried forward to next year 30,545,075 21,317,748 §
c. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
Clause 13 of the NRB Directive No.B. requires the Bank to allocate 1% of its net profit to the corporate social
responsibility fund and spent the same for the social causes. The details of the movement of the Corporate Social -
Responsibility Fund is presented below:
Opening Corporate Social Responsibility Fund 12,088,411 13,814,578 g
Less: Expenses incurred from CSR Fund during the year 10,320,596 13,489,516 <
Add: Amount allocated to CSR Fund from current year net profit 13,503,604 11,763,349 ?
CSR Fund available for next financial year 15,271,420 12,088,411 §
(/2]
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Province wise and Sectorwise Corporate Social Responsibility Fund spending is as follows:

Province 32nd Asar 2082 Sector 32nd Asar 2082
Koshi Province 635,910 Education 1,653,683
Madesh Pradesh 804,583 Health 1103,308
Bagmati Pradesh 4,483,168 Social Projects & Relief 321,483
Gandaki Pradesh 2,827463 Environment 907,981
Lumbini Pradesh 880,325 Financial Literacy 4,202,449
Karnali Pradesh 249,999 Sustainable Development Goals 836,691
Sudur Paschim Pradesh 439,148 Others 1,295,000
Total 10,320,596 Total 10,320,596

d. Unpaid Dividend
The total cash dividend of NPR 14,521,914 which was approved by AGM of the bank during various previous years is

still payable to shareholders as at reporting date. The details are as follows:

Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3l1st Asar 2081

Total dividend payable in the books of Bank outstanding for more than S years 1124,484 1124,484
Total dividend payable with Bank's RTS Muktinath Capital Limited outstanding for

less than 5 years 13,397,430 13,780,333
Total Unpaid Dividend 14,521,914 14,904,817

e. Earning Per Share
The earnings per share calculated on the basis of the provision of NAS 33, Earnings per Share is as follows:

Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3l1st Asar 2081

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 1,350,360,375 1176,334,917
Number of ordinary shares as at year end (Face Value NPR 100/-) 70,469,380 70,469,380
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for computing EPS 70,469,380 70,469,380
Basic earnings per equity share 19.16 16.69

19.16 16.69

Diluted earning per share
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f. Non-Banking Assets

&

Non-Banking Assets (NBA] are the assets obtained as security for loans & advances and subsequently taken over by
the Bank. The following are the list of properties assumed by the Bank as the non banking assets during the course

Name of the Borrower Date of assuming NBA | 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

of debt recovery:

Oshon Fancyy Stores 6/26/2022 14,032,658 14,032,658
Shree Laxmi Bag Store 04/07/2022 7.333,470 7.333,470
Dilliram Oli 07/07/2022 10,716,273 10,716,273
Dipesh Guragain 15/07/2022 8,234,476 8,234,476
K.C. Falful Tatha Tarkari Pasal 16/11/2022 3,959,876 3,959,876
Dhanraj Pakhrin 11/27/2022 10,410,095 10,410,095
Gyan Sarathi Vidhyapitha Pvt. Ltd. 12/27/2022 53,362,590 53,362,590
Chaudhary Trade And Investment Pvt.Ltd 05/04/2023 31,873,477 50,762,338
Sita Didi Fancy Stores 13/04/2023 6,020,751 6,020,751
Sita Kumari Kunwar 13/04/2023 8,643,968 8,643,968
Sita Agro Farm 13/04/2023 750,760 750,760
Saraswati Timilsina 13/04/2023 174,521 174,521
Bageshwari Trade Concern Pvt.Ltd 7/11/2023 56,728,569 56,728,569
Yam Kumari Share Punja 1/12/2024 24,104,291 24,104,291
Yam Kumari Sher Punja 06/02/2024 403,223 403,223
Abipra And Ronish Ag 7/1/2024 24,738,276 24,738,276
B & B Iron Engineering Workshop 7/15/2024 41,376,712 44,000,733
Eurasia Manufacturer & Export Pvt. Ltd. 7/15/2024 29,791,083 29,791,083
Sittal Deurali Group 7/15/2024 35,286,292 35,286,292
Dahare Deurali Agro 6/25/2025 13,165,256 -
Dipesh Kumar Yadav 7/13/2025 4,846,020 -
Basanta Kumar Shrestha 7/14/2025 37,550,000 -
Padam Bahadur Thapa 7/16/2025 5,282,390 -
Bastra Fashion Store 4/16/2024 - 4,350,000
Resunga Traders 7/9/2024 - 38,700,000
Total 428,785,028 432,504,244

Non-Banking assets (NBA) as disclosed above is reported under Investment Property in Notes 4.12 and is carried at

the cost.

g. Loan written off
The Bank has written off the following loans pertaining to unrecoverable bad debts during the year.

Name of the Borrower Written off Amount

Namuna EKkikrit Krishi Farm 1,294,045
Babita Real Estate Pvt. Ltd. 8,075,215
Basanta Kumar Shrestha 14,800,602
Resunga Traders 19,300,731
Tikamani Pun 825,857
Avhiru Construction Pvt Ltd. 3,796,436
B.&B. Iron Engineering Workshop Pvt.Ltd 12,367,230
Nityasita Enterprises 2,343,564
Karma Tamang 1,092,369
Yogesh Raj Shrestha 1,090,265
S TJewellery 554,343
Total 65,540,656
Muktinath Bikas Bank ?255.5
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h.
The fair value hierarchy that the Bank has applied in measuring its financial assets and financial liabiliites is as

follows:

32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081

Financial Assets
i. Through FVTPL

Other Trading Assets Level 1 170,819 102,940 = =
ii. Through FVTOCI

Investment Securities - Quoted  Level 1 (3,211,0865) 11,187,604 (3.254,166) 11,154,448

Investment Securities - Unquoted Level 2 17820,887 3,094,800 17820,887 3,094,800
iii. At Amortised Cost

Cash and Cash Equivalent Level 3 7.210,367 3,382,291 6,583,140 3,134,540

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank Level 3 12,874,425 9,606,142 12,874,425 9,606,142

Placement with B&Fls Level 3 - - - -

Derivative Financial Instruments  Level 3 - - - -

Loans and Advances to BFls Level 3 1621,934 2,139,627 1,621,934 2,139,627
coans and Advances (o Level 3 97,223,243 91907309 97,223,243 91907309
Other Assets Level 3 583,920 712,156 525,029 639,173
Total Financial Assets 134,294,529 122,132,869 133,394,492 121,676,038
Financial Liabilities
i. Through FVTPL/FVTOCI
Liability for employees DBO Level 3 299,612.80 235,440.01 29782142 233,952.49
ii. At Amortised Cost
Due to B&Fis Level 3 3,718,026 769,622 3,718,026 769,622
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank Level 3 415,630 415,630 415,630 415,630
Derivative Financial Instruments Level 3 - - - -
Deposits from Customers Level 3 117,335,443 109,693,104 117.430,719 109,758,876
Borrowings Level 3 2,083 10,417 2,083 10,417
Other Liabilities Level 3 1,300,731 1,271,495 739,076 1169176
Debt Securities Issued Level 3 1,248,017 1247444 1,248,017 1247444
Total Financial Liabilities 124,319,543 113,643,151 123,851,372 113,605,116

i. Disclosure on Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
MoU with iDE Nepal
The Bank has entered into agreement with IDE Nepal, a global organization that advances market-based
approaches in agriculture; access to finance; and water, sanitation, and hygiene (WASH] to increase household
income by provided easy access to finance in climate-smart agriculture technologies, with a focus on women
and disadvantaged/marginalized groups, made possible through a bundled service offering that combined non-
traditional financial service [NTFS] loan and crop insurance products to stimulate commercial vegetable production.
The program included development and distribution of small-farmer, climate-smart agricultural loans from Muktinath
Bikas Bank through two mechanisms, one known as Business Correspondent/Wholesale Loan Model and Rural
Aggregation/Direct-to-Farmer Loan Model.

In pursuant to the terms of the agreement of iDE Nepal, the Bank has received the grant as the reimbursement of the
expenses incurred for the project and has accounted the grant received as per NAS 20, Accounting for Government
Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance The following amount has been recognised in Statement of Profit

and Loss Account as the grant income:

iDE Nepal 354,576
Total 354,576
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j- Disclousre Pursuant to NAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
A prior period error was identified in the financial statements for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (16 July 2024]), relating

to gratuity expenses. Gratuity expense of the following amount was charged in excess of the amount required, 9
resulting in the overstatement of employee benefit expenses and the understatement of profit before tax and retained e
. <
earnings for that year. o
=
In accordance with NAS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, the error has been
corrected retrospectively. The comparative figures have been restated as follows:
Particulars 31st Asar 2081 Adjustment Restated Amount -
Statement of Financial Position
Other L_|ab|||ty -Liability for employees Defined Benefit 135,947.317 (17563,865) 118,383,452 _
Obligations o
Reserves 3.187,868,297 3,688,412 3.191,556,709 &
0
Retained Earning 194,701,418 13,875,453 208,576,871 P
o]
Deferred Tax Assets 116,115,309 (5,269,160) 110,846,150 =
=3
Total Liability 114,516,956,292 (17.563,865) 114,499,392,427
Statement of Profit or Loss
Personnel Expenses- Gratuity Expense 48,116,856 17,563,865 30,552,991 -
Deferred Tax Income 28,936,515 (5.269,160) 23,667,356
Profit after Tax 1,176,334,917 12,294,706 1,188,629,622 E
The impact of this is provided in the current year financial statement by crediting the retained earnings with §'
corresponding debit to defined benefit obligations. g
k. Dividend Declaration e
The Board of Directors of the Bank has decided to declare a dividend for the Financial year ended 2081-82 out of the 2_
earnings of the current year as well as retained earnings of the previous years. 2
The amount of the dividend proposed in previous year is as follows: _
Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
Percentage Amount Percentage Amount
Stock Dividend 13.53 953,450,718 - - b
Cash Dividend 4.67 329,092,007 - - P
Total 18.20 1,282,542,725 - - 2
2
. . (0]
I. Concentration of Deposits and Loans & Advances
Particulars Loans and Advances
Percentage Amount Percentage Amount
Total Amount Outstanding (Gross) 100,328,950,991 94,680,301,515 117913,582,869  110,125,169,956 -
Highest exposure of single customers 748,900,000 696,190,000 3,361,375,466 2,681,577428
Concentration of exposure to single customers 0.75% 0.74% 2.85% 2.44% @
Total exposures to twenty largest customers 6,733,511,875 5,765,527,645 15,686,221,206 11,907,247,230 %
Concentration of exposure to twenty largest 671% 6.09% 13.30% 10.81% §
customers 2
el
@
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=
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m. COVID Relaxations Related
The Bank has extended various COVID related relaxations in line with NRB Directions and the internal product paper.
The outstanding and number of customers facilitated are as follows:

Particulars 32nd Asar 2082 3lst Asar 2081
No.of Customers Amount No.of Customers Amount
o Acorued interest received after Asar end 2082 8256 93,365,620 11,852 117813199
till 15 Shrawn 82
- Extension of moratorium period of loan
provided to industry or project under = = = =
construction
- Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan 1524 2442,975,036 2.824 5445207689

Loss Provision

- Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20%
to COVID affected borrowers

- Enhancement of Term Loan by 10% to COVID
affected borrowers

-+ Expiry Date of Additional 20% Workings
Capital Loan(COVID Loan) extended for up to 1 - - - -
year with 5% provisioning

- Time Extension provided for repayment of
principal and interest for up to two years as - - - -
per Clause 41 of NRB Directives 2

The refinance and business continuity loan detail is as follows:
32nd Asar 2082
No. of Customers

Particulars

3lst Asar 2081

Amount No.of Customers Amount

- Refinance Loan = - - _

- Business Continuity Loan - > - -

5.12 Classification of Loans, Advances & Bill Purchase and Provisioning
a. Loans,Advances & Bill Purchase and Regulatory Provisioning

Particulars Current Year

Previous Year

Total Loan and Total Loan and

ANETGES Provisions PNVEGER Provisions

. Performing Loan and Advances 97,349,413,224 1,341,270,232 92,439,221,780 1,489,207,337
11 Pass Loan 90,485,733,065 999,737,285 87,738,019,684 1,251,919,257

111 Pass Loan [other than
Restructured/Rescheduled Covid 88,042,758,029 878,235,269 82,292,811,996 981,218,081

Related)

e Egzikgfjégegmgtggf:tg d] 2,442,975,036 121502016  5.445.207689 270701176
1.2 Watch List 6.863.680,160 341,532,947 4,701,202,095 237,288,080
. Non-Performing Loan and Advances 2,979,537.767 2,217,659,913 2,241,079,735 1,276,156,274
2.1 Restructured / Rescheduled - - - -
2.2 Sub-standard 460,176,986 113,943,526 854,655,572 212,372,815
2.3 Doubtful 825,095,491 411,130,116 633,816,520 315,540,665
24 Loss 1,694,265,290 1692,586,272 752,607,643 748,242,794
3. Total Loan and Advances (1+2) 100,328,950,991 3,558,930,145  94,680,301,515 2,765,363,611
4. Staff Loans 976,050,817 - 843,934,063 -
5. Accrued Interest 1,099,104,841 - 1,288,063,591 -
6. Grand Total (3 + 4 + 5) 102,404.,106,650 3,558,930,145  96,812,299,169 2,765,363,611
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b. Loans, Advances & Bill Purchase and NFRS-8 Provisioning

This financial year marks the first-time adoption of the Expected Credit Loss ([ECL) model for calculating impairment
allowances. In accordance with the NFRS 9 — Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024, impairment on

credit exposures has been recognised as the higher of the total ECL computed under NFRS 9 and the impairment
requirement prescribed by the regulatory provisions in the Unified Directives.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Gross Loan and Impairment Gross Loan and Impairment
Interest Accrued Allowances Interest Accrued Allowances
1. Loans to Customers & BFls
11 Stagel 88,479,403,656 413,831,705 86,958,674,339 931,400,733
12 Stage 2 8,662,876,029 492,511,287 6,411,542,213 255,096,851
1.3 Stage 3 4,587,035,346 2,048,327174 2,725,494,785 824,123,522
Total Loans to Customers & BFls 101,729,315,030 2,954,670,167 96,095,711,337 2,010,621,106
2. Staff Loans and advances 976,050,817 3,188,456 843,934,063 7972743
3. Non-funded facilities 1,296,561,200 1420,248 755,929,526 1,294,449
Total 104,001,927,046 2,959,278,871 97,695,574,927 2,019,888,298

5.13 Comparative Figures
Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year's
presentation.

As per our report of even date

Sanijiv Poudel Pradyuman Pokharel Khim Prakash Malla Narayan Kumar Shrestha Anil Paudel
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director Proprietor

AP.& Associates
Bharat Prasad Lamsal Binod Kumar Sharma Saroja Shrestha (Koirala) Umesh Kumar Acharya Chartered Accountants
Director Director Director Independent Director

3lst Bhadra, 2082 | Kathmandu, Nepal
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5.14 Variations between Audited and Unaudited Financial Statements

Particulars Unaudited Audited Reasons for Variance
Financial Financial
Statement Statement Amount %
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalent 6,583,139,582 6,583,139,582 - - -
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 12,874,425,202 12,874,425,202 - - -
Placement with Bank and A B B |1
Financial Institutions
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - - -
Other Trading Assets - - - - -
Loans and Advances to BFIs 1,621,933,849 1621,933,849 = ==
coans and Advances o 97515825122 97223242655  [292582467)  (0.30) :ggig@ ;ﬂ?’f;{?gﬂﬁsc_harges
Investment Securities 14564290073 14566721514 2431441  0p2 [O1Yadlustment on valuation of
Current Tax Assets - 17184,441 17184,441 - -
Investment in Subsidiaries 244,045,905 244,045,905 - - |-
Investment in Associates 155,550,000 155,550,000 = =|=
Investment Property 428,785,028 428,785,028 - - -
Property and Equipment 2207320424 2101433314 (105,887110)  (4.80) [MPact of NFRS-I6 Lease
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 10,617,716 10,617,716 - - -
Deferred Tax Assets 104,949,718 124,762,354 19,812,636  18.88 Final calculation of deferred tax.
Other Assets 593,913,667 568,361765 (25551902 (4.30) anvgfffegag‘;‘;fé't‘;” of deferred
Total Assets 136,904,796,286 136,520,203,325 (384,592,961)  (0.28)
Liabilities
ue to Banks and Financial 3718026296 3718026296 - 1
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 415,629,581 415,629,581 - - -
Derivative Financials Instrument = = = |-
Deposits from Customers 117430,718,877  117430,718,877 - - -
Borrowings 2,083,333 2,083,333 - - -
Current Tax Liabilities 54237929 - (54237929) (100.00) afgﬁa%zae”i%epiﬁoﬁ_x liability with
Provisions 1,300,000 - (1,300,000) (100.00) Reclassification to other assets.
Deferred Tax Liabilities = = = ==
Impact of lease liability under
Other Liabilities 2,058,321730 1,895,658,330 (162,663,400)  (7.90) NFRS 16 and other petty
adjustments.
Debt Securities Issued 1,248,016,742 1,248,016,742 - - |-
Subordinated Liabilities = = = ==
Total Liabilities 124,928,334,488  124,710,133,159 (218,201,329) (017) -
Equity
Share Capital 7046,938,049  7,046,938,049 - - -
Share Premium - - - - |-
Retained Earnings 1462,501585 1354101747  (108,399.838)  (7.41) igaur;agt%lr; ?r;%fzcat_”d s
Reserves 3467022164  3,409,030,370 (57991794)  (1.67)
g?]‘:r'e'iqo‘fg;’r‘s\“”b”"“b'e Ly 11976461798 11810070166  (166,391,632) (139
Non Controlling Interest = = = ==
Total Equity 11,976,461,798 11,810,070,166 (166,391,632)  (1.39) -
Total Equity and Liabilities 136,904,796,286 136,520,203,325 (384,592,961) (0.28) -
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Particulars Unaudited Audited Reasons for Variance
Financial Financial
Statement Statement Amount %

Interest income as per NRB

Interest Income 11,046,060,400 11,048,870,736 2,810,336 0.03 guidelines and other petty
adjustments.

Interest Expense 6488837065  6471,380,952 (7456113 (0.27) yrand® in interest cost under

Net Interest Income 4,557,223,335 4,577489,784 20,266,449 0.44 -

Fees and Commission Income 647,674,496 648,291,957 617,461 0.10 Petty adjustment.

Fees and Commission Expense 90,027,533 90,119,934 92,401 0.10 Petty adjustment.

Net Fee and Commission Income 557,646,963 558,172,023 525,060 0.09 -

ietInterest, Fee and Gommission 5114870298 5135661807 20791509 041 -

ncome

Net Trading Income 9,158,922 9,158,922 - --

Other Operating Income 50,920,415 51,044,730 124,315 0.24 Petty adjustment.

Total Operating Income 5,174,949,635 5,195,865,459 20,915,824 0.40 -

Impairment charge/(reversal) for Impairment added by the

loans and other losses 2le|lls N PREplElEe e Statutory Auditors and NRB.

Net Operating Income 4,611,916,599 4,402,298,924 (209,617675)  (4.55) -

Operating Expense

Personnel Expenses 1654266152 1646265133 Elianors) BIEZE) mial e SR
petty adjustment.

Other Operating Expenses 461,333,659 445922198 i e SEER N SO
other petty adjustment.

Depreciation and Amortisation 265868407 295057896 g cee| g RS O EEEEE B Mgt
use assets under NFRS 16.

Operating Profit 2,230,448,381 2,015,053,697 215,394,684 9.66

Non Operating Income 1,466,664 1,466,664 - --

) Loan written off in line with NRB

Non Operating Expense 1,294,045 65,540,656 64,246,611 496479 Instruction.

Profit before Income Tax 2,230,621,000 1,950,979,705 (279,641,295) (12.54)

Income Tax Expense
Due to change in profit and tax

Current Tax 686,105,101 614,682,731 (71,422,370)  (10.41) computation as per income tax
act.

Deferred Tax 7,084,467 (14,083,401 (21,147,868) (298.51)

Profit for the Period 1,537,431,432 1,350,360,375 (187,071,057) (12.17) -

| 80UBUIBA09 | meiney souewiopiad | uonealn anjep | MBIAIBAQ

suoday Aioinieis

J!
5
o
=)
Q,
ol
A
o)
o
o
=t
(7




i
!?.'"..Annes!.!?%eer_t

5.15 Statement of Principal Indicators of last 5 Financial Years

- FY 2077-78 | FY 2078-79 | FY 2079-80 | FY 2080-81 | FY 2081-82

1. Core Capital (In 000) 6,481,619 7452454 8,157,836 8,542,674 10 466,809
2. Supplementary Capital (In 000) NPR 817,385 2,502,574 2,711,910 2,017,365 1,973,414
3.  Total Capital Fund (In 000) NPR 7,299,004 9,955,028 10,869,746 10,560,039 12,440,223
4. Risk Weighted Exposure (In 000) NPR 65,237,412 84,386,577 92,316,929 90,301,639 96,579,550
5. Earnings Per Share NPR 24.03 2372 19.44 16.69 19.16
6. Market Value Per Share NPR 657 440 407 367 405.92
7.  Book Net Worth Per Share NPR 141.98 14277 145.82 148.00 167.59
8.  Number of promoter Equity Shares Nos. 24,538,911 28,851,622 32,746,594 35,939,387 35,939,387
9. Number of public Equity Shares Nos. 23,576,597 27,720,184 31,462,409 34,529,994 34,529,994
10. Number of Permanent Staffs Nos. 1,547 I’SSS 1663 1,565 1429
11.  Price Earning Ratio Times 27.34 18.55 20.94 2199 2118
12, Bonus Dividend on Share Capital Percent 17.58 13.50 975 - 13.53
13. Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent 0.93 071 0.51 = 4.67
14.  Net Profit/ Gross Income Percent 30.51 35.01 26.83 2476 25,818
15. Interest Income/ Loans and Advances Percent 8.37 1079 13.04 1276 9.80
16. Exchange Gain/ Total Income Percent 0.14 0.21 0.30 0.20 0.23
17 g‘;‘jrrgvsvtifggensey olke] Dotz 2l Percent 552 786 976 8.68 551
18. Total Operating Expenses/Total Assets Percent 163 151 1.62 181 175
19. Staff Expenses/ Total Operating Expenses  Percent 65.92 64.89 65.36 66.15 66.45
20. Staff Bonus/Total Staff Expenses Percent 16.56 17.64 13.99 12.02 1317
21. Total Credit/Deposits Percent 8276 82.58 8189 85.09 81.59
22. Non-Performing Loan/ Total Loans Percent 0.23 0.212 0.98 2.37 3.03
23. Net NPL Percent 012 011 0.38 102 076
24. Base Rate Percent 8.05 1115 11.68 878 710
25. Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread Percent 448 4.51 4.59 4.59 3.87
26. Net Profit/Total Loans & Advances Percent 1.51 150 129 125 137
27. Net Profit/ Total Assets Percent 114 11 0.95 0.94 0.99
28. Liquidity Ratio Percent 24,07 26.32 25.67 2401 25.57
29. Cost of Fund Percent 6.26 9.24 9.52 6.54 4.90
30. Interest Yield on Loans Percent 1078 1376 1418 1116 8.82
31. Return on Total Assets Percent 114 111 0.95 0.94 1.03
32. Return on Equity Percent 16.94 16.61 13.33 11.28 12.14
33 ISI(L)JLT:]?::Sof Branch including extension Nos. 158 177 178 179 179
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Nagarkoti Susan & Associates Email  : nfol@nsassociates.com.np
" Contact ;+977-9851335843, 9849290844

Chartered Accountants

Tokha-03, Kathmandu, Nepal

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The Shareholders of Muktinath Capital Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s. Muktinath Capital Limited,
Kathmandu, Nepal (hereinafter referred to as “the company”), which comprises the statement of
financial position as at Ashad 32, 2082 [July 16, 2025] and statement of profit or loss, statement of cash
flow & statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes (hereinafter referred
to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects,
of the financial position of the company as at Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025) and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended on that dare in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSA’s). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the
Institute of Chartered Accountant of Nepal’s code for professional accountants (ICAN Code) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matiers to be communicated in
our report,

Key Audit Matters
1. Valuation of Investment
Investment of the company comprises of Our audit approach regarding valuation of
investments in listed Shares, Initial Public investment, impairment, its accounting
Offerings, Mutual Funds and Fixed Deposits.  includes:

Our Audit Approach and Responses

a. We ensured classifications and
accounting of investments made by

5'-.244’: Muktinath Bikas Bank




Kev Audit Matters Our Audit Approach and Responses

The classifications, valuations and disclosures of | company and its valuation were in

the aforesaid investment shall be done in line accordance to NFRS 9 and NFRS 13

with NFRS 9 financial instruments; NFRS 13 Issued by Accounting Standards Board of

Fair Value Measurements; NFRS 7 Financial Nepal.

Instruments: Disclosure. Investment made in _

listed securities and mutual fund has been b. We ensured the correctness of the

treated as Investment held for trading and valuation of investment valued ar

recognised as Fair Value Through Profit and amortised  cost  through  sample

Loss. And investment in fixed deposits have  verification of effective interest rate and

been measured at amortised cost. | amortization schedule.
c. For the investment made on quoted
equity instruments & units of mutual
fund, we ensured that fair value has been
done at the closing transaction rate in
NEPSE as on 32.03.2082. Investment in
promoters shares of unlised companies
has been valued at cost. However,
investment in promoter shares of listed
‘entities has been valued at the higher of
average its book value; 40% of price of
‘ordinary shares; 100 or 100.

2. Revenue Recognition:

Revenue comprises of Income from Merchant  Our audit approach reparding revenue

Banking Activities, Interest Income from fixed = recognition with respect to merchant banking

deposit, Other Income, and Net Gain/ (loss) due  income and portfolio management service

to fair value change on financial instruments held | income includes the following among other

for trading, things:

. . . a. Ensured the portfolio management
In view of primary business of the company service revenue has been recognised on
being the merchant banking we have considered the basis of pms contract agreed with the
merchant banking income and portfolio client at the time of agreement and in line
management service income as key audit matters with NFRS 15.

in our audit.
b. Ensured the related fees like
performance fees, exit fees has been
calculated and recorded as per the

agreement in the timley manner.

c. In case of contract based income,
relevant NFRS accounting treatment has
been adopted and in line with NFRS 15.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concetn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to
cease operations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggrepgate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidences that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that ate appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the approptiateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidences obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events ot conditions that may cast sipnificant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncerrainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s repott to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures ate inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidences obtained up to the date of our auditot’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Tvaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

¢ Muktinath Bikas Bank



o
<
@
<
@

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 2

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and <

belicf were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, proper books of account as required 2

by law have been kept by the organization in so for as it appears from our examination of those books g

of account of the company. In our opinion the statement of financial position, statement of profit or 3

loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity & statement of cash 2

flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory S

notes have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2063 and are in

agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the company. In our opinion and to the best of

information and according to the explanation given to us and from the examination of the books of —

accounts of the company, we have not come across any case where the board of directors or any

employee of the company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or committed -

any misappropriation or caused any loss or damage to the company. °
o
S

For Nagarakot Sus 2

Chartered Accoun e
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CA. Susan Nagarkoti

Proprietor

Date: 2082/05/19

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal g
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Statement of Financial Position
As on Ashad 32,2082 (16 July 2025])

Figures in NPR

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 41 712,503,278 298,523,443
Investment Securities- Investment Securities through FVTPL 42 170,818,863 102,940,285
Investment Securities- Investment Securities through FVTOCI 4.3 - -
Financial Investment-Held for Maturity 44 52,917,000 47,567,000
Other Financial Assets 4.5 58,292,122 62,914,526
Other Assets 46 941,559 11,067,622
Current Tax Assets 47 - -
Investment Property 48 33,115,680 33,115,680
Property and Equipment 49 3.134,129 5,389,027
Right of Use Asset 491 3,348,150 5,435,905
Intangible Assets 410 944,332 342,523
Deferred Tax Assets 411 1114,903 190,480
Total Assets 1,037,130,016 567,486,490
Liabilities

Due to Public/Refundable to Investors 412 72,190,083 63,841,620
Other Financial Liabilities 413 27807362 32,189,019
Other Liabilities 414 460,229,110 6,888,119
Current Tax Liabilities 47 12,378,579 3,794,357
Other Provisions 415 7100,832 7168,315
Deferred Tax Liabilities 411 - -
Total Liabilties 579,705,966 113,881,431
Equity

Share Capital 416 405,000,000 405,000,000
Share Premium 40,405 40,405
Retained Earning 417 37,740,523 37,526,017
Reserves 418 14,643,122 11,038,638
Total Equity 457,424,050 453,605,059
Total Liability and Equity 1,037,130,016 567,486,490
Contingent liabilities and commitment - -
Net Assets Value 112.94 112.00

Notes 1to 5.8 Forms integral part of Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

Samir Sekhar Bajracharya Dandapani Dhakal Umesh Regmi Lila Nath Dhakal For Nagarkoti Susan & Associates
(Chairman/ Director) Director Director Director Chartered Accountants

CA. Susan Nagarkoti
Deepanjali Khakurel Suman Koirala Kabindra Bikram Dhoj Joshi Kamala Karki Proprietor

Director Director CEO Head-Accounts

19th Bhadra, 2082 | Kathmandu, Nepal
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Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Period commencing on Shrawan 1,2081 and ending on Ashad 32,2082 Figures in NPR -
Particulars \ICEM For the Period Ended | For the Period Ended §
Ashad 32,2082 Ashad 31,2081 <.
(0]
Revenue z
Revenue from Operation 419 67207406 44,204,241
Net Gain/[Loss) on Financial Investments-HFT 4.20 17,080,403 8,536,236
Other Income 421 18,564,190 49,830,716 o
Total Revenue 102,851,999 102,571,193
Expenses <
Employee Benefit Expenses 422 27,220,734 26,096,076 Dci
Operating Expenses 423 19,610,931 18,040,249 %
Depreciation and Amortization 4.24 4,766,166 5,534,611 o
Total Expenses 51,597,832 49,670,935 S
Profit before Tax from Continuing Operations 51,254,168 52,800,258
Income Tax —
Current Year Tax 4.25 17,526,142 14,761,093
Deferred Tax (Income)/Expenses 425 (924,424) 1121178 py
Profit for the Year 34,652,450 37,017,987 :O:
3
Earning Per Share 8.56 9.14 o
3
Notes 1to 5.8 Forms integral part of Financial Statements §
<
s
3
As per our report of even date
Samir Sekhar Bajracharya Dandapani Dhakal Umesh Regmi Lila Nath Dhakal For Nagarkoti Susan & Associates o
[Chairman/ Director) Director Director Director Chartered Accountants
CA.SL_Jsan Nagarkoti
Deepanjali Khakurel Suman Koirala Kabindra Bikram Dhoj Joshi Kamala Karki Proprietor
Director Director CEO Head-Accounts b
<
@
19th Bhadra, 2082 | Kathmandu, Nepal =
2
(0]
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the Period commencing on Shrawan 1,2081 and ending on Ashad 32,2082
Particulars \[eICEM For the Period Ended | For the Period Ended o
Ashad 32,2082 Ashad 31,2081
Profit for the Year 54,652,450 57,017,987 2
Gains/(Losses) on Remeasuring Available for Sale Financial Assets - - g
Gains/(Losses] on Acturial Valuation of Defined Benefit Liability - - <
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 34,652,450 37,017,987 .
Income Tax Income/(Expense] relating to components of other _ ) -_81
comprehensive income 7

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax 34,652,450 37,017,987

Notes Ito 5.8 Forms integral part of Financial Statements

-
As per our report of even date §

Samir Sekhar Bajracharya Dandapani Dhakal Umesh Regmi Lila Nath Dhakal For Nagarkoti Susan & Associates .
(Chairman/ Director) Director Director Director Chartered Accountants ol
CA. Susan Nagarkoti 3

Deepanijali Khakurel Suman Koirala Kabindra Bikram Dhoj Joshi Kamala Karki Proprietor '8
Director Director CEO Head-Accounts 3
7

19th Bhadra, 2082 | Kathmandu, Nepal

Muktinah Bikas Bank 24 ¢



i
!?.'"..Annes!.!?%eer_t

Statement of Cash Flow
For the Period commencing on Shrawan 1,2081 and ending on Ashad 32,2082 Figures in NPR

Particulars For the Period Ended | For the Period Ended
Ashad 32,2082 Ashad 31,2081

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Merchant Banking Income 19,098,864 16,999,726
Mero Share Online Income 4,704,600 3,658,950
Underwritting Income 7,306,924 10,521,024
Portfolio Management Income 12,053,421 4767673
Fund Management Fee 10,883,225 -
Fund Depository Fee 1451,097 -
Advisory Income 5,993,517 3,584,309
IPO/FPO Issue Income 2,600,000 300,000
Pledge Income 319,250 199,000
Auction Income 240,000 360,381
Issue Management Income 100,000 1,575,000
RTS Income 2,456,508 2,238,178
Other Income 3,281,854 14,170,974
Less: Personnel Expenses (27,093,587) (26,096,076)
Less: Operating Expenses (19,613,927) (18,040,249)
Add/Less: Prior Period Adjustment (251,174) (82,431)
Operating Cash Flows Before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities 23,530,573 14,156,460
(Increase)/Decrease In Operating Assets

(Increase)/Decrease In Financial Assets 4,622,404 (16,866.788)
(Increase)/Decrease In Other Assets 10,126,063 (9,962,428)

Increase/(Decrease) In Operating Liabilities

Increase/(Decrease) In due to Public/Investor 8,348,463 -
Increase/(Decrease) In Financial Liabilities (4,381,658) (17.566,470)
Increase/(Decrease) In Provisions (67,483) 2,270,010
Increase/(Decrease) In Tax Provision 8,584,222 8373728
Increase/(Decrease) In Other Liabilities 453,340,990 (3.173,419]
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities Before Tax Paid 504,103,575 (22,768,907)
Income Taxes Paid (17.526,142) (14,761,093)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 486,577.433 (37,530,000)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Investment Securitites - Quoted (213,034,453) (90,903,050)
Sale of Investment Securities - Quoted 191,906,271 44,706,666
Purchase of Investment Securitites - Unquoted (10,000,000) -
Sale of Investment Securities - Unquoted = =
Purchase of Investment Securitites - Mutual Fund (25,000,000) (1,000,000]
Sale of Investment Securities - Mutual Fund 3,620,935 993,188
Liguidation from Fixed deposit - -
Purchase of Investment Securitites - Debentures - 4,457749
Sale of Investment Securities - Debentures 10,234,921 -
Investment in Fixed Deposit (14,000,000) (30,000,000)
Purchase of Property and Equipment (161,155) (1.166.878)
Receipt from the Sale of Property and Equipment - -
Purchase of Intangible Assets (960,500) (168,398)

Receipt from the Sale of Intangible Assets = =
Purchase of Investment Properties - -
Receipt from the Sale of Investment Properties - -

250 Muktinath Bikas Bank



Particulars For the Period Ended | For the Period Ended
Ashad 32,2082 Ashad 31,2081

(@)
Increase/Decrease in ROU 96,333 (133,034) 5
Interest Received 13,636,181 35,183,833 <
(0]
Dividend Received 1646,154 475,909 s
Net Cash used In Investing Activities (42,015,313) (37.554,016)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from Issue of Shares = = —_
Share Premium - -
Expenditure from corporate social responsibility (207,285) (29,600)
Dividends Paid (30,375,000) = 5
Interest Paid - - §
Net Cash from Financing Activities (30,582,285) (29,600) %
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents 413,979,836 (75,113,616) %.
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2081 298,523,443 373,637,058 =
Effect of Exchange Rate Fluctuations on Cash and Cash Equivalents Held - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Ashad end 2082 712,503,278 298,523,443 o
Notes 1to 5.8 Forms integral part of Financial Statements
o
As per our report of even date :O:
3
Samir Sekhar Bajracharya Dandapani Dhakal Umesh Regmi Lila Nath Dhakal For Nagarkoti Susan & Associates )
[Chairman/ Director) Director Director Director Chartered Accountants 3
CA. Susan Nagarkoti @©
Deepanjali Khakurel Suman Koirala Kabindra Bikram Dhoj Joshi Kamala Karki Proprietor 1
Director Director CEO Head-Accounts %-
=
19th Bhadra, 2082 | Kathmandu, Nepal
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